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1 BE | T REMEMBERED t hat the above-entitled and 1 CHMN. KATZ: Good morning, everybody. Thisis
2 nunbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the 2 our third day in the CEC-171 amendment hearing. And all
3 Arizona Power Plant and Transnission Line Gting 3 of the folks that we need to be here are here.
4 Committee at Biosphere 2, 32540 South Bi osphere Road, 4 And if you're ready to continue, | believe,
5 Oacle, Arizona, conmenci ng at 9:03 a.m on the 8th day 5 Mr. Acken, you were in the midst of your Cross
6 of September, 2022. 6 examination of Mr. Else. Isthat correct?
7 7 MR. ACKEN: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
8 BEFORE: PAUL A KATZ, Chairman 8 CHMN. KATZ: Feel freeto continue when you're
9 DANI EL SCHVWEI BERT, Arizona Corporation Conmi ssion 9 ready.
10 BE\C/:I'\ISRFDREDS&@N%ZPOEIJJ rTgenptar?fnelrzwrtwIorfor\]/\ra.{;ter:etralRe?cJ){:}lrIcte>s/ 10 MR. ACKEN: Well d i Chai
11 JAR/\éiSaP)&iLdNE%,CORf Eirgﬂlc%re Interests b . f th IS, good mor(.jnmg’ i A |
12 ) Bt Eeee) s 1a e EL S Good mamineC moming. Mr. Else
13 K}}R(I_:KGEGI\?'II'II\IFQISE,L%eng?gImIIDL?bSI ic (via videoconference) |13 o
JACK HAENI CHEN, General Public .
14 MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, PE, General Public 14 PETERT. ELSE,
15 15 called as awitness on behalf of Peter T. Else, having
16 APPEARANCES: 16 been previoudly affirmed or sworn by the Chairman to
17 For the Applicant: 17 speak the truth and nothing but the truth, was examined
18 ACKEN LAW 18 and testified as follows:
M. Al bert H Acken .
19 Phoenix. A zoha 88030 e 172 19
20 ’ 20 CROSS-EXAMINATION (Cont.)
21 For Intervenor Wstern Resource Advocates: 21 BY MR. ACKEN:
22 Vh/\fESTEg’;ImREIS%J?oCFdAWOCATES 22 Q. I'dliketo have shown on the screen tht vye
23 1429 North 1st Street, Suite 100 23 have marked as SZA-11, and for the record thisis
24 Phoeni x, Arizona 85004 24 Commission Staff |etter responding to the chairman's
25 25 request for information concerning the project.
Page 434 Page 436
1 APPEARANCES: (Cont.) 1 Thark you.
2 For Intervenor Pinal County: 2 MR. ACKEN: Mr. Else, can you see that?
j &MFE%’NEIY é\;\tl?P'FX S OFRICE 3 CHMN. KATZ: And what exhibit number isthat
u un or ne .
5 Ei (;B'r ence 8Ar7iyzona 851):;2 4 agan? P
: 5 MR. ACKEN: Thiswill be SZA-11.
6 For Intervenor Peter T. Else: 6 MR. ELSE: Yes, | can seeit and | recall it.
7 M. Peter T. B se 7 BY MR. ACKEN:
8 LnPrpria_tersona 8 Q. Andsoyou havereviewed it?
9 Mammoth, Arizona 85618 9 A. |didwhenitwasfirstissued.
10 10 Q. And your testimony concerning WECC, isit fair
11 11 to say you have concerns about the reliability impacts of
12 12 thisproject?
13 13 A. Some concerns on reliability impacts that could
14 14 be caused at the terminal point of the project, yes.
15 15 Q. If wecould turnto the conclusion of this
16 16 letter.
17 17 And the first paragraph after Conclusion and
18 18 Recommendation reads, "Based on Staff's review of the
19 19 application, aswell as SunzZiads response to a
20 20 Staff-issued data request, Staff believes the proposed
21 21 Project could help improve reliability, safety of the
22 22 grid, and the delivery of power in Arizona."
23 23 Do you see that?
24 24 A. ldo.
25 25 Q. Anddo you disagree with Commission Staff's
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1 conclusion? 1 Southline Project. And you reference federal EIS scoping
2 A. Wadl, | had areservation, so | wrote to the 2 suggestions for Southline.
3 Utilities Division and asked them if they were basingthe | 3 Whose suggestions were those?
4 previous paragraph about the WECC conducting a path 4 A. Thoseare-- | first learned about this by
5 rating study, if they were basing that on the 2021 path 5 reading the scoping report that was published by the BLM,
6 rating study, or the new one that was underway. And | 6 and that scoping report just had text, in that it didn't
7 did not hear back yet from the Utilities Division. 7 have the diagrams that were associated and referenced in
8 Q. Soldon'tknow that | heard an answer to my 8 thetext.
9 question. So do you disagree with Staff's conclusion 9 So the -- from the text, it was obvious that
10 that | read into the record under -- 10 Southline had made some scoping comments. So | went to
11 A. |do, because of the information that's missing. 11 their website, looked them up, asked if they could send
12 Q. Thank you. And again, you are not an electrical 12 out their scoping comments, and they did. It wasa
13 engineer; correct? 13 two-page document.
14 A. That'scorrect, but | did know about the status 14 Q. Sothisisadocument from Southlineitself?
15 of the new Phase 2 of the WECC process, because | 15 A. Correct.
16 obtained information from WECC on that. 16 Q. And Southlineisalso an independent merchant
17 Q. Understood. Let'sgo to Slide 35 of your 17 transmission project?
18 presentation. And thisdlide presentsdiscussion of High |18 A. Asfar as| understand, | think they have one
19 Plains Express and aso some conclusions regarding 19 segment that's contiguous with Western Area Power
20 economics. 20 Administration, so | don't know what that statusis. But
21 Isthat afair characterization? 21 | assumeit'samerchant project.
22 A. Yes. It doeshave some conclusory statements. 22 Q. Andsowhyin2021is Southline proposing
23 Q. Andareyou an economist? 23 changesto its project? Do you know?
24 A. No. 24 A. They weren't, to my knowledge.
25 Q. Andsoyour conclusionsregarding economics, are |25 Q. And so what isthe current eastern terminus of
Page 438 Page 440
1 those-- inthisdide and others -- are those based on 1 the Southline project? Do you know?
2 any project-specific studies? 2 A. It'sin Southern New Mexico.
3 A. They'rebased -- well, the last one about 3 Q. Okay. Sothey're not proposing changesto go to
4 backfilling with dispatchable fossil-fueled energy 4 the Sunzia?
5 involving operational and economic challenges, that's 5 A. No. They'renot. Thisdiagram was strictly
6 actually aquote from the 2008 High Plains Express 6 alternatives. The scoping processis designed to take
7 feasibility report. 7 suggestions from the public on other aternatives that
8 Q. My questionwasalittle different. | was 8 should be considered in an EIS process, and this -- it
9 asking whether you had any -- conducted any studies 9 wassome of their suggestions for possible route
10 regarding economics of the SunZia project? 10 alternativesfor the SunZia project.
11 A. No, | havenot. 11 Q. Understood. But -- and so, but it's your
12 Q. Andwith respect to the High Plains Express 12 understanding Southline is not proposing to change its
13 project, do you know if that's an active project? 13 terminusto connect?
14 A. It'snot currently an active project, to my 14 A. No. It'snot.
15 knowledge. 15 Q. Okay. Thank you. Slide 40, you refer to
16 Q. Anddoyouknow why that is? 16 Southline as a change from the 2015 record; isthat fair?
17 A. Wséll, they conducted those two studies and they 17 A. | refertothefact that the record shows at the
18 said that there were probably going to be some economic |18 time we conducted the 2015 hearing, Southline didn't even
19 shortcomings and they decided not to move forward. 19 haveitsfederal permit or its state permit, whereas
20 Q. Soit'sfairto say that High Plains Expressis 20 SunZiahad itsfederal permit and was seeking its state
21 not proceeding based on economics? 21 permit.
22 A. Asfarasl understand, that's the reason why 22 So it was described in the record by Mr. Wray
23 they stopped progressing, yes. 23 that Southline was not as far along in the permitting
24 Q. Thank you. Moving forward to Slide 39, now 24  process.
25 we're going to talk about your discussion of the 25 Q. Andeventhoughitwasnot asfar aonginthe
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1 permitting process, you still advocated before this 1 Do you see what I'm referring to there?
2 Committee and the Commission and onjudicial reviewthat | 2 A. | do.
3 the Southline project was preferred to SunZia; is that 3 Q. Andyetonthemapthat -- SunZia A-9, it shows
4 correct? 4 collocation all the way from approximately -- I'm going
5 A. Youdhaveto-- you'd haveto tell me exactly 5 tohavetoseeif | canread that -- where there'san APS
6 when| said that. Areyou sayingthat| -- 1 -- | 6 and TEP transmission lines near an existing power plant
7 remember that | was advocating for that during the 2015 7 going north al the way to Pinal Central, all of that is
8 linesiting process, and | can't recall if | did during 8 collocated with existing transmission lines.
9 the court action subsequent. 9 Do you see that?
10 Q. Okay. But certainly during the Committee and 10 A. Ildo.
11 Commission proceedings, you advocated for -- 11 Q. Anddoyou understand that thisisan accurate
12 A. 1did. I did. | remember | included it as one 12 depiction of power line collocation?
13 of the exhibits and so did Mr. Meader. 13 A. Yes That would be a more accurate map, the one
14 Q. Andl showed adlidein my opening that wasfrom |14 on theleft.
15 your request for review from the Commission decision 15 Q. Okay. Thank you.
16 approving SunZiain which you were advocating for 16 One last question for you on collocation. You
17 Southline as an alternative. 17 understand that SunZiaLine 2 will be 100 percent
18 Do you recal that? 18 collocated with SunZiaLine 1?
19 A. Idont, butitwouldn't surprise meif I did 19 A. |do,yeah.
20 haveitin my request for review. 20 Q. Soyoureferto SunZia2 asbeing, | believe,
21 Q. Wouldyou like meto show it to you or you 21 redundant of Southline; correct?
22 accept it? 22 A. Correct.
23 A. I'll take your word. 23 Q. But, infact-- but, infact, SunZiaLine 2 will
24 Q. Okay. Thank you. Next | would like to show 24 havefar greater, in fact, you can't have greater
25 SZA-9 on one screen, and the other screen has ELSE-13, |25  collocation with another transmission line with SunZia
Page 442 Page 444
1 Slide4l. 1 Line 2 ascompared to Southline?
2 For the record, EL SE-13, Slide 41 shows a 2 A. Mr. Acken, when | refer to redundant, | was
3 comparison, Mr. Else, that you prepared of collocationin | 3 referring to redundancy in function. That was not a
4 Arizong; isthat correct? 4 referenceto collocation.
5 A. Yes Wdl, I had one of my colleagues prepare 5 Q. Oops. Slide40-- well, let'stalk about
6 it. | was putting together awhole lot of documents and 6 Slide41. You tak about, so when you say SunZia
7 | said canyou just highlight the portions, | know the 7 collocation and you provide a percentage, you're
8 percentages, but | don't have a diagram to show it. 8 referring to SunZialLine 1?
9 Q. Soyoudonot--on Slide 41 it does not show 9 A. Correct.
10 collocation with the El Paso natural gas transmission 10 Q. Wouldyou agree with me that the collocation
11 lineinthe San Pedro River Valley; isthat correct? 11 percentage for SunZiaLine 2 would be 100 percent?
12 A. That'scorrect, becausein the legend, al the 12 A. Assuming Line 1 gets approved and built, yes.
13 highlighted areas, if you look down at the legend down 13 Q. Okay. Thank you.
14 below on the lower left, the highlighted areas are 14 | want to talk with you about lighting
15 collocations with existing power lines. 15 requirements. And you understand that the FAA is
16 Q. Understood. But you would acknowledgethat the |16 requiring SunZiato install lighting on five towers;
17 SunZiaproject isalso co -- will aso be collocated with 17 correct?
18 thenatural gaslinesin the San Pedro Valley; is that 18 A. Ildo.
19 correct? 19 Q. Andyou understand that the FAA initially wanted
20 A. That'scorrect, aswould the Southline project 20 21towerslit?
21 with other collocations besides power lines. 21 A. | understand that also.
22 Q. And]I have another question for you on this map. 22 Q. Anddoyou understand that SunZiaworked with
23 Asit goesnorth toward Pinal Central, your exhibit shows |23 the FAA, Pinal County, to address local residents
24 just alittle area of collocation asit approaches Pina 24  concernsto reduce the number of structures that must be
25 Centra. 25 lit?
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1 A. ldo. 1 how much bigger the new DC plan would make those towers.
2 Q. Andyou understand that lighting is a safety 2 Q. Butyou understand now after hearing the
3 requirement imposed by the FAA? 3 testimony of SunZia'switnessesthat it is unrelated to
4 A. Understood. 4 the structure change?
5 Q. Andyou understand the CEC requires compliance 5 A. ldo
6 with all applicable federal requirements? 6 Q. Anddidyou hear the testimony of Dr. Darrington
7 A. | understand that. 7 that only acouple of towers with lights would be visible
8 Q. Andyou understand that the existing CEC does 8 from the state park parking area?
9 not prohibit the use of lighting asrequired by FAA? 9 A. |did hear hisopinion on that, yes.
10 A. Yes 10 Q. Andyoudon't have any reason to disagree with
11 Q. Andyou arefamiliar with the 2013 Federal 11 that, doyou?
12 Environmental Impact Statement; correct? 12 A. | don't have any basisto agree with it, either,
13 A. [I'mfamiliar withit, yes. | haven't memorized 13 because | haven't seen any -- | mean, | haven't -- |
14 all the pages, but I'm familiar. 14 personally haven't seen any -- any simulations of this,
15 Q. If you had memorized it that you would be -- 15 and | only got the determination less than aweek ago.
16 that would beimpressive. | don't know that anyonehas |16 Q. And you understand that he testified under
17 accomplished that. 17 oath that that was the results of his preliminary
18 And you understand that 2013 FEIS was 18 assessment?
19 incorporated in the 2015 CEC record? 19 A. Hispreliminary assessment, yes. That's how |
20 A. | understand that is part of the record. 20 would characterize it.
21 Q. Anddoyouunderstand that the 2013 FEIS stated, |21 Q. And, again, you don't have any studies to
22 "TheFAA does not have regulatory control over the 22 counter -- contradict that, do you?
23 placement of structures on the ground, but doeshavethe |23 A. I'veonly had it for aweek, sono, | don't.
24 regulatory control over lighting of any structures 24 Q. AndsohasSunZia
25 considered hazards or structures more than 200 feet in 25 A. Yeah
Page 446 Page 448
1 height above ground"? 1 Q. If I understood you correctly in your discussion
2 A. Yeah. | understand that. My only provision on 2 of FAA lighting issue that you -- now that the number of
3 that wasthat this was never cited in sworn testimony, 3 structures that need to be lit has been reduced, you're
4 andsol didn't -- and all of my searches were from the 4 really just asking Pattern to engage with the local
5 2015 record. 5 community regarding the required lighting; isthat fair?
6 And because | haven't memorized all the pages of 6 A. My --my positionisif the community is happy
7 2013, 1 didn't even know that it wasin there until you 7 withit, then I'm happy with it.
8 brought it up recently. 8 Q. Okay. Soyoudon't oppose, yourself, the
9 Q. Andyou do understand that 2013 FEIS was part of 9 requirement, the FAA requirement for lighting?
10 therecord? 10 A. | can't. That would be -- that would be
11 A. ldo. I do. 11 violating federal law.
12 Q. Okay. Anddo you understand that structures 12 Q. Okay. Andif Pattern workswith the local
13 located in close proximity to airports might be 13 community, communicates with the local community, that
14 considered potential hazards by the FAA? 14 would address any concerns you might have; is that fair?
15 A. Yes 15 A. Yeah, I think their biggest concernisthe
16 Q. Anddoyou understand that the FAA'slighting 16 international dark sky designation. Becauseit's been
17 requirement is unrelated to the requested amendmentsthat |17 reduced down to five towers, | think there will probably
18 SunZiaismaking in this proceeding? 18 belessblowback from the perspective of real estate
19 A. Totheonesthat you stated, yes. 19 valuesand stuff. Certainly much lessthan it was with
20 Q. |don'tunderstand your qualification. 20 21 towerslit.
21 A. Therearethreerequested amendments, and FAA 21 So it appearsto methat if the international
22 requirements are unrelated to all three. The only one 22 dark sky designation is not put in jeopardy, that the
23 that it could possibly have been related to when | first 23 community would probably feel like they could live with
24 looked at these amendments was thefirst one, havingto |24 it.
25 dowith the changein structures. Because |l didn'tknow |25 Q. Thank you for that.
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1 Slide 46 includes -- and thisisin your 1 San Pedro Valey at that time?
2 presentation -- includes a reference to environmental 2 A. Yes. | remember that statement.
3 justice. Do you seethat? 3 Q. And that includes Condition 267
4 A. Yes 4 A. Yes lItcertainly included Condition 26. It
5 Q. Do you understand that an aternative route 5 included the whole CEC.
6 through Tucson was rejected back in the 2015 proceeding | 6 Q. And there, in fact, were many conditions
7 duein part to greater impacts on environmental justice 7 regarding mitigation measures to meet the Gold Standard
8 communities? 8 Mitigation Plan; isthat correct?
9 A. Yes, | remember al those discussions. 9 A. That'scorrect.
10 Q. Okay. Andsoyouwould--youhavenoreasonto |10 Q. Andyou, yourself, participated in the
11 disagree with the conclusions at that time that a route, 11 development of those conditions; is that correct?
12 andternative route through Tucson would have far 12 A. Yes. Wemade suggestions at the beginning of
13 greater environment justice impacts? 13 deliberations, and then there was alot of horse trading
14 A. Yes Andthis-- thisparticular quote here 14 that took place afterwards.
15 that | highlighted, it was -- it was done on the basis of 15 But in that particular CEC process, the
16 the assessment of visual impacts at that time. 16 intervenors weren't really involved with making
17 Q. Okay. Maybe| missed the answer. 17 objections or anything like that.
18 Would you agree that the currently-approved 18 So the discussion was pretty much turned over to
19 route has less impacts on environmental justice 19 the Committee, and the Committee would occasionally ask
20 communities than an alternative through Tucson? 20 an expert who was there as they were doing these
21 A. | would agree with that, yes, because of the 21 deliberations.
22 numbers of people that were in Tucson. 22 Q. And sothe Committee thoughtfully deliberated
23 Q. Thank you. 23 regarding CEC conditions to implement the Gold Standard
24 Y our seventh asserted change concerns 24 Mitigation Plan?
25 Condition 26 compliance, as | understand that. |s that 25 A. Theydid. And| guess my point there was that |
Page 450 Page 452
1 far? 1 had no further input once deliberations started.
2 A. That'sfair. 2 Q. Andisityour position that the conditions
3 Q. Andyou raised concerns with the San Pedro 3 imposed by this Committee met that Gold Standard
4 Alignment during the original CEC proceeding; correct? | 4 Mitigation requirement?
5 A. Correct. 5 A. Waell, wefound out later on 26 --
6 Q. Andyou raised the concerns with the San Pedro 6 Q. My questionisdifferent. Asdrafted, wouldyou
7 Alignment before the Committee; correct? 7 agree that the CEC conditions constitute the Gold
8 A. Yes 8 Standard Mitigation Plan?
9 Q. Beforethe Commission, correct? 9 A. Asdetermined by the Committee, yes.
10 A. ldid. 10 Q. Okay. Thanks. Andwell get to Condition 26
11 Q. Andbefore--injudicial review; correct? 11 right now.
12 A. ldidinthe--yes, | did. 12 If I could have Condition 26 from the approved
13 Q. Andduring my opening, | showed an excerpt from |13 CEC shown on one dide -- or one screen. Thank you.
14 the Superior Court decision. Do you recall that? 14 And if we could, maybe, | think it breaks over,
15 A. Yes | dorecdl it. 15 soif it'spossible to show 13 and 14, so all of
16 Q. AndI'mparaphrasing it, and we can present it 16 Condition 26 is being shown. Thank you.
17 if you prefer, but basically the judge said that the 17 So the right-hand screen shows Condition 26 as
18 Commission considered the special status of the San Pedro |18 approved by this Committee and the Commission. The
19 River area, but ultimately determined that that was the 19 left-hand screen shows Slide 55 from EL SE Exhibit 13.
20 best route due to greater impacts in other areas. 20 Y ou identify or refer to what you call a
21 Isthat correct? 21 loopholein condition -- CEC Condition 26, condition --
22 A. | recall the judge saying that, yes, and then 22 well, let me stop there.
23 she added more to that. 23 What is the asserted loophole in Condition 267
24 Q. And so thejudge concluded that the Commission 24 A. Wadl, | wasjust discussing this this morning
25 and the Committee did give lawful considerationtothe |25 with Cindy Freeman. And as-- as the Committee stated
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1 it, inthis condition that we see on the right-hand 1 LinksRoad. Mile marker 15isright -- oh, isthis Three
2 screen, it left the door open to developing awork area 2 LinksRoad right here? Yeah. Okay. So it would be
3 and accessin theriparian portion of the Page Canyon 3 right there, right? If thisis Three Links Road, mile
4 wildlife connectivity corridor. 4  marker 15 isright there.
5 So, in effect, it left aloophole to cause 5 Q. And then, sowhich portion of Cascabel Road
6 impactsinthe most vulnerable portion of the Page Canyon | 6 cannot be used from Three Links Road, then further south?
7 wildlife connectivity corridor. That'swhat I'm 7 Canyou show usthe entire area that you would request
8 referring to as aloophole. 8 the Commission prohibit the use of ?
9 Q. Butl'mnotfollowing. The condition requires 9 A. I'mtill getting oriented on this map.
10 theapplicant to -- well, identify and require the 10 Q. Oh,sure. Takeyour time.
11 necessary stepsto avoid the creation of new roads, 11 A. Because-- that isnot the location of Three
12 including employment of aeria construction, and then 12 LinksRoad. So hereisthe-- | believe thisisthe
13 within the San Pedro River Valley in an eight-milearea. |13 Cochise-Pima County lineright here. Isthat correct?
14 So avoiding the creation of new roads, how is 14 And there's aroad down here called Three Links
15 that aloophole? 15 Road, it'sright where Cascabel Road pavement ends, and
16 A. Aswritten, Mr. Acken, there was no violation of 16 sothat would be the southern part. And then the
17 Condition 26. We can just cut right to that conclusion. 17 northern part would be right up about here.
18 Asthe condition iswritten, there was no possible 18 This map doesn't show enough detail for me to be
19 violation of Condition 26 taking place. 19 absolutely certain, but that's my guess.
20 And my purpose in raising thisin my testimony 20 Q. | appreciatethat. And -- and understand that
21 wasto try to get that condition changed. 21 you're--you're providing ballparks.
22 Q. And soyou anticipated one of my questions, 22 How would equipment and heavy machinery reach
23 which s of course the asserted noncompliance with 23 thisareaunder your proposed condition that I'm showing
24  Condition 26. 24 in Pima County, like | said up here on Cascabel Road, if
25 Do | understand that you are withdrawing that 25 they cannot use this segment of Cascabel Road?
Page 454 Page 456
1 allegation? 1 A. Yeah, | wasjust discussing that this morning
2 A. Yes 2 with aconstruction person who's associated with this
3 Q. Thankyou. I'dliketo show SunZia A-9. 3 project.
4 If we could have SZA-9 on the right screen, or 4 And the way it would happen is because there's a
5 swap them. Thank you. 5 gpecia designation here of that eight milesin Page
6 So on the left-hand screen we have EL SE 6 Canyon, there'swhat are called fly yards. One would be
7 Exhibit 13, Slide 62. On the right-hand screen, we have 7 set up right there, or two maybe.
8 SZA-9. 8 And then there was another one that's on the
9 Slide 62 shows your regquested revision to 9 plan of development that would be set down toward the end
10 Condition 26; isthat correct? 10 of Ocotillo Road, which is on the west side of theriver.
11 A. That'scorrect. 11 And we've been discussing having an operations
12 Q. Andyou arerequesting that the Commission 12 yardin Benson, and then another operationsyard in
13 prohibit the use of Cascabel Road from mile marker 15t0 |13  San Manuel as away to approach with construction
14 the Cochise-Pima County boundary for avariety of 14 equipment both from the north and from the south.
15 purposes. Isthat fair? 15 And then to have some restrictions that are
16 A. That'sfair. 16 still being worked out on a certain segment of Cascabel
17 Q. Doyou have apointer? 17 Road that's critical to the wildlife connectivity
18 A. Pardon me? 18 corridors of Page Canyon, Hot Springs corridor, Scotia,
19 Q. Doyou haveapointer? 19 and| -- 1 don't think it extends all the way up to Edgar
20 A. |dont. 20 becauseit only comes up to the Pima County line.
21 Q. Okay. One'scoming over. 21 Q. Soif I understand you correctly, you are
22 A. Thanks. 22 currently or you had some negotiations with SunZiathis
23 Q. Canyou show mewhere Mile 15 is on Cascabel 23 morning regarding a potential modification of -- to your
24 Road? 24 proposal?
25 A. Yes. Thisparticular map does not show Three 25 A. Tryingtowork out wording for a condition, yes.
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1 Q. Areyou withdrawing your proposed revision to 1 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman?
2 Condition 26 at thistime? 2 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Grinnell.
3 A. It'sbeingrevised, but it will be 3 MEMBER GRINNELL: | don't know if it's
4 substantia -- it will likely be substantially different 4 appropriate for usto ask any questions.
5 from what's stated here. 5 CHMN. KATZ: You can ask questions. You
6 Q. Wadll, I canshorten up my crossif you -- if 6 might -- | don't know if you want to right now --
7 it'struethat you're withdrawing Condition 26 as you 7 MEMBER GRINNELL: Well --
8 proposed the revision, then | won't ask you further 8 CHMN. KATZ: Or if it's on this point --
9 questions. 9 MEMBER GRINNELL: Yes.
10 But if you're still preserving that until these 10 CHMN. KATZ: -- everybody on the Committee will
11 other discussions are complete, | will moveforward. And |11 have achance to question the witness.
12 that'sjust aquestion. 12 MEMBER GRINNELL: With the original
13 A. Yeah, | mean until it'scomplete, that's the 13 Condition 26, | noticed the word "helicopters.” Am |
14 only onethat | have on the record. That's the one that 14 correct there?
15 | docketed. 15 MR. ACKEN: Yes, correct.
16 Q. Okay. So,andsol'll --I'll be brief, 16 MEMBER GRINNELL: And | guess now with this
17 understanding that this may -- this may change. 17 revision, | don't see any helicopters being -- the name
18 But if your revision as originally proposed is 18 being exhibited. And was there any other areas along the
19 adopted, would you agree that in order to get equipment |19  transmission line where helicopters were discussed that
20 tothisareain Pima County area, Cascabel Road, 20 I'm-- that we're not seeing?
21 equipment would have to travel through Oracle, and then |21 MR. ELSE: Do you want to take that, Bert?
22 down 77 through Tucson, and then back through Benson, |22 MR. ACKEN: Wéll, you're under oath if you want
23 rather than just following north in amore direct route 23 toaddressit.
24 on Cascabel Road? 24 MR. ELSE: Okay. Sointhisrevision of my
25 A. That'swhy we've been talking about two centers 25 condition it doesn't use the word "helicopter," it uses
Page 458 Page 460
1 of operation, one in San Manuel, and one in Benson for 1 aeria construction." So you'll note on the third line,
2 staging al the heavy stuff. 2 it --"including the employment of aeria construction.”
3 | want to also point out in your question, you 3 And then on the last line, "Nothing in the
4 said that the equipment and the heavy equipment would 4 foregoing prevents the use of aerial construction along
5 haveto passthrough Oracle. Oracleis set back from 5 other portions of the route.”
6 Highway 77, so it would pass along Highway 77. 6 So, you know, it was hoped originally during the
7 Q. Butyouwould agreein order to get equipment to 7 CEC hearing that other areas -- well, | had hoped, along
8 thislocation in Pima County on Cascabel Road, if -- if 8 the San Pedro would also employ aerial construction. But
9 Cascabel Road cannot be used, that equipment would have | 9 likel said, | -- | was not alowed to enter those wishes
10 totravel on 77 through Tucson past Oracleand downto |10 during the deliberations.
11 the 10 and Benson? 11 And far as| know the new plan of development
12 A. Wadl, therestwoways. | mean, youcangodown |12 doesnotinvolve aerial construction anywhere else, at
13 through Oro Valley in Tucson 77. Or youcancutoverto |13 least in the San Pedro area.
14 1-10 on-- | forget the name of that road. But it's 14 MEMBER GRINNELL: What about on the west side of
15 just -- it's north of the intersection of 77 and 79. 15 Oracle, if you will, and Highway 77 asit crosses over to
16 Q. Okay. But youwould agree those are longer 16 797 Isthere any other discussions with aerial
17 routesthan using Cascabel Road? 17 construction?
18 A. Itwould add -- it would add inconvenience to 18 MR. ELSE: Not that | know of.
19 the construction, yes. 19 MEMBER GRINNELL: All right. I'mjust alittle
20 Q. Wouldyou agreethat in addition to 20 confused. Sothisaerial constructionis strictly along
21 inconvenienceit would increase vehicle milestraveled? |21 the San Pedro route?
22 A. Yes 22 MR. ELSE: It'saong, yeah, just one eight-mile
23 Q. Andwould you agree that increased vehiclemiles |23 stretch of the San Pedro route that crosses, what | --
24 traveled increases emissions? 24 what | showed in my testimony yesterday that crosses the
25 A. |agree 25 special designation, Page Canyon area.
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1 MEMBER GRINNELL: All right. Thank you. 1 A. That'scorrect. | barely had time just to
2 CHMN. KATZ: And onething | would ask aswell, | 2 assemblethe onesthat arein my exhibits.
3 since we have anew but highly talented court reporter, 3 Q. Sonext!want totak with you about the three
4 if our Committee members have questions and | don't 4 requests that SunZia has requested.
5 identify and say, "Go ahead, Member So-and-So," youmay | 5 Do you oppose SunZias request to extend the
6 want tojust state what your nameis at least the first 6 expiration date of Line 1 by two years?
7 timearound to make sure that our court reporter knows 7 A. |dont.
8 whoweall are, or -- and/or make sure your nametag is 8 Q. Thank you. Do you oppose SunZias request to
9 readily visibleto her. 9 bifurcate the CEC to allow for separate ownership of
10 Thank you, go ahead, Mr. Acken. 10 LinelandLine2?
11 MR. ACKEN: Thank you, Chair. 11 A. Idonot.
12 BY MR. ACKEN: 12 Q. Do youoppose SunzZias request to authorize the
13 Q. Mr. Else, you agree that the original CEC 13 useof different tower types, both with respect to AC
14 required aeria construction in an eight-mile segment of |14  structures from the Pinal -- from the DC converter
15 the San Pedro River Valley; correct? 15 station near Pinal Central, and the DC structures that
16 A. |agree 16 would allow the use of MRCs?
17 Q. Andthat ispursuant to existing Condition 26? 17 A. Based onthe testimony that was given under oath
18 A. Correct. 18 about the average height of the new -- that the new
19 Q. Andisityour understanding that aerial 19 structureswould result in, | don't oppose that
20 construction comes at a great cost? 20 conversion.
21 A. Itismy understanding. 21 Q. Thank you. Next| was going to bring up your
22 Q. Okay. Doyou recall -- or do you know what the 22 proposed form of order. Are you withdrawing your
23 cost of aeria construction in that eight-mile segment 23 proposed form of order at thistime, or should we walk
24 is? 24  throughit?
25 A. | heard this morning that it was tens of 25 A. No, I'mnot -- I'm not withdrawing it at this
Page 462 Page 464
1 millions. 1 time. It'stheonly onel have on the docket at this
2 Q. Andthatisaeria construction that this 2 time, so I'd hate to just give a blanket withdrawal of
3 applicant isstill committed to doing pursuant to 3 theentirething.
4 Condition 26? 4 Q. Okay. If wecould bring Mr. Else's proposed
5 A. Yes 5 form of order.
6 Q. Atacost of tensof millions of dollars? 6 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.
7 A. Correct. 7 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Grinnell.
8 Q. Andobvioudly if aerial construction amounts are 8 MEMBER GRINNELL: Forgive me my ignorance here,
9 increased, it will have, you would agree it would have 9 if Mr. Else--isit Else?
10 additional increasein cost? 10 MR. ELSE: Else.
11 A. Yes And! understand that's why Mr. Wray 11 MEMBER GRINNELL: Else. I'm sorry, sir.
12 bargained usto -- to the eight-mile stretch. 12 -- supports al three of the amendments, what is
13 Q. My last question about Condition 26, potential 13 the-- | guess, you know, if counsel's made his point,
14 amendments thereto, you understand all of that is 14 what's the use of moving further?
15 unrelated to the three requested amendments that SunZia |15 MR. ELSE: From my perspective, and what |
16 haspresented in this proceeding? 16 stated in all my responsesto the initial application to
17 A. | understand that, yes. 17 amend, isthat there are moreissuesinvolved in the
18 Q. Okay. Soon Slide 63, you have five main 18 changes from the 2016 CEC than were identified by the
19 conclusions, and | just want to confirm, you have no 19 applicant.
20 independent studies on which to base your conclusions; |20 And my testimony was to point out additional
21 correct? 21 changesthat have happened, because the only time there's
22 A. Theonly studiesthat | have that were 22 any opportunity to review substantial changes without
23 independent are the ones that | cited in my exhibits. 23 going to court iswhen it comes again before the line
24 Q. Andyou have not, yourself, conducted any 24 diting committee. So, I'm not an attorney.
25 studiesin support of these conclusions; correct? 25 MEMBER GRINNELL: I'm not either, and thisis
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1 why I'mtrying to get to this. Our charge hereisto 1 becausel got anote from Tod earlier isto send him
2 address the three amendments to the original application 2 copies of those two ordersfor review. | don't think he
3 that was approved by the Committee, by the Corporation | 3 hasthem.
4 Commission, and then upheld in court. 4 MR. ACKEN: My apologies. | will resend.
5 And so from my understanding of our ability or 5 CHMN. KATZ: Go ahead.
6 disability, all we're under -- ability to make any 6 MR. ACKEN: Okay. Thank you.
7 decisions on are the three amendments. And | don't see 7 BY MR. ACKEN:
8 if you agreeto those three amendments, | don't seewhere | 8 Q. Soat thistime, Mr. Else, you are proposing a
9 any information being introduced is considered 9 separate form of order for the Committee's consideration;
10 substantial. 10 isthat correct?
11 MR. ELSE: It's-- | believeit's, Committee 11 A. That'scorrect.
12 Member Grinnell, | believeit's substantial in that 12 Q. Sol'dliketo go through some of the statements
13 there'sadeliberation process that will involve 13 inthat. And that isshown on the screen. If we could
14 conditionsto the two CECs that are being proposed. 14 go through, just drop down to the text and we'll kind of
15 The two CECs are going to have to be changed 15 go through these line by line unless | can have control
16 anyway. Becausethe way they're written now -- well, for |16 somehow.
17 example on page 4 of the original CEC, it states that 17 Okay. Let'sgo back up.
18 Willow Substation will be used for both of the proposed |18 Y ou have conducted no studies of your own in
19 lines. 19 support of finding of fact and conclusions of law No. 2;
20 So we know that has to be changed. And then 20 correct?
21 there are going to be other changes in the condition -- 21 A. | havenot conducted any independent study of my
22 inthe conditions of those two CECs that will apply 22 own.
23 exclusively to each CEC. 23 Q. With respect to your proposed finding and fact
24 Therell be a different deadline specified in 24 and conclusion of law No. 3, you understand Line 2 does
25 each of those two CECs. 25 include -- the approva includes the planned Willow
Page 466 Page 468
1 So | assume that there are going to be 1 Substation; correct?
2 deiberationsthat follow al thistestimony where all of 2 A. Mr. Acken, werelooking at CEC for Line 1.
3 that can bediscussed. And my testimony for some of 3 Q. Okay. Butthissays"The Project," so should
4 those changes had to do with changesthat needtobemade | 4 thisread --
5 inthe Conditions to the two CECs. 5 A. "TheProject" refersto each of the two new
6 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Acken, let mejust ask you, 6 owners. Sotheway | laid out thisthing was | had CEC
7 you're not proposing that we review the entire CECsthat | 7 for Line 1, findings of fact and conclusion of law. And
8 were previously issued; correct? You're proposing an 8 thenl did CECfor Line 2.
9 order that would grant the proposed amendments to the 9 So if you talk about project for the first line,
10 CEC, whatever they might be. 10 that would be Pattern Energy, and if you talk about
11 MR. ACKEN: That iscorrect. Our proposed form |11 project for the second line, then that would be El Rio
12 of order, and there are two because, again, we're 12 Sol.
13 reguesting that the existing CEC be bifurcated. 13 Q. Okay. And sowhat you're saying here, if |
14 Our proposed form of order lays out the 14 understand it correctly, your reference to project is not
15 procedura history and the nature of therequest andthen |15 both lines, it'sjust Line 1?
16 provides, you know, draft conclusions of law, findingsof |16 A. Correct.
17 fact for the Committee to take action on our three 17 Q. Andyou understand that Line 1 is subject to
18 proposed amendments. 18 open access requirements of FERC; correct?
19 We are not requesting any -- we have not 19 A. | understand that, but | also understand that
20 requested any amendments to the CEC -- CEC conditions, |20 it's extremely expensive to add new substationsto aDC
21 excuse me. And so you don't seethat in our draft form 21 line. And that isthe whole reason why the open bid
22 of order. We are -- we accept the existing CEC 22 process was pretty much restricted to the origin of
23 conditions, we're complying with the existing CEC 23 Line1, whichisin central New Mexico.
24 conditions, al 37 of them. 24 Q. Okay. But doyou understand that if someone
25 CHMN. KATZ: Theonething | would ask youtodo |25 wanted to interconnect, they could seek to do so even
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1 withLinel1? 1 A. ldo
2 A. Attheorigin point, they certainly could 2 Q. Okay. And, again, you've not conducted any
3 economically. At the other points along that line, it 3 studies of your own?
4 would probably be cost prohibitive. But it is possible, 4 A. No. I'mnot -- | don't conduct studies.
5 and that's the question you asked. 5 Q. Andthefinding of fact 3, that is based ssimply
6 Q. Yes. Thank you. 6 on counting substations; is that correct?
7 And you don't have any studies or information in 7 A. Yes. It'smuch easier to connect when there's
8 support of your finding of fact, conclusion of law No. 4, 8 an existing substation than when you have to pony up the
9 doyou? 9 money to build one.
10 A. Wadl, thefirst part | do because of the 10 Q. Andwhatisthebasisfor that statement? Have
11 evidencethat it terminatesin Arizona. 11 you ever sited, developed, permitted a utility scale
12 The second part, that says, "Not in the states 12 generating facility?
13 whereits main markets arelocated." That'sbasedonmy |13 A. I'venever done that, no.
14 testimony that -- where |'ve concluded that the main 14 Q. Okay. Soyoudon't have any firsthand knowledge
15 markets will be in areas where the rate of electricity is 15 to support that statement --
16 much higher. 16 A. My firsthand knowledgeisthat you just can't
17 Q. Yeah, and you haven't conducted any studies 17 hang -- you just can't hang a transformer can on an extra
18 to confirm -- 18 high voltage line, that it does require access through a
19 A. |havenot. 19 substation.
20 Q. Yeah, and you haven't conducted any studiesto 20 Q. Anddo you understand that this Committee on a
21 support finding of fact No. 5, have you? 21 regular basis hears of new projects interconnecting with
22 A. | haven't conducted any studies, that's correct. 22 existing transmission lines and installing associated new
23 Q. Andyou haven't conducted any studiesin support |23 switchyards and substations?
24  of finding of fact 67 24 A. ldo.
25 A. No. I'mnot in the business of conducting 25 Q. Andwith respect to No. 4, do you still stand by
Page 470 Page 472
1 studies. I'minthe business of gathering them. 1 thatasitrelatesto Line2?
2 Q. Okay. And with respectto 7, | understand your 2 A. IfLinelis--isapproved and built, then |
3 position now that the project refersto just Line 1, and 3 can't stand by that. Because in my language, the mess
4 it'syour position that it's not adequately collocated. 4 will have already been made.
5 How do you define adequately? 5 If Line 1 gets approved, then there will be a
6 A. | woulddefineit as-- intwo ways. Having a 6 new utility line established, and that it could
7 very high percentage of collocation and avoiding an 7 potentially involve future collocation which is a huge
8 ecologicaly -- large amounts of ecologically sensitive 8 concern of mine, because of my interest in the San Pedro
9 aress, that's how | would define adequate collocation, 9 Vadley.
10 following existing impacts to the highest degree 10 Q. AndI had the same question on Condition 26 I'm
11 possible, which iswhat the federal standard is. 11 goingto ask if you have the same answer of whether you
12 Q. Andwithrespect to No. 9, do you still stand by 12 withdraw that statement.
13 that proposed finding of fact? 13 A. Which statement are we working on again?
14 A. Theway that Condition 26 isworded right now, | 14 Q. Finding of fact 6.
15 can't stand by No. 9. 15 A. Yes, as-- asCondition 26 isworded, there
16 Q. Thank you. 16 would have been no violation to it.
17 Let's move forward to findings of fact and 17 Q. Andfinding of fact 7, we talked about this
18 conclusionsof law for Line 2. If we could scroll down. |18 yesterday. Your referenceis not the actual ground
19 With respect to the finding of fact No. 2, what 19 disturbance, but to right-of-way acquisition; is that
20 areyou referring to there? |sthis Southline? 20 correct?
21  A. Yes, I'mreferring to Southline as redundancy in 21 A. Right-of-way acquisition and vegetation control
22 function. 22 and, Mr. Acken, the biggest impacts are probably the
23 Q. Andyou understand, of course, that Southlineis 23 instalation of the towers on the ground. And so that
24 not actually interconnecting at the same location as 24 would double.
25 Line2? 25 But then there's also every time you add a new
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1 easement, you're adding more control of vegetation for 1 origina CECs, then that's what we're looking at.

2 safety and the prevention of -- safety issuesin case a 2 Do these CECs -- do the original -- are the

3 firegets started or something like that. 3 origina CECs substantially affected by the three

4 Q. Andwhat trend are you referring to in Finding 4 amendments?

5 of Fact 8? What other projects have been identified 5 And that doesn't mean we can't hear some

6 other than the two lines for Sunzia? 6 discussion aswerereviewing Mr. Acken's order to

7 A. Theresno other projectsthat have been 7 amending -- the Committee can request it. You can

8 identified at thistime, but there isafederal policy 8 requestit, Mr. Stafford, Mr. Costello can request

9 that requires collocation with existing infrastructure to 9 changesto the proposed order as we go throughit.

10 the highest degree possible. 10 But ultimately the Committee is going to decide
11 So you end up with any new corridor that's 11 whether or not to adopt that order, and there may be some
12 established becoming a magnet, so to speak, for future 12 additionsto that order that you might propose.
13 projects. 13 MR. ELSE: Yeah, | understand that. It'sthe
14 Q. Andwould Line 2 establish that trend? 14 language about the relationship of changesin the
15 A. Tobetruthful, Line 1 would. 15 conditionsto the three opposed -- to the three proposed
16 Q. Thank you. 16 amendmentsthat could be the stickler for me.
17 A. Probably should have added itto Line 1. 17 Sowhat I'll dois!'ll say at this paintin
18 MR. ACKEN: | believe that's all the questions | 18 timel will oppose al three amendments, and if it turns
19 have. Thank so much for your patience and 19 out that there are conditions developed that alay all my
20 responsiveness. 20 concerns, then | would stop opposing the approval of all
21 MR. ELSE: Thank you, Mr. Acken. 21 three proposed amendments.
22 CHMN. KATZ: Any questions, Mr. Stafford? 22 CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
23 MR. STAFFORD: No questions, Chairman. 23 MR. ELSE: Thisis mainly because | understand
24 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Costello? 24  that the Committee will make its recommendations and then
25 MR. COSTELLO: No questions, Chairman. 25 thiswill go tothe Commission.

Page 474 Page 476

1 CHMN. KATZ: Do you have any rebuttal 1 And if it'sanything like the last time | went

2 testimony -- not rebuttal but redirect, that you'd like 2 through this, I'll have an opportunity to speak in front

3 tooffer, Mr. Else? Pleasefed free. 3 of the Commission when that happens.

4 MR. ELSE: | do. 4 CHMN. KATZ: Y ou most definitely will have an

5 5 opportunity to speak in front of the Commission, because

6 REDIRECT TESTIMONY 6 they will have to approve any orders amending the

7 7 origina CEC that the Committee might agree to.

8 MR. ELSE: From listening to the discussion this 8 MR. ELSE: Okay. Thank you.

9 morning, if it turns out that all we're goingtodois 9 CHMN. KATZ: Do you have any other statements
10 change-- | forget what Mr. Acken called it, the order? 10 that you want to make based upon the cross-examination?
11 MR. ACKEN: The form of order. 11 MR. ELSE: No, not based -- well, one.

12 MR. ELSE: The form of order and that there will 12 Because | was asked about Dr. Darrington's

13 be no opportunity to address conditionsin thetwo CECs, |13 testimony, that there would be no significant difference
14 then | would like to withdraw the statement that | just 14 invisual impacts near the San Manuel airport due to the
15 madeto Mr. Acken about me not opposing the three 15 lighting and then the hanging of the red marker balls on
16 amendments. 16 thelines.

17 If that's the case, that we do not have an 17 | don't agree with that. That's an opinion.

18 opportunity at this proceeding to address revisions and 18 And | know that when you light atower and when you hang
19 additions of conditions, then | will continue to oppose 19 thosered marker ballsit doesn't matter how far back you
20 all three amendments. 20 walk and squint your eyes, there are going to be a --

21 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine. But what we end up 21 thereisgoingto be asignificant differencein visua

22 doing, we will start out by reviewing the proposed order |22 impacts.

23 to authorize those three changes. 23 And | just want to get on the record that |

24 But if thereisafactua and legal basisto 24 don't agree with his assessment of no change in visual
25 consider any impacts that those three changes have onthe |25 impacts dueto the FAA visibility requirements.
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1 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. 1 rebuttal witnesses?
2 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman? 2 MR. ACKEN: Mr. Chairman, | do. And | think we
3 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little. 3 can certainly get our direct done in that time frame.
4 MEMBER LITTLE: | would just like to interject 4 Therewere a handful of questions from Committee members
5 herethat if this-- our recommendation gets put on the 5 that are open that we wanted to just tighten up and
6 consent agenda, nobody speaks. Soweneedtobeawareof | 6 close. Soif thisisan appropriate time, | would call
7 that. 7 my rebuttal pandl.
8 MR. ELSE: Yes, I'm familiar with the consent 8 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine.
9 agendaissue, and if it does end up on the consent agenda | 9 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman, | have afew
10 I'll just have to consider what the other options are to 10 additional questionsfor Mr. Else.
11 appeal that or what my other options would be at that 11 CHMN. KATZ: Oh, sure. Go ahead.
12 time. 12 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: If now would be appropriate.
13 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Schweibert, let me ask you 13 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Schweibert.
14 because you work with the Commission, if something isput |14 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay.
15 on the consent agenda, does an interested party havethe |15 CHMN. KATZ: Am | pronouncing your last name
16 right to request in writing that the Commission hear it 16 correctly?
17 asaseparate matter rather than way of unanimous 17 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Schweibert.
18 consent? 18 CHMN. KATZ: Schweibert. Okay.
19 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman, Mr. Else, aftera |19 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: I'd liketo first start with
20 public notice indicating the agenda for aCommission open |20 the document, Mr. Acken, that you had the Staff response
21 meeting has been filed or issued, you seethat anitem-- |21 regarding reliability. May that be brought up again just
22 if any member of the public sees that an item has been 22 briefly?
23 placed on the consent agenda the member of the public may |23 CHMN. KATZ: Yes.
24 submit awritten document into the relevant docket 24 MR. ACKEN: SZA-11.
25 requesting that either the chairperson or any of the 25 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Displaying the first page,
Page 478 Page 480
1 respective Commissioners request that theitembemoved | 1 if possible. What I'm looking for is the date, to know
2 totheregular agenda. 2 what date this was filed.
3 MR. ELSE: Thank you. 3 CHMN. KATZ: It's August 29th of this year.
4 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. 4 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Soit wasfiled
5 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Membersof thepublicwould | 5  August 29 thisyear. Go to the second page, please.
6 also have an opportunity if the matter is not subject to 6 "Staff's conclusion, that based on Staff's
7 the Commission's prohibition on ex parte communications, | 7 review of the application as well as SunZia's responses
8 then amember of the public could also send a direct 8 toaStaff-issued data request, Staff believesthe
9 e-mail to aComm- -- to one or more Commissioner offices | 9 proposed project could help improve reliability safety of
10 also requesting that that respective Commissioner ask for |10 the grid and the delivery of power in Arizona."
11 theitem to be moved from the consent agendato the 11 Mr. Acken, | don't know if you're the best
12 regular agenda. 12 person to answer this, ideally Staff would be the better
13 MR. ELSE: So as someone who's subject to 13 witnessto answer my question.
14 ex parte, | would submit directly to the docket. 14 | think what 1'd like to understand is whether
15 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Yes. 15 Staff's conclusion hereis based on Pattern’'s ownership
16 CHMN. KATZ: You're done with your 16 of Line?2 or if Staff's conclusion is based on SouthWest
17 cross-examination, Mr. Acken? 17 Power Group's ownership of Line 2.
18 Do you have anything else? Everybody'sgoingto |18 MR. ACKEN: It would be my position that it is
19 get achancefor closing argument, but we're not talking |19  based on SouthWestern Power Group's ownership of Line 2,
20 about argument. Isthere anything factually you'd like 20 becausethat isthe application at issue.
21 tofurther testify to in light of your cross-examination? 21 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Thank you for that
22 MR. ELSE: No. No, sir. 22 clarification.
23 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Acken, we probably have another |23 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.
24 25 minutes or so, 25 to 30 minutes before we have a 24 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little.
25 morning break. But were you intending to call any 25 MEMBER LITTLE: Sorry to interrupt, but | also
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1 haveadquestion about thisletter. And it may be better 1 Cdiforniathat that will result in uneconomic power
2 answered by your engineering witness. 2 supply in Arizona?
3 But do we know whether the studies that are 3 MR. ELSE: Yes. Andtheway that | related that
4 referenced in that second full paragraph there, the WECC | 4 isthat -- in two ways. Oneiswe heard alot of
5 studies, voltage stability, post transient stability, 5 testimony from Western Resource Advocates that Arizona
6 et cetera, assumetwo AC linesor one DC and one ACline? | 6 needed thiswind energy and they gave alot of great
7 MR. ACKEN: Wewill bring Mr. Ethertonback on | 7 reasons for why we should be using renewable energy.
8 therebuttal panel, and so he's the right person to 8 But the way the statute is written in Arizonais
9 addressthat precisely. 9 that the Committee and the Commission are charged with
10 CHMN. KATZ: And | definitely think that's 10 finding economical electrical energy, and it doesn't
11 better. | don't want the lawyers becoming witnessesin 11 distinguish between renewable and non-renewable.
12 these proceedings. 12 So we don't have statute right now that sets a
13 MR. ACKEN: Me, too. 13 high standard for renewable energy use. So that's one
14 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman, Mr. Else, | have |14 way that it affects my conclusion that this would not
15 some additional questions for you, Mr. Else. 15 provide economical electricity for Arizona's use.
16 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Schweibert, can you speak |16 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Well --
17 up? My hearing is going with my hair. 17 MR. ELSE: Pardon me. Go ahead.
18 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: No problem. | hopethis |18 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Thistransition to line 2
19 helps. 19 because the question of ownership bifurcation or transfer
20 The questions are based on the issue of 20 isinrelation to the ownership of Line 2 --
21 hifurcating or transferring the ownership. Being that 21 MR. ELSE: Yeah.
22 you still oppose the bifurcation and transfer of 22 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: -- isit your testimony that
23 ownership, | have some additional questions|'d like to 23 Line 2 will result in more or less economic or reliable
24  clarify. 24 power under new ownership?
25 And you had severa dlidesthat appeared to go 25 MR. ELSE: Most of the testimony that I've heard
Page 482 Page 484
1 toward the economics or the reliability of the power in 1 sofar from both the applicant and from Western Resource
2 Arizona. 2 Advocatesisthat the goal would beto use Line 2
3 Isit your testimony that the lines would result 3 primarily for additional wind energy.
4 inuneconomic power in Arizona, unreliable power in 4 Western Resource Advocates was making the
5 Arizona, or both uneconomic and unreliable power in 5 assumption that there would potentially be up to
6 Arizona? 6 4500 megawatts of wind energy combined from the two
7 MR. ELSE: And you're talking about both lines 7 lines.
8 asincombination or can | take them one at atime? 8 Today, in my cross-examination, | was reminded
9 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Well, sothat wasmy next | 9 several timesthat Line 2 originates in that wind energy
10 questionwasisit relating to Line 1, Line 2, or both 10 zone, not at the same initiation point of the Southline
11 LinelandLine2? 11 project.
12 MR. ELSE: Definitely asfar as economics go it 12 So I've got two cues, so to speak, that the
13 would apply to Line 1, that this power would likely be 13 intention of Line 2 would also be primarily for the
14 more due to market conditions headed toward California |14 export of wind energy out of New Mexico.
15 becauseit's going to have fairly high transmission 15 And under current market conditions and the
16 costs. 16 probability that the Commission's not going to suddenly
17 I mean, we're talking about tens of millions of 17 follow the same lead as California on renewable energy
18 dollarstoday just to do the helicopter placement along 18 standards, | would say, yes, Line 2 would not be
19 eight miles of the route, and it's 550 miles long. 19 delivering economical electricity from wind energy to
20 So it's going to have fairly high investment in 20 Arizona
21 transmissioninfrastructure, and the best way to recover |21 But there's one other thing | want to add to
22 that inthe free market isto market it at the placein 22 both of those discussions. And that iswhen you inject
23 the markets where you can get the highest price. 23 that volume of megawattsinto Pinal Substation, it could
24 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: So youresaying asit |24 trigger the need for new lines between Pinal Substation
25 relatesto Line 1, that because the power is destined for 25 and Cdlifornia, or at least to the Palo Verde hub, but
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1 possibly further that could add new burdens on the 1 MEMBER HAENICHEN: | understand, but | think we
2 ratepayersin Arizona. 2 need to know that.
3 These are all just possibilities that 3 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine, and | think that
4 contributed to my statement about why | don't think that 4 that's something | would ask Mr. Acken to explore when he
5 theselines would contribute to economical electricity in 5 recallshiswitnesses.
6 Arizona. 6 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Thank you.
7 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Sure. Thank you, Mr. Else. | 7 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Mr. Elsg, just -- | think my
8 How, in your opinion, does the ownership of 8 last maybe follow-up question for now, how does the
9 Line 2 change the economics or the reliability of the 9 change in ownership from Pattern to SouthWest M anagement
10 power? 10 Group change the availability of utilizing the Willow
11 So if under Pattern ownership the power is 11 Substation for Line 2?
12 destined for California. And under SouthWest Power 12 MR. ELSE: Changing the ownership of Line 1to
13 Management ownership the power is also destined for 13 Pattern --
14 Cdlifornia; how does the change in ownership in your 14 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Line 2.
15 opinion change the supply of economical and reliable 15 MR. ELSE: Oh. Could you repeat that question?
16 power in Arizona? Follow? 16 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: How, in your opinion, does
17 MR. ELSE: Yes, from that -- from that 17 changing the ownership of Line 2 from Pattern to
18 legalistic understanding, mere change of ownership would |18 SouthWest Management Group change the ability to utilize
19 not change that situation. 19 the Willow Substation on Line 2?
20 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Do you have any additional | 20 MR. ELSE: It does not change it, no.
21 information, opinion, or evidence that you could provide |21 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: | don't have any other
22 that showsthat, for example, SouthWest Power Management |22 questions at this time, Chairman.
23 would have different off-takers or different contracts 23 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. Any other Committee
24 with end users or utilities that Pattern Energy would not |24 members have any questions of Mr. Else? And if not,
25 have? 25 Mr. Else, isthere anything you wanted to clarify?
Page 486 Page 488
1 MR. ELSE: Yes. Line 2 would have a substation 1 MR. ELSE: No, Mr. Chairman, I'm still absorbing
2 that'sincluded at the Willow Substation. So therewould | 2 this concept that's sort of new to me today, that we may
3 beopportunities for other resource areas right off the 3 or may not have arigorous discussion of conditions.
4  bat. 4 So, anyway, I'll work that out and just
5 And AC lines are much more amenable to adding 5 reconsider where this process is headed.
6 additional substationsthan DC lines are. 6 CHMN. KATZ: Right, and the applicant is
7 So Line 2 theoretically could load distributed 7 required by rule and statute to provide drafts of their
8 energy development in Arizona. That isa possibility. 8 proposed order, whether it's a CEC or an amendment to a
9 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Mr. Chairman, canl chimein | 9 CEC.
10 here? 10 And then the Committee has the right to
11 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, go ahead, Mr. Haenichen. 11 interject any additional findings or conditionsit thinks
12 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Thisdiscussionisa 12 appropriate. And we can hear from any of the parties as
13 little bit disturbing to me because it looks like the 13 well regarding that.
14 only reason for using or attempting to use the wind 14 But ultimately each of the new conditions or
15 energy from New Mexico is the environmental advantagesof |15 findings have to be voted on by the Committee and then
16 it 16 thewhole order will be voted on by aroll call vote.
17 If it's going to be alot more expensive because 17 MR. ELSE: Yes, thank you.
18 of transmission costs, despite the fact that there are no 18 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman, | just have one
19 fuel costs, | think we need to understand this question, 19 more question.
20 isitredly not economically advantageous to use that 20 CHMN. KATZ: Sure.
21 energy? Who can answer that? 21 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Maybe two.
22 CHMN. KATZ: | think that that's something that 22 MEMBER HAMWAY : Isit acompound question?
23 maybe Mr. Acken can address to one of hisengineering |23 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: I'll separate them.
24  people. | don't think Mr. Else has the engineering 24 CHMN. KATZ: No compound questions.
25 expertise. 25 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman, Mr. Else, in your
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1 testimony, | believeif I'm articulating this correctly, 1 corridorsthrough areas that -- that were previously
2 you recommended that the Committee perhaps deny the 2 undisturbed.
3 transfer of ownership asit relatesto Line 2 because 3 | think all of those things are very important
4 Line 2 isredundant with the Southline. Isthat 4 and one of the real sad outcomes of President Obama
5 accurate? 5 opening up public lands to merchant projectsisit tends
6 MR. ELSE: Committee Member Schweibert, like | 6 to create sort of aland rush for the cheapest land
7 said, I'm still absorbing the information that | heard 7 that'savailable on the real estate market rather than
8 today, and so| didn't want to make the mistake of saying | 8 theland that makes the most sense for infrastructure
9 that | didn't oppose the three amendments that are in the 9 placement.
10 May 13th application to amend, and havethat goonthe |10 So | know | couldn't answer your question yes or
11 recordif it would cause me to lose leverage, so to 11 no about whether | agreed with that hypothesis that you
12 gpeak, in any future options | might chooseto pursueto |12 were posing, but | -- and my testimony demonstrated the
13 try to prevent further degradation of the lower San Pedro |13 way that you reduce transmission costs isto make the
14 Valey. 14 line as short as possible to fulfill the function that
15 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Sure. | can appreciate |15 you want to fulfill.
16 that. | think I'm just recalling one of the slides and | 16 And to base it as much on reducing environmental
17 apologizethat | don't recall which dideit was, where 17 impacts, to base it more even on reducing environmental
18 perhapsat least at that time, you'd recommended that the |18 impacts than on maximizing corporate profit.
19 Committee deny a CEC for Line 2 because it was redundant |19 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Thank you, Mr. Else.
20 with Southline. 20 Chairman, | don't have any other questions.
21 MR. ELSE: Correct. Yeah, youknow, I'mnotan |21 CHMN. KATZ: Committee have any additional
22 attorney, so | didn't know what all the outcomes were 22 questions? Anything elsefor Mr. Else?
23 that would be possible from this process. 23 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Mr. Chairman.
24 So in my sort of primitive understanding and the 24 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, go ahead.
25 way | stated it in my opening remarks was that | had 25 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Thisisn't aquestion, it'sa
Page 490 Page 492
1 previously understood that the Committee could approve | 1 request, | guess, of Mr. Acken to be sure that their
2 both of the CECs, CEC-1 only, CEC-2 only, or neither of | 2 witnessthey're going to bring this afternoon can tell us
3 the CECs. Maybethat's not the case. | don't have an 3 what the cost is going to be of electricity, at the end
4 attorney sitting beside me. 4 of this400-mile line, counting all the line losses and
5 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: That'sfine, Mr. Else. 5 thefact that there's no fuel costs and so on, the cost
6 Thank you. My question asit relates to the idea that 6 of that electrical energy per kilowatt hour versus
7 perhaps Line 2 might be redundant with the Southline 7 conventional fossil energy.
8 project. 8 MR. ACKEN: Thank you, Member Haenichen. We
9 And | ask this question in the context of trying 9 will certainly address these cost questions with folks
10 to evaluate the availability of an economical and 10 that actually understand and live cost and economics and
11 reliable supply of energy in Arizona, is do you believe 11 can provide expert opinion.
12 orisit your opinion that transmission lines follow sort 12 I'm not sure that | can give you kilowatt hour
13 of atraditiona supply-and-demand equation from an 13 pricing, because of course that would be confidential,
14 economic perspective, such that having moretransmission |14 but we will do our best to provide information that is
15 lineswould result in anincrease in supply of 15 responsible -- responsive to the questions, keeping in
16 transmission lines, and therefore more options through 16 mind, of course, that this Committee previously
17 which one would wheel through their power and therefore |17 determined, the Commission determined and it was upheld
18 havealower economic cost or price of transmission? 18 onjudicia review that this project aids the state in
19 MR. ELSE: It all depends on the cost of putting 19 providing an adequate, economic and reliable source of
20 thetransmission linesin. My view isthat we should use |20 power.
21 theexisting grid to the highest degree possible, use it 21 But | understand the questioning, | understand
22 asefficiently as possible, use all new technologies that 22 thenatureof it. And we will do so within the confines
23 assistusinusingit asefficiently as possible to 23 of what -- that we can without providing business
24  upgrade the existing grid whenever possible, strengthen |24  confidential information that would be -- that would
25 theexisting grid rather than forging new infrastructure 25 disadvantage SunZia as opposed to potential competitors.
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1 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Well, asamember of this | 1  KEVIN WETZEL, ADAM CERNEA CLARK, and MARK ETHERTON,
2 Committee, | have to vote on thisthing at the end of the 2 called as Rebuttal witnesses as a panel on behalf of
3 day. And my vote expressesinterest invalueto Arizona | 3 Applicant, having been previoudly affirmed or sworn by
4 consumers of electricity. 4 the Chairman to speak the truth and nothing but the
5 And so even though you say it's confidential and 5 truth, were examined and testified as follows:
6 other things, it looks likeiif it turns out that the 6
7 energy isvery expensive because of delivery costsfrom 7 DIRECT EXAMINATION
8 New Mexico, thenit's -- definitely all going to go to 8 BY MR. ACKEN:
9 Cdliforniabecause they're the only one with the really 9 Q. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
10 high electricity retail prices. 10 So at the conclusion of Mr. Else's testimony,
11 So that's my motivation for asking for this kind 11 there was adiscussion regarding the economics of wind,
12 of analysis. 12 generaly, and SunZia project specifically.
13 MR. ACKEN: We will certainly address the 13 Mr. Wetzel, did you hear that testimony and, |
14 misconception that wind energy is not cost competitive. |14 guess, that discussion?
15  Wewill put that to bed. 15 A. (MR.WETZEL) I did.
16 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Thank you. 16 Q. | wouldlikeyou to share your thoughts about
17 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman. 17 the economics of SunZia
18 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Schweibert. 18 A. (MR.WETZEL) Sure. Sol'd probably takeitin
19 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: For Mr. Acken,and| |19 two elements. Firstisjust structurally and this goes
20 apologize to the extent that this may have been 20 back to my original testimony on Tuesday.
21 addressed, wasit yesterday in the morning portion when| |21 SunZiais a merchant transmission line which
22 wasnot herein person, but to the extent that you havea |22 enableswind facilitiesin New Mexico as we've discussed.
23 witness who can elaborate on the change in economica and |23 Merchant transmission line meansit's privately
24  reliable supply of energy for Arizona and the ownership |24 owned not by alocal utility but by a, you know, private
25 change. 25 company inthis case, Pattern Energy, and Line 2 for
Page 494 Page 496
1 How does the change from Pattern Energy to 1 SouthWestern Power Group if the amendments are approved.
2 SouthWest Power Group influence the amount of power that | 2 What that meansis that we're not rate-basing
3 will be delivered to Arizonaload, to Arizona regul ated 3 thisproject and imposing it on any customer in Arizona
4 eectric utilities, municipal utilities, or distribution 4 or any other market. This project competesin the market
5 cooperatives, et cetera, versus the sameif it's under 5 andif our value proposition to market participants who
6 Pattern ownership. 6 buy wholesale power is not attractive enough and they
7 MR. ACKEN: Thank you for that questionandthe | 7 don't seevaluein our value proposition in our project,
8 clarification, and we will address that on rebuttal as 8 then this project won't move forward.
9 well. 9 | can tell you that as the project lead
10 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Thank you. 10 developer, | am highly coordinated and participate in
11 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. Well, weused upyour |11 market conversations with customers almost on adaily
12 haf an hour. Sowe're going to take our 10:30 bresk and |12 basis. And the market does see value in this project,
13 welll resume about 10:45 and just relax for afew minutes |13 and in the value proposition that we bring to market.
14 or prepare, and well take our morning recess. 14 It'sreally driven by a number of factors and
15 (Recess from 10:32 am. to 10:49 am.) 15 thisgoesinto the second piece, which is how the project
16 CHMN. KATZ: We are ready to resume our next 16 competeswith other market participants, other
17 session, and | believe we're going to be hearing some 17 technologies.
18 rebuttal testimony from the applicant. 18 First and foremost, and | showed it in one of my
19 Mr. Acken, if you're ready let me just make a 19 dlides, it might helpful to bring that back up. | think
20 note asto who the panel consists of. 20 itisL5, which isthe shape of the New Mexico wind
21 MR. ACKEN: For the record, Mr. Chairman, for 21 relativeto other alternatives.
22 itsrebuttal SunZia Transmission, LLC calls -- recalls 22 The shape of New Mexico wind, | think people can
23 Kevin Wetzel, Adam Cernea Clark, and Mark Etherton, all |23 probably remember it isinversely correlated to solar
24 of whom have been previously sworn. 24  production, so aswe all know in Arizonathereisa
25 CHMN. KATZ: That'scorrect. You may proceed. |25 proliferation of solar energy, which we're really excited
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1 about and we support and we're developing solar projects | 1 wind energy power purchase agreement is going to be at a
2 tohelpincreasethat local delivery. 2 fixed cost now.
3 But New Mexico wind is an extremely good 3 Now, again, it is intermittent, so when that
4 complement to that because solar cannot produce a night. | 4 energy shows up it changes by the day, although we have,
5 And batteries can only store energy for solong, andthey | 5 you know, years and years of meteorological datato
6 are-- and I'll talk about thisin more detail a a 6 support our production estimates and we're able to, you
7 higher price point than wind project after -- after fully 7 know, on ashort-term forward basis predict with high
8 burdening that wind with transmission costs related to 8 confidence what we will produce.
9 the SunZiaand El Rio Sol projects. 9 That's amaterial benefit to customers that
10 So the value proposition includes the shape, 10 other types of technologies including fossil cannot
11 what we call the shape value, whichisintheeveningand |11 provide.
12 we've seen this over the -- thisis actually a good week 12 And the third pieceisrealy there are
13 totalk about this. We've seen energy pricesrise 13 environmental attributes associated with any renewable
14 dramatically in the evenings as people come homefrom |14 energy project which are valued by the market; right?
15 work, turn on the AC, turn on the lights, turn on the 15 We're seeing that in everywhere from, you know, consumer,
16 oven. 16 you know, based demand, but especially for large
17 That electricity, you know, use ramps up right 17 wholesale demand.
18 at the sametime the solar product ramps down. There 18 Just, you know, if you look at the large, I'll
19 needsto be something to fill that gap, and as you can 19 just use data centers as an example. Most of the large
20 seefrom the chart on the bottom right of L5, New Mexico |20 data center companies have committed to going, you know,
21 wind perfectly fitsthat requirement. 21 mostly renewableif not carbon free by certain dates.
22 That is an extremely impactful and valuable 22 So there is avalue and a premium for any
23 attribute to our customer base across the board, whether |23 renewable project associated with the green attributes,
24 it'sutilities or other wholesale buyers like large 24 if you want to call them that, the carbon, you know,
25 commercial and industrial customers. 25 reduction potential for those projects.
Page 498 Page 500
1 Secondly, there was discussion around fuel. As 1 So if you look at what the alternatives are to
2 most folks know, no solar and wind power projects are 2 provide the shape that | show here on the screen on L5,
3 fud free. Right now, and we've seen thisagain, it'sa 3 thereare afew that can provide the non-solar hours,
4 good timeto talk about this. 4 right? Hydro, nuclear, geothermal, and all three of
5 After the pandemic and because of the Russian 5 those are extremely difficult to -- to build and frankly
6 invasion of Ukraine, fuel pricesin the fossil sector, 6 fairly expensive and much more expensive than wind, even
7 specificaly natural gaswhich isreally the primary 7 transmission-enabled wind like SunZia.
8 dlternative at this point in time, have been extremely 8 Thefourth islittle bit more applicable, which
9 voldtile. 9 islong-duration energy storage. Right. Typical energy
10 They were trading two to $3 per BTU, you know, 10 storage projects that have been built over the last few
11 historically over thelast five years. They spiked to 11 yearstend to be four hoursin duration. That does help
12 over $10. You know, the price of that on the energy 12 mitigate this evening peaking issue that we see, and
13  marketsis material, but also importantly all of these 13 we've seen it again this week, where batteries provided,
14 customers and load-serving entities have to plan for the |14  you know, resourcesin Arizona and cross the west through
15 long term and they have to manage volatility. 15 the heat wave.
16 So while wind isintermittent in its generation 16 What those batteries can't do is provide energy
17 profile, it provides diversified kind of, you know, risk 17 through the night. Which again our customersthat are
18 mitigation in that thereis no fuel risk in the project. 18 trying to move towards a carbon-reduced or carbon-neutral
19 And so we don't have to worry about or our 19 platform are demanding.
20 customersdon't have to worry about what isthe priceof |20 Wind energy is one of the only projects or
21 gasgoing to be today, tomorrow or in the future. We 21 technology typesthat can do that.
22 haveafixed price PPA, typically. It dependson the 22 Long-duration storage | do think absolutely has
23 customer. 23 aplacein the energy infrastructure balance. We've
24 Where they can guarantee that no matter, you 24 talked alot about diversification. And that'sreally
25 know, what gas does in the future, they know that their 25 important; right? We want energy storage to proliferate,
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1 wewant solar to proliferate, and we'd like, you know, 1 Standard and we wanted to make sure to have the
2 dl these other technologiesto as well. 2 applicable time frames be shown.
3 But what's available to the market right now and 3 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. And so just to be
4 what'savailable in this specific location are fairly 4 clear, there's no way whatsoever that this Committee
5 constrained. 5 should interpret this graph as being atime zone,
6 So SunZia and the wind projects that it enables 6 California-based time zone wherein the solar production
7 are absolutely economic to the market. | can tell you 7 of 6:00 am. to 6:00 p.m. Cdiforniatime and that the
8 that because we are having customer conversations, late 8 sort of overlay of the New Mexico wind energy production
9 stage, where they are seeing the value in the value 9 issort of peaking at 6:00 p.m. Californiatime?
10 proposition that | just described. 10 MR. WETZEL: I'd like to make sure that I'm
11 And, again, the diversification benefits that 11 answering this correctly, and | don't know with
12 SunZiacan providein addition to those other 12 100 percent certainty that | can answer that. | just
13 technologiesisabsolutely in demand inthe market right |13 don't want to misspeak and misrepresent this data.
14 now. 14 So I'd like to be able to go back and ensure
15 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman? 15 that my answer is correct and that these all Mountain
16 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Schweibert. 16 time zone production profiles.
17 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Mr. Wetzel, thank you for |17 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. | just want to
18 bringing up Slide L5. Did you preparethe graphweare |18 understand clearly that if during atime of year when
19 viewing on that dlide? 19 Cadliforniaand New Mexico are not on the same time, how
20 MR. WETZEL: | did. 20 that overlay would shift or whether they would still be
21 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Thank you. Doyou (21 inline. Doesthat make sense?
22 mind explaining why for the portion of power generated |22 MR. WETZEL : | think it does, yes, and I'll need
23 from solar thereis no indication of what state that 23 tofollow to provide an answer to that question.
24 solar isbeing generated in? 24 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Thank you.
25 MR. WETZEL: Sure. The solar profileis 25 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Mr. Chairman.
Page 502 Page 504
1 typicaly fairly standard across aregion. So whilethe 1 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Haenichen.
2 time frame of the exact, you know, single-hour difference | 2 MEMBER HAENICHEN: I'd like to ask you a
3 between, say, the Mountain time zone and the western 3 question that involves costs, but not in dollars. | just
4 Pacific time zone would shift the solar an hour in either 4 want to know percentage-wise, if -- assuming this project
5 direction. 5 getsapproved by this Committee and by the Commission,
6 What we're showing hereis | believe Mountain 6 and gets built, what -- and it starts delivering
7 Standard Time. So the solar is going to be very similar 7 wind-generated energy from New Mexico to, let's say the
8 if not identical, whether it's produced in, you know, 8 end of the line which is some hundred miles or so short
9 I'll just use the example of western New Mexico, Arizona, | 9 of California, whatever it is.
10 or eastern Cdifornia 10 What percentage of the cost to the utility
11 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: And what statesareinthe |11 that's doing this, your company, is due to the
12 Mountain Standard Time zone? 12 transmission line costs, which include losses and
13 MR. WETZEL: I'm not sure | can name them off 13 amortization of the line as opposed to the -- and what
14 the exact top of my head. New Mexico, you know, 14 percentageis due to what you have to pay to get the
15 Colorado, | suppose at times of the year Arizona. 15 energy inthefirst place on the New Mexico side?
16 MR. ACKEN: Let the -- | think you can take 16 MR. WETZEL: Sure. So think just to make sure
17 official notice that Arizonaisaways Mountain Standard |17 | understood the question is, what percentage of the cost
18 Time 18 base of the delivered product is represented by the
19 MR. WETZEL: Sorry. 19 transmission element of which the wind project has to pay
20 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Thank you, Mr. Acken. My |20 to deliver the power; isthat correct?
21 next question was going to be on the bottom part of that |21 MEMBER HAENICHEN: And what percentageis paid
22 graph are times, midnight, 6:00 a.m., noon, 6:00 p.m., 22 toNew Mexico? Just percentage now. | don't care about
23 and midnight. What time zones are those times? 23 the numbers.
24 MR. WETZEL : | believe those are Mountain 24 MR. WETZEL: | want to be responsive to the
25 Standard times because New Mexico wind produces Mountain |25 question. Let me make sure | understand it. When you
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1 say paid to New Mexico or paid to Arizona, can you just 1 thewind power delivered to market isto recover the cost

2 help meunderstand -- 2 that it paysto utilize the transmission facilities.

3 MEMBER HAENICHEN: No, | mean you havetobuy | 3 And I'll make sure to note that the production

4 the energy from New Mexico; right? Don't they get paid | 4 increase, and I'll refer to Slide L5 on the top right

5 forit? Somebody there gets paid. 5 which shows the wind speed map of the region, the

6 MR. WETZEL : In New Mexico, I'd say the payments | 6 production that is ableto be achieved in New Mexico is

7 gotothelocal community, landowners, tax payments, 7 far greater than the wind energy that you can source more

8 operating the facilities. The real payments associated 8 locally in Arizona.

9 with the project in New Mexico are the capital coststo 9 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Oh, | understand that.
10 build the wind farms. 10 MR. WETZEL : Such that the economic benefit of
11 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Amortization thereof. 11 that increased production more than outweighs the cost of
12 MR. WETZEL: Sure. Exactly. And so the 12 thetransmission line service to be able to deliver that
13 revenues created by the wind farm sold into thewestern |13 product to --

14 market then go back to pay back the amortization cost. 14 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Okay. But if any of that

15 MEMBER HAENICHEN: | understand that. But| |15 energy isgoing to be used in Arizonaand | have my doubt

16 just want to know what those percentages are. Estimate. |16 about that now, too, but if any of it is going to be used

17 Your guess. 17 inArizona, it will be bought by somebody that has to pay

18 MR. WETZEL : Sure. | think | understand the 18 money for it.

19 question. I'll make sureto try to respond to it. 19 And they have other options. They can get it

20 The overall delivered product, you know, if we 20 from -- just from the grid itself in Arizona. Isthe

21 assumethat cost 100 percent, the amount of the cost of 21 wind energy going to be cheaper to buy in Arizonathan

22 transmitting that power over the SunZia project islikely |22 regular grid energy?

23 represented 10 to 15 percent of the cost of the delivered |23 MR. WETZEL.: | think that's a difficult question

24  product. Isthat the question? Did | -- 24 toanswer.

25 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Yeah, well, that'strueand |25 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Yeah, | liketo give
Page 506 Page 508

1 we can break that down, too. Part of that islosses, 1 difficult questions.

2 linelosses; right? 2 MR. WETZEL.: It relies upon aforward view of

3 MR. WETZEL: Correct. 3 gasprices, of federal and state and even local policy

4 MEMBER HAENICHEN: And part of that is 4 that may drive decision making around future generation

5 amortization of the cost of building the thing. 5 resources aswell as, you know, the actual |oad and the

6 MR. WETZEL : Correct. And the way that that 6 customer demand for different productsin the market.

7 manifestsin the project economicsis that the SunZia 7 | can tell you that right now based on our

8 transmission line will have atransmission service 8 analysisand in my opinion, the price that can be

9 agreement with the wind farms and charge atransmission | 9 received in the market for the production shape when
10 rate, by which, again, the SunZia transmission project 10 measured on along-term basis would support the ability
11 will recover its costs and pay its operating costs. 11 for the project to be built and recognize areturn on
12 And then the wind farmsin central New Mexico 12 that investment.

13 will haveto pay the transmission line that transmission 13 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Okay. But we, wethe
14 serviceratein order to utilize it to deliver its 14 Committee and me particularly as a member of the
15 product to market. 15 Committee, are trying to represent the users of

16 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Yeah. But at theend of the |16 €electricity in Arizona. We don't give adarn about
17 day when al those things are taken into consideration, 17 Cdlifornia. And so we have to make avote on this.
18 until megawatt hours start coming out of thewireat the |18 And if the answer to my earlier question turns
19 end, what percentage of the price that people pay -- the 19 out to be, well, it's not going to be any cheaper than
20 cost to the provider, to you, what percentageis -- is 20 just getting it from other parts of the sources on the
21 attributed to the value of the energy itself, the fact 21 grid, then you might not vote yesfor it.

22 that it's megawatt hours that could be burned and the 22 So | just wanted to know if thisis agood deal
23 other istheling, the transmitting costs? 23 for ratepayersin Arizona.

24 MR. WETZEL : Again, | think the answer toyour |24 MR. WETZEL : Understood.

25 question isthat roughly 10 to 15 percent of the cost of 25 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Why?
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1 MR. WETZEL : Understood, and I'd maybe refer 1 farmsand the transmission project are two separate and

2 back to my earlier testimony when | talked about the 2 distinct entities, assets, and, you know, businesses,

3 value attributes of wind energy, in particular, this 3 frankly.

4 shapewind energy to the customer base in Arizona. 4 SunZiaWind will be the customer of SunZia

5 We absolutely believe that thisis going to be a 5 Transmission viathe transmission service agreements that

6 economic product for the market and for any customersin | 6 | referenced earlier. And SunZia Wind will then pay the

7 Arizona. And, again, those customerswill enter intoany | 7 transmission service rateto SunZia Transmission. And

8 contracts with us by choice because we are a competitive | 8 embed the cost of that rate into its fully, you know,

9 merchant project. 9 delivered product to market.

10 But | think the short answer to your question is 10 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you.

11 that when you look at the alternativesin the market over |11 MEMBER HAENICHEN: I'm sorry. What did that

12 thenear term or even in the long term, in our opinion 12 discussion say? |Is SunZiagoing to own the wind farm

13 that SunZiaand New Mexico Wind delivered asaresult of |13 itself?

14 this SunZiatransmission project is economic when 14 MR. WETZEL: SunZia Transmission, LLC, will now.

15 compared to other aternativesin the market for 15 The applicant under this proceeding will not own the wind

16 providing that same power. 16 farm, no, gir.

17 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Just because of the shape |17 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Okay. So that'll be owned by

18 issue? 18 somebody in New Mexico, for example, or California?

19 MR. WETZEL : Because of the shape issue, because |19 MR. WETZEL: Currently it'sowned by Pattern

20 of the diversification benefit, because of the fuel 20 Energy. We own and operate wind farms across the

21 diversification risk benefit, and because of the carbon 21 country, and Pattern is a U.S.-based company.

22 element, the non-carbon elements of the product. Yes, 22 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Okay. But then it should be

23 dir. 23 red easy, the answer to my original question was what

24 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Yeah. Of coursepeoplewho |24  percentage of the delivered electricity to Arizonafrom

25 buy €electricity for their house don't care about that 25 thewind farm is due to transmission expenses, vis-a-vis
Page 510 Page 512

1 issue. That'sthe -- they're the ones paying the hill, 1 what they have to pay to get the (speech obscured by

2 wouldn't you agree? I'm not saying all consumers. 2 coughing) in the first place. That'swhat I'm trying to

3 MR. WETZEL : Respectfully, | think certain 3 driveat.

4 individuals do care about the -- 4 MR. WETZEL: 10 to 15 percent is the approximate

5 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Yeah, | care. 5 cost of the transmission delivery of the New Mexico wind.

6 MR. WETZEL : -- impact of their energy profile. 6 MEMBER HAENICHEN: So the other 85 percent is

7 MEMBER HAENICHEN: | care, but | think Joe Blow | 7 what you have to pay for the kilowatt hour, megawatt

8 isgoingto say thisisnot agood deal or it isagreat 8 hoursin the beginning.

9 deal. 9 MR. WETZEL.: Yes, sir, to operate the wind farm,
10 CHMN. KATZ: | just had a couple of questions. 10 torecover the capital investment and make areturn on
11 One, you mentioned the cost of purchasing the 11 that investment. Yes, sir.

12 wind energy to transmit. Does not SunZia or Pattern own |12 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.

13 thewind farm that's going to be producing the 13 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little.

14 electricity, or isit independently owned. 14 MEMBER LITTLE: I have a couple of questions and
15 MR. WETZEL : Pattern Energy doesown thewind |15 they are basically, 4500 megawatts of power of any sort
16 facilitiesthat have been awarded the transmission 16 being delivered to a-- basically the south central part

17 capacity. Yes, Sir. 17 of Arizona, obviously it's not going to all get used

18 CHMN. KATZ: And SunZiais awholly-owned 18 whereit'sdelivered.

19 subsidiary of Pattern? 19 And you have talked about being in conversation
20 MR. WETZEL: Yes, gir. 20 with customers, potential customers, for the energy. Do
21 CHMN. KATZ: Sothereisn't an -- there's costs 21 you-- what are the arrangements for getting the energy
22 associated with producing the wind energy, but SunZia |22 from the substation, Pinal Central, to whereit's going

23 doesn't need to buy it in order to transmit it through 23 tobeused?

24 itsline; correct? 24 I know we have 10 West going from the Palo Verde
25 MR. WETZEL: WEell, so structurally the wind 25 hub acrossto California. | know you can't tell me who
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1 those customers are, but is there transmission from Pinal 1 would say, you know, can you get me power at X, Y, Z
2 Central to the SRPs and APSes and whoever elsewill be | 2 point, and we would go and see if we could acquire any
3 using this power, or isthat just kind of something you 3 transmission service from Pinal Central to the point of
4 kind of figure will happen? 4 interest.
5 MR. WETZEL: Yes, maam. It'sagreat question. 5 And if that was available and economic to do so,
6 One of the reasons that the project was developed in the 6 then we might be able to offer that to a customer.
7 location that it was with the terminus at Pinal Central 7 MEMBER LITTLE: Okay. And | do have some
8 500kV bay that it was -- is because the specific point 8 questions about the WECC studies, but I'll save those for
9 inthegridismeant to accept and transmit bulk amounts 9 Mr. -
10 of power. 10 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Mr. Wetzel, how isthe
11 That's why we're on the 500 kV network relative 11 customer of the wind product in New Mexico different from
12 tothe 230 or 115 or other lower networks. Pinal Central |12 the customer of atransmission line wheel through? Are
13 isaredly unique placein thegrid. Itisjointly 13 they the same or are they different customers? Please
14 owned by a number of local electric districts and 14 explain.
15 utilitiesincluding Western -- sorry, SRP, Salt River 15 MR. WETZEL: They're different customers. So
16 Project and Tucson Electric, and the Western AreaPower |16 SunZia Transmission's customer will be the wind projects
17 Association, WAPA, systems also connect into Pinal 17 themselves. The revenue agreement for the transmission
18 Central. 18 linewill be atransmission service agreement in which
19 So what Pinal Central alowsisfor multiple 19 thetransmission line will agree to reserve capacity and
20 outlets of bulk power into multiple transmission systems |20 allow the wind farms to utilize that capacity to deliver
21 going multiple directions. 21 from centra New Mexico to Pinal Central.
22 So the different ways that we deliver product to 22 That's the service being offered by SunZia
23 our customersis dependent on the customer. If wetake |23 Transmission, and they will charge arate to the SunZia
24  Salt River Project as atheoretical example, and I'm not 24 wind farmsin central New Mexico, of which the wind farms
25 saying that we arein any kind of discussions with Salt 25 will pay. So the customer for SunZia Transmission isthe
Page 514 Page 516
1 River Project around off-take of the project. 1 SunZiawind farmstoday.
2 Typically they would accept power at the point 2 AsMr. Acken mentioned earlier, thisis an open
3 inthe system that they take control of it, whichin this 3 accessline. Future customers may come and request
4 case would bethe Pinal Central 500 kV bus, andthenthey | 4 interconnection, and if they choose to move forward with
5 would usetheir system service to be able to deliver 5 thoseinterconnection requests, then the transmission
6 their customers, whoever that may be, whether it'sthe 6 linewould have additional customers, additional
7 residential customers or maybe a specific commercial 7 generators, which would pay transmission service to use
8 customer that they have. 8 theline.
9 So it's dependent on the customer, on where they 9 That differs from the customers of the SunzZia
10 would take that power, but Pinal Central was specifically |10 wind farms, you know, which are utilities, large
11 chosen because it does provide access to multiple 11 industrial wholesale customers.
12 networks, of which you could either deliver to those 12 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Let mejust -- | just got to
13 customersor utilize those networks for further delivery 13 get back to my original premise. Let's say that this
14 viaadditional transmission service with again, as an 14 project gets approved and built, and it's been running
15 example, Salt River Project, to another market point such |15 now for ayear, so you got all the bugs worked out of it.
16 asthePalo Verde hub. Which will likely be part of this |16 A customer comes up to buy alot of electricity
17 project aswell. 17 and they have two options. Oneisto buy it from this
18 MEMBER LITTLE: Soit would be up to the 18 line coming in from New Mexico through who -- whatever
19 customer, then, SRP for your theoretical examplethereis |19 entity ownsit. Or just off the grid itself like they've
20 apart owner in Pinal Central, but if you had acustomer |20 been doing all along. Which would be cheaper?
21 that wasnat, it would be up to them to make arrangements |21 MR. WETZEL: Again, that's a difficult question
22 totakethe power delivery at Pinal Central. 22 toanswer. | will do my best from my perspective.
23 MR. WETZEL : It could, or it could be a service 23 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Well, guess.
24  that we would provide such that if they requested apoint |24 MR. WETZEL: The price of grid energy is
25 of delivery somewhere else in the western system, it 25 extremely volatile. So let's take thisweek asan
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1 example. If you weretolook at the market price of 1 MR. WETZEL: Yes, sir. So | think the answer to

2 energy thisweek, it would be many multiples of the cost 2 thequestionisyou're correct in that Pinal Central does

3 that thewind project could provide. 3 not have the capability of handling DC power.

4 So any given day it could be cheaper or more 4 Which iswhy, and I'll refer to Slide L-15,

5 expensive to take power from the grid relativeto a 5 werebuilding aDC to AC converter station, SunZia West,

6 long-term contract to buy power from the 6 located lessthan amile from Pinal Central in which the

7 transmission-enabled wind projects. 7 DC energy will be converted to AC in order for usto

8 So the answer to your question isif that 8 actually be able to connect the AC energy into Pinal

9 customer valued the attributes and the risk mitigation 9 Central, which asyou correctly point outisan AC
10 that our product can provide in terms of fuel, shape, 10 infrastructure project.

11 long-term certainty of power prices, then it will be 11 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Soit will be converted but
12 cheaper for them to buy energy from these wind projects |12 not everything along the line necessarily will be
13 enabled by SunZia Transmission relative to buying market |13  converted, because doesn't some of it just go past that,
14 power. 14 oristhat the terminate -- it terminates now at --
15 If for some reason it was, you know, cool 15 MR. WETZEL.: It terminates. Correct. So
16 weather and there was alot of generation onthe system, |16 everything will be DC along the route to SunZia West
17 thenit could bein any given hour that it could be 17 converter station, and at that point 100 percent of that
18 cheaper to buy market power relative to the price of -- 18 energy isconverted from DC to AC. And 100 percent of
19 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Oh, yeah, but | wantedyouto |19 that AC energy is connected to the Pinal Central.
20 smooth it over hundreds of hours. 20 CHMN. KATZ: So basically by thetime it getsto
21 MR. WETZEL: In my view, SunZiaWind'senergy |21 thePinal Central substation it's capable of being
22 proposition is going to be more economic than the 22 distributed along any existing or future lines that come
23 dternative, which would be buying market-generated power |23 out of Pinal or go to other locations that are connected.
24 when all the attributes are considered. 24 MR. WETZEL: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's correct.
25 MEMBER HAENICHEN: More economic by what? |25 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.

Page 518 Page 520

1 10 percent, 15 percent, 50 percent? 1 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Grinnell.

2 MR. WETZEL : | apologize, but you're asking me 2 MEMBER GRINNELL: One of the amendment requests

3 toopineon future energy prices relative to our value -- 3 istoinclude El Rio Sol Transmission, LLC; correct?

4 MEMBER HAENICHEN: Well, that's what we haveto | 4 MR. WETZEL : One of our amendment requestsisto

5 do. 5 bifurcate the existing single CEC into two CECs such that

6 MR. WETZEL : -- that's an extremely difficult 6 thesecond line, Line 2, the AC line would be able to be

7 question to answer. 7 assigned under ACC administrative procedures to the

8 MEMBER HAENICHEN: That'swhat we havetodoon | 8 El Rio Sol Company. Correct.

9 this Committee. 9 MEMBER GRINNELL: Okay. Inthe event that this
10 MR. WETZEL : | believeit'slong-term 10 amendment isnot passed, is SunZiafinancially capable of
11 economical. | apologize, | don't think that I'm 11 continuing the whole project asin the original CEC?

12 comfortable giving a percent answer because | don't think |12 MR. WETZEL : So Pattern Energy as the parent

13 | know it. 13 company of SunZia Transmission, LLC, the applicant, has
14 MEMBER HAENICHEN: No, I'm not goingto holdyou |14  financial resources that | believe would be, you know,

15 toit. I'mjust asking you to guess. 15 capable of aso developing a second line.

16 CHMN. KATZ: | just had a couple of questions. 16 We develop projects across the country,

17 | know that one of the reasons you'redoingthe DC line |17 including transmission linesin different regions as well
18 isit hasagreater capacity to transmit more megawatts 18 asthe SunZia desert southwest region.

19 thananACIline 19 So the short answer to your question is yes,

20 The question | have is does Pinal Central, to 20 Pattern Energy does have the financial and experience --
21 thebest of your knowledge, have the capacity to 21 financial resources and the experience to develop a

22 distribute DC power through the grid. AC isrelatively 22 second line.

23 easy. But DC, I'm not sure whether Pinal Central is 23 However, | believe that SouthWestern Power Group
24 equipped or will be equipped to be able to transmit that 24 asthe owner of the development rightsto Line 2, because
25 to providers herein Arizona. 25 Pattern Energy only acquired the development rights of

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

(23) Pages 517 - 520

602.266.6535 www.glennie-reporting.com





SunZia Transmission LL C/SunZia Southwest Transmission

Docket No. L-00000YY-15-0318-00171 - L SC 171 Amended

Evidentiary Hearing, Volumel I
September 8, 2022

Page 521 Page 523
1 Linel, would very much beinterested in maintainingthat | 1 But the Commission has the authority to -- well, the
2 position. And therefore we would likely review aternate | 2  applicant has the authority under Commission rules to
3 methods to assign the rights under ACC procedures. 3 assign, partialy assign an existing CEC.
4 MEMBER GRINNELL: But theinvestment would be, | 4 What we're trying to do with that partial
5 under this particular discussion the investment would be 5 assignment isjust be above board and make sure and make
6 solely under Pattern or SunZia, they would be financially | 6 it clear what we're requesting and why.
7 responsible for the total production of thisline? 7 MEMBER GRINNELL: Well, | understand that and
8 MR. ACKEN: I'm going to answer that as alegal 8 that basically isto help reduce the capital expenses for
9 matter. 9 thedevelopment of both theselines. Isthat fair to
10 So currently SunZia Transmission holds the CEC 10 say?
11 for both transmission lines. 11 MR. ACKEN: Wéll, they're on separate
12 MEMBER GRINNELL: Correct. 12 development time frame by separate entities.
13 MR. ACKEN: Mr. Wetzel has testified that 13 MEMBER GRINNELL: Okay.
14 Pattern has acquired the development rights for Line 1. 14 MR. WETZEL : | would maybe add one thing to --
15 It does not own the development rightsfor Line2. Those |15 to Mr. Acken's response, which is that the requested
16 are held by SouthWestern Power Group. 16 amendment isstill important. Thisisavery large
17 In order to effectuate the development of Line 2 17 infrastructure project that will require alarge amount
18 by SouthWestern Power Group, the CEC needsto be 18 of financing to accomplish.
19 bifurcated and that's the nature of this request. 19 And so one of the reasons that we thought that
20 Pattern, the entity, can't develop Line 2 20 thisamendment under this proceeding was appropriate is
21 becauseit doesn't own those development rights. 21 to ensure that those financing counter parties can
22 MEMBER GRINNELL: All right. Soto-- I'm 22 understand that the CEC has been completely bifurcated
23 looking for clarity hereisall, financial stability. 23 and each project can be separately financed, so to just
24 MR. ACKEN: I'm trying to give you some. 24  help ensure there's avery clean and understandable story
25 Apparently I'm failing. 25 to the financing community who don't have the background
Page 522 Page 524
1 MEMBER GRINNELL: No, Mr. Acken. I guessmy | 1 and knowledge around the project that folks in thisroom
2 question is should we not agree to this particular 2 may have.
3 amendment, would South -- how would that second linebe | 3 CHMN. KATZ: Andin my limited one year of
4  built, if at al? 4 experience, there have been -- I've received a number of
5 MR. ACKEN: WEell, the CEC would still be 5 lettersin which requests have been made to the
6 effectivefor Line 2. But the CEC would be held by an 6 Corporation Commission to bifurcate ownership of CECs,
7 entity that doesn't own the development rights. And 7 where only one was approved, and it doesn't come back
8 that'saproblem. 8 through us.
9 And so what Mr. Wetzel said, isif this 9 In other words, if the project is approved, it's
10 Committee and the Commission does not approve the 10 then up to the -- by us and the Corporation Commission, a
11 hifurcation we would seek other -- other opportunities 11 portion of any line can be assigned through the
12 and pathwaysin order so that the development rightsand |12  Corporation Commission to another owner.
13 the permitting rights are held by one entity, which would |13 MEMBER GRINNELL: So theoretically we don't even
14 be SouthWestern Power Group. 14 need to address thisissue.
15 MEMBER GRINNELL: But then would that haveto |15 CHMN. KATZ: Well, but by addressing it saves
16 come back to this Committee for evaluation and an 16 the applicant and ultimately the consumers money by not
17 amendment to the original CEC, or would that be done 17 bhaving to have them expend money to get a second shot at
18 gtrictly at the Corporation Commission? 18 requesting the bifurcation.
19 MR. ACKEN: In my legal opinion, it'sthe 19 And it allows the devel oper to get the financing
20 latter. We -- we would not have sought Committee 20 it needsright now rather than waiting six months or a
21 approva for bifurcation if that's all we were asking 21 vyear or two to get that. That'sall.
22 for. Wedon't need Committee or Commission approval to |22 MEMBER GRINNELL: Okay. | wasjust trying to
23 assign aportion of aCEC. We are requesting it. 23 clarify the capital investment.
24 And in the nature of transparency and what we 24 CHMN. KATZ: No, | understand.
25 believeisbest practice isto be open and make it clear. 25 MEMBER GRINNELL: And who's going to own what.
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1 CHMN. KATZ: | understand and if I'm incorrect, 1 just of those that you are currently having discussions
2 Bert, any of our three witnesses can correct me. That's 2 with, what percentage of those, say 60, are in Arizona?
3 been my understanding. 3 MR. WETZEL: Thereason I'm hesitating is
4 MR. ACKEN: No, that's exactly correct and as 4 because in certain instances, we are, you know, bidding,
5 Mr. Wetzdl testified that's why we're asking for it here. 5 andso | would consider that to be kind of in process.
6 Ithelpstiming. It helpsLinel, it helpsLine?2, if 6 Andwe have continued to bid. There'srolling requests
7 this Committee acts and recommends bifurcation at this 7 for proposals that come out.
8 time 8 | don't think | can provide a specific
9 So -- okay. Go ahead. 9 percentageto you. | apologize, isto kind of current
10 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: | apologize, Mr. Acken. |10 discussionswith counter partiesin one state relative to
11 Mr. Wetzel, just refresh my recollection that you are 11 another.
12 employed by Pattern Energy; isthat correct? 12 | can tell you that we absolutely are attempting
13 MR. WETZEL : That's correct, Pattern Energy. 13 toand hope to provide a material amount of power to
14 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Andsoasaresultof |14 Arizonacustomers. However, it's dependent on market
15 that employment are unable to speak on behalf of El Rio |15 conditions and their interest in the product that we have
16 Sol or SouthWest Power Group; isthat correct? 16 tosell.
17 MR. WETZEL: In an official capacity, that's 17 And so we're doing our very best to be selected
18 correct. 18 by the customer base because it's an important part or
19 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: You had mentioned acustomer |19  our value proposition to be able to deliver to Arizona.
20 basethat may exist in Arizona, and you'd also mentioned |20 We don't always have control over that, of course,
21 that you werein the process of securing customers or 21 because they need to see the value in the product.
22 contracts. 22 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: | understand what you're
23 Are those customers or contracts in the effort 23 saying and appreciate the response. So if I'm pushing
24 of securing contracts for Pattern Energy and customers? |24  the envelope with this next question, | apologize.
25 MR. WETZEL : The efforts of securing customers |25 Can you disclose perhaps what number of
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1 arefrom Pattern Energy, correct, for the wind energy 1 megawatts from the wind facility in New Mexico would end
2 that would be delivered under Line 1. 2 upinArizona should you secure these potential
3 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Soyouarenotinthe | 3 contracts?
4 process of securing any customers or contracts for Line 4 MR. WETZEL: I'm really not trying to avoid any
5 2;isthat correct? 5 questions. | don't think | can. Because, again, we just
6 MR. WETZEL: That is correct. 6 don't know about whether we will be selected and at what
7 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: With respect to the 7 volume. You know, it'sredly hard to answer the
8 customersor contracts you're in the effort of securing 8 question. | can't really opine on how much we'll be
9 for Linel, are you able to disclose the number of 9 sdlected for.
10 potential customers -- well, number of customerswithout |10 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: That'sfine.
11 saying who they are? 11 Mr. Acken, because Mr. Wetzel isunableto
12 MR. WETZEL : | think maybe a better answer is 12 describe the potential contracts or customersfor Line 2
13 the customersthat wetalk to on aregular basis and 13 under El Rio Sol or SouthWest Power Group, are you aware
14 continue to either bid or negotiate with. And that 14 of any witnesses that would be able to opine on the
15 number iswell north of 60 or 70 counter parties across 15 customers or contracts that would be secured under Line 2
16 thewest, inclusive of many different utilities and 16 and how they might be different from the customers or
17 large-scale commercial and industrial customersthat are |17 contracts that would be secured if Line 2 maintain -- is
18 looking to site facilitiesin Arizona. 18 still opened by Pattern?
19 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: So my next question was |19 MR. ACKEN: You do like asking compound
20 going to be can you disclose what percentage of counter |20 questions. Let me seeif | can make sure | get them.
21 partiesthat you're hoping to secure contracts with are 21 So the testimony in thiscaseiis, isthat Line 2
22 in Arizona, have load in Arizona? 22 isfurther -- well, Line 1 is closer in its development
23 MR. WETZEL: | don't think we have atarget 23 timeframe; right? It has-- it hopesto be, if this
24 percentage for the different markets. 24 Committee were to approve the three limited amendments
25 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Not atarget percentage, |25 that we're requesting, it hopesto bein construction in
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1 thevery near term and operational by 2025. 1 availablein Arizonaand maybe elsewhere.
2 Line2 hasan in service still of 2031. 2 But we can't tell whether or not, just because
3 Soitisnot asfar asdown the line with 3 wegrant a CEC with multiple -- or two CECs, we can't
4 respect to identifying potential customers, marketing to 4 predict whether either of those projects will be built,
5 customers, things of that nature. 5 if it'sultimately determined by their owners that
6 With respect to the question of potential 6 there'san insufficient customer base.
7 customers, the testimony in this caseisthat Line 2 will 7 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Thank you, Chairman. |
8 havethe same eastern terminusin New MexicoasLinel, | 8 think you articulated very well at the outset of the
9 soit can supply power from wind power from New Mexico. | 9 proceeding that not all of the factors articulated by
10 Asan AC lineit also has a planned substation 10 statute apply in this case.
11 at Willow. And so it has the potential to attract 11 So, for example, when it comes to changing the
12 customersthat want to interconnect in Southern Arizona |12 tower design, that it's just avisual and maybe the
13 inthe solar-rich regions there who may look at it asan 13 wildlifeimpact, and so with respect to the specific
14 attractive opportunity to interconnect. 14 question of bifurcating or transferring ownership, I'm
15 But because that's further down the line, you 15 asojust trying to work through what factors, if any,
16 know, that's not information available today. 16 would apply.
17 And then of courseit will interconnect at Pinal 17 And it would seem perhaps that it would be only
18 Central, which isand will remain an excellent hub for 18 if the availability of economical or reliable power would
19 distribution to Arizona utilities, a number of Arizona 19 changein any material way from that which has already
20 utilities and throughout the western region. 20 been approved by the existing CEC. If it'sthe same, if
21 Asfar as specific witnesses, Mr. Ethertonis 21 it'sbetter, or if it'sworse.
22 dsointhe employ or doeswork for SouthWestern Power |22 Being that a new owner might have opportunities
23 Group. Soyou're happy -- you know, he's available if 23 toengagein different contracts or different customers
24 you have further questions, but as far as, you know, what |24 than the existing owner, if that makes sense.
25 isthe customer mix, it's alittle premature given where 25 MR. ACKEN: It makes perfect sense, and thank
Page 530 Page 532
1 wearein the development pipeline. 1 youforthat. | understand the question.
2 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust interject, though, or 2 Asyou saw, the testimony in this case is not
3 ask the question of either counsel or one of our three 3 focused on that because it is not adifference. When we
4 witnesses there. 4 look at the -- there is no difference from what was
5 And that isif either SunZiaor the owner of 5 originaly approved as to the marketability of this
6 Line 2 cannot procure in advance of construction a 6 project under separate ownership, combined ownership.
7 sufficient number of customers under contract and it 7 What we looked at is what are the environmental
8 appearsthat that's adead end, then Line 2 wouldn't be 8 factorsthat could change and then, of course, asyou
9 built? 9 well know, accuracy, economics, and reliability, there's
10 MR. ACKEN: Mr. Chairman, that's correct. | 10 no changethere. Testimony from usisthat there's no
11 think that's consistent with the testimony of Mr. Wetzel 11 change.
12 asamerchant transmission line. These projects aren't 12 And then, of course, we have provided testimony
13 built by utilitiesand rate base. They are built due to 13 onwhat we believe are minimal at most environmental
14 customer demand. 14 changes associated with the requested amendments.
15 There was discussion earlier today with respect 15 So that's -- so | appreciate the question. And
16 to Mr. Else's reference to High Plains Express and how 16 | understand better the nature of it. And that isthe
17 that project is not moving forward, and why isit not 17 position of the applicant is both projects still market
18 moving forward? There's no economic case for it. 18 to Arizona, still market to the region, they do have
19 Thereisaeconomic case for SunZiawhichiswhy |19 different profiles and opportunities, as we talked about
20 we'reall sitting here today. 20 withthe AC line and the additional interconnection, but
21 CHMN. KATZ: Right. And the only reason | 21 that'snot new.
22 broughtit upis| don't know that that's necessarily 22 | mean, that existed in 2015, it was part of the
23 within our purview. 23 discussion and evaluation at that time. So we focused on
24 If, in fact, it goes forward | think at least 24 what's new and what's different, and the applicant's
25 arguably there could be an increase in reliable energy 25 position, the bifurcation does not change the calculus
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1 with respect to adequacy, economics, or liability. 1 thetransmission line at hand, there's actually afairly
2 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust ask Mr. Gentles, did 2 limited amount of copper in our project base.
3 you have a question you wanted to ask of anyone? 3 It'sinvolved mostly the copper in transformers
4 MEMBER GENTLES: | did. It was around the 4 to step up our medium voltage power to higher voltages.
5 nature of the customers, but based on the prior 5 Themateridsthat are primarily used for the wind farm
6 conversation | think my questions have all been answered. | 6 aswaell asthetransmission line are steel and aluminum.
7 Basically it was how many customersdoes SunZia | 7 Those are the two major commodities.
8 believeit will have and kind of a split between Arizona 8 MEMBER GRINNELL: Isn't there about 1900 pounds
9 and New Mexico, et cetera. So | think I'm okay for now. | 9 per 1500 kilowatts of production in awind turbine?
10 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Thank you. Just wantedto |10 MR. WETZEL: Of copper?
11  make sure we didn't ignore you. 11 MEMBER GRINNELL: Yes.
12 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: | have one question for |12 MR. WETZEL: | can't answer that directly. It
13 Mr. Etherton. 13 sounds like you may have a specific number.
14 MR. ETHERTON: Yes. 14 MEMBER GRINNELL: | can.
15 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Mr. Wetzel testified that in |15 MR. WETZEL: | can just tell you from a
16 reationtoLine 1 10to 15 istransmission cost, 16 commodity management perspective aluminum and steel make
17 approximately 90 to 85 percent iswind cost. 17 up the majority of our commodity risk.
18 Areyou ableto articulate with respect to 18 MR. ACKEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And
19 Line 2 what that breakdown might be? 19 appreciate the Committee for alively discussion. I'm
20 MR. ETHERTON: | amnot. Again, | don'thavea |20 going to probably regret replowing this ground, but
21 general idea of what the cost of the wind would be for 21 Mr. Haenichen asked about Arizona consumers and maybe
22 connection at the end of the AC line in New Mexico. 22 their preferences for different types of power.
23 But, in general, | would think it would bein 23 BY MR. ACKEN:
24 the samerange; right? So | don't have the exact, you 24 Q. Mr. Wetzdl, | want you to go back to that
25 know, isit exactly 10 to 15, but it till seems like 25 because you touched on it, but there are different types
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1 it'swithinthat ballpark of costs overall between the 1 of Arizonaconsumers; correct? There's not one class.
2 wind and the transmission. 2 A. (MR.WETZEL) Oh, absolutely, yeah. | mean, so
3 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Thank you. | donthaveany | 3 wetend to talk about the larger utilitiesin the state
4 other questions, Chairman. 4 but of course there's cooperatives, electric districts,
5 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman. 5 large scale, you know, commercial industrial customers
6 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Grinnell. 6 that may choose to do what we call behind-the-meter
7 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Etherton. 7 projects, typicaly solar.
8 MR. ETHERTON: Yes. 8 They'll build, you know, on the roof tops or in
9 MEMBER GRINNELL: Okay. Thewind turbines | 9 theirimmediate vicinity or buy power kind of through one
10 consist of asignificant amount of copper and other fine |10 of the utilities, but a direct purchase from a specific
11 metals. Wouldn't the cost of wind generation and the 11 prompt. So there's multiple different ways that local
12 development of these wind turbines, wouldn't that factor |12  customers get power.
13 intotheoveral cost of producing the wind power -- 13 Q. Andsome of those new industrial customers or
14 MR. ETHERTON: Again, I'm not -- 14 expanded customers such as the Intel semiconductor
15 MEMBER GRINNELL: -- commodities? 15 facility, TMC, and the data centers, those are
16 MR. ETHERTON: | would think any commoditiesfor |16 significant power users; isthat fair to say?
17 awind park itself and the facilities would be included 17 A. (MR.WETZEL) Absolutely, I think it'sfair to
18 inthat. 18 say that the three largest anticipated generators of 1oad
19 MR. ACKEN: That might be a better questionfor |19 growth for the region would be manufacturing, data
20 Mr. Wetzel. 20 center, electric vehicles.
21 MR. WETZEL: | was going to ask if | could 21 Those make up avery large percentage of minimum
22 answer that one. Yes, so Pattern Energy isawind 22 of theload growth, and both the manufacturing companies
23 developer, so we spend alot of time understanding the 23 and the data center companies absolutely represent large
24  cost structure of our wind farms. 24  clean energy buyers aswell across the U.S.
25 And while not necessarily directly related to 25 Q. And,infact, they arelooking at locations
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1 wherethey can acquire renewable energy; isthat correct? | 1 utilities are seeking power from the same market that
2 A. (MR WETZEL) Based on my experience, that's 2 Cdiforniautilities are when they need to acquire
3 absolutely correct. 3 market-based power; is that correct?
4 Q. And so having accessto renewable energy, it's 4 A. (MR.WETZEL) Yes, the western market, while not
5 your understanding, is an important component to them 5 completely regionalized, is absolutely avibrant
6 when they are considering where to place their 6 marketplace such that thereis ability to purchase power
7 facilities. 7 from various parts of the region. And so, yeah, in many
8 A. (MR WETZEL) I'd agreewith that. And I'd go 8 circumstances multiple states and multiple customers are
9 further to say that depending on the company, alot of 9 requesting power from the same location.
10 companies are not just looking for access to renewable 10 Q. Sowouldyou agreethat more capacity in the
11 energy as measured on an annual, you know, 11  western market is good for the region as awhole
12 megawatt-hour-usage basis, but actually on ahour-by-hour |12 regardless of where that individual resource may be
13 generation basis to actually be able to match their 13 going?
14 energy on, again, an hour-by-hour basisrather thanjust |14 A. (MR.WETZEL) | absolutely agree with that.
15 anannual accounting. 15 Q. Thank you.
16 Q. Thankyou. I'mgoingtowade into perhaps more 16 MEMBER GRINNELL: One quick question, if | may.
17 shark-infested waters and talk about California. 17 When you get your solar or get your wind station
18 Y ou mentioned the California heat wave that's 18 in New Mexico, the consistency of power, will that vary
19 begun going onin the past week or so; is that correct? 19 on thedifferent winds throughout the whole lines?
20 A. (MR.WETZEL) | did referencethat. That's 20 In other words, say producing X amount of
21 correct. 21 500 watts, just argument, is that consistent throughout
22 Q. lamnot aneconomist. | wasageologistin 22 thewhole line because the generation of that power is at
23 undergrad. And so -- but | have alimited understanding |23 point A, or does that fluctuate over the course of that
24  of supply-and-demand. And my understandingismore |24 line?
25  supply helpsreduce cost. Isthat simplistic 25 With the winds, | go through California,
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1 understanding valid? 1 Southern Cdlifornia, through Blythe, all that. Y ou see
2 A. (MR.WETZEL) I'll start by saying I'm not a 2 all these wind turbines out there. Arethey all
3 trained economist either, although | do spend alot of 3 producing the same amount of power?
4 timein energy markets and understanding the economicsof | 4 MR. WETZEL: Okay. Gotit. Sotypicaly wind
5 energy projects and specifically SunZia. 5 farmsinclude asingle, you know, type of wind turbine,
6 And that'strue. And to further refine the 6 although it's not uncommon for multiple technologies or
7 point, what you see in these markets is when a specific 7 multiple turbine types to be included, so one turbine
8 region has an excess demand, in this case, you know, 8 could be 1.5 megawatts and one could be two megawaitts, so
9 Cdiforniathisweek had a new peak load record at 52 9 if both of those turbines were connected to the same
10 gigawatts. 10 project, it could be possible that there is multiple, you
11 What happensisit drives the cost up for any 11 know, megawatt volumes being generated, but typically,
12 market-available power because, you know, there's -- 12 andinthe case of SunZiathisis absolutely true, those
13 there'sincreased demand relative to the available 13 arecollected at asingle common bus and effectively
14  supply. 14 merged and added before it hits the transmission line.
15 And so anyone looking to buy that specific power |15 Such that while an hour-by-hour or
16 at that time, whether it bein California, Arizona, or 16 minute-by-minute basis the total megawatts flowing
17 any other regional location, is going to have to pay a 17 through the line will change based on the wind speed,
18 higher pricefor it. 18 what's actually present on the line will be, you know,
19 So by injecting very large-scale wind energy 19 consistent from minute to minute because all of the wind
20 into the western system, whether or not our customer is |20 that's being generated is collected in a single location
21 physically located in one state versus another, the 21 beforeit's transmitted.
22 benefitsthat it provides from a market context are going | 22 MEMBER GRINNELL: And then it's dispensed back
23 to be present no matter what because of the supply, 23 out to the, wherever it's going to go.
24 demand, and balance that Mr. Acken referenced. 24 MR. WETZEL: To the terminusin thiscasein
25 Q. Andit'syour understanding that Arizona 25 Pina Central; that's correct.
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1 MR. ACKEN: I'm going to shift topicsif that's 1 protection where they put fiber optic in the middle of
2 okay. 2 that static wire and they called it an optical ground
3 CHMN. KATZ: That's quite okay. 3 wire. Andit'sgreat. | mean, it's-- we've put in, you
4 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Acken, I'm sorry, | don't | 4 know, thousands of miles here in Arizona over the last
5 mean to do thisto you. | could talk about thisall day. 5 30 years based on that.
6 MR. ACKEN: It'syour Committee, you guys. We 6 And it has multiple advantages. Not only the
7 are hereto answer questions. 7 tatic protection. It has the fiberoptic capability to
8 MEMBER GRINNELL: Thisismore of an education | 8 provide operational control, protective relaying, all the
9 for measanything. Thank you. 9 other, al the -- telemetry, video, substations, all
10 MR. ACKEN: No, we want -- at the end of the 10 that.
11 day, wewant arobust record based on substantial 11 But it also provides even more becauseit's a
12 evidencein support of our requested amendments, and we |12 larger cable. So atypical static wireisaround
13 will spend all day answering the questions that you have |13 three-eighths of an inch in diameter. So pretty skinny.
14 insupport of that. 14 It'susualy solid steel and again going from structure
15 Okay. So another question that came about wasa |15 to structure, whereas the optical ground wire is about
16 questionthat | couldn't answer, what are earth wires. 16 twicethe diameter.
17 BY MR. ACKEN: 17 So it's alittle bigger, because again the
18 Q. Mr. Etherton, can you describe what earth wires 18 fiberoptic'sinside, but it also it provides additional
19 areand what's going to be used hereand thiswasinthe |19 shielding from the lightning protection aswell. That's
20 context of bird collisions? 20 so--and, again, in diameter it's roughly double the
21 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Correct. | do recall the 21 sizeof atypica static-only wire.
22 conversation and, again, for that context for earth wire, 22 CHMN. KATZ: Can the optical ground wire be also
23 inmy context | was referring to them either to as static 23 used for communication?
24 wiresor the optical ground wire. 24 MR. ETHERTON: Absolutely. With the
25 So I'm going to differentiate those allittle bit 25 fiberoptics, again, inside of it, embedded in it, any
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1 moreaswell. Sothestatic wiresat least in the desert 1 purpose on fiberoptic that you could do with, protective
2 southwest primarily have one -- one purpose. So I'll 2 relaying, SCADA, video, anything related to the operation
3 calitapurpose. And that'sto protect the phase wires 3 of theline would be included on that fiber.
4 and everything below it from lightning. 4 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Mr. Etherton, this might be
5 So remember they're on top of the structure. 5 beyond the scope of our review here, but I'm curious,
6 They're protecting, they provide a shielding for 6 what segments of the relevant line are optical ground
7 lightning that hitsin that general area, it won't hit 7 wireor static wire?
8 the phase conductors or the DC conductorsin some cases. | 8 MR. ETHERTON: Soin the case of SunZiaand El
9 So the earth, in that context from that 9 Rio Sal, both lines are going to have two optical ground
10 discussion, those are the -- that's the primary purpose 10 wiresfor the entire distance of theline. It's built
11 isto protect from lightning. Now, if there's an area 11 into the design, the structures are capable of handling
12 wherethere's no lightning, you may not need it. 12 it. Bverythingisincluded with that optical ground
13 There's areas, my son lives in Portland, there's 13 wire
14 power license there, 500 kV lines, there's no lightning 14 BY MR. ACKEN:
15 upinthat area. There's no static protection on those 15 Q. Andsodidyou recall the testimony that
16 lines. Itjust -- it shocked me, literally. Sorry. 16 Mr. Else provided that the narrow diameter earth wires
17 But in this area where we have alot of 17 constituted the vast mgjority of bird collisions
18 lightning, | mean, this summer has been one of those 18 observed?
19 areas, there'salot of lightning so therefore the shield 19 A. (MR.ETHERTON) I do.
20 wires protect that. 20 Q. Andit'syour testimony that these optical
21 Now, about 30-some years ago, some smart company |21  ground wires are substantially larger in size?
22 figured out that, hey, we have been adding fiber optics 22 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Approximately double, that's
23 toalot of these transmission lines, mainly in local 23 correct.
24  area, but maybe even in some long distance areasaswell. |24 Q. Thank you. Committee Member Little asked about
25 So they came up with another type of static 25 the ACC Staff letter. Do you recall that line of
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1 questioning? 1 beafew PowerPoint slides -- oh, 13 is the PowerPoint
2 A. (MR ETHERTON) I do. 2 dlides. 12 should be the excerpt from the FEIS.
3 Q. AndI believe her question, one of her questions 3 Okay. Thank you. Okay. So on the right-hand
4 and she may have follow-up, was what information did 4 screenis SZA-12, an excerpt from the final EIS and then
5 SunZiaprovide to Commission Staff in order for 5 werewaiting for the dides which should be SZA-13.
6 Commission Staff to make their recommendation. Canyou | 6 MEMBER HAMWAY : Isthere aphoto of one of these
7 addressthat? 7 things?
8 A. (MR ETHERTON) Sure. Sothe datarequests 8 MR. ETHERTON: We'll show adiagram.
9 referred to the technical studies related for the WECC 9 MEMBER HAMWAY: Okay. Perfect.
10 three phaserating study for the HPDC, so Line 1. 10 MR. WETZEL: | think this might be the dlide
11 We had been performing that and it was submitted |11 deck.
12 to WECC inearly July, around July 1st. Itwasnotedon |12 MR. ACKEN: Isit al in one?
13  July 6toal the WECC members across the west, 13 states |13 MR. WETZEL.: Itis, Bert.
14 plusthe Canadian provinces for a 60-day review aswell. |14 MEMBER LITTLE: That's not what's on our iPads.
15 But that's the document that included power 15 MR. ACKEN: Y eah, we need to be consistent.
16 flow, transient instability, post transient, and 16 MEMBER LITTLE: Never mind.
17 everything contained related to the DC line, that 17 MR. ACKEN: Okay. Let'sgo with what's on the
18 3000-megawatt rating. Clarify that. 18 screen. My apologies. We were trying to move this
19 MEMBER LITTLE: That's my question. Thank you. [19 quickly and we've lost something in translation. So this
20 MR. ACKEN: Okay, great. Mr. Chairman, we're 20 will be SZA-12, starting with an excerpt from the final
21 about to go into discussion of the ground return facility 21 EIS
22 that's not being -- that would be eliminated as a result 22 BY MR. ACKEN:
23  of thisrequested amendment. 23 Q. Mr. Etherton, | would like you to describe the
24 Do you want us to start now or isthisa 24 ground electrode facilities and walk the Committee
25 convenient break before we diveinto that? 25 through the slides which will include a diagram as
Page 546 Page 548
1 CHMN. KATZ: | mean, we either break now orwe | 1 requested by Member Hamway to better understand what
2 break in about 10 or 15 minutes. If we're going to 2 exactly weretaking about.
3 change gears, we might want to just go ahead and eat 3 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Sure, Mr. Acken. Thank you.
4 lunch now and come back at one, but I'd ask everybody if | 4 Thank you, Chairman, members of the Committee. I'll try
5 we're going to do that to be promptly available at one so 5 togo through this again.
6 that wedon't dillydally for too long. We do stand in 6 If you recall during my testimony | had kind of
7  recess. 7 ahigh-level description and a couple diagrams showing
8 (Recess from 11:56 am. to 1:02 p.m.) 8 how the ground electrode would be situated between the
9 CHMN. KATZ: Good afternoon, everyone. I'm 9 two converter stations, New Mexico and Arizona. So
10 assuming that we're ready to get started. | don't know, 10 again, I'll try to elaborate alittle bit more.
11 Leonard, if you could grab the door and close it. 11 Each ground electrode facility, again, what we
12 Mr. Acken, you may proceed. 12 discussed is not located directly at the converter
13 MR. ACKEN: Good afternoon. Thank you, 13 station and there's reasons, electrical reasons why they
14  Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee. 14 cannot be. Mostly because, again, you're trying to
15 We're going to continue our rebuttal case with a 15 inject that 3000 amps into the ground that | mentioned
16 discussion of the ground conductorsthat wearenolonger |16 earlier.
17 seeking to use should the amended tower structures be 17 You also get alot of ground potential rise, a
18 authorized. 18 lot of voltage right there at the station where other
19 So the MRCs will replace this prior 19 electrical stuff is, so it could affect other, not only
20 configuration, but there was a question, a series of 20 facilities at that station, but kind of nearby aswell.
21 questions, from Member Schweibert and others asking for |21 So typically the way they've been done, and as |
22 moreinformation about those ground electrode facilities, |22 mentioned during the testimony that they're located some
23 and so we're going to address that. 23 distance away from the converter station, and that's
24 So at thistimeif | could have SZA-12 and 13 24 wheretheresalittle bit of science that needsto go
25 shown. And maybe my numbering isincorrect. 12 should |25 into that.
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1 But it'saminimum of five milesall the way up 1 considerations coming up. It could be up to 40 miles of
2 to, you know, 30 or 40 miles away from the converter 2 additiona line on either side for each conductor, or
3 dtation from either end. Okay. So that's one aspect of 3 each converter station.
4 it 4 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Aswe proceed here, do you
5 And to get from the converter station over to 5 have graphicsthat show sort of the radius on either end
6 the ground electrode facility isthislead line, lower 6 where SunZiawas potentially planning to have those lines
7 voltage, you know, definitely something lessthan 100kV | 7 terminate?
8 insulated, but it's carrying that -- that 3000 amps or 8 MR. WETZEL: We don't have a specific graphic
9 could carry up to that 3000 amps out to that ground 9 but I'll address the considerations within that radius.
10 electrodefacility. And I've got acouple diagramsto 10 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Okay. Thank you.
11 describethat alittle bit more. 11 MR. ETHERTON: Thank you for clarifying that. |
12 MEMBER HAMWAY : Isthat strung on infrastructure [12 think | did say, yeah, but it's minimum to that.
13 orisit-- probably depends on how far thelineis. 13 So, again, the purpose of it isto keep it away
14 MR. ETHERTON: There's different was to get 14 from the converter station itself.
15 there, excuse me, Member. 15 Each ground electrode facility, as | mentioned
16 MEMBER HAMWAY: I'm sorry. | don't evenknow |16 earlier, why we're consist of a series of deep earth
17 what | just asked you. 17 wellsor electrodes, again to be routed into the ground
18 MR. ETHERTON: Y ou were asking how thelead line |18 and to be able to distribute the current into the ground.
19 got there, basicaly; right? 19 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust ask, isthisfor the
20 MEMBER HAMWAY : | guessyou do havetocare. | |20 optical grounding now because we just heard that we're
21 wasjust asking. What was | asking? 21 not going to use the traditional grounding. So isthis
22 CHMN. KATZ: You asked how to get theground |22 for thetraditional ground wires that are being
23 leadsto the location of the grounding. 23 eiminated that we're now discussing?
24 MEMBER HAMWAY : Right. 24 MR. ETHERTON: That is correct.
25 MR. ETHERTON: So let me seeif | can address 25 CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
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1 that. Sofrom the converter station out to the ground 1 MR. ETHERTON: Thisisfor the ground electrode
2 electrode you do need some conductors to get there to 2 facilitiesthat we are not proposing to use. We're
3 carry that. 3 proposing to use the dedicated metallic return
4 MEMBER HAMWAY:: Right. That'swhat | meant. | 4 conductors.
5 MR. ETHERTON: Okay. So there'sdifferent ways | 5 MR. ACKEN: And if | could interject, yes, just
6 Yyou could dothat. You could do it attaching to the 6 to be clear what this entire discussion is about isthe
7 structure or you could have atotally separate structure, 7 ground electrode facilities that were contemplated with
8 set of structures, to get it out to that facility. 8 theoriginal approval.
9 That'stypicaly how it'sdone. And| -- sojust -- just 9 Member Schweibert asked the question of, well,
10 tokind of clarify that. 10 comparetheimpacts. We want to understand better what
11 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Mr. Etherton. 11 those ground electrode facilities are and compare the
12 MR. ETHERTON: Yes. 12 electrodesto what was originally approved to what we're
13 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Just so | understand this |13  requesting here.
14 correctly, you're saying that there could be up to five 14 That's the nature of thisisto be responsive to
15 additional miles of wires, not under the Committee's 15 that. And frankly tell -- provide this committee with
16 jurisdiction because of the size, but still up to five 16 additional context that we think will be supportive of
17 miles more on either end? 17 our request to amend.
18 MR. ETHERTON: That is correct. 18 BY MR. ACKEN:
19 MR. WETZEL: I'd like to clarify that. Five 19 Q. So, Mr. Etherton, with that, please continue.
20 mileswould be the minimum. 20 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Sure. Thank you. Again, as|
21 MR. ETHERTON: There could be 40 miles -- 21 mentioned earlier, each site may be up to the 600 acres
22 CHMN. KATZ: One at atime, please. 22 insize. Again, thisisthereference from -- from the
23 MR. WETZEL: Apologies. Five mileswould bethe |23 EIS. And there's other uses that may be allowed on the
24 minimum depending on the final engineering and the 24 dite.
25 location, and well talk through a bit of those 25 And | do have apotentia configuration because
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1 they comeinall shapesand sizes. Again, based on the 1 And there could be, again, a number of different
2 earth, the soil resistivity, the thermal properties of 2 facilities underground to be able to get there. But this
3 whereyou've selected for the site, and a number of other 3 isanexample.
4 factors. 4 And there could be several of these, as|
5 Here's an example of what we're just calling a 5 mentioned, situated around thisfacility itself. So,
6 circular design. It's approximately 1500 feet or soin 6 again, it'salittle bit more detailed than we had
7 radii, but the way this would work you would have that 7 provided previously, so | thought it would be worthwhile
8 lead line, as we were talking, coming from the converter 8 todescribe, again, what's all contained within that. So
9 dtation into the center core of thisradii. 9 hopefully that's helpful.
10 That -- from that location, you would have a 10 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.
11 distribution of underground cables that would take the 11 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, maam.
12 electrodes out and kind of disperse that injection of 12 MEMBER LITTLE: Sowould thisbe likea
13 current into awider area. 13 fenced-off areathat nobody could get accessto or -- 600
14 And, again, that's up to the full area of the 14 acresisalot.
15 circle here that's shown in this particular example. 15 MR. ETHERTON: That's agood question as well.
16 So each one of these are under ground. It would 16 So what we've seen -- sorry, wrong button -- what we've
17 haveaseriesof ground wellsthat are, you know, a 17 seen again from other examples around the U.S. and even
18 hundred feet or so in depth, and I've got an exampl e of 18 around the globe, the only areathat's really fenced is
19 what one of those wellswould look like hereinasecond. |19 the small areawhere the main feeder lineis coming in.
20 But it would also show that there -- how much it 20 There's a control house there with telemetry
21 takesto be ableto distribute that amount of current 21 that'skind of monitoring to make sure, one, the lead
22 intothe ground and not inject it just in one location 22 lineisavailableto what it needsto doin
23 but actually spread it out alittle bit more. Again, 23 communications and, you know, overall security of that
24 thisisonefacility. You have another one toward the 24 little control house.
25 other end of the line aswell. 25 But therest of it isnot fenced. So there's
Page 554 Page 556
1 MEMBER HAMWAY:: Can| just ask how oftenthisis | 1 other multiple uses that you could do on this. But
2 used and will it continue to be used since we have the 2 there'salso, as you can imagine, quite a bit of heating
3 newer technology? 3 that would occur when you're injecting that much current
4 MR. ETHERTON: That'sagood question. Sothis | 4 intothe ground.
5 isusedfairly often. 5 So | think the usage isfairly limited. But
6 MEMBER HAMWAY : Okay. 6 what we've seen, itisnot al fenced. Only -- only the
7 MR. ETHERTON: And it'stypically achoice of 7 local control or terminal building asit's shown hereis
8 the DC, you know, the project owner itself, based on 8 fenced, it's about a 60-by-60 area what's represented
9 what'sinthe area, isthere anything betweenpoint Aand | 9 here. Soit'safairly small areafor fencing.
10 point B, isit in a congested area like a downtown area 10 CHMN. KATZ: And the rest of it isn't fenced
11 wherethere's abunch of facilities that could be 11 becauseit's underground?
12 impacted by the underground current going from oneto the |12 MR. ETHERTON: That is correct.
13 other. Soit'stypically aproject choice. 13 BY MR. ACKEN:
14 Just a quick example of what one of those 14 Q. Mr. Etherton, I'd likeyou to talk alittle bit
15 electrode facilities, this was pulled from an example. 15 about, | heard originally that the testimony was that you
16 It'sdefinitely deeper than a hundred foot that we've 16 would, thiswould have the capability of injecting
17 mentioned before in this area, too. 17 3,000 ampsinto the ground; isthat correct?
18 But one of those underground cables would be 18 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Thatiscorrect. Thatisthe
19 comingin and then you'd have this, basically awell that |19 rating.
20 would go al the way down into the depth of the soil 20 Q. Andthat would be those well structures, that's
21 resistivity that you're trying to achieve to be able to 21 wheretheinjection point would be?
22 distribute that current and where it needsto go. And, 22 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Distributed among severa of
23 again, it'sgoing to go the least path, typical 23 thesg, that's correct.
24  dectricity, least path of resistancetill it getsto the 24 Q. What are the impacts on surrounding
25 other end. 25 infrastructure from injecting 3,000 amps into the ground?
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1 A. (MR.ETHERTON) Well, again, the -- where you 1 technical.

2 inject thisamperage, it'strying to get to the remote 2 And so being outside of population centers and

3 end, and anything that'sin its path that has a lower 3 frankly even outside of residential, you know, areas

4 resistivity than -- than the ground that it's been 4 would be the preference, and that's typically where these

5 transmitted would also be another path for that -- for 5 arelocated throughout the U.S. and the world.

6 that current to travel to the other end. 6 We also have to consider vegetation. Because of

7 Q. Oh, I'msorry, | thought you were done. 7 the amount of heat created here, it does require grading

8 A. (MR ETHERTON) No, | wasgoing to say, 8 and it requires vegetation removal and management.

9 there's-- any underground facility that can conduct 9 So you know, where, what types of vegetation are
10 electricity would, in fact, be a potentia path. 10 inthearea, you know, creating the least amount of
11 Q. Mr. Wetzel, Member Schweibert asked about 11 impact is of course important to us. And then, you know,
12 locationsfor this. Can you talk about how you would 12 species and habitat is another big one.
13 evaluate locations, siting constraints, things of that 13 Mr. Etherton mentioned the heat and the depth of
14 nature relative to actually finding alocation to put a 14 these electrodes. So thereisthe potential for
15 facility such asthis? 15 biological impacts where these are located, especially
16 A. (MR.WETZEL) Absolutely. Sowhenwelook a |16 for subterranean species, you know, anything that might
17 locating any of our, you know, infrastructurewe haveto |17 beinthearea
18 consider everything from the public, you know, input, 18 So that's something that we heavily considered
19 landowner concerns, environmental concerns, you know, |19 when we were deciding whether this was the right solution
20 visual land use, al of these different things. 20 for the SunZia project.
21 So I'll first touch on what Mr. Etherton 21 And then, you know, lastly what I'd say iswhen
22 mentioned which is at this level the size of the ground 22 we'recombining all of those different elements and we're
23 dectrode could have material impacts on underground 23 evaluating the alternative, which isthe MRC solution
24 infrastructure, primarily pipelines. 24 that hasresulted in the request for updated tower types,
25 So what has to happen is you're evaluating where 25 that's what we compare.

Page 558 Page 560

1 thesecan belocated. You do anumber of cathodic 1 We say okay, 600 acres, possibly up to 40 miles,

2 protection and ground resistance studies to understand 2 somewhere between five and 40 miles of additional, you

3 wherethe pipelines are located if you were to site this 3 know, lead lines, lower voltage. But, you know, new

4 facility and you were near them, what would theimpacts | 4 transmission facilities or distribution lines, | should

5 be. 5 say, to connect them, not just in Arizonabut also in

6 And then you work with the pipeline company to 6 New Mexico.

7 understand can you mitigate them? And so that mightbe | 7 And we weigh the impacts of everything | just

8 upgrades, it might be relocations of pipelines. And so 8 described relative to the MRC solution which eliminates

9 they can be pretty materially impactful to pipeline 9 all of thisinfrastructure and all of these potential
10 infrastructure anywhere near them. 10 environmental concerns and instead creates new tower
11 Secondly is soil type. So Mark mentioned, 11 types.
12 Mr. Etherton mentioned soil resistivity, so dependingon |12 We did that, and we said okay, what would the
13 the soil types either you -- you may not be able to 13 new tower typeslook like, of which we've shown to you
14 locate afacility there or you may haveto dig deeper, so |14 today, and then we had our expertslook at them and say
15 it goesinto the design of the facility. But soil 15 would these create any additional impactsrelative to the
16 resigtivity isanother major factor. 16 existing towers, and we heard from the testimony in the
17 Those are the more technical ones. 17 last few days was that we do not find any substantial nor
18 The ones that we, you know, really care about in 18 material impactsrelated to that addition of the MRC.
19 addition are the more, you know, 1'd probably refer toit |19 And so when we as company and sponsor of the
20 asdevelopment-focused areasthat is, again, environment, |20 project weigh those two alternative options, we came to
21 publicinput, and landowner input. 21 theclear conclusion that the least environmentally
22 And so while, you know, thisisunder groundand |22 impactful and public impactful solution hereisto update
23 may not al be fenced, we don't anticipate that neighbors |23  the tower and go at the MRC solution relative to the
24 or landowners would be prefer thisto be located intheir |24  ground electrodes.
25 area. It'shardto understand, frankly. It'svery 25 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.
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1 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little? 1 which -- which | think you know mirror some of the

2 MEMBER LITTLE: Can | confirm, | asked this 2 testimony we've provided.

3 question before, but can | confirm that all of this 3 First isthat a diversified grid and diversified

4 infrastructure was included in the consideration for the 4 generation isimportant. Second is that the wind energy

5 origina CEC and in all of the biological stuff that was 5 provided out of New Mexico is not going to displace or

6 presented, everything that was presented before the 6 cause any detriment to the proliferation of Arizonas

7 Committee in the original hearings for the CEC? 7 solar industry development, in that both New Mexico wind

8 MR. ACKEN: | can confirm that -- and I'll speak 8 and Arizona Solar can and should co-exist for the benefit

9 tothis, and the witnesses can amplify. You're seeing 9 of al Arizonans and al -- everyone in the western U.S.
10 theexcerpt fromthe FEIS. The entire FEIS record, the 10 And if | could maybe ask to move to the page 2
11 origina proceeding wasincorporated into the record. 11 of theletter. I'll just refer, again, to this. So they
12 And so we had a massive, massive documentary record in |12 reguested that the SunZia southwest transmission line be
13 the proceeding before. 13 approved.

14 We did not specifically request approval for 14 BY MR. ACKEN:
15 thisfrom the Committee, because for the reasons 15 Q. Thank you, Mr. Wetzdl.
16 mentioned, you know, they're outside the Committee's 16 Mr. Cernea Clark, during cross-examination of
17 jurisdiction due to lower voltages, things of that 17 Mr. Else, he expressed initially non-opposition to the
18 nature, but that information was part of the record. 18 threerequested amendments proposed or requested by
19 CHMN. KATZ: And, again, there aren't any 19 SunZiaat thistime. Do you recall that testimony?
20 conditions, findings of fact, or conclusions of law 20 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Yes, | do.
21 relating to the grounding facility in the existing CEC; 21 Q. Anddoyourecal helater expressed concern
22 isthat correct? 22 that he would not have the opportunity to advocate for
23 MR. ACKEN: That is correct. 23 other conditionsif his-- if he wasin non-opposition to
24 MEMBER GRINNELL: Just hypothetically, and | can |24 the requested changes? Did you recall that?
25 beshort, you couldn't put thisin the San Pedro Valley, 25 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Yes, | do.

Page 562 Page 564

1 then? 1 Q. So, Mr. CerneaClark, have you had any

2 MR. WETZEL : Absolutely not. We would not 2 discussionswith Mr. Else regarding potential conditions

3 propose thisin the San Pedro Valley, nor would we choose | 3 that would be acceptable to the applicant, and we hope

4 to put this anywhere near the population centers, which 4 amenable to Mr. Else that would allow him to express

5 iswhy in Arizona specifically locating these facilities 5 non-opposition to the project?

6 would be challenging and potentially impactful. 6 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Yes.

7 MEMBER GRINNELL: I'm done, Bert. 7 Q. Andwould you present those for the Committee?

8 BY MR. ACKEN: 8 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Yeah. Sure. Thanks.

9 Q. Justwanttomakesure. Mr. Wetzdl, I'd like to 9 So we met with Mr. Else this morning, and he had
10 turnyour attention, and if we could have shown on the 10 concerns which he had expressed before about Condition 26
11 screen aletter that was docketed on -- dated 11 and the sensitivity of the lower San Pedro watershed
12 September 1st from the Arizona Solar Energy Industries |12 area.

13 Association, and we would mark this for identificationas |13 We brought in the environmental lead on the

14 SZA-13, if I've got my numbering correct. 14 preconstruction/construction design of the project as

15 But thisisagain, if we could haveit shown, a 15 well asmy colleague, Cindy Freeman. And hashed through
16 September 1st, 2002, letter from AriSEIA? 16 the concerns Mr. Else had and tried to develop some

17 Mr. Wetzel, are you familiar with this letter? 17 meaningful commitments that we could make as a condition
18 A. (MR.WETZEL) | am. 18 that wewould -- that we've drafted up. And if we could
19 Q. And canyou please summarize the perspective 19 pull those up.

20 shared by AriSEIA with respect to this project? 20 MR. ACKEN: Givethe AV team a moment. We will
21 A. (MR.WETZEL) Absolutely. SotheArizonaSolar |21 mark these for identification as SZA-14.

22 Energy Industry Association, AriSEIA, provided this 22 CHMN. KATZ: What I'm trying to figure out was
23 letter of support for the SunZia project, and | won't 23 when I'm looking on the iPad, | was showing as SZA-13
24  read it verbatim, it'sin the record, but | will point 24 being your application for amendment.

25 out acouple of elementsthat they have presented, 25 Am | looking in the wrong spot?

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

(34) Pages 561 - 564

602.266.6535 www.glennie-reporting.com





SunZia Transmission LL C/SunZia Southwest Transmission

Docket No. L-00000YY-15-0318-00171 - L SC 171 Amended

Evidentiary Hearing, Volumel I
September 8, 2022

Page 565 Page 567
1 MR. ACKEN: | will accept responsibility for 1 construction folks we think we can do and we will do.
2 that. | gavethe AV team thewrong link. So SZA-13 2 That'swhy we're proposing to have it be, you know, a
3 should be and isthe letter from AriSEIA. And my 3 legally binding condition.
4 apologies for the confusion. 4 And | think that it goes along way to
5 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. 5 addressing some of Mr. Else and his colleagues concerns.
6 MR. ACKEN: The tablets will be updated at the 6 WEe're going to keep working with the community in lower
7 next break, I'minformed. Intheinterimwewill showon | 7 San Pedro. But these are things that we can clearly
8 the screen what we've marked as SZA-14. And | appreciate | 8 commit to today.
9 your patience. 9 And then the second one, you guys --
10 The team has been working hard with Mr. Elseand |10 Q. Beforeyou move on --
11 credit to him aswell for spending time to go through 11 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Sure.
12 these. So, you know, we're presenting them assoonaswe |12 Q. -- | want to follow up on what you just said.
13 can. 13 Regardless of Condition 38, are you committed to working
14 Thank you very much. Let the record reflect 14 with the lower San Pedro community?
15 that what is shown on the screen has been marked as 15 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Absolutely.
16 SZA-14, the proposed conditionsthat Mr. CerneaClark |16 Q. Thank you. Please continue.
17 just referenced. 17 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Sure. Andyou have heard
18 BY MR. ACKEN: 18 about concerns around the FAA lighting requirements.
19 Q. And, Mr. CerneaClark, | would ask you present 19 Again, those are not relevant to the amendments we've
20 these and describe them for Committee at thistime. 20 presented, but there -- it's a concern for the community,
21 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Sure. Thanks. | dowantto |21 andwe want to work closely with communities.
22 dtressit was a productive solutions-oriented work 22 So thisis a condition that would apply for
23  session we had with Mr. Else. 23 LinelandLine?2. That wewill dojust what we've been
24 So their concerns have to do with the traffic 24 doing and that you have heard testimony on of working
25 aong the Cascabel Road. To acertain extent some of 25 hard to minimize any lighting of these transmission
Page 566 Page 568
1 that, or alot of traffic isthe result of the 1 structures. Of course within the framework of what the
2 Condition 26 with helicopter installations. 2 FAA requires.
3 And so what we identified was an area, and we've 3 And that's something that we've already
4 documented it here just north of 3 Link Road, then up to 4 demonstrated that we've done by bringing the lighting
5 the county line of Pimaand Cochise where there will be 5 down from 21 to 11 to five lights. And something that
6 no -- no existing roads would be used off of the Cascabel | 6 welll continue to do.
7 Road itself. 7 And thisis also an area where we're going to
8 And Mr. Else had talked about concerns around an 8 continue working with the community. Y ou had public
9 existing road that we had evaluated for potential use 9 comment from Mike Weasner who hel ped get the dark sky
10 whichwe're not going to be using. That would be an 10 program up at Oracle State Park.
11 example. 11 I've been in communication with him so he hasa
12 So this commitment is for that stretch of road. 12  Dbetter understanding of what kind of lighting impacts the
13 Wewill just use the county road and not go beyond it. 13 construction will have. So thisis another area where we
14 We also committed that we wouldn't be trying to 14 are committed to working with the community. It's
15 widenit. Wewould be doing veg management on that road. |15 important to do in these projects, and these are things
16 And wewould implement a speed limit of 20 milesan hour |16 that we're happy to have be legally binding upon us.
17 on Cascabel Road and the county road during construction. |17 MR. ACKEN: Thank you. At thistimel'd ask the
18 We have, you know, this additional language here |18 panel if you have any concluding thoughts, and if not,
19 at theend, that's just to make sure that this condition 19 turnit over for questions.
20 isconsistent with whatever requirements the countiesor |20 MR. WETZEL: Only concluding thought is a thanks
21 Arizona Department of Transportation might require. 21 tothe Committee for your time over the last few days and
22 So we just want to make sure that we aren't 22 your consideration for the requests. We think that these
23 promising to do something on the one side that thenisin |23  three amendments will allow these projects to move
24 conflict with another obligation. 24 forward in the most environmentally and -- and
25 So these are all things that, working with our 25 responsible way. And so we appreciate your
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1 consideration. 1 regarding the proposed condition, would you join mein
2 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. | don't know if any of | 2 requesting that we have sufficient time to run this
3 theother attorneys have any questions or Mr. Else has 3 language by the Cascabel community this evening before we
4 any questions. 4 gointo deliberations?
5 MR. EL SE: Cross-examination type questions? 5 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) | would submit that that's,
6 CHMN. KATZ: Sure. 6 on behalf of the applicant we want to provide Mr. Else
7 MR. ELSE: Yeah, just afew. 7 and those who support his position adequate time to
8 8 evaluatethis condition. We want -- we think they're
9 CROSS-EXAMINATION 9 good conditions and we would welcome his consent to them.
10 BY MR.ELSE: 10 It's not for the applicant to say as to timing.
11 Q. Regarding the economics, Mr. Wetzdl, isit true 11  Weare certainly respectful of the desire for more time.
12 that Pattern, like most corporations, will focus on the 12 Butl -- | would submit that that's really a question for
13 power purchase agreements that provide the most profitto |13 the Committee.
14 the corporation? 14 MR. ELSE: Okay. Sothat'snot redly a
15 A. (BY MR.WETZEL) Patternisafor-profit 15 cross-examination question.
16 enterprise, the way that we balance considerations for 16 MR. ACKEN: You can, | guess, Mr. Cernea Clark,
17 any power purchase agreement include economicsand also |17 you can answer the question, but please keep in mind it's
18 include non-economic elements such asrisk, reputation, |18 not your place to make calls for Committee.
19 things of that nature. 19 BY MR.ELSE:
20 Q. Okay. Thank you. Andthenyouwereestimating |20 Q. My questioniswould you support mein
21 that about 10 to 15 percent of the delivered cost of the 21 expressing interest in giving the community just time to
22 wind energy would be transmission, and that the other 22 look over the wording?
23 85 percent, 90 to 85 percent would be actual generation |23 A. (MR. CERNEA CLARK) | mean, | think | obviously
24 cost. 24 needto lean on Mr. Acken's counsel. But regardless of
25 So I'm just, my own clarification, that would 25 these conditions, we're going to continue to work with
Page 570 Page 572
1 mean that the cost of putting in the wind facilitiesis 1 thecommunity.
2 greater than the cost of the -- installing the 2 Q. Yeah, | understand that. | just want to make
3 transmission facility that you would own? 3 surel don't stick my neck out too far with the
4 A. (MR.WETZEL) The capital cost of the wind 4 community, so | just need alittle bit more time and
5 facilitiesis greater than the capital cost of the 5 perhaps the Committee can respond to me on that as they
6 transmission facilities. But the 15 percent versus the 6 develop their schedule.
7 85 percent isthe example, is not relatively correct from 7 CHMN. KATZ: Thething that I'm going to
8 acapita cost perspective. 8 indicateis|'m expecting we're going to finish this
9 That is the cost of the delivered product 9 hearing tomorrow, and we're not going to delay for days
10 because what | wasreferring to isthe delivered product |10  or weeks because we have hearings now getting scheduled
11 from the wind energy, includes paying transmission 11  all the way through May and June of next year, two of
12 servicerates, not necessarily paying the capital cost of 12 them amonth.
13 thetransmission line, if that makes sense. 13 So | need to use the time we have wisely and I'd
14 Q. Okay. Thank you. 14 liketo be done by -- as early as possible tomorrow, but
15 And then point of clarification with Mr. 15 we need to be thorough and compl ete.
16 Etherton, the new process that's been started as of 16 MR. ELSE: All right. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
17 July 1 of thisyear with the WECC, this process, if | 17 That's all the cross-examination questions that
18 understand correctly, and | understand your responseto |18 | have.
19 Committee Member Little correctly only appliesto the 19 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Haenichen, did you have
20 first DCline; isn't that correct? 20 something further?
21 A. (MR.ETHERTON) That is correct. 21 MEMBER HAENICHEN: No, thank you.
22 Q. Andthat sofar, no similar process has been 22 CHMN. KATZ: May these witnesses be excused at
23 initiated for the second AC line? 23 least for the moment?
24 A. (MR.ETHERTON) That iscorrect. 24 MR. ACKEN: They may, Mr. Chairman.
25 Q. Okay. Andthenfinaly to Mr. CerneaClark, 25 I would offer afew additional exhibits, seeif
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1 | getthemright: SZA-11, which isthe ACC Staff letter 1 I'll ask Mr. Cernea Clark to talk through maybe
2 dated August 29, 2022; SZA-12, which was the rebuttal 2 some of the federal outreach elements that have occurred,
3 PowerPoint slide presented by Mr. Etherton; SZA-13, which | 3 because this project has the benefit of going through not
4 wasthe September 1 letter from AriSEIA; and SZA-14 which | 4 only the CEC process but also the BLM process, in
5 isthetwo proposed conditions that are on the screen 5 addition to some other processes with the county.
6 beforeyou. 6 I'll refer, last night we actually had an open
7 CHMN. KATZ: Those will be admitted. Alsothere | 7 housefor the Pinal County SunZia converter station that
8 wasn't aformal offer by Mr. Else, but | will admit his 8 we put on, you know, with some engineering teams and
9 exhibits numbered 1 through 13. 9 members of our team to seeif there were any questions.
10 (Exhibits SZA-11 through SZA-14 and 10 There happened to be not many questions for that one, but
11 ELSE Exhibits 1-13 admitted into evidence.) 11 we held the event.
12 MR. ELSE: Thank you. 12 So maybe, Adam, you can talk through some of the
13 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman. 13 federa elements.
14 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, maam. 14 MR. ACKEN: Before we do that, Mr. Wetzel, on
15 MEMBER LITTLE: | have a question of SunZia. 15 the screen is shown SZA-4, which isthe public outreach
16 Probably Mr. Acken can answer this. 16 summary specifically for this hearing. 1'd like you to
17 Generally in these hearings we hear discussion 17 just kind of go through and confirm afew items with me.
18 of the public outreach, some summary of what the public |18 CHMN. KATZ: What's the exhibit again, SZA?
19 comment has been, and I'm wondering why we haven'tin |19 MR. ACKEN: SZA-4, yeah, if you have acopy in
20 thishearing. 20 front of you.
21 MR. ACKEN: Fair question. A couple reasons. 21
22 One, the nature of it isjust an amendment asopposedto |22 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
23 atypica hearing, but we did present a summary of recent |23 BY MR. ACKEN:
24 information that isin SunZia 4. 24 Q. Canyou confirm that the applicant had a project
25 But I'm happy to have Mr. Wetzel describe the 25 website for this where the public could find information
Page 574 Page 576
1 public outreach process both recently asit relates to 1 about the hearing as well as an opportunity to provide
2 SunZia4, but really over the course of the past few 2 comments and answer -- ask questions.
3 years, and Mr. Cernea Clark can amplify with his 3 A. (MR.WETZEL) Yes, absolutely. We're very proud
4 outreach. 4 of our website. Wethink it's pretty looking, and
5 SunZia, there's a great story to tell, and so if 5 there's absolutely a delegated contact to us for anything
6 youwould liketo hear it we'd love to shareit. 6 about the project.
7 MEMBER LITTLE: | would. | don't know how 7 Q. Didthe applicant conduct virtual open houses
8 everybody elsefeels. 8 for this hearing?
9 MR. WETZEL: Sure. SoI'll start by just | 9 A. (MR.WETZEL) Wedid. We conducted two virtual
10 guessreferring to the earlier testimony that Mr. Cernea |10  open houses for the hearing. | participated on both
11 Clark has presented around engagement with the local 11 meetings as a panelist to provide information to the
12 community outside of any formal process. 12 community.
13 Pattern prides itself on our community 13 Q. Andyou held two separate open houses; is that
14 engagement, we are long-term owner-operator of projects. |14 correct?
15 We become members of the community. We have membersof ({15 A. (MR.WETZEL) That is correct.
16 our team, right, our company living in the communitiesin |16 Q. And 20 attendees at the first and 18 at second?
17 which we operate projects because we need to, you know, (17 A. (MR.WETZEL) That's correct.
18 make sure that the projects are operated correctly. 18 Q. And natice of thishearing was published in
19 Soit'sapoint of pride for Pattern. And while 19 The Republic aswell as several local regional newspapers
20 weonly acquired the SunZia Transmission project recently |20  across the length of this transmission line; is that
21 and the development rightsto Line 1, we certainly 21 correct?
22 anticipate that we'll continue to build those efforts 22 A. (MR.WETZEL) That's correct.
23 going forward, and that we applaud the SouthWest Power |23 Q. And signswere posted; isthat correct?
24  Group team that had been running those effortsin the 24  A. (MR.WETZEL) That is correct.
25 past prior to our acquisition. 25 Q. Wasitatota of 13 signsinforming the public
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1 of thishearing? 1 So there's aparallel federal process with
2 A. (MR WETZEL) Therewere atotal of 13, that's 2 extensive public engagement opportunity with virtual open
3 correct. 3 housesthat we've done.
4 Q. Andproject mailings, talk about the project 4 And then, of course, there has been alot of
5 mailings and specifically how that relates to compliance 5 engagement on the side, both obviously SouthWest Power
6 with one of the CEC conditions, | believeit's 6 Group, myself aswell, working closely with Cindy
7 Condition 24 but perhaps you can correct meif I'mwrong. | 7 Freeman, who's been part of the project for along time
8 A. (MR WETZEL) Absolutely. So asreferredto on 8 engaging with stakeholders.
9 the exhihit, 444 recipients of our mailings that were 9 As| described in my prior testimony that is,
10 located within one mile of the center line of the 10 that goesfrom local, regional, and national. And that's
11 project. You'll haveto -- | don't have the existing CEC 11 anongoing process. So an example that's germane to the
12 infront of me so | can't refer to the specific number. 12 lower San Pedrois, you know, we did present to the lower
13 But thereis an obligation that for any towns 13 San Pedro Watershed Collaborative. | had sought to
14 within five miles of the center line of the project that 14 provide further engagement with them.
15 notification be provided and that was met. 15 It's a consensus organization, so there was --
16 Q. And that same condition required notice to the 16 not everyone was on board with having SunZia continue to
17 landowners within one mile? 17 present at their meetings, but we still provided the
18 A. (MR.WETZEL) That's correct. 18 mediator of that group with project updates and look
19 Q. Okay. Initialy was notice -- were the 19 forward to continuing with thiskind of engagement.
20 application materials provided to local libraries? 20 MR. ACKEN: Thank you.
21 A. (MR.WETZEL) To my knowledge, yes. 21 Isthat responsive?
22 Q. Okay. Andnow, Mr. Cernea Clark, if you would 22 MEMBER LITTLE: Thank you.
23 talk about some of the additional outreach both with 23 MR. ACKEN: Nothing further.
24 agencies and other stakeholders. 24 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody else have any questions of
25 A. (MR.CERNEA CLARK) Sure. Thank you. Soasyou |25 thesethree gentlemen? You may step down. It'supto
Page 578 Page 580
1 all know, thiswasin therecords, SunZiawent througha | 1 Mr. Acken to let you know whether you should go home or
2 lengthy federal environmental impact statement process. 2 stick with us.
3 That is a public process with multiple 3 MR. ACKEN: | don't have much choice, do I?
4 opportunities for public comment. It starts with 4 CHMN. KATZ: | can't tell you what to do. |
5 scoping, where it is published in the Federal Register 5 can'tevenfireyou. Where are we at at this point?
6 whichisavailablefor the public. 6 MR. ACKEN: We have nothing further asfar as
7 The project information of what is proposed to 7 evidence. You know, if it'sthe Committee's decision to
8 beanalyzed in the environmental review. Thepublicare | 8 deliberatein the morning, there's not much to do this
9 ableto comment on that. And then subsequently theresa | 9 afternoon. We could give closings, brief closings now,
10 draft environmental impact statement, and that also 10 dothem inthe morning. It'srealy whatever the
11 triggers apublic comment period, and there are public 11 Committee's preferenceis at thistime.
12 meetings. And then ultimately there'safinal EIS 12 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust ask you, and | don't
13 In this case just as we are undergoing these 13 mind even putting this on the record. | think that you,
14 amendments before the ACC, we're currently going through |14  the Committee, and myself were of the belief that all we
15 aNEPA process. That started with the scoping processas |15 had to do was to process either a single order that
16 | just stated with a public comment period. 16 addresses the three proposed amendments or a separate
17 Because of COVID, we had virtual meetingswhere |17 order for each of thelines.
18 the public was able to listen and hear and ask questions |18 But | thought that maybe we could do just a
19 of the Bureau of Land Management, aswell asthe project. |19 singleorder. But | think you were proposing two; is
20 And then just recently in the summer subsequent 20 that correct?
21 tothe publication of the draft EIS to process the 21 MR. ACKEN: | was proposing two. And the reason
22 amendments that we're dealing with right now, the public |22 for doing it is so that each owner would have their own
23 was, again, given an opportunity to provide public 23 approval, this Committee will make a recommendation to
24 comment, ask questions both in writing and through a 24 the Commission. So arecommended form of order.
25 virtua open house. 25 Our hope and thought about what made sense was
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1 that there would be two recommended forms of order coming | 1 MR. ACKEN: Yes. And that is how the Commission
2 out of this proceeding, one for each line that would then 2 doesit when it amends a CEC issued by the Committee,
3 besent to the Commission for approval. 3 right? It takes -- it has a separate order, form of
4 If the Commission were to approve those, then at 4 order that says the CEC adopted by the Committeeis
5 that time, Pattern could assign the one form of order 5 modified by adding conditionsif that's what the decision
6 approval to Southwestern Power Group, but that's why 6 is, or modifying to address the request that we made.
7 we'rerequesting or envisioning two separate forms of 7 And all other provisions of the existing CEC as approved
8 order. 8 by the Committee remain in effect.
9 CHMN. KATZ: And that'sfine. And what happened | 9 So then you would attach the original CEC asthe
10 was Tod Brewer who isthe paralegal that | work very 10 exhibit and then that form of order would have the
11 closely with and isalot smarter than | am had talked 11 revisions.
12 with Steve Emedi, one of the attorneys with the 12 CHMN. KATZ: Well, what I'm inclined to do but |
13 Corporation Commission. 13 want to hear from the Committeeis| don't think that you
14 And he suggested to Tod -- | didn't speak with 14 can probably get the paperwork in a pasture of finality
15 himdirectly and | know that you may have communicated |15 till at least you speak with the -- an attorney from the
16 with him -- that they would like us to probably attach 16 Commission.
17 thetwo CECswhich would be substantially identical to |17 And | don't know that we could vote on anything
18 the orders and we might do that as exhibits. 18 today. Butif you want, we can either go immediately or
19 Because essentially, unless these three changes, 19 take acouple-minute break, but | think we should hear
20 if we should agree to one, two, or three of them, change |20 the closing arguments today.
21 theneedto add conditionsaswediscussed 38 and 39, at |21 Because it's just a summary of the evidence that
22 least with respect to the SunZiadirect current line, 22 we've heard and thelike. And if you think we need a
23 that essentially the Corporation Commissiondid not set |23 five or ten-minute break before we put you all to that
24 asidethe origina CEC. 24 task, we can take it or we can go right away.
25 They just wanted us to consider these three 25 MR. ACKEN: I'm prepared to give my closing at
Page 582 Page 584
1 factorsand if these factors are approved and don't alter 1 thistime. | didjust receive an e-mail from Maureen.
2 those CECs, they're approved asis. 2 I'll need to follow up with her, | think | can
3 But were you able to speak with Mr. Emedi or 3 get the Committee the answer asto ACC legal's position
4 somebody on the legal staff of the Corporation 4 inthe next half hour if you want to move forward. If
5 Commission? 5 you want to wait till tomorrow, that's fine, too.
6 MR. ACKEN: | have not. | received an e-mail 6 CHMN. KATZ: It just depends on how
7 from Mr. Emedi earlier this afternoon. Hedirected meto | 7 complicated -- | think we, you know, | didn't think we
8 Maureen Scott. She's the assigned attorney on the case. 8 needed to attach the CECs, but it's not abad idea. And
9 Sothat was-- | haven't had a chance to speak with her. 9 I'm not going to contradict the Commission that's
10 | am fine proceeding with the existing CECs 10 ultimately going to have to review this and kick it back
11 being exhibits to both forms of order, you know, whatever |11 to usfor athird hearing.
12 makes sense. 12 So if we find out today we'll see where we're
13 CHMN. KATZ: | was going to suggest that we 13 at, but I don't know whether you would have time to
14 attach the two CECs which would be essentially identical |14 construct the necessary documents.
15 totheorder. Butinthe order to add any additional 15 We always have a PDF probably that we keep just
16 conditionsto either one that the committee might agree |16  as part of the record to show where we started from. And
17 to based upon anything that SunZiaand Mr. Elseandthe |17 then wework on the Word document only to put it in final
18 Committee al agreed to. 18 form.
19 But | think that that probably would be fine 19 | don't know whether that can be done today or
20 because | would ask the Committee ultimately to just vote |20 not, so | don't want to speculate. And | don't want to
21 to affirmthetwo prior CECs. 21 keeptaking. What wecandois--
22 We don't need to go through each condition and 22 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.
23 eachfinding of law of conclusions of law becausethose |23 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Grinnell.
24 were aready approved, and unless the Committeeis 24 MEMBER GRINNELL: Just more aquestion here: |
25 intending to alter or amend those, they lie asis. 25 think this discussion is making the assumption that al
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1 three amendments are going to be approved and I'm not 1 At the same I'm e-mailing legal who | think may
2 saying they're not, but what 1'm asking here, what 2 belistening to this conversation and trying to get
3 happensto the original CEC or if al the three 3 clarity from them asto whether they want the original
4 amendments aren't approved? Maybe two out of threeor | 4 CECs attached to the separate forms of order.
5 oneout of three. 5 But we would envision, again, if approved we
6 Does that change the dynamic of what comes out 6 would need two separate forms of order.
7 of the AG's office or what Mr. Acken may haveto prepare? | 7 If you were to deny the bifurcation, you know,
8 Just out of curiosity. In other words -- 8 therewould be no need for two separate forms of order.
9 CHMN. KATZ: | think that this Committee, al of 9 Butinour mind al three of these are, you know, part
10 usexercising our own independent judgment, need to vote |10 and parcel, three components of awhole that we need
11 on each of the proposed changes. 11 approva for.
12 MEMBER GRINNELL: Right, but my questionis-- |12 MEMBER GRINNELL: Thiswas aquestion, it wasn't
13 CHMN. KATZ: If only the Committee asawhole |13 astatement of fact.
14 approvesonly two of them, that's what we live with. 1f 14 MR. ACKEN: Understood.
15 they approve only one, that's what we live with. If we 15 MEMBER GRINNELL: | wasjust trying to get
16 approve none, we're stuck with the original CEC and 16 clarity asto what the processis.
17 SunZiaat alater date can apply to the Corporation 17 CHMN. KATZ: And welll vate on each of the three
18 Commission to assign a portion of its CEC to the other 18 reguested changes and then we'll have to decide where
19 company. 19 we'reat. | don't know how -- I'm not going to violate
20 In other words, I'm not saying we should 20 the open meeting law and poll everybody.
21 approve. I'm not going to express my opinionsasto what |21 We're just going to have to wait and see what
22 | would approve until we go through everything and havea |22 happens after we get the documents for our review,
23 vote. 23 consideration, and approval or disapproval.
24 MEMBER GRINNELL: No, | agree with that, sir. |24 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Chairman, if it's
25 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. 25 appropriate and | temporarily put my Commission hat on to
Page 586 Page 588
1 MEMBER GRINNELL: | guess my question was 1 sort of view the question of form of order and maybe to
2 particularly asto these three potential, number 38 and 2 help with Rick's, Member Rick's question.
3 39, whatever it is, if we do not approve any of these, 3 | would envision something like a single order,
4 then 38 or 39 will not be allowed to be entered into the 4 with -- and if that order approves the bifurcation or the
5 CEC? 5 transferring of ownership, then attached to that one
6 CHMN. KATZ: | don't think they would be unless 6 order would be two CECs.
7 theré'sadtip -- okay. We're not going to add anything 7 If, however, the single order denies the request
8 thatisn'tinthe origina onesunlessadding it is 8 for bifurcation then there would be perhaps one or no
9 something that was raised by any amendments that we 9 CECsattached to that order.
10 approve. 10 If the Committee approves the amendment for
11 But that doesn't preclude Mr. Else, Mr. Acken, 11 tower height, changing the tower design, then one of
12 with the approval of the other parties to add conditions. 12 those two attached CECs might be a clean version that
13 Eventhough no amendment was requested, we could add |13 includesthe requested amendmentsin it. If that makes
14 conditionsto the origina CEC or we can add conditions |14 sense.
15 toarevised CEC, one or both. So | don't think that 15 CHMN. KATZ: And that was my thought earlier.
16 that much matters. 16 Wecan, I'll let you think this through, Mr. Acken, and
17 MR. ACKEN: At least from the applicant's 17 consult with the other attorneys. | think we probably
18 standpoint, I'm going to advocate strongly for all three, 18 could do it depending on where we're at with the single
19 of course. 19 order. And then attaching two of the orders, the two
20 | do think that the original CEC needs to stand 20 separate CECs, if bifurcation is approved.
21 onitsown, and any amendments would be done in the 21 And, again, as | pointed out, even if
22 nature of arecommended form of order which, again,is |22 bifurcation isn't approved down the road, that can be
23 commonplace for the Commission where you say replace |23 presented to the Commission. But | won't argue whether |
24 line 2 with this new information or add Condition 36, 24 think that's the biggest barrier to this whole amendment
25 something along -- that's typically how it's done. 25 process.
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1 Do we want to go right -- does the Committee 1 And that's consistent with the testimony of the
2 want to go right into the closing arguments or take a 2 witnesses, their commitment to work with the communities,
3 short break? 3 you heard how hard they worked to reduce lighting, how
4 MEMBER HAMWAY : I'm good with continuing. 4 responsive they are to the local community, how hard
5 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. 5 they'reworking with U.S. Fish and Wildlife, Game and
6 MEMBER HAMWAY: But I'm just one person, so. | 6 Fish, Pima County, any stakeholder that wants to engage
7 CHMN. KATZ: WEell, isthere anybody on the 7 with Pattern whether they support the project or not,
8 Committee that's opposed to at least beginning the 8 Pattern engages with them.
9 closing arguments of the parties? And after that welll 9 And listens to them and takes their input as an
10 takeabreak and figure out whether we're going to resume |10 opportunity to say how can we make this great project
11 later this afternoon or do things first thing tomorrow 11 evenbetter. And | hope that's come through.
12 morning? Mr. Acken? 12 | was happy to hear that Mr. Else expressed
13 MR. ACKEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I'm 13 initially no opposition to the three requested changes.
14 prepared, as prepared as I'm going to be. 14 After hearing the testimony, | really appreciate that
15 So, thank you, Committee. Weredlly appreciate 15 fromhim.
16 yourtime. It's-- thisisaunique case; right? And at 16 | understand it comes with the caveat; right?
17 theend of day we're here requesting three narrow 17 Hehad the caveat that he still wanted some conditionsto
18 amendments. 18 address some concernsthat he and some residentsin the
19 Oneisthetime extension, one isthe 19 San Pedro Valley have. And that's why we proposed
20 bifurcation, and the third is the tower change. 20 Conditions 38 and 39.
21 CHMN. KATZ: So again, time extension, 21 Those conditions are not related to the
22 bifurcation, what was the third? 22  requested amendments, but they are presented in a spirit
23 MEMBER HAMWAY : Heights. 23 of good faith, compromise, and consistent with the
24 MR. ACKEN: Tower structures. 24 applicant's -- that's aterrible pun -- pattern and
25 CHMN. KATZ: Got it. 25 practice of working with the local community. And that's
Page 590 Page 592
1 MR. ACKEN: So with respect to the first two, 1 just agreat example of it.
2 thereisno meaningful difference with respect to 2 And so we do hope Mr. Else can support those
3 environmental effects. And the third, the testimony 3 requested -- those suggested conditions. And certainly
4 showsthat that, too, there is no difference with respect 4 SunZiacan support them with his consent.
5 to environmental effects. 5 | want to remind the Committee, and thisis
6 So on those grounds, we would request approval 6 something near and dear to me, not from this case but
7 of threeamendments. All three are necessary to 7 from others, about the role of the Committee and
8 construct this project in atimely manner. 8 the Commission and the need to rely on substantial
9 This project has so, so many benefits for 9 evidence.
10 Arizonaand theregion. Andin order to unlock those, we |10 Decisions must be made on substantial evidence,
11 need these three amendments. So we are -- | cannot be 11 not speculation. And we would submit that this record,
12  more clear about the request. 12 theinformation, the testimony provided by the SunZia
13 And | think the evidenceis clear aswell. | 13 teamissubstantial evidence in support of the requested
14 don't think thereis any dispute on the first two that 14 amendments.
15 thereisno environmental effects associated with them. 15 And, finally, | want to thank you for coming
16 And on the third, | think ultimately it took a 16 with usto Biosphere 2. | admit | was alittle unsure
17 few daysto get there, but | think thereisagreement now |17 about coming here. Y ou know, I'm used to going to
18 that there are no environment effects associated withthe |18 conference facilities, hotels, and thiswas allittle
19 additional tower structures. 19 different, and | wasn't sure how it was going to work
20 If anything, what we have are environmental 20 out.
21 benefits from the elimination of the ground electrode 21 | want to thank the Biosphere. | think they
22 facilities. 22 did-- theteam, | think they did an excellent job in
23 So what you are seeing asaresult isan 23 hosting us. And | can't think of abetter venue to talk
24 improved project from what this Committee approved in |24  about a project like this. Biosphere 2, what a
25 2015. 25 aspirational project, what a hopeful vision, and what a
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1 world-classresearchinstitution it is today. 1 state structures, isthe only physical change to the
2 And what better place to talk about a project 2 project. Theissue beforethis Committeeisthen what
3 like SunZiawhich you've see me alot; right? | 3 effect do the updates and pole design have on the
4 represent alot of applicants. | bring alot of (cough 4 environment compatibility of the project.
5 obscures speech) you've seen many more projects. This 5 The evidence presented in the hearing showed
6 oneisunique. Thisoneis, it'ssuch agreat project. 6 that the amendments are as environmentally compatible if
7 | gotto be careful; right? | can't say all my kidsare 7 not more so as the CEC that has already been approved.
8 equal. 8 The marginal visual contact of the new
9 But thisis such a phenomenal project. | mean, 9 structuresis negligible. The new structures are well
10 thelargest wind resource, largest renewable project in 10 below the height limit imposed by the original CEC.
11 thewestern hemisphere. 1'm honored to be a part of it. 11 Importantly, the new structures will decrease ground
12 I'm honored to work with the SunZiateam which worksso |12 disturbance compared to the old structures.
13 hard to do the very best when it comes to siting, the 13 We heard testimony that the additional cross
14 economics, their engagement, everything they do, they do |14 armsdo not present increased collision risk to birds.
15 at the very highest level. 15 Wealso heard that because of the new guy wires are
16 And so with that we thank you for your attention 16 shorter than originally proposed the new structures could
17 and respectfully request your approval of the three 17 reduce avian exposure to guy wire collisions.
18 reguested amendments. Thank you. 18 The applicant is committed to using the best
19 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. 19 technology to protect birds from the transmission lines
20 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman. 20 and has expanded its use of bird flight divertersin high
21 CHMN. KATZ: Yes. 21 risk aress.
22 MEMBER GRINNELL: Quick point of order or 22 The Audubon Society's report found that 64
23 information. A gentleman by the name of John Wesley |23  percent of bird speciesin the U.S. will be vulnerable to
24 Miller, he waslike a second dad to me, he just passed 24  extinction due to climate change if we continue on our
25 away thislast spring. Hewasthe construction manager |25 current emissions trgjectory.
Page 594 Page 596
1 of this Biosphere. 1 That report aso had good news. That we can
2 MR. ACKEN: Oh, neat. 2 reduce the vulnerability for 70 percent of those species
3 MEMBER GRINNELL: And hewasinternationally | 3 by limiting warming to one and a half degrees Celsius.
4 known as Mr. Solar. Recognized by the Home Builders 4 The evidence isincontrovertible that
5 Association, two former presidents, and | just can't tell 5 human-caused greenhouse gas emissions have already warmed
6 you how proud | am to have known theman and | wantedto | 6 the planet by about 1.1 degree Celsius from
7 just second the compliment to the Biosphere here, to 7 pre-industria levels.
8 their hosting capabilities and to this magnificent 8 The intergovernmental panel on climate change
9 facility. Thanks, Bert. 9 statesthat to keep to one and a half degree in global
10 MR. ACKEN: Thank you. 10 temperature, economy-wide carbon dioxide emissions must
11 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Stafford. 11 be net zero by 2050, and that we need to reduce carbon
12 MR. STAFFORD: Thank you, Chairman, membersof |12 emissions by 45 percent economy-wide by 2030.
13 the Committee. Western Resource Advocates asks that this |13 Unless carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gas
14 Committee grant SunZia's application to modify its 14 emissions are significantly reduced now in the near term,
15 certificate of the environmental compatibility. 15 global temperatures will likely rise by two degrees or
16 The Commission has already determined that the 16 more by mid-century.
17 routefor SunZiais environmentally compatible. The 17 We can't put off reducing carbon emissions.
18 scope of this hearing was about the three proposed 18 Warming above one and a half degrees could trigger
19 amendments to the CEC. 19 catastrophic irreversible consequences such as species
20 Two of which extended the expiration date and 20 extinction.
21 dlowing for separate ownership of thetwo lines. Those |21 Climate change is abigger threat to avian life
22 arechangeson paper. They don't haveanimpacttothe |22 than these transmission lines, particularly in light of
23 environment and should be approved so that the project |23  extensive mitigation efforts undertaken by the applicant
24 can be built. 24  to preserve and restore habitat.
25 The third amendment, the proposed changesto the |25 And these transmission lines will enable four
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1 and ahalf thousand megawatts of new wind energy. Energy | 1 componentsthat are in the requested amendment.
2 without greenhouse gas emissions. 2 In my opening statement, | was under the
3 The SunZialines can avoid up to 16.7 million 3 apparent misunderstanding that they would also be voting
4 metric tons of carbon dioxide per year. Thisisa 4 etherinfavor of CEC-1 or in favor of CEC-2 or some
5 necessary step to mitigate climate change. 5 combination thereof.
6 These lines need to be put in service as soon as 6 But my understanding at this point without any
7 possible. The longer we wait to reduce emissions the 7 advice of counsel isthat the only thing that the
8 greater the amount of cumulative carbon dioxide emitted | 8 Committee will be voting on iswhether to approve the
9 into the atmosphere, and the costlier it will be to 9 three components in the application to amend.
10 correct. 10 | appreciate being able to give al the
11 Y ou remember, thisisamerchant line. Itis 11 testimony that | was able to give because -- and as you
12 not being built on the backs of captive ratepayers. The 12 cantell from that testimony, I've been very chagrined
13 applicant is bearing therisk. The evidence has shown 13 sincethe project wasfirst introduced about the route
14 that the amendments are as environmentally compatibleas |14  selection.
15 existing CEC, if not more so. 15 And | presented evidence related to route
16 This Committee should grant SunZias application |16 selections that would have far lessimpacts. But for my
17 for amendment as submitted so that the project canmove |17 colleagues who are watching online, it appears to me now
18 forward and new wind resources can be constructed. Time |18 that what's going to happen hereis either we end up with
19 isof theessence. Thank you. 19 two CECsin which we have an opportunity to add two
20 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Costello. 20 conditions, Conditions 38 and 39 that | hope to work out
21 MR. COSTELLO: Thank you, Chairman, membersof |21 with the two affected communities this evening, or to
22 the Committee. Pinal County had previously intervenedin |22 revert to the 2015 CEC. | guessit was actually approved
23 thisaction and isin support of the project. | thank 23 in2016.
24 you to the Committee for allowing usto continue to 24 So with that understanding, | have better
25 participate. 25 comprehension of what the possible options are for both
Page 598 Page 600
1 My participation in these hearings has been 1 the Committee and myself as an intervenor.
2 limited to gathering information and hearing the 2 And | won't conclusively say whether | support
3 testimony concerning the proposed amendmentstothe CEC | 3 the amendments or not because we're still working out the
4 to seeif significant concerns were raised. 4 details of the proposed conditions 38 and 39.
5 | appreciate the testimony of the SunZia 5 But | especially want to thank everybody who's
6 witnesses, and have not seen anything in the presentation | 6 been involved with this proceeding for being so
7 that causes concern over the three limited amendments 7 accommodating with the fact that | don't have afull
8 that are being proposed to the current CEC. 8 understanding of al the legal aspects, and for intently
9 It appears that many of the objections that have 9 listening to all the pointsthat | made.
10 been raised during the course of this proceeding are 10 I'll continue to advocate through any options
11 outside of the scope of the limited amendmentsthat are |11 that | can, but | certainly appreciate everybody being so
12 being requested, and go to dissatisfaction withthe CEC |12  attentive to what | had to say in my testimony.
13 that has aready been granted to this project. 13 That's my concluding statement.
14 So Pinal County sees no -- has no objection and 14 CHMN. KATZ: Anything further?
15 seesno reason not to grant the amendments requested. 15 | want to thank all of you, and Mr. Else, we
16 Thank you. 16 didn't need you to be alawyer. Sometimesit's helpful
17 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Else. 17 tobealawyer and sometimes lawyers make things worse.
18 MR. ELSE: Well, I'll just bewinging it here 18 But we understand your concerns and the concerns
19 because, you know, one thing I've learned for sureis 19 of the Committee. But based upon my legal and judicial
20 that | do need attorney representation, and the person 20 training, | believe we're obligated to follow the law and
21 who | had been working with as an consultant 21 we haveto take things as we find them.
22 unfortunately is dealing with alot of health issues 22 And if the laws aren't properly designed to
23 right now and was not available. 23 address current and future concerns, then it's up to the
24 But as | understand the situation right now, the 24 communities throughout the state to work with the
25 Committee will only be voting on three things, thethree |25 legislature to make things better than they are.
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1 But as| earlier stated, | believe our only 1 have
2 directiveisto look at the three amendments and 2 MR. ELSE: | wasreferring to in -- before you
3 determine whether or not we need to add any additional 3 get to the conditionsin the 2016 CEC, there's wording,
4 conditions because of new environmental impacts that 4 for example, that would not apply to CEC-1 that --
5 aise 5 there'swording on page 4, for example, that states that
6 | know that the members of the Oro Valley 6 both lineswould intersect with Willow Substation.
7 community aren't happy about the route, and | know you | 7 Can that change also be handled in the form of
8 weren't happy, Mr. Else. But the route was already 8 order?
9 selected and approved and found to be environmentally 9 MR. ACKEN: Yes, absolutely.
10 compatible. 10 CHMN. KATZ: | think we can do that as part of
11 And we asanation arein adilemma. Theworld 11 thebifurcation.
12 isinadilemma. We need more renewable energy sources |12 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: So, Chairman, aquestion for
13 and alot of them have yet to be developed. And | am 13 Mr. Acken, then, as a part of your request for
14 optimistic that if we can at least take major steps 14 bifurcation of the two CECs, are you also requesting that
15 forward now, we have a chance of improving technology as |15 this Committee eliminate the option A and option B that
16 we go down the road. 16 was previously granted to Pattern?
17 I'm done making speeches, but | want to thank 17 MR. ACKEN: Y ou know, that's a great question.
18 everybody. 18 And I'll have an answer for you. | think it's not my
19 And, Mr. Acken, what | propose we do is maybe 19 placeto speak on behalf of the applicant, but all the
20 takeal0- or 15-minute break, and | don't think we're 20 testimony isthey're moving forward with the DC line.
21 going to bein aposition of making adecision today, but |21 So if the Committee wants to do some cleanup, |
22  maybe we will be. 22 don't think there's going to be opposition from the
23 But I'd like everybody to be refreshed and welll 23 applicant. And | would characterize that in the nature
24 come back in about 15 minutes or so. If you need a 24  of cleanup.
25 little more time than that I'm hoping you can reach the 25 When | had focused onit, asin what revisions
Page 602 Page 604
1 attorney in the Corporation Commission because| wantto | 1 need to be made to authorize our three changes, not what
2 doitright. 2 all should be doneto clean it, but we will give some
3 And | think one order with both CECs perhaps 3 thought to that.
4 aswe-- well, | think the order can address the three 4 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: Please consult with your
5 changes. | think we would -- | don't think there'sa 5 client because | believe that that would affect your
6 need for usto approve the CECs as previous, but wecan, | 6 client'srights, your client certainly has the right to
7 aspreviously written but they should be attached as 7 proceed --
8 exhibits. 8 MR. ACKEN: Right.
9 And if we need to add any conditions we can 9 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: -- with either of those two
10 either do that in the two CECswhich essentially would be |10 options. And just because your client has decided to
11 identical, but one for each of the two parties. 11 exercise one does that mean that the Commission then has
12 And I'll say nothing further unless any of our 12 jurisdiction to amend the CEC by eliminating the other
13 participants have questions or any members of the 13 option?
14 Committee have questions. 14 MR. ACKEN: We have not requested that right.
15 Mr. Else? 15 But | will follow up with my client to seeif it has any
16 MR. ELSE: Yes, | have one question. Inthe 16 concern with that. Isthat responsive?
17 body of the 2016 CEC, there's certain language that is 17 MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: | think so. Thank you.
18 not -- that would not be applicable to both of the 18 CHMN. KATZ: And if wewereto eliminateit, it
19 subsequent CECs. Will that be handled in the form of 19 would bein the orders that the option B has been
20 order? 20 selected. But thelineswill be under separate ownership
21 CHMN. KATZ: It can be. | don't know whether 21 if bifurcationisapproved. | won't tell you how to
22 it'sreally necessary if we have more conditionsthat are |22  writethat.
23 necessary. It'snot going to probably hurt anybody to 23 MR. ACKEN: Thank you.
24 leave them there, unlessit's going to change the 24 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Else.
25 direction of the construction of these two lines would 25 MR. ELSE: One more procedural question. This
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1 cleanup process that we're talking about, could that -- 1 MR. ACKEN: So, thank you, Mr. Chairman. | did
2 my main reason for asking thisis| just wanted to have 2 speak with Stephen Emedi from the Commission legal. He
3 anopportunity to talk with the community membersin 3 confirmed that in the several prior cases where the CEC
4 Cascabel and Oracle this evening. 4 issued two CECs, there was a separate decision for each.
5 Would it be -- isit possible that the Committee 5 So aseparate form of order for each.
6 would vote on the application to amend today with some | 6 And so he didn't take a position on whether we
7 sort of provision that this cleanup process would be 7 needed to do that here or not. That it is the past
8 completed tomorrow? Or would you wait until tomorrow? | 8 practice. It would be the applicant's preference to
9 CHMN. KATZ: | think we need to find out from 9 follow that past practice.
10 Mr. Acken after he speaks with counsel for the 10 | think one good reason -- | understand some
11 Corporation Commission and sharesthat withus. Andl |11 benefits of having them together in one. One reason to
12 canbeavailableif | need to participate in that call. 12 keep them separateis, you know, let's say down the line
13 But | think that we need to understand that 13 anextension is needed for one, and | shouldn't even go
14 unlesswe can simply get things in the proper order 14 there, but let's say something needs to be changed for
15 without it being chaotic, we probably won't vote until 15 oneand that way you could just -- that applicant could
16 tomorrow. 16 deal with that CEC and not the other.
17 But if there's any way we can finish it within 17 And so, and they can go to financing and say |
18 the next two or two and a half hours, we'll consider 18 havedecision number X, Y -- well, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 for my
19 doing that. 19 project and it's exclusive to my project. So we would
20 But | can't answer that question till | have a 20 ask for the two separate forms of order.
21 better understanding on what the expectations of the 21 CHMN. KATZ: | wholeheartedly agree that we
22 Corporation Commission are, because | had my own beliefs |22 should have separate CECs, but | think we only need one
23 asto how we handle the matter, but | don't want to do 23 order.
24 anything to get this matter kicked back to usfor athird 24 MR. ACKEN: No, but that's what | was saying
25 hearing. 25 previoudly it has been two orders.
Page 606 Page 608
1 | don't think it's at all necessary and a 1 CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
2 precious waste of time, and even though the applicant is 2 MR. ACKEN: One for each CEC.
3 paying for some of this, others of us are government 3 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. But they're eventually going
4 employeesthat are getting paid at taxpayers expense to 4 toether, if we're granting amendments the two orders
5 behere. 5 would be addressed, | mean, would be substantially
6 So anyway, we're all happy to be here but we're 6 identical.
7 taking arecessat thistime. And let's make it till 7 MR. ACKEN: Substantially identical, correct.
8 about 2:50. 8 CHMN. KATZ: And the CECswould be substantially
9 (Recess from 2:28 p.m. to 2:51 p.m.) 9 identical unlesswe add some new conditions to one and
10 CHMN. KATZ: We can go back ontherecord. All |10 not the other.
11 of -- | see Mr. Costello isn't present. But | think we 11 MR. ACKEN: Correct. And that's exactly the way
12 can at least determine whether we're going forward. Yes, |12 it's been done on the others where we've bifurcated, at
13 Mr. Else? 13 theoutset all the conditions are the same and you just
14 MR. ELSE: Mr. Costello left. 14 specify what's different in the --
15 CHMN. KATZ: Oh, hedid leave. That'sfine, 15 CHMN. KATZ: | would ask, it seemsto most of
16 because| know that he knows where we were at right now |16 the Committee members | think were planning on staying
17 and hasvocalized his position. 17 herethisevening even if we finished up in the next hour
18 With Mr. Costello gone we can go forward, but | 18 or so. Andwe're not going to do that. So we are going
19 didn't know what your thoughts were in terms of putting |19 to hang out. But | think we should be ready, then, to
20 proper order and CECs together, and whether or not you've |20 look at the documentation by tomorrow morning.
21 beeninstructed by the Corporation Commission counsel to |21 MR. ACKEN: Wewill be prepared to do so, yes.
22 do anything specifically. 22 CHMN. KATZ: Please contact Tod, though, because
23 Because | want to make sure that we don't get it 23 | know on Mondays and Fridays he usually works from home,
24 kicked back. On the other hand | think we need to use 24 and he needsto at least be given the head's up so he can
25 our own independent judgment in doing theright thing. |25  take whatever you present and properly format it, and if
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1 there'sany need for him and | to discuss, whether |
2 agree with what he has done, he knows how to reach me.
3 MR. ACKEN: We will do so.
4 CHMN. KATZ: Anybody on the Committee object to
5 usrecessingtill 9 o'clock tomorrow morning? I'm
6 hearing no objection. Sowewill dothat. And | don't
7 know what well do for the next few hours, but maybe take
8 atour of thisplace and see what's out there or take a
9 nap. Butanyway. Wedo stand in recess.
10 (The hearing recessed at 2:55 p.m.)
11
12
13
14
15
16
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18
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21
22
23
24
25
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1 STATE OF ARI ZONA
2 COUNTY OF MARI COPA
3 BE | T KNOW that the foregoi ng proceedings were
taken before ne; that the foregoing pages are a full,
4 true, and accurate record of the proceedi ngs, all done to
the best of nmy skill and ability; that the proceedings
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6 to print under ny direction.
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| CERTI FY that | have conplied with the ethl cal
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		Wesley (1)

		west (8)

		Western (17)

		Wetzel (113)

		what's (17)

		whatsoever (1)

		wheel (2)

		whenever (1)

		whereas (2)

		wherein (1)

		wherever (1)

		who's (5)

		whole (11)

		wholeheartedly (1)

		wholesale (4)

		wholly-owned (1)

		Whose (1)

		widen (1)

		wider (1)

		wildlife (5)

		Willow (7)

		wind (91)

		Wind's (1)

		wind-generated (1)

		winds (2)

		winging (1)

		wire (13)

		wires (12)

		wisely (1)

		wishes (1)

		withdraw (2)

		withdrawal (1)

		withdrawing (5)

		within (11)

		without (6)

		witness (6)

		witnesses (13)

		wondering (1)

		word (4)

		worded (2)

		wording (4)

		words (4)

		work (19)

		worked (4)

		working (13)

		works (3)

		world (2)

		world-class (1)

		worry (2)

		worse (2)

		worthwhile (1)

		Wray (2)

		write (1)

		writing (2)

		written (6)

		wrong (4)

		wrote (1)



		Y

		yard (2)

		yards (1)

		year (10)

		years (8)

		yesterday (3)



		Z

		zero (1)

		zone (7)

		zones (1)
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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat the above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on regularly to be heard before the
Arizona Power Plant and Transm ssion Line Cting
Comm ttee at Bi osphere 2, 32540 Sout h Bi osphere Road,
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CHWN. KATZ: Good norning, everybody. This is
our third day in the CEC- 171 anendnment hearing. And all
of the folks that we need to be here are here.

And if you're ready to continue, | believe,

M. Acken, you were in the mdst of your cross
exam nation of M. Else. |Is that correct?

MR ACKEN: Yes, M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Feel free to continue when you're
r eady.

MR ACKEN. Well, good norning, Chairnman,
menbers of the Commttee and good norning, M. Else.

MR. ELSE: Good nor ni ng.

PETER T. ELSE,
called as a witness on behalf of Peter T. Else, having
been previously affirnmed or sworn by the Chairnman to
speak the truth and nothing but the truth, was exam ned

and testified as foll ows:

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON ( Cont . )
BY MR ACKEN
Q |'"d I'i ke to have shown on the screen what we
have marked as SZA-11, and for the record this is
Comm ssion Staff letter responding to the chairnman's
request for infornmation concerning the project.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 436

Thank you.

MR. ACKEN. M. Else, can you see that?

CHWN. KATZ: And what exhibit nunber is that
agai n?

MR ACKEN. This will be SZA-11.

MR ELSE: Yes, | can see it and | recall it.
BY MR ACKEN:

Q And so you have reviewed it?
A | did when it was first issued.
Q And your testinony concerning WECC, is it fair

to say you have concerns about the reliability inpacts of
this project?

A Some concerns on reliability inpacts that could
be caused at the term nal point of the project, yes.

Q If we could turn to the conclusion of this
letter.

And the first paragraph after Conclusion and
Recommendati on reads, "Based on Staff's review of the
application, as well as SunZia's response to a
Staff-issued data request, Staff believes the proposed
Project could help inprove reliability, safety of the
grid, and the delivery of power in Arizona."

Do you see that?

A | do.
Q And do you disagree with Comm ssion Staff's
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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concl usi on?

A VWll, | had a reservation, so | wote to the
Uilities D vision and asked themif they were basing the
pr evi ous paragraph about the WECC conducting a path
rating study, if they were basing that on the 2021 path
rati ng study, or the new one that was underway. And |
did not hear back yet fromthe Uilities D vision.

Q So | don't know that | heard an answer to ny
question. So do you disagree with Staff's concl usi on
that | read into the record under --

A | do, because of the information that's m ssing.

Q Thank you. And again, you are not an electrica
engi neer; correct?

A That's correct, but | did know about the status
of the new Phase 2 of the WECC process, because |
obt ai ned i nformati on from WECC on t hat.

Q Understood. Let's go to Slide 35 of your
presentation. And this slide presents discussion of High
Pl ai ns Express and al so sone concl usi ons regardi ng
economi cs.

Is that a fair characterizati on?

A Yes. It does have sonme concl usory statenents.

Q And are you an econom st ?

A No.

Q And so your concl usions regardi ng economcs, are
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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those -- in this slide and others -- are those based on
any project-specific studies?

A They' re based -- well, the | ast one about
backfilling with dispatchable fossil-fuel ed energy
i nvol vi ng operational and econom c chal l enges, that's
actually a quote fromthe 2008 Hi gh Pl ai ns Express
feasibility report.

Q My question was a little different. | was
aski ng whet her you had any -- conducted any studies
regar di ng econonics of the SunZi a project?

A No, | have not.

Q And with respect to the Hi gh Plains Express

project, do you know if that's an active project?

A It's not currently an active project, to ny
know edge.

Q And do you know why that is?

A Vel |, they conducted those two studies and they

said that there were probably going to be sone economc
shortcom ngs and they decided not to nove forward.

Q So it's fair to say that H gh Plains Express is
not proceedi ng based on econoni cs?

A As far as | understand, that's the reason why
t hey stopped progressing, yes.

Q Thank you. Moving forward to Slide 39, now
we're going to tal k about your discussion of the

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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Southline Project. And you reference federal EI'S scoping
suggestions for Southline.

Whose suggestions were those?

A Those are -- | first |earned about this by
readi ng the scoping report that was published by the BLM
and that scoping report just had text, in that it didn't
have the diagrans that were associated and referenced in
t he text.

So the -- fromthe text, it was obvious that
Sout hl i ne had nade sone scoping comments. So | went to
their website, |ooked them up, asked if they could send
out their scoping comments, and they did. It was a

t wo- page docunent.

Q So this is a docunent from Southline itself?
A Correct.
Q And Southline is al so an i ndependent nerchant

transm ssi on project?

A As far as | understand, | think they have one
segnent that's contiguous with Western Area Power
Adm nistration, so | don't know what that status is. But
| assune it's a nmerchant project.

Q And so why in 2021 is Southline proposing

changes to its project? Do you know?

A They weren't, to ny know edge.
Q And so what is the current eastern term nus of
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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the Southline project? Do you know?

A It's in Southern New Mexi co.

Ckay. So they're not proposing changes to go to
t he Sunzi a?

A No. They're not. This diagramwas strictly
alternatives. The scoping process is designed to take
suggestions fromthe public on other alternatives that
shoul d be considered in an EIS process, and this -- it
was sone of their suggestions for possible route
alternatives for the SunZi a project.

Q Understood. But -- and so, but it's your
under st andi ng Southline is not proposing to change its
term nus to connect?

A No. It's not.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Slide 40, you refer to
Sout hline as a change fromthe 2015 record; is that fair?

A | refer to the fact that the record shows at the
time we conducted the 2015 hearing, Southline didn't even
have its federal permt or its state permt, whereas
SunZia had its federal permt and was seeking its state
permt.

So it was described in the record by M. Way

t hat Southline was not as far along in the permtting

pr ocess.
Q And even though it was not as far along in the
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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permtting process, you still advocated before this
Comm ttee and the Conmi ssion and on judicial reviewthat
the Southline project was preferred to SunZia; is that
correct?

A You'd have to -- you'd have to tell ne exactly
when | said that. Are you saying that | -- | -- 1
remenber that | was advocating for that during the 2015
line siting process, and | can't recall if | did during
t he court action subsequent.

Q Ckay. But certainly during the Commttee and
Conmmi ssi on proceedi ngs, you advocated for --

A | did. | did. | renmenber | included it as one
of the exhibits and so did M. Mader.

Q And | showed a slide in ny opening that was from
your request for review fromthe Comm ssi on deci sion
approvi ng SunZia in which you were advocating for
Southline as an alternative.

Do you recall that?

A | don't, but it wouldn't surprise ne if | did
have it in nmy request for review

Q Wuld you like me to show it to you or you
accept it?

A "1l take your word.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Next | would lIike to show
SZA-9 on one screen, and the other screen has ELSE-13,

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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Slide 41.
For the record, ELSE-13, Slide 41 shows a
conparison, M. Else, that you prepared of collocation in

Arizona; is that correct?

A Yes. Well, | had one of ny coll eagues prepare
it. | was putting together a whole | ot of docunents and
| said can you just highlight the portions, | know the

percent ages, but | don't have a diagramto show it.

Q So you do not -- on Slide 41 it does not show
collocation with the El Paso natural gas transm ssion
line in the San Pedro River Valley; is that correct?

A That's correct, because in the |egend, all the
hi ghlighted areas, if you | ook down at the | egend down

bel ow on the lower left, the highlighted areas are

col l ocations with existing power |ines.
Q Under stood. But you woul d acknow edge that the
SunZi a project is also co -- will also be collocated with

the natural gas lines in the San Pedro Valley; is that
correct?

A That's correct, as would the Southline project
wi th other collocations besides power |ines.

Q And | have another question for you on this map
As it goes north toward Pinal Central, your exhibit shows
just a little area of collocation as it approaches Pinal
Centr al

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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Do you see what |I'mreferring to there?

A | do.

Q And yet on the map that -- SunZia A-9, it shows
collocation all the way from approxi mately -- |'m goi ng
to have to see if | can read that -- where there's an APS

and TEP transm ssion |ines near an existing power plant
going north all the way to Pinal Central, all of that is
collocated with existing transm ssion |ines.
Do you see that?

A | do.

Q And do you understand that this is an accurate
depi ction of power |ine collocation?

A Yes. That would be a nore accurate nmap, the one
on the left.

Q Ckay. Thank you

One | ast question for you on collocation. You

understand that SunZia Line 2 will be 100 percent
coll ocated with Sunzi a Line 17

A | do, yeah.

Q So you refer to SunZia 2 as being, | believe,
redundant of Southline; correct?

A Correct.

Q But, in fact -- but, in fact, SunZia Line 2 wll
have far greater, in fact, you can't have greater
coll ocation wth another transm ssion line wth SunZi a

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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Line 2 as conpared to Sout hline?

A M. Acken, when | refer to redundant, | was
referring to redundancy in function. That was not a
reference to coll ocation.

Q Qops. Slide 40 -- well, let's tal k about
Slide 41. You tal k about, so when you say SunZi a
col l ocation and you provide a percentage, you're
referring to SunZia Line 17?

A Correct.

Q Wul d you agree with nme that the coll ocation
percentage for SunZia Line 2 would be 100 percent?

A Assum ng Line 1 gets approved and built, yes.

Q Ckay. Thank you

| want to talk with you about |ighting

requi rements. And you understand that the FAA is

requiring SunZia to install lighting on five towers;
correct?

A | do.

Q And you understand that the FAA initially wanted

21 towers lit?

A | understand that al so.

Q And do you understand that SunZia worked wth
t he FAA, Pinal County, to address |local residents'
concerns to reduce the nunber of structures that nust be
lit?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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A | do.

Q And you understand that lighting is a safety
requi rement inposed by the FAA?

A Under st ood.

Q And you understand the CEC requires conpliance
wth all applicable federal requirenents?

A | understand that.

Q And you understand that the existing CEC does
not prohibit the use of lighting as required by FAA?

A Yes.

Q And you are famliar with the 2013 Feder al
Envi ronnental | npact Statenent; correct?

A I'mfamliar with it, yes. | haven't nenorized
all the pages, but I'mfamliar.

Q I f you had nenorized it that you would be --
that would be inpressive. | don't know that anyone has
acconpl i shed t hat.

And you understand that 2013 FEI S was
i ncorporated in the 2015 CEC record?

A | understand that is part of the record.

Q And do you understand that the 2013 FEI S st at ed,
"The FAA does not have regulatory control over the
pl acenent of structures on the ground, but does have the
regul atory control over lighting of any structures
consi dered hazards or structures nore than 200 feet in

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 446

hei ght above ground"?

A Yeah. | understand that. M only provision on
that was that this was never cited in sworn testinony,
and so | didn't -- and all of ny searches were fromthe
2015 record.

And because | haven't nenorized all the pages of
2013, | didn't even know that it was in there until you
brought it up recently.

Q And you do understand that 2013 FEI S was part of
t he record?

A | do. | do.

Q Ckay. And do you understand that structures
| ocated in close proximty to airports m ght be
consi dered potential hazards by the FAA?

A Yes.

Q And do you understand that the FAA' s |ighting
requirenent is unrelated to the requested anendnents that

SunZia is naking in this proceedi ng?

A To the ones that you stated, yes.
Q | don't understand your qualification
A There are three requested anendnents, and FAA

requirenents are unrelated to all three. The only one
that it could possibly have been related to when | first
| ooked at these anendnents was the first one, having to
do with the change in structures. Because | didn't know

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022

how much bi gger the new DC pl an woul d make those towers.
Q But you understand now after hearing the
testinony of SunZia's witnesses that it is unrelated to
t he structure change?
A | do.

Q And did you hear the testinony of Dr. Darrington

that only a couple of towers with lights would be visible

fromthe state park parking area?
A | did hear his opinion on that, yes.
Q And you don't have any reason to disagree wth

that, do you?

A | don't have any basis to agree with it, either,
because | haven't seen any -- | nean, | haven't -- |
personal ly haven't seen any -- any sinulations of this,

and | only got the determ nation | ess than a week ago.
Q And you understand that he testified under
oath that that was the results of his prelimnary
assessnent ?
A H s prelimnary assessnent, yes. That's how

woul d characterize it.

Q And, again, you don't have any studies to
counter -- contradict that, do you?

A |"ve only had it for a week, so no, | don't.

Q And so has SunZi a.

A Yeabh.
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Q If | understood you correctly in your discussion
of FAA lighting issue that you -- now that the nunber of
structures that need to be |lit has been reduced, you're
really just asking Pattern to engage with the | ocal
community regarding the required lighting; is that fair?

A My -- ny position is if the community is happy
wth it, then I'"'mhappy wth it.

Q Ckay. So you don't oppose, yourself, the
requi renent, the FAA requirenent for |ighting?

A | can't. That would be -- that woul d be
viol ating federal |aw.

Q Ckay. And if Pattern works with the | ocal
community, conmmunicates wth the local community, that
woul d address any concerns you mght have; is that fair?

A Yeah, | think their biggest concern is the
i nternational dark sky designation. Because it's been
reduced down to five towers, | think there will probably
be | ess bl owback fromthe perspective of real estate
val ues and stuff. Certainly nmuch less than it was with
21 towers lit.

So it appears to ne that if the international

dark sky designation is not put in jeopardy, that the

community woul d probably feel like they could live with
it.

Q Thank you for that.
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Slide 46 includes -- and this is in your
presentation -- includes a reference to environment al
justice. Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Do you understand that an alternative route
t hrough Tucson was rejected back in the 2015 proceedi ng
due in part to greater inpacts on environnental justice
conmmuni ti es?

A Yes, | renenber all those discussions.

Q Ckay. And so you would -- you have no reason to
di sagree with the conclusions at that tine that a route,
an alternative route through Tucson woul d have far
greater environnent justice inpacts?

A Yes. And this -- this particular quote here
that | highlighted, it was -- it was done on the basis of
t he assessnent of visual inpacts at that tine,

Q Ckay. Maybe | m ssed the answer.

Woul d you agree that the currently-approved
route has less inpacts on environnental justice
communities than an alternative through Tucson?

A | would agree with that, yes, because of the
nunbers of people that were in Tucson.

Q Thank you.

Your seventh asserted change concerns
Condition 26 conpliance, as | understand that. |Is that
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fair?
A That's fair.
Q And you raised concerns with the San Pedro

Ali gnnent during the original CEC proceedi ng; correct?
A Correct.
Q And you raised the concerns with the San Pedro

Alignnent before the Commttee; correct?

A Yes.

Q Bef ore t he Comm ssion, correct?

A | did.

Q And before -- in judicial review, correct?

A | did in the -- yes, | did,.

Q And during ny opening, | showed an excerpt from

t he Superior Court decision. Do you recall that?

A Yes, | do recall it.

Q And |' m paraphrasing it, and we can present it
if you prefer, but basically the judge said that the
Comm ssi on considered the special status of the San Pedro
Ri ver area, but ultimately determ ned that that was the
best route due to greater inpacts in other areas.

s that correct?

A | recall the judge saying that, yes, and then
she added nore to that.

Q And so the judge concl uded that the Conm ssion
and the Commttee did give |awful consideration to the
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San Pedro Valley at that tine?

A Yes. | renenber that statenent.
Q And that includes Condition 267
A Yes. It certainly included Condition 26. It

i ncl uded t he whol e CEC

Q And there, in fact, were many conditions
regarding mtigation neasures to neet the Gold Standard
Mtigation Plan; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q And you, yourself, participated in the
devel opnent of those conditions; is that correct?

A Yes. We nade suggestions at the begi nning of
del i berations, and then there was a | ot of horse trading
that took place afterwards.

But in that particular CEC process, the
intervenors weren't really involved with making
obj ections or anything like that.

So the discussion was pretty much turned over to
the Commttee, and the Commttee would occasionally ask
an expert who was there as they were doi ng these
del i ber ati ons.

Q And so the Commttee thoughtfully deliberated
regardi ng CEC conditions to inplenent the Gold Standard
Mtigation Plan?

A They did. And | guess ny point there was that |
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had no further input once deliberations started.

Q And is it your position that the conditions
i nposed by this Commttee net that Gold Standard
Mtigation requirenent?

A Vell, we found out later on 26 --

Q My question is different. As drafted, would you
agree that the CEC conditions constitute the Cold

Standard Mtigation Plan?

A As determ ned by the Commttee, yes.
Q Ckay. Thanks. And we'll get to Condition 26
ri ght now.

If I could have Condition 26 fromthe approved
CEC shown on one slide -- or one screen. Thank you.
And if we could, maybe, | think it breaks over,
soif it's possible to show 13 and 14, so all of
Condition 26 is being shown. Thank you.
So the right-hand screen shows Condition 26 as
approved by this Commttee and the Comm ssion. The
| eft-hand screen shows Slide 55 from ELSE Exhi bit 13.
You identify or refer to what you call a
| oophol e in condition -- CEC Condition 26, condition --
well, let nme stop there.

What is the asserted | oophole in Condition 267

A Well, | was just discussing this this norning
wth CGndy Freeman. And as -- as the Conmttee stated
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it, inthis condition that we see on the right-hand
screen, it left the door open to devel oping a work area
and access in the riparian portion of the Page Canyon
w ldlife connectivity corridor.

So, in effect, it left a | oophole to cause
i npacts in the nost vul nerabl e portion of the Page Canyon
wldlife connectivity corridor. That's what |I'm
referring to as a | oophol e.

Q But I'"'mnot following. The condition requires
the applicant to -- well, identify and require the
necessary steps to avoid the creation of new roads,

i ncl udi ng enmpl oynent of aerial construction, and then

wthin the San Pedro River Valley in an eight-mle area.
So avoiding the creation of new roads, howis

t hat a | oophol e?

A As witten, M. Acken, there was no viol ation of
Condition 26. W can just cut right to that concl usion.
As the condition is witten, there was no possible
violation of Condition 26 taking pl ace.

And ny purpose in raising this in ny testinony
was to try to get that condition changed.

Q And so you antici pated one of ny questions,
which is of course the asserted nonconpliance with
Condi tion 26.

Do | understand that you are w t hdraw ng that
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al |l egati on?
A Yes.
Q Thank you. I'd like to show SunzZia A-9.
If we could have SZA-9 on the right screen, or
swap them Thank you.
So on the left-hand screen we have ELSE
Exhibit 13, Slide 62. On the right-hand screen, we have
SZA- 9.
Slide 62 shows your requested revision to
Condition 26; is that correct?
A That's correct.
Q And you are requesting that the Conm ssion
prohi bit the use of Cascabel Road frommle marker 15 to

t he Cochi se-Pima County boundary for a variety of

purposes. |Is that fair?

A That's fair.

Q. Do you have a pointer?

A Par don ne?

Q Do you have a pointer?

A | don't.

Q. Ckay. One's com ng over.

A Thanks.

Q Can you show ne where Mle 15 is on Cascabe
Road?

A Yes. This particular map does not show Three
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Links Road. MIle marker 15 is right -- oh, is this Three
Li nks Road right here? Yeah. Gkay. So it would be
right there, right? |If this is Three Links Road, mle
mar ker 15 is right there.

Q And then, so which portion of Cascabel Road
cannot be used from Three Links Road, then further south?
Can you show us the entire area that you woul d request

t he Conm ssion prohibit the use of?

A |"'mstill getting oriented on this nmap.

Q Ch, sure. Take your tine.

A Because -- that is not the |ocation of Three
Li nks Road. So here is the -- | believe this is the
Cochi se-Pinma County line right here. 1|Is that correct?

And there's a road down here called Three Links
Road, it's right where Cascabel Road pavenent ends, and
so that would be the southern part. And then the
northern part would be right up about here.

This map doesn't show enough detail for ne to be
absolutely certain, but that's ny guess.

Q | appreciate that. And -- and understand that

you're -- you're providing ball parks.

How woul d equi pnent and heavy machi nery reach
t his area under your proposed condition that |I'm show ng
in Pima County, like | said up here on Cascabel Road, if
t hey cannot use this segnent of Cascabel Road?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 456

A Yeah, | was just discussing that this norning
wth a construction person who's associated with this
pr oj ect .

And the way it woul d happen is because there's a
speci al designation here of that eight mles in Page
Canyon, there's what are called fly yards. One would be
set up right there, or two maybe.

And then there was another one that's on the
pl an of devel opnent that would be set down toward the end
of Ccotillo Road, which is on the west side of the river.

And we' ve been di scussing having an operations
yard in Benson, and then anot her operations yard in
San Manuel as a way to approach with construction
equi pnent both fromthe north and fromthe sout h.

And then to have sone restrictions that are
still being worked out on a certain segnent of Cascabel
Road that's critical to the wildlife connectivity
corridors of Page Canyon, Hot Springs corridor, Scotia,
and | -- | don't think it extends all the way up to Edgar
because it only cones up to the Pima County |ine.

Q So if | understand you correctly, you are

currently or you had sone negotiations with SunZia this

nmor ni ng regarding a potential nodification of -- to your
pr oposal ?
A Trying to work out wording for a condition, yes.
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Q Are you W t hdrawi ng your proposed revision to
Condition 26 at this tine?

A It's being revised, but it wll be
substantial -- it will likely be substantially different
fromwhat's stated here.

Q Well, | can shorten up nmy cross if you -- if
it's true that you're wthdraw ng Condition 26 as you
proposed the revision, then | won't ask you further
questi ons.

But if you're still preserving that until these
ot her di scussions are conplete, | will nove forward. And
that's just a question.

A Yeah, | nean until it's conplete, that's the

only one that | have on the record. That's the one that

| docket ed.
Q Ckay. So, and so I'Il -- 1'Ill be brief,
understanding that this may -- this may change.

But if your revision as originally proposed is
adopted, would you agree that in order to get equi pnent
to this area in Pima County area, Cascabel Road,
equi pnent woul d have to travel through Oracle, and then
down 77 through Tucson, and then back through Benson,
rather than just following north in a nore direct route
on Cascabel Road?

A That's why we've been tal king about two centers
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of operation, one in San Manuel, and one in Benson for
staging all the heavy stuff.

| want to also point out in your question, you
said that the equi pnent and the heavy equi prent woul d
have to pass through Oracle. Oacle is set back from
H ghway 77, so it would pass al ong H ghway 77.

Q But you would agree in order to get equipnent to
this location in Pima County on Cascabel Road, if -- if
Cascabel Road cannot be used, that equipnent woul d have
to travel on 77 through Tucson past Oracle and down to
t he 10 and Benson?

A Well, there's two ways. | nean, you can go down

through Oro Valley in Tucson 77. O you can cut over to

|-10 on -- | forget the nanme of that road. But it's
just -- it's north of the intersection of 77 and 79.
Q Ckay. But you woul d agree those are | onger

routes than usi ng Cascabel Road?
A It would add -- it would add i nconveni ence to
t he construction, yes.
Q Woul d you agree that in addition to
i nconvenience it would increase vehicle mles travel ed?
A Yes.
Q And woul d you agree that increased vehicle mles
travel ed i ncreases em ssions?
A | agree.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman?

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: | don't know if it's
appropriate for us to ask any questi ons.

CHWN. KATZ: You can ask questions. You
mght -- | don't know if you want to right now --

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Well --

CHWN. KATZ: O if it's on this point --

MEMBER GRI NNELL:  Yes.

CHWN. KATZ: -- everybody on the Commttee wll
have a chance to question the wtness.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: W th the original
Condition 26, | noticed the word "helicopters.” Am|
correct there?

MR ACKEN: Yes, correct.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: And | guess now with this
revision, | don't see any helicopters being -- the nane
bei ng exhibited. And was there any other areas along the
transm ssion |ine where helicopters were di scussed t hat
l'm-- that we're not seeing?

VMR, ELSE: Do you want to take that, Bert?

MR ACKEN: Well, you're under oath if you want
to address it.

MR ELSE: Ckay. So in this revision of ny
condition it doesn't use the word "helicopter,” it uses
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"aerial construction.”™ So you'll note on the third |ine,
it -- "including the enpl oynent of aerial construction.”

And then on the last line, "Nothing in the
f oregoi ng prevents the use of aerial construction al ong
ot her portions of the route.”

So, you know, it was hoped originally during the
CEC hearing that other areas -- well, | had hoped, al ong
the San Pedro woul d al so enpl oy aerial construction. But
like | said, I -- 1 was not allowed to enter those w shes
during the deliberations.

And far as | know the new plan of devel opnent
does not involve aerial construction anywhere el se, at
| east in the San Pedro area.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: What about on the west side of
Oracle, if you wll, and H ghway 77 as it crosses over to
79? |Is there any other discussions with aeri al
construction?

MR ELSE: Not that | know of.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Al right. I'mjust alittle
confused. So this aerial construction is strictly along
t he San Pedro route?

MR ELSE: It's along, yeah, just one eight-mle
stretch of the San Pedro route that crosses, what | --
what | showed in ny testinony yesterday that crosses the
speci al desi gnation, Page Canyon area.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: All right. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: And one thing |I would ask as well,
since we have a new but highly talented court reporter,
if our Commttee nenbers have questions and | don't
identify and say, "Go ahead, Menber So-and-So," you may
want to just state what your nane is at |least the first
time around to make sure that our court reporter knows
who we all are, or -- and/or nake sure your nane tag is
readily visible to her.

Thank you, go ahead, M. Acken.

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, Chair.

BY MR ACKEN
Q M. Else, you agree that the original CEC
requi red aerial construction in an eight-mle segnent of

the San Pedro River Valley; correct?

A | agree.

Q And that is pursuant to existing Condition 267
A Correct.

Q And is it your understanding that aeria

construction conmes at a great cost?

A It is ny understandi ng.

Q Ckay. Do you recall -- or do you know what the
cost of aerial construction in that eight-mle segnment
I s?

A | heard this norning that it was tens of
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mllions.
Q And that is aerial construction that this
applicant is still commtted to doing pursuant to

Condi ti on 267

A Yes.

Q At a cost of tens of mllions of dollars?

A Correct.

Q And obviously if aerial construction anpunts are
increased, it wll have, you would agree it would have

additional increase in cost?

A Yes. And | understand that's why M. Way
bargained us to -- to the eight-mle stretch
Q My | ast question about Condition 26, potenti al

amendnents thereto, you understand all of that is
unrelated to the three requested anendnents that SunZi a
has presented in this proceedi ng?

A | understand that, yes.

Q Ckay. So on Slide 63, you have five main
conclusions, and | just want to confirm you have no
I ndependent studi es on which to base your concl usi ons;
correct?

A The only studies that | have that were
i ndependent are the ones that | cited in ny exhibits.

Q And you have not, yourself, conducted any
studies in support of these conclusions; correct?
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A That's correct. | barely had tine just to
assenble the ones that are in ny exhibits.

Q So next | want to talk with you about the three
requests that SunZi a has requested.

Do you oppose SunZia's request to extend the
expiration date of Line 1 by two years?

A | don't.

Q Thank you. Do you oppose SunZia's request to
bi furcate the CEC to all ow for separate ownership of
Line 1 and Line 2?

A | do not.

Q Do you oppose SunZi a's request to authorize the
use of different tower types, both with respect to AC
structures fromthe Pinal -- fromthe DC converter
station near Pinal Central, and the DC structures that

woul d all ow the use of MRCs?

A Based on the testinony that was given under oath
about the average height of the new -- that the new
structures would result in, | don't oppose that

conver si on.

Q Thank you. Next | was going to bring up your
proposed formof order. Are you w thdraw ng your
proposed form of order at this tinme, or should we wal k
through it?

A No, I"'mnot -- I"'mnot withdrawng it at this
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time. It's the only one | have on the docket at this
time, sol'd hate to just give a blanket w thdrawal of
the entire thing.

Q Ckay. If we could bring M. Else's proposed
form of order.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Forgive ne ny ignorance here,
if M. Else -- is it Else?

MR ELSE: H se.

VEMBER GRI NNELL: El se. " msorry, sir.

-- supports all three of the anmendnents, what is
the -- | guess, you know, if counsel's nade his point,
what's the use of noving further?

MR ELSE: From ny perspective, and what |
stated in all ny responses to the initial application to
anmend, is that there are nore issues involved in the
changes fromthe 2016 CEC than were identified by the
appl i cant.

And ny testinony was to point out additional
changes that have happened, because the only tine there's
any opportunity to review substantial changes w t hout

going to court is when it cones again before the |line

siting commttee. So, |I'mnot an attorney.
MEMBER GRINNELL: I'mnot either, and this is
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why I'mtrying to get to this. Qur charge here is to
address the three anendnents to the original application
t hat was approved by the Conmttee, by the Corporation
Comm ssi on, and then upheld in court.

And so from ny understandi ng of our ability or
disability, all we're under -- ability to nake any
deci sions on are the three anendnents. And | don't see
if you agree to those three anendnents, | don't see where
any information being introduced is considered

subst anti al .

MR. ELSE: It's -- | believe it's, Commttee
Menber Grinnell, | believe it's substantial in that
there's a deliberation process that wll involve

conditions to the two CECs that are being proposed.

The two CECs are going to have to be changed
anyway. Because the way they're witten now -- well, for
exanpl e on page 4 of the original CEC, it states that
W1l ow Substation will be used for both of the proposed
l'i nes.

So we know that has to be changed. And then
there are going to be other changes in the condition --
in the conditions of those two CECs that will apply
excl usively to each CEC

There'll be a different deadline specified in
each of those two CECs.
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So | assune that there are going to be
deli berations that follow all this testinony where all of
t hat can be di scussed. And ny testinony for some of
t hose changes had to do with changes that need to be nmade
in the Conditions to the two CECs.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Acken, let ne just ask you,
you're not proposing that we review the entire CECs that
were previously issued; correct? You' re proposing an
order that would grant the proposed anendnents to the
CEC, whatever they m ght be.

MR ACKEN. That is correct. Qur proposed form
of order, and there are two because, again, we're
requesting that the existing CEC be bifurcated.

Qur proposed form of order |ays out the
procedural history and the nature of the request and then
provi des, you know, draft conclusions of law, findings of
fact for the Committee to take action on our three
proposed amendnents.

We are not requesting any -- we have not
request ed any anendnents to the CEC -- CEC conditions,
excuse ne. And so you don't see that in our draft form
of order. W are -- we accept the existing CEC
conditions, we're conplying with the existing CEC
conditions, all 37 of them

CHWN. KATZ: The one thing I would ask you to do
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because | got a note fromTod earlier is to send him
copies of those two orders for review. | don't think he
has t hem

MR ACKEN: My apologies. | wll resend.

CHWN. KATZ: Go ahead.

MR. ACKEN. Ckay. Thank you.
BY MR ACKEN

Q So at this tine, M. Else, you are proposing a

separate formof order for the Commttee' s consideration;

is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q So l'd like to go through sone of the statenents
in that. And that is shown on the screen. |f we could
go through, just drop down to the text and we'll kind of

go through these line by line unless | can have control
sonmehow.

Ckay. Let's go back up.

You have conducted no studies of your own in

support of finding of fact and concl usions of |aw No. 2;

correct?

A | have not conducted any i ndependent study of ny
own.

Q Wth respect to your proposed finding and fact

and conclusion of |aw No. 3, you understand Line 2 does
i nclude -- the approval includes the planned WI I ow
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Subst ati on; correct?

A M. Acken, we're |looking at CEC for Line 1.

Q Ckay. But this says "The Project,"” so should
this read --

A "The Project” refers to each of the two new
owners. So the way | laid out this thing was | had CEC

for Line 1, findings of fact and conclusion of law. And
then | did CEC for Line 2.

So if you tal k about project for the first |ine,
that would be Pattern Energy, and if you tal k about
project for the second line, then that would be El R o
Sol .

Q Ckay. And so what you're saying here, if |
understand it correctly, your reference to project is not
both lines, it's just Line 17?

A Correct.

Q And you understand that Line 1 is subject to
open access requirenents of FERC, correct?

A | understand that, but | al so understand that
it's extrenely expensive to add new substations to a DC
line. And that is the whole reason why the open bid
process was pretty nmuch restricted to the origin of
Line 1, which is in central New Mexi co.

Q Ckay. But do you understand that if someone
wanted to interconnect, they could seek to do so even
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with Line 1?

A At the origin point, they certainly could
economcally. At the other points along that line, it
woul d probably be cost prohibitive. But it is possible,
and that's the question you asked.

Q Yes. Thank you.

And you don't have any studies or information in
support of your finding of fact, conclusion of |aw No. 4,
do you?

A Vell, the first part | do because of the
evidence that it termnates in Arizona.

The second part, that says, "Not in the states
where its main markets are |located.” That's based on ny
testinony that -- where |'ve concluded that the main
markets will be in areas where the rate of electricity is
much hi gher

Q Yeah, and you haven't conducted any studies
to confirm--

A | have not.

Q Yeah, and you haven't conducted any studies to
support finding of fact No. 5, have you?

A | haven't conducted any studies, that's correct.

Q And you haven't conducted any studies in support
of finding of fact 67

A No. I'mnot in the business of conducting
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studies. I|I'min the business of gathering them

Q Ckay. And with respect to 7, | understand your
position now that the project refers to just Line 1, and
it's your position that it's not adequately coll ocat ed.

How do you defi ne adequatel y?

A | would define it as -- in tw ways. Having a
very hi gh percentage of collocation and avoi di ng an
ecologically -- large anobunts of ecologically sensitive
areas, that's how | woul d define adequate collocation,
foll owi ng existing inpacts to the highest degree
possi bl e, which is what the federal standard is.

Q And with respect to No. 9, do you still stand by
t hat proposed finding of fact?

A The way that Condition 26 is worded right now, |
can't stand by No. 9.

Q Thank you.

Let's nmove forward to findings of fact and
conclusions of law for Line 2. |If we could scroll down.
Wth respect to the finding of fact No. 2, what

are you referring to there? |Is this Southline?

A Yes, I'mreferring to Southline as redundancy in
function.
Q And you understand, of course, that Southline is

not actually interconnecting at the sane | ocation as
Li ne 27
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A | do.

Q Ckay. And, again, you' ve not conducted any
studi es of your own?

A No. I'mnot -- | don't conduct studies.

Q And the finding of fact 3, that is based sinply
on counting substations; is that correct?

A Yes. It's nmuch easier to connect when there's
an existing substation than when you have to pony up the
noney to build one.

Q And what is the basis for that statenent? Have
you ever sited, devel oped, pernmitted a utility scale
generating facility?

A | ' ve never done that, no.

Q Ckay. So you don't have any firsthand know edge
to support that statenent --

A My firsthand know edge is that you just can't
hang -- you just can't hang a transforner can on an extra
high voltage line, that it does require access through a
subst ati on.

Q And do you understand that this Conmttee on a
regul ar basis hears of new projects interconnecting wth
exi sting transm ssion lines and installing associ ated new

swi tchyards and substati ons?

A | do.
Q And with respect to No. 4, do you still stand by
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that as it relates to Line 2?

A If Line 1 is -- is approved and built, then
can't stand by that. Because in ny |anguage, the ness
w || have al ready been made.

If Line 1 gets approved, then there will be a

new utility line established, and that it could
potentially involve future coll ocation which is a huge
concern of m ne, because of ny interest in the San Pedro
Val | ey.

Q And | had the sanme question on Condition 26 I'm
going to ask if you have the sane answer of whether you

w t hdraw t hat statenent.

A Whi ch statenent are we working on agai n?
Q Fi ndi ng of fact 6.
A Yes, as -- as Condition 26 is worded, there

woul d have been no violation to it.

Q And finding of fact 7, we tal ked about this
yesterday. Your reference is not the actual ground
di sturbance, but to right-of-way acquisition; is that
correct?

A Ri ght - of -way acqui sition and vegetation control
and, M. Acken, the biggest inpacts are probably the
installation of the towers on the ground. And so that
woul d doubl e.

But then there's also every tine you add a new
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easenent, you're adding nore control of vegetation for
safety and the prevention of -- safety issues in case a
fire gets started or sonething |ike that.

Q And what trend are you referring to in Finding
of Fact 8? Wat other projects have been identified
other than the two lines for Sunzi a?

A There's no other projects that have been
identified at this tine, but there is a federal policy
that requires collocation with existing infrastructure to
t he hi ghest degree possi bl e.

So you end up with any new corridor that's

est abl i shed becom ng a magnet, so to speak, for future

proj ects.
Q And woul d Line 2 establish that trend?
A To be truthful, Line 1 would.
Q Thank you.
A Probably shoul d have added it to Line 1.

MR. ACKEN. | believe that's all the questions |
have. Thank so nuch for your patience and
r esponsi veness.

MR ELSE: Thank you, M. Acken.

CHWN. KATZ: Any questions, M. Stafford?

MR STAFFORD: No questions, Chairnan.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Costello0?

MR. COSTELLO. No questions, Chairnan.
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CHWN. KATZ: Do you have any rebuttal
testinmony -- not rebuttal but redirect, that you'd |ike
to offer, M. Else? Please feel free.

MR ELSE: | do.

REDI RECT TESTI MONY

MR ELSE: Fromlistening to the discussion this
norning, if it turns out that all we're going to do is
change -- | forget what M. Acken called it, the order?

MR ACKEN. The form of order.

MR ELSE: The form of order and that there wl|
be no opportunity to address conditions in the two CEGCs,
then I would like to withdraw the statenent that | just
made to M. Acken about ne not opposing the three
anmendnent s.

If that's the case, that we do not have an
opportunity at this proceeding to address revisions and
additions of conditions, then | will continue to oppose
all three anendnents.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. But what we end up
doing, we will start out by review ng the proposed order
to authori ze those three changes.

But if there is a factual and | egal basis to
consi der any inpacts that those three changes have on the
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original CECs, then that's what we're | ooking at.

Do these CECs -- do the original -- are the
original CECs substantially affected by the three
anmendnment s?

And that doesn't nean we can't hear sone
di scussion as we're reviewng M. Acken's order to
anmending -- the Commttee can request it. You can
request it, M. Stafford, M. Costell o can request
changes to the proposed order as we go through it.

But ultimately the Conmttee is going to decide
whet her or not to adopt that order, and there nay be sone
additions to that order that you m ght propose.

MR ELSE: Yeah, | understand that. It's the
| anguage about the relationship of changes in the
conditions to the three opposed -- to the three proposed
anmendnents that could be the stickler for ne.

So what I'Il dois I'll say at this point in
time | wll oppose all three anendnents, and if it turns
out that there are conditions developed that allay all ny
concerns, then | would stop opposing the approval of all
t hree proposed anmendnents.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.

MR ELSE: This is mainly because | understand

that the Commttee will nmake its recommendati ons and t hen
this wll go to the Conmm ssi on.
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And if it's anything like the last tine | went
through this, 1'"Il have an opportunity to speak in front
of the Comm ssi on when that happens.

CHWN. KATZ: You nost definitely will have an
opportunity to speak in front of the Comm ssion, because
they will have to approve any orders anendi ng the
original CEC that the Commttee m ght agree to.

MR. ELSE: Ckay. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Do you have any ot her statenents
t hat you want to nake based upon the cross-exam nation?

MR ELSE: No, not based -- well, one.

Because | was asked about Dr. Darrington's
testinmony, that there would be no significant difference
in visual inpacts near the San Manuel airport due to the
i ghting and then the hanging of the red marker balls on
t he |ines.

| don't agree with that. That's an opi nion.
And | know t hat when you light a tower and when you hang
those red marker balls it doesn't matter how far back you
wal k and squint your eyes, there are going to be a --
there is going to be a significant difference in visual
i npacts.

And | just want to get on the record that I
don't agree with his assessnent of no change in visual
I npacts due to the FAA visibility requirenents.
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CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairnman?

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | would just like to interject
here that if this -- our recomendati on gets put on the
consent agenda, nobody speaks. So we need to be aware of
t hat .

MR ELSE: Yes, I'mfamliar with the consent
agenda issue, and if it does end up on the consent agenda
"Il just have to consider what the other options are to
appeal that or what ny other options would be at that
time.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Schwei bert, let ne ask you
because you work with the Conm ssion, if something is put
on the consent agenda, does an interested party have the
right to request in witing that the Comm ssion hear it
as a separate matter rather than way of unani nous
consent ?

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Chairman, M. Else, after a
public notice indicating the agenda for a Comm ssi on open
nmeeti ng has been filed or issued, you see that an item --
if any nmenber of the public sees that an item has been
pl aced on the consent agenda the nenber of the public may
submt a witten docunent into the rel evant docket
requesting that either the chairperson or any of the
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respecti ve Comm ssioners request that the item be noved
to the regul ar agenda.

MR ELSE: Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Menbers of the public would
al so have an opportunity if the matter is not subject to
the Conm ssion's prohibition on ex parte conmmuni cati ons,
then a nenber of the public could al so send a direct
e-mail to a Coom -- to one or nore Comm ssioner offices
al so requesting that that respective Comm ssi oner ask for
the itemto be noved fromthe consent agenda to the
regul ar agenda.

MR, ELSE: So as sonmeone who's subject to
ex parte, | would submt directly to the docket.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT:  Yes.

CHWN. KATZ: You're done w th your
Cross-exam nation, M. Acken?

Do you have anything el se? Everybody's going to
get a chance for closing argunent, but we're not talking
about argunent. |Is there anything factually you'd |iKke
to further testify to in light of your cross-exam nation?

VMR, ELSE: No. No, sir.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Acken, we probably have anot her
25 mnutes or so, 25 to 30 m nutes before we have a
norni ng break. But were you intending to call any
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rebuttal w tnesses?

MR ACKEN:. M. Chairman, | do. And I think we
can certainly get our direct done in that tine frane.
There were a handful of questions from Conmttee nenbers
that are open that we wanted to just tighten up and
close. So if this is an appropriate tine, | would call
ny rebuttal panel.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Chairman, | have a few
addi ti onal questions for M. Else.

CHWN. KATZ: Ch, sure. Go ahead.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: | f now woul d be appropri ate.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Schweibert.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Ckay.

CHWN. KATZ: Am | pronounci ng your | ast nane
correctly?

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Schwei bert .

CHWN. KATZ: Schwei bert. Ckay.

MEMBER SCHWEIBERT: |'d like to first start with
t he docunent, M. Acken, that you had the Staff response
regarding reliability. My that be brought up again just
briefly?

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MR ACKEN:. SZA-11.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Displaying the first page,
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if possible. Wat |I'mlooking for is the date, to know
what date this was fil ed.

CHWN. KATZ: It's August 29th of this year.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Okay. So it was filed
August 29 this year. Go to the second page, pl ease.

"Staff's conclusion, that based on Staff's
review of the application as well as SunZi a's responses
to a Staff-issued data request, Staff believes the
proposed project could help inprove reliability safety of
the grid and the delivery of power in Arizona."

M. Acken, | don't know if you're the best
person to answer this, ideally Staff would be the better
W tness to answer ny question.

| think what I'd |ike to understand is whet her
Staff's conclusion here is based on Pattern's ownership
of Line 2 or if Staff's conclusion is based on Sout h\West
Power G oup's ownership of Line 2.

MR ACKEN. It would be ny position that it is
based on Sout hWestern Power G oup's ownership of Line 2,
because that is the application at issue.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Ckay. Thank you for that
clarification.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Sorry to interrupt, but | also
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have a question about this letter. And it may be better
answered by your engi neering wtness.

But do we know whet her the studies that are
referenced in that second full paragraph there, the WECC
studi es, voltage stability, post transient stability,
et cetera, assune two AC |lines or one DC and one AC |i ne?

MR ACKEN:. We will bring M. Etherton back on
the rebuttal panel, and so he's the right person to
address that precisely.

CHWN. KATZ: And | definitely think that's
better. | don't want the | awers becom ng w tnesses in
t hese proceedi ngs.

MR. ACKEN. Me, too.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Chairman, M. Else, | have
sone additional questions for you, M. El se.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Schwei bert, can you speak
up? My hearing is going with ny hair.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: No problem | hope this
hel ps.

The questions are based on the issue of

bi furcating or transferring the ownershi p. Being that

you still oppose the bifurcation and transfer of
owner shi p, | have sone additional questions I'd like to
clarify.

And you had several slides that appeared to go
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toward the economcs or the reliability of the power in
Ari zona.

Is it your testinony that the Iines would result
i n uneconom c power in Arizona, unreliable power in
Ari zona, or both uneconom c and unreliable power in
Ari zona?

MR, ELSE: And you're tal king about both Iines
as in conbination or can | take themone at a tine?

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Well, so that was ny next
question was is it relating to Line 1, Line 2, or both
Line 1 and Line 2?

MR ELSE: Definitely as far as economcs go it
woul d apply to Line 1, that this power would |ikely be
nore due to market conditions headed toward California
because it's going to have fairly high transm ssion
costs.

| mean, we're tal king about tens of mllions of
doll ars today just to do the helicopter placenent al ong
eight mles of the route, and it's 550 mles | ong.

So it's going to have fairly high investnent in
transm ssion infrastructure, and the best way to recover
that in the free market is to market it at the place in
t he markets where you can get the highest price.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: So you're saying as it
relates to Line 1, that because the power is destined for
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California that that wll result in uneconom c power
supply in Arizona?

MR ELSE: Yes. And the way that | related that
is that -- in tw ways. One is we heard a | ot of
testinony from Wstern Resource Advocates that Arizona
needed this wind energy and they gave a | ot of great
reasons for why we shoul d be using renewabl e energy.

But the way the statute is witten in Arizona is
that the Commttee and the Comm ssion are charged with
finding economcal electrical energy, and it doesn't
di sti ngui sh between renewabl e and non-renewabl e.

So we don't have statute right now that sets a
hi gh standard for renewabl e energy use. So that's one
way that it affects nmy conclusion that this woul d not
provi de economical electricity for Arizona's use.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Wl --

MR ELSE: Pardon ne. Go ahead.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: This transition to line 2
because the question of ownership bifurcation or transfer
isinrelation to the ownership of Line 2 --

MR ELSE: Yeah.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: -- is it your testinony that
Line 2 will result in nore or | ess economc or reliable
power under new ownershi p?

MR, ELSE: Mbst of the testinony that |'ve heard
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so far fromboth the applicant and from Western Resource
Advocates is that the goal would be to use Line 2
primarily for additional w nd energy.

West ern Resource Advocates was neking the
assunption that there would potentially be up to
4500 negawatts of wi nd energy conmbined fromthe two
i nes.

Today, in ny cross-exam nation, | was rem nded
several tines that Line 2 originates in that w nd energy
zone, not at the sanme initiation point of the Southline
pr oj ect .

So |'ve got two cues, so to speak, that the
intention of Line 2 would also be primarily for the
export of wi nd energy out of New Mexi co.

And under current market conditions and the
probability that the Comm ssion's not going to suddenly
follow the sane | ead as California on renewabl e energy
standards, | would say, yes, Line 2 would not be
delivering economcal electricity fromw nd energy to
Ari zona.

But there's one other thing | want to add to
bot h of those discussions. And that is when you inject
t hat vol une of negawatts into Pinal Substation, it could
trigger the need for new |lines between Pinal Substation
and California, or at least to the Pal o Verde hub, but
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possi bly further that could add new burdens on the
rat epayers in Arizona.

These are all just possibilities that
contributed to ny statenent about why | don't think that
t hese lines would contribute to econom cal electricity in
Ari zona.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Sure. Thank you, M. El se.

How, in your opinion, does the ownership of
Line 2 change the econonmics or the reliability of the
power ?

So if under Pattern ownership the power is
destined for California. And under Sout hWest Power
Managenent ownership the power is al so destined for
California; how does the change in ownership in your
opi ni on change the supply of econom cal and reliable
power in Arizona? Foll ow?

MR ELSE: Yes, fromthat -- fromthat
| egal i stic understandi ng, nere change of ownership would
not change that situation.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Do you have any additi onal
i nformation, opinion, or evidence that you could provide
t hat shows that, for exanple, SouthWst Power Managenent
woul d have different off-takers or different contracts
wth end users or utilities that Pattern Energy woul d not
have?
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MR ELSE: Yes. Line 2 would have a substation
that's included at the WI Il ow Substation. So there would
be opportunities for other resource areas right off the
bat .

And AC lines are nmuch nore anenabl e to addi ng
addi ti onal substations than DC |ines are.

So Line 2 theoretically could | oad distri buted
energy devel opnent in Arizona. That is a possibility.

VEMBER HAENI CHEN: M. Chairnan, can | chine in
her e?

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, go ahead, M. Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thi s discussion is a
little bit disturbing to ne because it | ooks |like the
only reason for using or attenpting to use the w nd
energy from New Mexico is the environnmental advantages of
it.

If it's going to be a | ot nore expensi ve because
of transm ssion costs, despite the fact that there are no
fuel costs, | think we need to understand this question,
iIsit really not econom cally advant ageous to use that
energy? Who can answer that?

CHWN. KATZ: | think that that's sonething that

maybe M. Acken can address to one of his engineering

people. | don't think M. Else has the engi neering
experti se.
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MEMBER HAENI CHEN: | understand, but | think we
need to know t hat.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine, and | think that
that's sonething I would ask M. Acken to expl ore when he
recalls his wtnesses.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Thank you.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: M. Else, just -- | think ny
| ast maybe foll ow up question for now, how does the
change in ownership fromPattern to Sout hWst Managenent
G oup change the availability of utilizing the WII ow
Substation for Line 2?

MR. ELSE: Changing the ownership of Line 1 to
Pattern --

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Li ne 2.

MR ELSE: OCh. Could you repeat that question?

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: How, in your opinion, does
changi ng the ownership of Line 2 fromPattern to
Sout hWwest Managenent G oup change the ability to utilize
the WIIlow Substation on Line 2?

MR, ELSE: It does not change it, no.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: | don't have any ot her
questions at this time, Chairnan.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you. Any other Conmmittee
menbers have any questions of M. Else? And if not,

M. Else, is there anything you wanted to clarify?
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MR ELSE: No, M. Chairman, I'mstill absorbing
this concept that's sort of new to ne today, that we my
or may not have a rigorous discussion of conditions.

So, anyway, |'ll work that out and j ust
reconsi der where this process i s headed.

CHWN. KATZ: R ght, and the applicant is
required by rule and statute to provide drafts of their
proposed order, whether it's a CEC or an anmendnent to a
CEC.

And then the Committee has the right to
interject any additional findings or conditions it thinks
appropriate. And we can hear fromany of the parties as
wel | regarding that.

But ultimately each of the new conditions or
findi ngs have to be voted on by the Committee and then
t he whole order will be voted on by a roll call vote.

MR ELSE: Yes, thank you.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Chairnman, | just have one
nore question.

CHWN. KATZ: Sure.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Maybe two.

MEMBER HAMAMY: |s it a conmpound question?

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: |'I| separate them

CHWN. KATZ: No conpound questi ons.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Chairnman, M. Else, in your
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testinmony, | believe if I"'marticulating this correctly,
you reconmmended that the Comm ttee perhaps deny the

transfer of ownership as it relates to Line 2 because

Line 2 is redundant with the Southline. |Is that
accur ate?

MR ELSE: Committee Menber Schwei bert, |ike |
said, I'mstill absorbing the information that |I heard

today, and so | didn't want to nake the m stake of saying
that | didn't oppose the three anendnents that are in the
May 13th application to amend, and have that go on the
record if it would cause ne to | ose | everage, so to
speak, in any future options I m ght choose to pursue to
try to prevent further degradation of the | ower San Pedro
Val | ey.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Sure. | can appreciate
that. | think I"mjust recalling one of the slides and I
apol ogi ze that | don't recall which slide it was, where
perhaps at |least at that tinme, you' d recomended that the
Commttee deny a CEC for Line 2 because it was redundant
wi t h Sout hli ne.

MR ELSE: Correct. Yeah, you know, |'m not an
attorney, so | didn't know what all the outcones were
t hat woul d be possible fromthis process.

So in ny sort of primtive understandi ng and the
way | stated it in ny opening remarks was that | had
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previ ously understood that the Commttee coul d approve
both of the CECs, CEC-1 only, CEC-2 only, or neither of
the CECs. Maybe that's not the case. | don't have an
attorney sitting beside ne.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: That's fine, M. Else.

Thank you. My question as it relates to the idea that
per haps Line 2 m ght be redundant wth the Southline
pr oj ect .

And | ask this question in the context of trying
to evaluate the availability of an econonm cal and
reliable supply of energy in Arizona, is do you believe
or is it your opinion that transm ssion |lines follow sort
of a traditional supply-and-demand equati on from an
econom ¢ perspective, such that having nore transm ssion
lines would result in an increase in supply of
transm ssion lines, and therefore nore options through
whi ch one woul d wheel through their power and therefore
have a | ower econom c cost or price of transm ssion?

MR ELSE: It all depends on the cost of putting
the transmssion lines in. M viewis that we shoul d use
the existing grid to the highest degree possible, use it
as efficiently as possible, use all new technol ogi es that
assist us inusing it as efficiently as possible to
upgrade the existing grid whenever possible, strengthen
the existing grid rather than forging new infrastructure
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corridors through areas that -- that were previously
undi st ur bed.

| think all of those things are very inportant
and one of the real sad outcones of President Cbama
openi ng up public lands to nerchant projects is it tends
to create sort of a land rush for the cheapest | and
that's avail able on the real estate market rather than
the | and that nakes the nost sense for infrastructure
pl acenent .

So | know | couldn't answer your question yes or
no about whether | agreed with that hypothesis that you
were posing, but I -- and ny testinony denonstrated the
way that you reduce transm ssion costs is to nake the
line as short as possible to fulfill the function that
you want to fulfill.

And to base it as nuch on reduci ng environment al
i npacts, to base it nore even on reduci ng environnment al
I mpacts than on nmaxim zing corporate profit.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Thank you, M. Else.

Chairman, | don't have any ot her questions.

CHWN. KATZ: Committee have any additi onal
questions? Anything else for M. Else?

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, go ahead.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: This isn't a question, it's a
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request, | guess, of M. Acken to be sure that their

W tness they're going to bring this afternoon can tell us
what the cost is going to be of electricity, at the end
of this 400-mle line, counting all the line | osses and
the fact that there's no fuel costs and so on, the cost
of that electrical energy per kilowatt hour versus
conventional fossil energy.

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, Menber Haeni chen. W
will certainly address these cost questions with folks
t hat actually understand and |ive cost and econom cs and
can provi de expert opinion.

|'mnot sure that | can give you kilowatt hour
pricing, because of course that woul d be confidential,
but we will do our best to provide information that is
responsi ble -- responsive to the questions, keeping in
m nd, of course, that this Commttee previously
determ ned, the Comm ssion determ ned and it was upheld
on judicial reviewthat this project aids the state in
provi di ng an adequate, econom c and reliable source of
power .

But | understand the questioning, | understand
the nature of it. And we will do so within the confines
of what -- that we can w thout providi ng business
confidential information that would be -- that would
di sadvant age SunZi a as opposed to potential conpetitors.
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MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Wel |, as a nenber of this
Commttee, | have to vote on this thing at the end of the
day. And ny vote expresses interest in value to Arizona
consuners of electricity.

And so even though you say it's confidential and
other things, it looks like if it turns out that the
energy i s very expensive because of delivery costs from
New Mexico, then it's -- definitely all going to go to
California because they're the only one with the really
high electricity retail prices.

So that's ny notivation for asking for this kind
of anal ysi s.

MR ACKEN:. We will certainly address the
m sconception that wnd energy is not cost conpetitive.
W will put that to bed.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Thank you.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT:  Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Schweibert.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: For M. Acken, and |
apol ogi ze to the extent that this may have been
addressed, was it yesterday in the norning portion when |
was not here in person, but to the extent that you have a
W t ness who can el aborate on the change in econom cal and
reliable supply of energy for Arizona and the ownership
change.
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How does the change from Pattern Energy to
Sout hWwest Power Group influence the anmount of power that
w il be delivered to Arizona |oad, to Arizona regul at ed
electric utilities, municipal utilities, or distribution
cooperatives, et cetera, versus the sane if it's under
Patt ern owner shi p.

MR. ACKEN:. Thank you for that question and the
clarification, and we will address that on rebuttal as
wel | .

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you. Well, we used up your
hal f an hour. So we're going to take our 10:30 break and
we'll resune about 10:45 and just relax for a few m nutes
or prepare, and we'll take our norning recess.

(Recess from10:32 a.m to 10:49 a.m)

CHWN. KATZ: W are ready to resunme our next
session, and | believe we're going to be hearing sone
rebuttal testinony fromthe applicant.

M. Acken, if you're ready let ne just make a
note as to who the panel consists of.

MR ACKEN. For the record, M. Chairnman, for
its rebuttal SunZia Transm ssion, LLC calls -- recalls
Kevin Wetzel, Adam Cernea C ark, and Mark Etherton, al
of whom have been previously sworn.

CHWN. KATZ: That's correct. You may proceed.
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KEVI N WETZEL, ADAM CERNEA CLARK, and MARK ETHERTON,
call ed as Rebuttal w tnesses as a panel on behal f of
Appl i cant, having been previously affirnmed or sworn by
the Chairman to speak the truth and nothing but the

truth, were exam ned and testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ACKEN:

Q Thank you, M. Chairnan.

So at the conclusion of M. Else's testinony,
t here was a di scussi on regardi ng the econonics of w nd,
general ly, and SunZi a project specifically.

M. Wetzel, did you hear that testinony and, |
guess, that discussion?

A (MR WETZEL) | did.

Q | would |ike you to share your thoughts about
t he econonics of SunZi a.

A (MR WETZEL) Sure. So |I'd probably take it in
two elenents. First is just structurally and this goes
back to ny original testinobny on Tuesday.

SunZia is a nerchant transm ssion |ine which
enables wind facilities in New Mexico as we've discussed.

Merchant transmission line neans it's privately
owned not by a local utility but by a, you know, private
conmpany in this case, Pattern Energy, and Line 2 for
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Sout hWestern Power Group if the anmendnents are approved.

VWhat that neans is that we're not rate-basing
this project and inposing it on any custoner in Arizona
or any other market. This project conpetes in the market
and i f our value proposition to market participants who
buy whol esal e power is not attractive enough and t hey
don't see value in our value proposition in our project,
then this project won't nove forward.

| can tell you that as the project |ead
devel oper, | am highly coordi nated and participate in
mar ket conversations with custoners al nost on a daily
basis. And the narket does see value in this project,
and in the value proposition that we bring to market.

It's really driven by a nunmber of factors and
this goes into the second piece, which is how the project
conpetes with other market participants, other
t echnol ogi es.

First and forenost, and | showed it in one of ny
slides, it mght helpful to bring that back up. | think
it is L5 which is the shape of the New Mexi co w nd
relative to other alternatives.

The shape of New Mexico wind, | think people can
probably renenber it is inversely correlated to sol ar
production, so as we all knowin Arizona there is a
proliferation of solar energy, which we're really excited
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about and we support and we're devel opi ng sol ar projects
to help increase that |ocal delivery.

But New Mexico wind is an extrenely good
conpl enent to that because sol ar cannot produce at night.
And batteries can only store energy for so long, and they
are -- and I'lIl talk about this in nore detail at a
hi gher price point than wnd project after -- after fully
burdening that wind with transm ssion costs related to
the SunZia and EIl R o Sol projects.

So the val ue proposition includes the shape,
what we call the shape value, which is in the eveni ng and
we've seen this over the -- this is actually a good week
to talk about this. W've seen energy prices rise
dramatically in the evenings as people cone hone from
work, turn on the AC, turn on the lights, turn on the
oven.

That electricity, you know, use ranps up right
at the sane tine the solar product ranmps down. There
needs to be sonething to fill that gap, and as you can
see fromthe chart on the bottomright of L5, New Mexico
wind perfectly fits that requirenent.

That is an extrenely inpactful and val uable
attribute to our custoner base across the board, whether
it's utilities or other whol esal e buyers like | arge
commrerci al and industrial custoners.
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Secondly, there was di scussion around fuel. As
nost fol ks know, no solar and w nd power projects are
fuel free. R ght now, and we've seen this again, it's a
good tine to tal k about this.

After the pandem c and because of the Russian
i nvasi on of Wkraine, fuel prices in the fossil sector,
specifically natural gas which is really the primary
alternative at this point in tinme, have been extrenely
vol atil e.

They were trading two to $3 per BTU, you know,
historically over the |ast five years. They spiked to
over $10. You know, the price of that on the energy
markets is material, but also inportantly all of these
custoners and | oad-serving entities have to plan for the
|l ong term and they have to manage volatility.

So while wind is intermttent in its generation
profile, it provides diversified kind of, you know, risk
mtigation in that there is no fuel risk in the project.

And so we don't have to worry about or our
custoners don't have to worry about what is the price of
gas going to be today, tonorrow or in the future. W
have a fixed price PPA, typically. 1t depends on the
cust oner.

Where they can guarantee that no natter, you
know, what gas does in the future, they know that their
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w nd energy power purchase agreenent is going to be at a
fixed cost now.

Now, again, it is intermttent, so when that
energy shows up it changes by the day, although we have,
you know, years and years of neteorological data to
support our production estimates and we're able to, you
know, on a short-termforward basis predict with high
confi dence what we w || produce.

That's a naterial benefit to customers that
ot her types of technol ogies including fossil cannot
provi de.

And the third piece is really there are
environnental attri butes associated with any renewabl e
energy project which are valued by the market; right?
W're seeing that in everywhere from you know, consuner,
you know, based denmand, but especially for |arge
whol esal e denand.

Just, you know, if you |look at the large, I'll
just use data centers as an exanple. Mst of the |arge
data center conpani es have conmtted to goi ng, you know,
nostly renewable if not carbon free by certain dates.

So there is a value and a prem um for any
renewabl e project associated with the green attri butes,
if you want to call themthat, the carbon, you know,
reduction potential for those projects.
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So if you |look at what the alternatives are to
provi de the shape that | show here on the screen on L5,
there are a few that can provide the non-sol ar hours,
right? Hydro, nuclear, geothermal, and all three of
t hose are extrenely difficult to -- to build and frankly
fairly expensive and much nore expensive than w nd, even
transm ssi on-enabl ed wind |Ii ke SunZi a.

The fourth is little bit nore applicable, which
is long-duration energy storage. R ght. Typical energy
storage projects that have been built over the |ast few
years tend to be four hours in duration. That does help
mtigate this evening peaking i ssue that we see, and
we've seen it again this week, where batteries provided,
you know, resources in Arizona and cross the west through
t he heat wave.

What those batteries can't do is provide energy
t hrough the night. Which again our custoners that are
trying to nove towards a carbon-reduced or carbon-neutr al
pl at f orm are denandi ng.

Wnd energy is one of the only projects or
t echnol ogy types that can do that.

Long-duration storage |I do think absol utely has
a place in the energy infrastructure bal ance. W' ve
tal ked a | ot about diversification. And that's really
inmportant; right? W want energy storage to proliferate,
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we want solar to proliferate, and we'd |i ke, you know,
all these other technologies to as well.

But what's available to the market right now and
what's available in this specific location are fairly
const rai ned.

So SunZia and the wind projects that it enables
are absolutely economc to the market. | can tell you
t hat because we are havi ng custoner conversations, |ate
stage, where they are seeing the value in the val ue
proposition that | just described.

And, again, the diversification benefits that
SunZi a can provide in addition to those other
technol ogies is absolutely in denand in the market right
now.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT:  Chai r man?

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Schweibert.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: M. Wetzel, thank you for
bringing up Slide L5. D d you prepare the graph we are
view ng on that slide?

MR WETZEL: | did.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: kay. Thank you. Do you
m nd expl ai ning why for the portion of power generated
fromsolar there is no indication of what state that
solar is being generated in?

MR. WETZEL: Sure. The solar profileis
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typically fairly standard across a region. So while the
time franme of the exact, you know, single-hour difference
bet ween, say, the Mountain tinme zone and the western
Pacific tine zone would shift the solar an hour in either
di recti on.

VWhat we're showing here is | believe Muuntain
Standard Tine. So the solar is going to be very simlar
if not identical, whether it's produced in, you know,
"Il just use the exanple of western New Mexico, Arizona,
or eastern California.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: And what states are in the
Mount ai n St andard Ti nme zone?

MR WETZEL: |I'mnot sure | can nane them off
the exact top of ny head. New Mexico, you know,

Col orado, | suppose at tines of the year Arizona.

MR ACKEN. Let the -- | think you can take
official notice that Arizona is always Muntain Standard
Ti me.

MR, WETZEL: Sorry.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Thank you, M. Acken. M
next question was going to be on the bottom part of that
graph are tines, mdnight, 6:00 a.m, noon, 6:00 p.m,
and m dnight. What tinme zones are those tines?

MR WETZEL: | believe those are Muntain
Standard tines because New Mexi co wi nd produces Muntain
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Standard and we wanted to nake sure to have the
applicable tine franes be shown.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Ckay. And so just to be
clear, there's no way what soever that this Committee
should interpret this graph as being a tine zone,
California-based tine zone wherein the sol ar production
of 6:00 aam to 6:00 p.m California tinme and that the
sort of overlay of the New Mexico wi nd energy production
is sort of peaking at 6:00 p.m California tinme?

MR WETZEL: 1'd like to make sure that |'m
answering this correctly, and I don't know with
100 percent certainty that | can answer that. | just
don't want to m sspeak and m srepresent this data.

So l'dlike to be able to go back and ensure
that ny answer is correct and that these all Muntain
time zone production profiles.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Ckay. | just want to
understand clearly that if during a tinme of year when
California and New Mexico are not on the sane tine, how
that overlay would shift or whether they would still be
in line. Does that nake sense?

MR WETZEL: | think it does, yes, and I'll need
to follow to provide an answer to that question.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Ckay. Thank you.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: M. Chai r man.
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CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENICHEN: 1'd like to ask you a
question that involves costs, but not in dollars. | just
want to know percentage-wi se, if -- assunming this project

gets approved by this Commttee and by the Commi ssion,
and gets built, what -- and it starts delivering

W nd- generated energy from New Mexico to, let's say the
end of the line which is sonme hundred mles or so short
of California, whatever it is.

What percentage of the cost to the utility
that's doing this, your conpany, is due to the
transm ssion |ine costs, which include | osses and
anortization of the line as opposed to the -- and what
percentage is due to what you have to pay to get the
energy in the first place on the New Mexico side?

MR WETZEL: Sure. So | think just to nmake sure
| understood the question is, what percentage of the cost
base of the delivered product is represented by the
transm ssion el enent of which the wnd project has to pay
to deliver the power; is that correct?

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: And what percentage is paid
to New Mexico? Just percentage now. | don't care about
t he nunbers.

MR WETZEL: | want to be responsive to the
question. Let ne nake sure | understand it. Wen you

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 505

say paid to New Mexico or paid to Arizona, can you just
hel p me understand --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  No, | nean you have to buy
t he energy from New Mexico; right? Don't they get paid
for it? Sonebody there gets paid.

MR, WETZEL: In New Mexico, |'d say the paynents
go to the local community, |andowners, tax paynents,
operating the facilities. The real paynents associ ated
with the project in New Mexico are the capital costs to
build the wi nd farns.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Anorti zati on thereof.

MR, WETZEL: Sure. Exactly. And so the
revenues created by the wwnd farmsold into the western
mar ket then go back to pay back the anortization cost.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: | understand that. But |
just want to know what those percentages are. Estinate.
Your guess.

MR WETZEL: Sure. | think I understand the
question. |'ll nmake sure to try to respond to it.

The overall delivered product, you know, if we
assune that cost 100 percent, the anpunt of the cost of
transmtting that power over the SunZia project is likely
represented 10 to 15 percent of the cost of the delivered
product. |Is that the question? Dd I --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Yeah, well, that's true and
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we can break that down, too. Part of that is |osses,
line | osses; right?

MR WETZEL: Correct.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: And part of that is
anortization of the cost of building the thing.

MR, WETZEL: Correct. And the way that that
mani fests in the project economcs is that the SunZ a
transmssion line wll have a transm ssion service
agreenent with the wind farns and charge a transm ssi on
rate, by which, again, the SunZia transm ssion project
Wil recover its costs and pay its operating costs.

And then the wind farnms in central New Mexico
wll have to pay the transm ssion |line that transm ssion
service rate in order to utilize it to deliver its
product to narket.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Yeah. But at the end of the
day when all those things are taken into consideration,
until megawatt hours start comng out of the wire at the
end, what percentage of the price that people pay -- the
cost to the provider, to you, what percentage is -- IS
attributed to the value of the energy itself, the fact
that it's negawatt hours that could be burned and the
other is the line, the transmtting costs?

MR, WETZEL: Again, | think the answer to your
question is that roughly 10 to 15 percent of the cost of
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the wind power delivered to nmarket is to recover the cost
that it pays to utilize the transm ssion facilities.

And 1'Il rake sure to note that the production
increase, and I1'll refer to Slide L5 on the top right
whi ch shows the wi nd speed map of the region, the
production that is able to be achieved in New Mexico is
far greater than the wind energy that you can source nore
locally in Arizona.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Ch, | understand that.

MR WETZEL: Such that the econom c benefit of
t hat increased production nore than outweighs the cost of
the transmi ssion |ine service to be able to deliver that
product to --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Ckay. But if any of that
energy is going to be used in Arizona and | have ny doubt
about that now, too, but if any of it is going to be used
in Arizona, it wll be bought by sonebody that has to pay
noney for it.

And they have other options. They can get it
from-- just fromthe grid itself in Arizona. |Is the
wi nd energy going to be cheaper to buy in Arizona than

regular grid energy?

MR WETZEL: | think that's a difficult question
to answer.
MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Yeah, | |like to give
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di fficult questions.

MR WETZEL: It relies upon a forward vi ew of
gas prices, of federal and state and even | ocal policy
that may drive deci sion maki ng around future generation
resources as well as, you know, the actual |oad and the
custoner denmand for different products in the market.

| can tell you that right now based on our
analysis and in ny opinion, the price that can be
received in the market for the production shape when
measured on a | ong-term basis would support the ability
for the project to be built and recognize a return on
t hat 1 nvestnent.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Ckay. But we, we the
Commttee and ne particularly as a nmenber of the
Commttee, are trying to represent the users of
electricity in Arizona. W don't give a darn about
California. And so we have to make a vote on this.

And if the answer to ny earlier question turns
out to be, well, it's not going to be any cheaper than
just getting it fromother parts of the sources on the
grid, then you m ght not vote yes for it.

So | just wanted to know if this is a good deal
for ratepayers in Arizona.

MR WETZEL: Under st ood.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:.  \Wy?
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MR, WETZEL: Understood, and |I'd naybe refer
back to ny earlier testinony when | tal ked about the
value attributes of wind energy, in particular, this
shape wi nd energy to the custoner base in Arizona.

We absolutely believe that this is going to be a
econom ¢ product for the market and for any custoners in
Ari zona. And, again, those custoners wll enter into any
contracts with us by choi ce because we are a conpetitive
mer chant proj ect.

But | think the short answer to your question is
t hat when you | ook at the alternatives in the market over
the near termor even in the long term in our opinion
that SunZia and New Mexico Wnd delivered as a result of
this SunZia transm ssion project is econon ¢ when
conpared to other alternatives in the narket for
provi di ng that sane power.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Just because of the shape
I ssue?

MR. WETZEL: Because of the shape issue, because
of the diversification benefit, because of the fuel
diversification risk benefit, and because of the carbon
el enent, the non-carbon el enents of the product. Yes,
sir.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Yeah. O course people who
buy electricity for their house don't care about that
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issue. That's the -- they're the ones paying the bill,
woul dn't you agree? |'mnot saying all consuners.
MR WETZEL: Respectfully, | think certain
i ndi vidual s do care about the --
MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Yeah, | care.
MR WETZEL: -- inpact of their energy profile.
MEMBER HAENI CHEN: | care, but | think Joe Bl ow

iIs going to say this is not a good deal or it is a great

deal .
CHWN. KATZ: | just had a couple of questions.
One, you nentioned the cost of purchasing the
w nd energy to transmt. Does not SunZia or Pattern own

the wwnd farmthat's going to be producing the
electricity, or is it independently owned.

MR WETZEL: Pattern Energy does own the w nd
facilities that have been awarded the transm ssion
capacity. Yes, sir.

CHWN. KATZ: And SunZia is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Pattern?

MR WETZEL: Yes, sir.

CHWN. KATZ: So there isn't an -- there's costs
associ ated with producing the wnd energy, but SunZ a
doesn't need to buy it in order to transmt it through
its line;, correct?

MR, WETZEL: Well, so structurally the wnd
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farnms and the transm ssion project are two separate and
distinct entities, assets, and, you know, businesses,
frankly.

SunZia Wnd will be the custoner of SunZi a
Transm ssion via the transm ssion service agreenents that
| referenced earlier. And SunZia Wnd wll then pay the
transm ssion service rate to SunZia Transm ssion. And
enbed the cost of that rate into its fully, you know,
del i vered product to market.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: |'m sorry. What did that
di scussion say? |Is SunZia going to own the wind farm
itsel f?

MR WETZEL: SunZia Transm ssion, LLC, will now
The applicant under this proceeding will not own the w nd
farm no, sir.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: COkay. So that'll be owned by
sonebody in New Mexico, for exanple, or California?

MR WETZEL: Currently it's owned by Pattern
Energy. W own and operate wind farns across the
country, and Pattern is a U S.-based conpany.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: COkay. But then it should be
real easy, the answer to ny original question was what
percentage of the delivered electricity to Arizona from
the wwnd farmis due to transm ssi on expenses, Vis-a-Vvis
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what they have to pay to get the (speech obscured by
coughing) in the first place. That's what I'mtrying to
drive at.

MR WETZEL: 10 to 15 percent is the approxi mate
cost of the transm ssion delivery of the New Mexico w nd.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: So the other 85 percent is
what you have to pay for the kilowatt hour, negawatt
hours in the begi nning.

MR WETZEL: Yes, sir, to operate the wind farm
to recover the capital investnent and nake a return on
that i nvestnent. Yes, sir.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | have a couple of questions and
they are basically, 4500 negawatts of power of any sort
being delivered to a -- basically the south central part
of Arizona, obviously it's not going to all get used
where it's delivered.

And you have tal ked about being in conversation
w th custoners, potential custoners, for the energy. Do
you -- what are the arrangenents for getting the energy
fromthe substation, Pinal Central, to where it's going
to be used?

| know we have 10 West going fromthe Pal o Verde
hub across to California. | know you can't tell me who
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t hose custoners are, but is there transm ssion from Pi nal
Central to the SRPs and APSes and whoever else will be
using this power, or is that just kind of sonething you
kind of figure will happen?

MR WETZEL: Yes, ma'am |It's a great question.
One of the reasons that the project was devel oped in the
| ocation that it was with the termnus at Pinal Central
500 kV bay that it was -- is because the specific point
in the grid is neant to accept and transmt bul k anmounts
of power.

That's why we're on the 500 kV network rel ative
to the 230 or 115 or other |ower networks. Pinal Central
is areally unique place in the grid. It is jointly
owned by a nunber of |ocal electric districts and
utilities including Western -- sorry, SRP, Salt River
Project and Tucson Electric, and the Western Area Power
Associ ati on, WAPA, systens al so connect into Pinal
Centr al

So what Pinal Central allows is for nmultiple
outlets of bulk power into nultiple transm ssion systens
going nultiple directions.

So the different ways that we deliver product to
our customers i s dependent on the customer. If we take
Salt River Project as a theoretical exanple, and |'m not
saying that we are in any kind of discussions wth Salt
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Ri ver Project around off-take of the project.

Typically they woul d accept power at the point
in the systemthat they take control of it, which in this
case would be the Pinal Central 500 kV bus, and then they
woul d use their systemservice to be able to deliver
their custoners, whoever that nay be, whether it's the
residential custoners or naybe a specific conmerci al
custoner that they have.

So it's dependent on the custoner, on where they
woul d take that power, but Pinal Central was specifically
chosen because it does provide access to multiple
net wor ks, of which you could either deliver to those
custoners or utilize those networks for further delivery
via additional transm ssion service with again, as an
exanple, Salt River Project, to another market point such
as the Pal o Verde hub. Which will likely be part of this
project as well.

MEMBER LITTLE: So it would be up to the
custoner, then, SRP for your theoretical exanple there is
a part owner in Pinal Central, but if you had a custoner
that was not, it would be up to themto nake arrangenents
to take the power delivery at Pinal Central.

MR WETZEL: It could, or it could be a service
that we woul d provide such that if they requested a point
of delivery sonewhere else in the western system it
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woul d say, you know, can you get ne power at X, Y, Z
poi nt, and we would go and see if we could acquire any
transm ssion service fromPinal Central to the point of
i nterest.

And if that was avail able and economc to do so,
then we m ght be able to offer that to a custoner.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. And | do have sone
questi ons about the WECC studies, but 1'll save those for
M. --

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: M. Wetzel, howis the
custoner of the wi nd product in New Mexico different from
the custoner of a transm ssion |ine wheel through? Are
they the sane or are they different custoners? Please
expl ai n.

MR WETZEL: They're different custoners. So
SunZi a Transm ssion's custoner will be the wind projects
t hensel ves. The revenue agreenent for the transm ssion
line will be a transm ssion service agreenent in which
the transmssion line will agree to reserve capacity and
allowthe wwnd farns to utilize that capacity to deliver
fromcentral New Mexico to Pinal Central.

That's the service being offered by SunZi a
Transm ssion, and they will charge a rate to the SunZ a
wnd farnms in central New Mexi co, of which the wnd farns
wll pay. So the customer for SunZia Transm ssion is the
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SunZia w nd farns today.

As M. Acken nentioned earlier, this is an open
access |line. Future custoners may cone and request
i nterconnection, and if they choose to nove forward with
t hose i nterconnection requests, then the transm ssion
i ne woul d have additional custoners, additional
generators, which would pay transm ssion service to use
the |ine.

That differs fromthe custoners of the SunZ a
wi nd farns, you know, which are utilities, |arge
i ndustrial whol esal e custoners.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Let ne just -- | just got to
get back to ny original premse. Let's say that this
project gets approved and built, and it's been running
now for a year, so you got all the bugs worked out of it.

A custoner cones up to buy a ot of electricity
and they have two options. One is to buy it fromthis
line comng in from New Mexi co through who -- what ever
entity owns it. O just off the grid itself |like they've
been doing all along. Wich would be cheaper?

MR WETZEL: Again, that's a difficult question
to answer. | will do ny best fromny perspective.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Wl |, guess.

MR. WETZEL: The price of grid energy is
extrenely volatile. So let's take this week as an
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exanple. |If you were to | ook at the market price of
energy this week, it would be many mul ti ples of the cost
that the wind project could provide.

So any given day it could be cheaper or nore
expensive to take power fromthe grid relative to a
| ong-term contract to buy power fromthe
transm ssi on- enabl ed wi nd projects.

So the answer to your question is if that
custonmer valued the attributes and the risk mtigation
t hat our product can provide in terns of fuel, shape,
| ong-termcertainty of power prices, then it will be
cheaper for themto buy energy fromthese wind projects
enabl ed by SunZia Transm ssion relative to buyi ng narket
power .

If for sone reason it was, you know, co0oO
weat her and there was a |l ot of generation on the system
then it could be in any given hour that it could be
cheaper to buy narket power relative to the price of --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Ch, yeah, but | wanted you to
snmooth it over hundreds of hours.

MR WETZEL: In ny view, SunZia Wnd's energy
proposition is going to be nore economc than the
alternative, which would be buyi ng narket-generated power
when all the attributes are consi dered.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: More econom ¢ by what ?
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10 percent, 15 percent, 50 percent?

MR. WETZEL: | apol ogi ze, but you're asking ne
to opine on future energy prices relative to our value --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Wl |, that's what we have to
do.

MR, WETZEL: -- that's an extrenely difficult
question to answer.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: That's what we have to do on
this Commttee.

MR WETZEL: | believe it's long-term
economical. | apologize, | don't think that |I'm
confortable giving a percent answer because | don't think
| know it.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  No, |I'mnot going to hold you
toit. I'mjust asking you to guess.

CHWN. KATZ: | just had a couple of questions.
| know that one of the reasons you're doing the DC |line
Is it has a greater capacity to transmt nore nmegawatts
than an AC li ne.

The question | have is does Pinal Central, to
t he best of your know edge, have the capacity to
di stri bute DC power through the grid. AC is relatively
easy. But DC, |I'mnot sure whether Pinal Central is
equi pped or wll be equipped to be able to transmt that
to providers here in Arizona.
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MR WETZEL: Yes, sir. So | think the answer to
the question is you're correct in that Pinal Central does
not have the capability of handling DC power.

Wiich is why, and I'Il refer to Slide L-15,
we're building a DC to AC converter station, SunZi a Wst,
| ocated less than a mle fromPinal Central in which the
DC energy will be converted to ACin order for us to
actually be able to connect the AC energy into Pinal
Central, which as you correctly point out is an AC
infrastructure project.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. So it will be converted but
not everything along the |line necessarily wll be
converted, because doesn't sone of it just go past that,
or is that the termnate -- it termnates now at --

MR WETZEL: It termnates. Correct. So
everything will be DC along the route to SunZi a \West
converter station, and at that point 100 percent of that
energy is converted fromDC to AC. And 100 percent of
that AC energy is connected to the Pinal Central.

CHWN. KATZ: So basically by the time it gets to
the Pinal Central substation it's capabl e of being
di stributed al ong any existing or future lines that cone
out of Pinal or go to other | ocations that are connected.

MR WETZEL: Yes, M. Chairman, that's correct.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman.
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CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: One of the anendnent requests
is to include EIl R o Sol Transm ssion, LLC, correct?

MR WETZEL: One of our anendnent requests is to
bi furcate the existing single CEC into two CECs such that
the second line, Line 2, the ACline would be able to be
assi gned under ACC admi nistrative procedures to the
El R o Sol Conpany. Correct.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Okay. |In the event that this
amendnent is not passed, is SunZi a financially capable of
conti nui ng the whole project as in the original CEC?

MR. WETZEL: So Pattern Energy as the parent
conmpany of SunZia Transm ssion, LLC, the applicant, has
financial resources that | believe would be, you know,
capabl e of al so devel opi ng a second |i ne.

We devel op projects across the country,
including transmssion lines in different regions as well
as the SunZi a desert sout hwest region.

So the short answer to your question is yes,
Pattern Energy does have the financial and experience --
financial resources and the experience to develop a
second | i ne.

However, | believe that Sout hWestern Power G oup
as the owner of the devel opnent rights to Line 2, because
Pattern Energy only acquired the devel opnent rights of
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Line 1, would very nmuch be interested in maintaining that
position. And therefore we would likely review alternate
net hods to assign the rights under ACC procedures.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: But the investnent would be,
under this particular discussion the investnent would be
solely under Pattern or SunZi a, they would be financially
responsi ble for the total production of this Iine?

MR. ACKEN. I'mgoing to answer that as a | egal
matter.

So currently SunZia Transm ssion holds the CEC
for both transm ssion |ines.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Correct.

MR ACKEN: M. Wetzel has testified that
Pattern has acquired the devel opnent rights for Line 1.

It does not own the devel opnent rights for Line 2. Those
are held by Sout hWstern Power G oup.

In order to effectuate the devel opnent of Line 2
by Sout hwestern Power G oup, the CEC needs to be
bi furcated and that's the nature of this request.

Pattern, the entity, can't develop Line 2

because it doesn't own those devel opnent rights.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: All right. So to -- |I'm
| ooking for clarity here is all, financial stability.
MR ACKEN. I'mtrying to give you sone.

Apparently I'mfailing.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: No, M. Acken. | guess ny
question is should we not agree to this particul ar
amendnent, would South -- how would that second |ine be
built, if at all?

MR ACKEN. Well, the CEC would still be
effective for Line 2. But the CEC would be held by an
entity that doesn't own the devel opnent rights. And
that's a probl em

And so what M. Wetzel said, is if this
Comm ttee and the Conm ssi on does not approve the
bi furcation we woul d seek other -- other opportunities
and pat hways in order so that the devel opnent rights and
the permtting rights are held by one entity, which would
be Sout hWwestern Power G oup.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: But then would that have to
cone back to this Conmittee for evaluation and an
amendnent to the original CEC, or would that be done
strictly at the Corporation Conmm ssion?

MR ACKEN. In ny legal opinion, it's the
latter. W -- we would not have sought Commttee
approval for bifurcation if that's all we were asking
for. W don't need Conmttee or Comm ssion approval to
assign a portion of a CEC. W are requesting it.

And in the nature of transparency and what we
believe is best practice is to be open and make it clear.
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But the Comm ssion has the authority to -- well, the
applicant has the authority under Comm ssion rules to
assign, partially assign an existing CEC.

What we're trying to do with that parti al
assignnent is just be above board and nake sure and nake
it clear what we're requesti ng and why.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Well, | understand that and
that basically is to help reduce the capital expenses for
t he devel opnent of both these lines. 1Is that fair to
say?

MR ACKEN. Well, they're on separate
devel opnent tine frane by separate entities.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Ckay.

MR, WETZEL: | would nmaybe add one thing to --
to M. Acken's response, which is that the requested
amendnent is still inportant. This is a very large
infrastructure project that will require a | arge anount
of financing to acconpli sh.

And so one of the reasons that we thought that
this anendnent under this proceeding was appropriate is
to ensure that those financing counter parties can
understand that the CEC has been conpletely bifurcated
and each project can be separately financed, so to just
hel p ensure there's a very cl ean and under st andabl e story
to the financing community who don't have the background
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and know edge around the project that folks in this room
may have.

CHW. KATZ: And in ny limted one year of
experience, there have been -- |'ve received a nunber of
letters in which requests have been nmade to the
Cor poration Conm ssion to bifurcate ownership of CECs,
where only one was approved, and it doesn't cone back
t hr ough us.

I n other words, if the project is approved, it's
then up to the -- by us and the Corporati on Conm ssion, a
portion of any |line can be assigned through the
Cor poration Conm ssion to anot her owner.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: So theoretically we don't even
need to address this issue.

CHWN. KATZ: Well, but by addressing it saves
the applicant and ultimately the consuners noney by not
havi ng to have them expend noney to get a second shot at
requesting the bifurcation.

And it allows the devel oper to get the financing
it needs right now rather than waiting six nonths or a
year or two to get that. That's all.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Okay. | was just trying to
clarify the capital investnent.

CHWN. KATZ: No, | understand.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: And who's going to own what.
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CHWN. KATZ: | understand and if |I'mincorrect,
Bert, any of our three witnesses can correct ne. That's
been ny under st andi ng.

MR ACKEN. No, that's exactly correct and as
M. Wetzel testified that's why we're asking for it here.
It helps timng. It helps Line 1, it helps Line 2, if
this Commttee acts and recommends bifurcation at this
time.

So -- okay. Go ahead.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: | apol ogi ze, M. Acken.

M. Wetzel, just refresh ny recollection that you are
enpl oyed by Pattern Energy; is that correct?

MR, WETZEL: That's correct, Pattern Energy.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: Ckay. And so as a result of
t hat enpl oynent are unable to speak on behalf of El R o
Sol or Sout hWest Power Group; is that correct?

MR WETZEL: |In an official capacity, that's
correct.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: You had nentioned a custoner
base that may exist in Arizona, and you' d al so nentioned
that you were in the process of securing customers or
contracts.

Are those custoners or contracts in the effort
of securing contracts for Pattern Energy and custoners?

MR, WETZEL: The efforts of securing custoners

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 526

are fromPattern Energy, correct, for the wnd energy
t hat woul d be delivered under Line 1.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Ckay. So you are not in the
process of securing any custoners or contracts for Line
2; is that correct?

MR WETZEL: That is correct.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: W th respect to the
custoners or contracts you're in the effort of securing
for Line 1, are you able to disclose the nunber of
potential custoners -- well, nunber of custoners wthout
sayi ng who they are?

MR, WETZEL: | think maybe a better answer is
the custoners that we talk to on a regular basis and
continue to either bid or negotiate with. And that
nunber is well north of 60 or 70 counter parties across
t he west, inclusive of many different utilities and
| arge-scal e commercial and industrial custoners that are
| ooking to site facilities in Arizona.

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: So ny next question was
goi ng to be can you di scl ose what percentage of counter
parties that you' re hoping to secure contracts with are
in Arizona, have load in Arizona?

MR WETZEL: | don't think we have a target
percentage for the different narkets.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Not a target percentage,
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just of those that you are currently having di scussions
w t h, what percentage of those, say 60, are in Arizona?

MR WETZEL: The reason |I'mhesitating is
because in certain instances, we are, you know, bidding,
and so | would consider that to be kind of in process.
And we have continued to bid. There's rolling requests
for proposals that cone out.

| don't think |I can provide a specific
percentage to you. | apologize, is to kind of current
di scussions with counter parties in one state relative to
anot her.

| can tell you that we absolutely are attenpting
to and hope to provide a materi al anpbunt of power to
Ari zona custoners. However, it's dependent on narket
conditions and their interest in the product that we have
to sell.

And so we're doing our very best to be sel ected
by the custoner base because it's an inportant part or
our val ue proposition to be able to deliver to Arizona.
We don't always have control over that, of course,
because they need to see the value in the product.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: | understand what you're
sayi ng and appreciate the response. So if |'m pushing
the envel ope with this next question, | apol ogi ze.

Can you di scl ose perhaps what nunber of
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megawatts fromthe wnd facility in New Mexico would end
up in Arizona should you secure these potenti al

contracts?

MR WETZEL: I|I'mreally not trying to avoid any
questions. | don't think | can. Because, again, we just
don't know about whether we will be selected and at what

volune. You know, it's really hard to answer the
question. | can't really opine on how much we'll| be
sel ected for.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: That's fi ne.

M. Acken, because M. Wetzel is unable to
descri be the potential contracts or custoners for Line 2
under EIl Rio Sol or Sout hWest Power G oup, are you aware
of any w tnesses that would be able to opine on the
custoners or contracts that would be secured under Line 2
and how they m ght be different fromthe custonmers or
contracts that would be secured if Line 2 maintain -- is
still opened by Pattern?

MR. ACKEN:. You do |ike asking conpound
questions. Let ne see if | can nmake sure | get them

So the testinony in this case is, is that Line 2
is further -- well, Line 1 is closer in its devel opnment
time frame; right? It has -- it hopes to be, if this
Commttee were to approve the three limted anendnents
that we're requesting, it hopes to be in construction in
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the very near term and operational by 2025.

Line 2 has an in service still of 2031.

So it is not as far as down the line with
respect to identifying potential custoners, narketing to
custoners, things of that nature.

Wth respect to the question of potenti al
custoners, the testinony in this case is that Line 2 wl|
have the sane eastern termnus in New Mexico as Line 1,
so it can supply power fromw nd power from New Mexi co.

As an ACline it also has a planned substation
at Wllow. And so it has the potential to attract
custoners that want to interconnect in Southern Arizona
in the solar-rich regions there who may |l ook at it as an
attractive opportunity to interconnect.

But because that's further down the line, you
know, that's not information avail abl e today.

And then of course it will interconnect at Pinal
Central, which is and wll remain an excellent hub for
distribution to Arizona utilities, a nunber of Arizona
utilities and t hroughout the western region.

As far as specific wtnesses, M. Etherton is
also in the enploy or does work for Sout hWestern Power
G oup. So you're happy -- you know, he's available if
you have further questions, but as far as, you know, what
Is the custoner mx, it's alittle premature given where
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we are in the devel opnment pi peline.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just interject, though, or
ask the question of either counsel or one of our three
W t nesses t here.

And that is if either SunZi a or the owner of
Li ne 2 cannot procure in advance of construction a
sufficient nunber of custoners under contract and it
appears that that's a dead end, then Line 2 wouldn't be
built?

VMR ACKEN: M. Chairnan, that's correct. |
think that's consistent with the testinony of M. Wtzel
as a nerchant transmssion |line. These projects aren't
built by utilities and rate base. They are built due to
cust oner denmand.

There was di scussion earlier today with respect
to M. Else's reference to Hi gh Pl ains Express and how
that project is not noving forward, and why is it not
novi ng forward? There's no econom c case for it.

There is a econom c case for SunZia which is why
we're all sitting here today.

CHWN. KATZ: Right. And the only reason
brought it up is | don't know that that's necessarily
W t hin our purview.

If, in fact, it goes forward | think at | east
arguably there could be an increase in reliable energy
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avail able in Arizona and nmaybe el sewhere.

But we can't tell whether or not, just because
we grant a CEC with nultiple -- or two CECs, we can't
predi ct whether either of those projects will be built,
if it's ultimately determ ned by their owners that
there's an insufficient custoner base.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Thank you, Chairnan.
think you articulated very well at the outset of the
proceeding that not all of the factors articul ated by
statute apply in this case.

So, for exanple, when it cones to changing the
tower design, that it's just a visual and maybe the
wildlife inpact, and so with respect to the specific
question of bifurcating or transferring ownership, I'm
al so just trying to work through what factors, if any,
woul d appl vy.

And it would seem perhaps that it would be only
if the availability of economcal or reliable power would
change in any material way fromthat which has al ready
been approved by the existing CEC. If it's the sane, if
it's better, or if it's worse.

Bei ng that a new owner mnmi ght have opportunities
to engage in different contracts or different custoners
than the existing owner, if that nakes sense.

MR. ACKEN:. It makes perfect sense, and thank
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you for that. | understand the question.

As you saw, the testinony in this case is not
focused on that because it is not a difference. Wen we
| ook at the -- there is no difference fromwhat was
originally approved as to the marketability of this
proj ect under separate ownershi p, conbi ned ownershi p.

Wiat we | ooked at is what are the environnental
factors that could change and then, of course, as you
wel | know, accuracy, economcs, and reliability, there's
no change there. Testinony fromus is that there's no
change.

And then, of course, we have provided testinony
on what we believe are mninmal at nost environnental
changes associated with the requested amendnents.

So that's -- so | appreciate the question. And
| understand better the nature of it. And that is the
position of the applicant is both projects still market
to Arizona, still market to the region, they do have
different profiles and opportunities, as we tal ked about
wth the AC line and the additional interconnection, but
that's not new.

| mean, that existed in 2015, it was part of the
di scussion and evaluation at that tinme. So we focused on
what's new and what's different, and the applicant's
position, the bifurcation does not change the cal cul us
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w th respect to adequacy, economcs, or liability.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask M. Gentles, did
you have a question you wanted to ask of anyone?

MEMBER GENTLES: | did. It was around the
nature of the custoners, but based on the prior
conversation | think my questions have all been answered.

Basically it was how many custoners does SunZi a
believe it will have and kind of a split between Arizona
and New Mexi co, et cetera. So | think I'm okay for now

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. Thank you. Just wanted to
make sure we didn't ignore you

MEMBER SCHVEI BERT: | have one question for
M. Etherton.

MR, ETHERTON: Yes.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: M. Wetzel testified that in
relation to Line 1 10 to 15 is transm ssion cost,
approximately 90 to 85 percent is wind cost.

Are you able to articulate with respect to
Line 2 what that breakdown m ght be?

MR, ETHERTON. | amnot. Again, | don't have a
general idea of what the cost of the wind would be for
connection at the end of the ACline in New MXi co.

But, in general, | would think it would be in
the sane range; right? So | don't have the exact, you
know, is it exactly 10 to 15, but it still seens |ike
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it'"s wwthin that ball park of costs overall between the
wi nd and the transm ssion.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Thank you. | don't have any
ot her questi ons, Chairnan.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chair nman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Etherton.

MR, ETHERTON: Yes.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Okay. The wi nd turbines
consi st of a significant anount of copper and other fine
metals. Wuldn't the cost of wind generation and the
devel opnent of these wi nd turbines, wouldn't that factor
into the overall cost of producing the wind power --

MR. ETHERTON. Again, |I'mnot --

MEMBER GRI NNELL: -- commodities?

MR ETHERTON: | would think any commodities for
a wnd park itself and the facilities would be included
in that.

MR. ACKEN. That m ght be a better question for
M. Wt zel .

MR WETZEL: | was going to ask if | could
answer that one. Yes, so Pattern Energy is a w nd
devel oper, so we spend a | ot of tine understandi ng the
cost structure of our wind farns.

And whil e not necessarily directly related to
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the transm ssion line at hand, there's actually a fairly
limted anmount of copper in our project base.

It's involved nostly the copper in transforners
to step up our nedi um voltage power to higher voltages.
The materials that are primarily used for the wind farm
as well as the transm ssion line are steel and al um num
Those are the two maj or commoditi es.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Isn't there about 1900 pounds
per 1500 kil owatts of production in a w nd turbine?

MR WETZEL: O copper?

MEMBER GRI NNELL:  Yes.

MR WETZEL: | can't answer that directly. It
sounds |i ke you may have a specific nunber.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: | can.

MR WETZEL: | can just tell you froma
commodi ty managenent perspective al um num and steel nake
up the majority of our comodity risk

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, M. Chairman. And
appreciate the Commttee for a lively discussion. [|I'm
going to probably regret replowi ng this ground, but
M. Haeni chen asked about Arizona consuners and maybe
their preferences for different types of power.

BY MR ACKEN
Q M. Wetzel, | want you to go back to that
because you touched on it, but there are different types
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of Arizona consuners; correct? There's not one cl ass.

A (MR WETZEL) Oh, absolutely, yeah. | nmean, so
we tend to tal k about the larger utilities in the state
but of course there's cooperatives, electric districts,
| arge scale, you know, commrercial industrial custoners
that may choose to do what we call behi nd-the-neter
projects, typically solar.

They' ||l build, you know, on the roof tops or in
their imediate vicinity or buy power kind of through one
of the utilities, but a direct purchase froma specific
pronpt. So there's nultiple different ways that |ocal
custoners get power.

Q And sone of those new industrial custoners or
expanded custoners such as the Intel sem conductor
facility, TMC, and the data centers, those are
significant power users; is that fair to say?

A (MR WETZEL) Absolutely, I think it's fair to
say that the three | argest anticipated generators of | oad
growt h for the regi on woul d be manufacturing, data
center, electric vehicles.

Those nake up a very | arge percentage of m ni num
of the load growh, and both the manufacturing conpanies
and the data center conpani es absolutely represent |arge
cl ean energy buyers as well across the U S

Q And, in fact, they are | ooking at |ocations
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where they can acquire renewabl e energy; is that correct?

A (MR WETZEL) Based on ny experience, that's
absol utely correct.

Q And so havi ng access to renewabl e energy, it's
your understanding, is an inportant conponent to them
when they are considering where to place their
facilities.

A (MR WETZEL) 1'd agree with that. And I'd go
further to say that depending on the conpany, a | ot of
conpani es are not just |ooking for access to renewabl e
energy as measured on an annual, you know,
megawat t - hour - usage basis, but actually on a hour-by-hour
generation basis to actually be able to match their
energy on, again, an hour-by-hour basis rather than just
an annual accounti ng.

Q Thank you. |'mgoing to wade into perhaps nore
shark-i nfested waters and tal k about California.

You nentioned the California heat wave that's

begun going on in the past week or so; is that correct?

A (MR WETZEL) | did reference that. That's
correct.

Q | am not an economist. | was a geologist in
undergrad. And so -- but | have a limted understandi ng

of suppl y-and-demand. And ny understanding i s nore
supply hel ps reduce cost. Is that sinplistic
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under st andi ng val i d?

A (MR WETZEL) I'Ill start by saying |I'mnot a
trai ned econom st either, although | do spend a | ot of
time in energy markets and understandi ng the econom cs of
energy projects and specifically SunZi a.

And that's true. And to further refine the
poi nt, what you see in these markets is when a specific
regi on has an excess denmand, in this case, you know,
California this week had a new peak | oad record at 52
gi gawnat ts.

What happens is it drives the cost up for any
mar ket - avai | abl e power because, you know, there's --
there's increased denmand rel ative to the avail abl e
suppl y.

And so anyone | ooking to buy that specific power
at that tinme, whether it be in California, Arizona, or
any other regional location, is going to have to pay a
hi gher price for it.

So by injecting very |arge-scale wi nd energy
into the western system whether or not our custoner is
physically |l ocated in one state versus another, the
benefits that it provides froma nmarket context are going
to be present no matter what because of the supply,
demand, and bal ance that M. Acken referenced.

Q And it's your understanding that Arizona
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utilities are seeking power fromthe sane market that
California utilities are when they need to acquire
mar ket - based power; is that correct?

A (MR WETZEL) Yes, the western market, while not
conpl etely regionalized, is absolutely a vibrant
mar ket pl ace such that there is ability to purchase power
fromvarious parts of the region. And so, yeah, in many
circunstances nultiple states and nmultiple custoners are
requesti ng power fromthe sanme | ocation.

Q So woul d you agree that nore capacity in the
western market is good for the region as a whol e

regardl ess of where that individual resource may be

goi ng?
A (MR WETZEL) | absolutely agree with that.
Q Thank you.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: One qui ck question, if | may.
When you get your solar or get your wnd station
i n New Mexico, the consistency of power, wll that vary

on the different w nds throughout the whole |ines?

I n other words, say produci ng X anount of
500 watts, just argunment, is that consistent throughout
t he whol e |Iine because the generation of that power is at
point A, or does that fluctuate over the course of that
i ne?

Wth the winds, | go through California,
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Sout hern California, through Blythe, all that. You see
all these wind turbines out there. Are they al
produci ng the sane anount of power?

MR WETZEL: Ckay. CGot it. So typically w nd
farms include a single, you know, type of w nd turbine,
al t hough it's not uncommon for nultiple technol ogi es or
multiple turbine types to be included, so one turbine
could be 1.5 negawatts and one could be two negawatts, so
if both of those turbines were connected to the sane
project, it could be possible that there is multiple, you
know, negawatt vol unes bei ng generated, but typically,
and in the case of SunZia this is absolutely true, those
are collected at a single common bus and effectively
nmer ged and added before it hits the transm ssion |ine.

Such that while an hour-by-hour or
m nut e- by-m nute basis the total negawatts fl ow ng
t hrough the line will change based on the w nd speed,
what's actually present on the line will be, you know,
consistent frommnute to m nute because all of the w nd
that's being generated is collected in a single |ocation
before it's transmtted.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: And then it's di spensed back
out to the, wherever it's going to go.

MR WETZEL: To the terminus in this case in
Pinal Central; that's correct.
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MR ACKEN. I'mgoing to shift topics if that's
okay.

CHWN. KATZ: That's quite okay.

VEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Acken, I'msorry, | don't
mean to do this to you. | could talk about this all day.

MR, ACKEN:. It's your Conmttee, you guys. W
are here to answer questions.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: This is nore of an education
for nme as anything. Thank you.

MR ACKEN: No, we want -- at the end of the
day, we want a robust record based on substanti al
evi dence in support of our requested anendnents, and we
w il spend all day answering the questions that you have
i n support of that.

Ckay. So anot her question that cane about was a
question that | couldn't answer, what are earth w res.
BY MR ACKEN

Q M. Etherton, can you describe what earth wires
are and what's going to be used here and this was in the
context of bird collisions?

A (MR ETHERTON) Correct. | do recall the
conversation and, again, for that context for earth wre,
in nmy context | was referring to themeither to as static
wres or the optical ground wre.

So I'"'mgoing to differentiate those a little bit
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nore as well. So the static wires at least in the desert
sout hwest primarily have one -- one purpose. So I'l|
call it a purpose. And that's to protect the phase wres

and everything belowit fromlightning.

So renenber they're on top of the structure.
They're protecting, they provide a shielding for
lightning that hits in that general area, it won't hit
t he phase conductors or the DC conductors in sone cases.

So the earth, in that context fromthat
di scussion, those are the -- that's the primary purpose
is to protect fromlightning. Now, if there's an area
where there's no lightning, you nmay not need it.

There's areas, ny son lives in Portland, there's
power |icense there, 500 kV lines, there's no |ightning
up in that area. There's no static protection on those
lines. It just -- it shocked ne, literally. Sorry.

But in this area where we have a | ot of
lightning, | nean, this summer has been one of those
areas, there's a lot of lightning so therefore the shield
W res protect that.

Now, about 30-sonme years ago, sone smart conpany
figured out that, hey, we have been adding fiber optics
to alot of these transmssion lines, mainly in | ocal
area, but naybe even in sone |long distance areas as well.

So they cane up with another type of static
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protection where they put fiber optic in the mddl e of
that static wire and they called it an optical ground
wre. And it's great. | nean, it's -- we've put in, you
know, thousands of mles here in Arizona over the |ast

30 years based on that.

And it has nultiple advantages. Not only the
static protection. It has the fiberoptic capability to
provi de operational control, protective relaying, all the
other, all the -- telenetry, video, substations, al
t hat .

But it also provides even nore because it's a
| arger cable. So a typical static wre is around
three-eighths of an inch in dianeter. So pretty skinny.
It's usually solid steel and again going fromstructure
to structure, whereas the optical ground wire is about
twi ce the dianmeter.

Soit's alittle bigger, because again the
fiberoptic's inside, but it also it provides additional
shielding fromthe |ightning protection as well. That's
so -- and, again, in dianmeter it's roughly doubl e the
size of a typical static-only wre.

CHWN. KATZ: Can the optical ground wire be al so
used for conmmuni cation?

MR. ETHERTON:. Absolutely. Wth the
fiberoptics, again, inside of it, enbedded in it, any
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pur pose on fiberoptic that you could do with, protective
rel ayi ng, SCADA, video, anything related to the operation
of the line would be included on that fi ber.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: M. Etherton, this m ght be
beyond the scope of our review here, but |I'm curious,
what segnents of the relevant |line are optical ground
wre or static wre?

MR ETHERTON: So in the case of SunZi a and El
Rio Sol, both lines are going to have two optical ground
wires for the entire distance of the line. It's built
into the design, the structures are capable of handling
it. Everything is included with that optical ground
W re.

BY MR ACKEN
Q And so did you recall the testinony that
M. Else provided that the narrow di aneter earth wires

constituted the vast majority of bird collisions

observed?
A (MR ETHERTON) | do.
Q And it's your testinony that these optical

ground wires are substantially larger in size?

A (MR ETHERTON) Approximately double, that's
correct.
Q Thank you. Commttee Menber Little asked about

the ACC Staff letter. Do you recall that |ine of
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questi oni ng?

A. (MR, ETHERTON) | do.

Q And | believe her question, one of her questions
and she may have foll ow up, was what information did
SunZi a provide to Comm ssion Staff in order for
Comm ssion Staff to nmake their recomendati on. Can you
address that?

A (MR ETHERTON) Sure. So the data requests
referred to the technical studies related for the WECC
t hree phase rating study for the HPDC, so Line 1.

We had been performng that and it was submtted
to WECC in early July, around July 1st. It was noted on
July 6 to all the WECC nenbers across the west, 13 states
pl us the Canadi an provinces for a 60-day review as wel |.

But that's the docunent that included power
flow, transient instability, post transient, and
everything contained related to the DC |ine, that
3000- negawatt rating. Cdarify that.

MEMBER LI TTLE: That's ny question. Thank you.

MR. ACKEN. Ckay, great. M. Chairman, we're
about to go into discussion of the ground return facility
that's not being -- that would be elimnated as a result
of this requested anmendnent.

Do you want us to start nowor is this a
conveni ent break before we dive into that?
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CHWN. KATZ: | mean, we either break now or we
break in about 10 or 15 mnutes. |If we're going to
change gears, we mght want to just go ahead and eat
| unch now and cone back at one, but 1'd ask everybody if
we're going to do that to be pronptly avail able at one so

that we don't dillydally for too long. W do stand in

recess.
(Recess from11:56 a.m to 1:02 p.m)
CHWN. KATZ: Good afternoon, everyone. |'m
assunming that we're ready to get started. | don't know,

Leonard, if you could grab the door and close it.

M. Acken, you may proceed.

MR. ACKEN. Good afternoon. Thank you,
M. Chairman, Menbers of the Comm ttee.

We're going to continue our rebuttal case with a
di scussi on of the ground conductors that we are no | onger
seeking to use should the anended tower structures be
aut hori zed.

So the MRCs will replace this prior
configuration, but there was a question, a series of
questions, from Menmber Schwei bert and ot hers asking for
nore informati on about those ground el ectrode facilities,
and so we're going to address that.

So at this tinme if | could have SZA-12 and 13
shown. And maybe ny nunbering is incorrect. 12 should
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be a few PowerPoint slides -- oh, 13 is the Power Poi nt
slides. 12 should be the excerpt fromthe FEIS.

Ckay. Thank you. Okay. So on the right-hand
screen is SZA-12, an excerpt fromthe final EI'S and then
we're waiting for the slides which should be SZA-13.

MEMBER HAMMY: |s there a photo of one of these

t hi ngs?

MR. ETHERTON: We'Il show a di agram

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. Perfect.

MR WETZEL: | think this mght be the slide
deck.

MR ACKEN. Is it all in one?
MR WETZEL: It is, Bert.
MEMBER LI TTLE: That's not what's on our i Pads.
MR ACKEN: Yeah, we need to be consistent.
MEMBER LI TTLE: Never m nd.
MR ACKEN. Ckay. Let's go with what's on the
screen. My apologies. W were trying to nove this
qui ckly and we've | ost sonething in translation. So this
wll be SZA-12, starting with an excerpt fromthe final
El S.
BY MR ACKEN
Q M. Etherton, | would |ike you to describe the
ground el ectrode facilities and walk the Commttee
t hrough the slides which will include a diagram as
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requested by Menber Hammay to better understand what
exactly we're tal ki ng about.

A (MR ETHERTON) Sure, M. Acken. Thank you.
Thank you, Chairman, nenbers of the Committee. 1'Il try
to go through this again.

If you recall during ny testinony | had kind of
a high-level description and a coupl e di agrans show ng
how t he ground el ectrode woul d be situated between the
two converter stations, New Mexico and Arizona. So
again, I'll try to elaborate a little bit nore.

Each ground el ectrode facility, again, what we
di scussed is not |located directly at the converter
station and there's reasons, electrical reasons why they
cannot be. Mostly because, again, you're trying to
i nject that 3000 anps into the ground that | nentioned
earlier.

You al so get a ot of ground potential rise, a
|l ot of voltage right there at the station where ot her
electrical stuff is, so it could affect other, not only
facilities at that station, but kind of nearby as well.

So typically the way they' ve been done, and as |
nmentioned during the testinony that they're | ocated sone
di stance away fromthe converter station, and that's
where there's a little bit of science that needs to go
into that.
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But it's a mnimumof five mles all the way up
to, you know, 30 or 40 mles away fromthe converter
station fromeither end. Gay. So that's one aspect of
it.

And to get fromthe converter station over to
the ground electrode facility is this lead |ine, |ower
vol tage, you know, definitely sonething | ess than 100 kV
insulated, but it's carrying that -- that 3000 anps or
could carry up to that 3000 anps out to that ground
el ectrode facility. And I've got a couple diagrans to
describe that a little bit nore.

MEMBER HAMMY: |s that strung on infrastructure
or is it -- probably depends on how far the line is.

MR. ETHERTON: There's different was to get
t here, excuse ne, Menber.

MEMBER HAMMY: |'msorry. | don't even know
what | just asked you.

MR. ETHERTON. You were asking how the lead |ine
got there, basically; right?

MEMBER HAMMY: | guess you do have to care.
was just asking. Wat was | asking?

CHWN. KATZ: You asked how to get the ground
| eads to the | ocation of the grounding.

MEMBER HAMAAY: Ri ght .

MR ETHERTON: So let ne see if | can address
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that. So fromthe converter station out to the ground
el ectrode you do need sone conductors to get there to
carry that.

MEMBER HAMMY: Right. That's what | neant.

MR ETHERTON: Ckay. So there's different ways
you could do that. You could do it attaching to the
structure or you could have a totally separate structure,
set of structures, to get it out to that facility.

That's typically howit's done. And | -- so just -- just
to kind of clarify that.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: M. Etherton.

MR, ETHERTON: Yes.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Just so | understand this
correctly, you're saying that there could be up to five
additional mles of wres, not under the Commttee's
jurisdiction because of the size, but still up to five
mles nore on either end?

MR ETHERTON: That is correct.

MR WETZEL: 1'd like to clarify that. Five
mles would be the m ni nrum

MR ETHERTON: There could be 40 mles --

CHWN. KATZ: One at a tine, please.

MR WETZEL: Apologies. Five mles would be the
m ni mum dependi ng on the final engineering and the
| ocation, and we'll talk through a bit of those
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consi derations comng up. It could be up to 40 mles of
additional line on either side for each conductor, or
each converter station.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: As we proceed here, do you
have graphics that show sort of the radius on either end
where SunZia was potentially planning to have those |ines
term nate?

MR, WETZEL: W don't have a specific graphic
but 1'll address the considerations within that radius.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Ckay. Thank you.

MR ETHERTON: Thank you for clarifying that. |
think I did say, yeah, but it's mninumto that.

So, again, the purpose of it is to keep it away
fromthe converter station itself.

Each ground el ectrode facility, as | nentioned
earlier, why we're consist of a series of deep earth
wells or electrodes, again to be routed into the ground
and to be able to distribute the current into the ground.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask, is this for the
opti cal groundi ng now because we just heard that we're
not going to use the traditional grounding. So is this
for the traditional ground wires that are being
elimnated that we're now di scussi ng?

MR ETHERTON: That is correct.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.
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MR. ETHERTON. This is for the ground el ectrode
facilities that we are not proposing to use. W're
proposing to use the dedicated netallic return
conduct ors.

MR ACKEN. And if | could interject, yes, just
to be clear what this entire discussion is about is the
ground el ectrode facilities that were contenplated wth
the original approval.

Menber Schwei bert asked the question of, well,
conpare the inpacts. W want to understand better what
t hose ground el ectrode facilities are and conpare the
el ectrodes to what was originally approved to what we're
requesti ng here.

That's the nature of this is to be responsive to
that. And frankly tell -- provide this conmttee with
additi onal context that we think will be supportive of
our request to anmend.

BY MR ACKEN

Q So, M. Etherton, with that, please continue.

A (MR ETHERTON) Sure. Thank you. Again, as |
nmentioned earlier, each site may be up to the 600 acres
in size. Again, this is the reference from-- fromthe
EIS. And there's other uses that nay be allowed on the
Site.

And | do have a potential configuration because
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they cone in all shapes and sizes. Again, based on the
earth, the soil resistivity, the thermal properties of
where you' ve selected for the site, and a nunmber of other
factors.

Here's an exanple of what we're just calling a
circular design. |It's approximately 1500 feet or so in
radii, but the way this would work you woul d have t hat
lead Iine, as we were talking, comng fromthe converter
station into the center core of this radii.

That -- fromthat | ocation, you would have a
di stribution of underground cables that would take the
el ectrodes out and kind of disperse that injection of
current into a w der area.

And, again, that's up to the full area of the
circle here that's shown in this particul ar exanpl e.

So each one of these are under ground. It would
have a series of ground wells that are, you know, a
hundred feet or so in depth, and |I've got an exanpl e of
what one of those wells would | ook Iike here in a second.

But it would al so show that there -- how much it
takes to be able to distribute that anount of current
into the ground and not inject it just in one |ocation
but actually spread it out a little bit nore. Again,
this is one facility. You have another one toward the
other end of the line as well.
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MEMBER HAMMY: Can | just ask how often this is
used and wll it continue to be used since we have the
newer technol ogy?

MR, ETHERTON: That's a good question. So this
is used fairly often.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Ckay.

MR. ETHERTON. And it's typically a choice of
the DC, you know, the project owner itself, based on
what's in the area, is there anything between point A and
point B, is it in a congested area |li ke a downtown area
where there's a bunch of facilities that could be
I npacted by the underground current going fromone to the
other. So it's typically a project choice.

Just a qui ck exanpl e of what one of those
el ectrode facilities, this was pulled from an exanpl e.
It's definitely deeper than a hundred foot that we've
menti oned before in this area, too.

But one of those underground cabl es woul d be
comng in and then you'd have this, basically a well that
would go all the way down into the depth of the soi
resistivity that you're trying to achieve to be able to
distribute that current and where it needs to go. And,

again, it's going to go the |east path, typical

electricity, least path of resistance till it gets to the
ot her end.
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And there could be, again, a nunber of different
facilities underground to be able to get there. But this
is an exanpl e.

And there could be several of these, as |
nmentioned, situated around this facility itself. So,
again, it's alittle bit nore detail ed than we had
provi ded previously, so | thought it would be worthwhile
to describe, again, what's all contained within that. So
hopefully that's hel pful.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, mm'am

MEMBER LI TTLE: So would this be like a
fenced-of f area that nobody could get access to or -- 600
acres is a |lot.

MR ETHERTON: That's a good question as well .
So what we've seen -- sorry, wong button -- what we've
seen again from ot her exanples around the U S. and even
around the globe, the only area that's really fenced is
the small area where the main feeder line is comng in.

There's a control house there with telenetry
that's kind of nonitoring to make sure, one, the | ead
line is available to what it needs to do in
communi cati ons and, you know, overall security of that
little control house.

But the rest of it is not fenced. So there's
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other multiple uses that you could do on this. But
there's also, as you can inmagine, quite a bit of heating
t hat woul d occur when you're injecting that much current
into the ground.

So | think the usage is fairly limted. But
what we've seen, it is not all fenced. Only -- only the
| ocal control or termnal building as it's shown here is
fenced, it's about a 60-by-60 area what's represented
here. So it's a fairly small area for fencing.

CHWN. KATZ: And the rest of it isn't fenced
because it's underground?

MR ETHERTON: That is correct.

BY MR ACKEN

Q M. Etherton, 1'd like you to talk a little bit
about, | heard originally that the testinony was that you
woul d, this would have the capability of injecting
3,000 anps into the ground; is that correct?

A (MR ETHERTON) That is correct. That is the
rating.

Q And that would be those well structures, that's
where the injection point would be?

A (MR ETHERTON) Distributed anong several of
t hese, that's correct.

Q VWhat are the inpacts on surroundi ng
infrastructure frominjecting 3,000 anps into the ground?
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A (MR ETHERTON) Well, again, the -- where you
inject this anperage, it's trying to get to the renote
end, and anything that's in its path that has a | ower
resistivity than -- than the ground that it's been
transmtted would al so be another path for that -- for

that current to travel to the other end.

Q Oh, I"'msorry, | thought you were done.
A (MR ETHERTON) No, | was going to say,
there's -- any underground facility that can conduct

electricity would, in fact, be a potential path.

Q M. Wetzel, Menber Schwei bert asked about
| ocations for this. Can you talk about how you woul d
evaluate |l ocations, siting constraints, things of that
nature relative to actually finding a location to put a
facility such as this?

A (MR WETZEL) Absolutely. So when we | ook at
| ocati ng any of our, you know, infrastructure we have to
consi der everything fromthe public, you know, i nput,
| andowner concerns, environnental concerns, you know,
visual |and use, all of these different things.

So I'll first touch on what M. Etherton
nmentioned which is at this level the size of the ground
el ectrode could have material inpacts on underground
infrastructure, prinmarily pipelines.

So what has to happen is you're eval uati ng where
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t hese can be |l ocated. You do a nunber of cathodic
protection and ground resi stance studi es to understand
where the pipelines are located if you were to site this
facility and you were near them what would the inpacts
be.

And then you work with the pipeline conpany to
understand can you mtigate then? And so that m ght be
upgrades, it mght be relocations of pipelines. And so
t hey can be pretty materially inpactful to pipeline
i nfrastructure anywhere near them

Secondly is soil type. So Mark nenti oned,

M. Etherton nmentioned soil resistivity, so dependi ng on
the soil types either you -- you nay not be able to

| ocate a facility there or you may have to di g deeper, so
it goes into the design of the facility. But soi
resistivity is another mmjor factor.

Those are the nore technical ones.

The ones that we, you know, really care about in
addition are the nore, you know, |I'd probably refer to it
as devel opnent-focused areas that is, again, environnent,
public input, and | andowner i nput.

And so while, you know, this is under ground and
may not all be fenced, we don't anticipate that nei ghbors
or | andowners would be prefer this to be located in their
area. |It's hard to understand, frankly. 1It's very
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t echni cal

And so bei ng outside of population centers and
frankly even outside of residential, you know, areas
woul d be the preference, and that's typically where these
are | ocated throughout the U. S. and the worl d.

We al so have to consider vegetation. Because of
t he anmount of heat created here, it does require grading
and it requires vegetation renoval and managenent.

So you know, where, what types of vegetation are
in the area, you know, creating the | east anount of
i mpact is of course inportant to us. And then, you know,
species and habitat is another big one.

M. Etherton nmentioned the heat and the depth of
these electrodes. So there is the potential for
bi ol ogi cal inpacts where these are |ocated, especially
for subterranean species, you know, anything that m ght
be in the area.

So that's sonething that we heavily consi dered
when we were deciding whether this was the right solution
for the SunZi a project.

And then, you know, lastly what |'d say is when
we're conbining all of those different elenents and we're
evaluating the alternative, which is the MRC sol ution
that has resulted in the request for updated tower types,
that's what we conpare.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 560

We say okay, 600 acres, possibly up to 40 m|les,
sonewhere between five and 40 mles of additional, you
know, lead |lines, |ower voltage. But, you know, new
transm ssion facilities or distribution lines, | should
say, to connect them not just in Arizona but also in
New Mexi co.

And we wei gh the inpacts of everything | just
described relative to the MRC solution which elimnates
all of this infrastructure and all of these potential
envi ronnental concerns and i nstead creates new tower
types.

W did that, and we said okay, what would the
new tower types | ook |ike, of which we've shown to you
t oday, and then we had our experts | ook at them and say
woul d these create any additional inpacts relative to the
exi sting towers, and we heard fromthe testinony in the
| ast few days was that we do not find any substantial nor
material inpacts related to that addition of the MRC

And so when we as conpany and sponsor of the
project weigh those two alternative options, we cane to
the clear conclusion that the | east environnmentally
i npactful and public inpactful solution here is to update
the tower and go at the MRC solution relative to the
ground el ectrodes.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairnman
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CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little?

MEMBER LI TTLE: Can | confirm | asked this
question before, but can | confirmthat all of this
infrastructure was included in the consideration for the
original CEC and in all of the biological stuff that was
present ed, everything that was presented before the
Commttee in the original hearings for the CEC?

MR ACKEN. | can confirmthat -- and I'l|l speak
to this, and the witnesses can anplify. You' re seeing
t he excerpt fromthe FEIS. The entire FEIS record, the
ori gi nal proceedi ng was incorporated into the record.
And so we had a nmassive, massive docunentary record in
t he proceedi ng before.

We did not specifically request approval for
this fromthe Commttee, because for the reasons
nmenti oned, you know, they're outside the Conmttee's
jurisdiction due to | ower vol tages, things of that
nature, but that informati on was part of the record.

CHWN. KATZ: And, again, there aren't any
conditions, findings of fact, or conclusions of |aw
relating to the grounding facility in the existing CEC
is that correct?

MR ACKEN. That is correct.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Just hypothetically, and I can
be short, you couldn't put this in the San Pedro Vall ey,
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t hen?

MR, WETZEL: Absolutely not. W would not
propose this in the San Pedro Vall ey, nor would we choose
to put this anywhere near the popul ation centers, which
is why in Arizona specifically locating these facilities
woul d be chal | engi ng and potentially inpactful.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: " m done, Bert.

BY MR ACKEN

Q Just want to make sure. M. Wtzel, I'd like to
turn your attention, and if we could have shown on the
screen a letter that was docketed on -- dated
Septenber 1st fromthe Arizona Sol ar Energy | ndustries
Associ ation, and we would mark this for identification as
SZA-13, if |1've got ny nunbering correct.

But this is again, if we could have it shown, a
Sept enber 1st, 2002, letter from Ari SElI A?

M. Wetzel, are you famliar with this letter?

A. (MR, WETZEL) | am

Q And can you pl ease summari ze the perspective
shared by Ari SEIA with respect to this project?

A (MR WETZEL) Absolutely. So the Arizona Sol ar
Energy Industry Association, AriSEIA provided this
| etter of support for the SunZia project, and I won't
read it verbatim it's in the record, but I wll point
out a couple of elenents that they have presented,
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which -- which I think you know mrror sone of the
testi nrony we' ve provided.

First is that a diversified grid and diversified
generation is inmportant. Second is that the wi nd energy
provi ded out of New Mexico is not going to displace or
cause any detrinent to the proliferation of Arizona's
sol ar i ndustry devel opnent, in that both New Mexi co w nd
and Arizona Sol ar can and shoul d co-exist for the benefit
of all Arizonans and all -- everyone in the western U. S.

And if | could maybe ask to nove to the page 2
of the letter. [1'll just refer, again, to this. So they
requested that the SunZi a southwest transm ssion |ine be
appr oved.

BY MR ACKEN
Q Thank you, M. Wt zel

M. Cernea C ark, during cross-exam nation of
M. Else, he expressed initially non-opposition to the
three requested anmendnments proposed or requested by
SunZia at this tine. Do you recall that testinony?

A. (MR, CERNEA CLARK) Yes, | do.

Q And do you recall he | ater expressed concern
t hat he would not have the opportunity to advocate for
other conditions if his -- if he was in non-opposition to
t he requested changes? D d you recall that?

A. (MR, CERNEA CLARK) Yes, | do.
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Q So, M. Cernea O ark, have you had any
di scussions with M. Else regarding potential conditions
t hat woul d be acceptable to the applicant, and we hope
amenable to M. Else that would allow himto express

non- opposition to the project?

A (MR CERNEA CLARK) Yes.
Q And woul d you present those for the Commttee?
A (MR, CERNEA CLARK) Yeah. Sure. Thanks.

So we net wwth M. Else this norning, and he had
concerns whi ch he had expressed before about Condition 26
and the sensitivity of the | ower San Pedro watershed
ar ea.

We brought in the environnental |ead on the
preconstruction/ construction design of the project as
well as ny coll eague, C ndy Freenman. And hashed through
the concerns M. Else had and tried to devel op sone
meani ngful comm tnments that we could nake as a condition
that we would -- that we've drafted up. And if we could
pul | those up.

MR ACKEN:. Gve the AV teama nonent. We wll
mark these for identification as SZA-14.

CHWN. KATZ: What |I'mtrying to figure out was
when |'m | ooking on the i Pad, | was showi ng as SZA-13
bei ng your application for anendnent.

Am | | ooking in the wong spot?
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MR ACKEN. | will accept responsibility for
that. | gave the AV teamthe wong |link. So SZA-13
should be and is the letter fromAri SEIA. And ny
apol ogi es for the confusion.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

MR. ACKEN:. The tablets wll be updated at the
next break, I"'minfornmed. In the interimwe wll show on
the screen what we've marked as SZA-14. And | appreciate
your patience.

The team has been working hard wwth M. El se and
credit to himas well for spending tinme to go through
these. So, you know, we're presenting themas soon as we
can.

Thank you very nmuch. Let the record refl ect
that what is shown on the screen has been marked as
SZA- 14, the proposed conditions that M. Cernea d ark
just referenced.

BY MR ACKEN

Q And, M. Cernea Cark, | would ask you present
t hese and describe themfor Commttee at this tine.

A (MR CERNEA CLARK) Sure. Thanks. | do want to
stress it was a productive sol utions-oriented work
session we had with M. E se.

So their concerns have to do with the traffic
al ong the Cascabel Road. To a certain extent sone of
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that, or a lot of traffic is the result of the
Condition 26 with helicopter install ations.
And so what we identified was an area, and we' ve

docunented it here just north of 3 Link Road, then up to

the county line of Pinma and Cochi se where there will be
no -- no existing roads woul d be used off of the Cascabel
Road itself.

And M. El se had tal ked about concerns around an
exi sting road that we had eval uated for potential use
which we're not going to be using. That would be an
exanpl e.

So this commtnent is for that stretch of road.
W will just use the county road and not go beyond it.

W al so commtted that we wouldn't be trying to
wden it. W would be doing veg managenent on that road.
And we would inplenent a speed |limt of 20 mles an hour
on Cascabel Road and the county road during construction.

We have, you know, this additional |anguage here
at the end, that's just to make sure that this condition
Is consistent with whatever requirenents the counties or
Arizona Departnent of Transportation m ght require.

So we just want to nmake sure that we aren't
prom sing to do something on the one side that then is in
conflict wth another obligation.

So these are all things that, working wth our
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construction folks we think we can do and we w || do.
That's why we're proposing to have it be, you know, a
| egal |y bi ndi ng condition.

And | think that it goes a long way to
addressi ng sonme of M. Else and his coll eagues' concerns.
We're going to keep working with the community in | ower
San Pedro. But these are things that we can clearly
commt to today.

And then the second one, you guys --

Q Bef ore you nove on --
A (MR CERNEA CLARK) Sure.
Q -- | want to follow up on what you just said.

Regardl ess of Condition 38, are you commtted to working

wth the | ower San Pedro comunity?

A (MR, CERNEA CLARK) Absolutely.
Q Thank you. Pl ease conti nue.
A (MR CERNEA CLARK) Sure. And you have heard

about concerns around the FAA |ighting requirenents.
Agai n, those are not relevant to the anendnents we've
presented, but there -- it's a concern for the comunity,
and we want to work closely with conmunities.

So this is a condition that would apply for
Line 1 and Line 2. That we will do just what we've been
doi ng and that you have heard testinony on of working
hard to mnimze any lighting of these transm ssion
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structures. O course within the framework of what the
FAA requires.

And that's sonething that we' ve already
denonstrated that we've done by bringing the lighting
down from21 to 11 to five lights. And sonething that
we'll continue to do.

And this is also an area where we're going to
conti nue working with the community. You had public
comment from M ke Weasner who hel ped get the dark sky
program up at Oracle State Park.

|'ve been in comrunication with himso he has a
better understanding of what kind of lighting inpacts the
construction will have. So this is another area where we
are commtted to working with the community. It's
important to do in these projects, and these are things
that we're happy to have be | egally bindi ng upon us.

MR ACKEN. Thank you. At this tinme |I'd ask the
panel if you have any concl udi ng thoughts, and if not,
turn it over for questions.

MR, WETZEL: Only concluding thought is a thanks
to the Commttee for your tine over the | ast few days and
your consideration for the requests. W think that these
t hree anendnents will allow these projects to nove
forward in the nost environnentally and -- and
responsi ble way. And so we appreciate your
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consi derati on.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you. | don't know if any of
t he other attorneys have any questions or M. Else has
any questions.

MR ELSE: Cross-exam hation type questions?

CHWN. KATZ: Sure.

MR. ELSE: Yeah, just a few

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ELSE:
Q Regardi ng the economics, M. Wtzel, is it true
that Pattern, |ike nost corporations, wll focus on the

power purchase agreenents that provide the nost profit to
t he corporation?

A (BY MR WETZEL) Pattern is a for-profit
enterprise, the way that we bal ance consi derations for
any power purchase agreenent include econom cs and al so
I ncl ude non-econom c el enents such as risk, reputation,
thi ngs of that nature.

Q Ckay. Thank you. And then you were estinating
t hat about 10 to 15 percent of the delivered cost of the
wi nd energy woul d be transm ssion, and that the other
85 percent, 90 to 85 percent woul d be actual generation
cost .

So I'"'mjust, ny own clarification, that would
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mean that the cost of putting in the wind facilities is
greater than the cost of the -- installing the
transm ssion facility that you would own?

A (MR WETZEL) The capital cost of the w nd
facilities is greater than the capital cost of the
transm ssion facilities. But the 15 percent versus the
85 percent is the exanple, is not relatively correct from
a capital cost perspective.

That is the cost of the delivered product
because what | was referring to is the delivered product
fromthe wi nd energy, includes paying transm ssion
service rates, not necessarily paying the capital cost of
the transm ssion line, if that nakes sense.

Q Ckay. Thank you

And then point of clarification with M.
Et herton, the new process that's been started as of
July 1 of this year with the WECC, this process, if |
understand correctly, and | understand your response to
Comm ttee Menber Little correctly only applies to the
first DCline; isn't that correct?

A (MR ETHERTON) That is correct.

Q And that so far, no simlar process has been

initiated for the second AC | i ne?

A (MR ETHERTON) That is correct.
Q Ckay. And then finally to M. Cernea d ark,
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regardi ng the proposed condition, would you join nme in
requesting that we have sufficient tinme to run this

| anguage by the Cascabel community this evening before we
go into deliberations?

A (MR CERNEA CLARK) | would submt that that's,
on behalf of the applicant we want to provide M. El se
and those who support his position adequate tine to
evaluate this condition. W want -- we think they're
good conditions and we would wel cone his consent to them

It's not for the applicant to say as to ti m ng.
We are certainly respectful of the desire for nore tine.
But I -- 1 would submit that that's really a question for
the Comm ttee.

MR ELSE: Ckay. So that's not really a
Cross-exam nati on questi on.

MR. ACKEN:. You can, | guess, M. Cernea d ark,
you can answer the question, but please keep in mnd it's
not your place to nake calls for Conmttee.

BY MR ELSE:

Q My question is would you support ne in
expressing interest in giving the comunity just tinme to
| ook over the wording?

A (MR CERNEA CLARK) | nean, | think | obviously
need to |l ean on M. Acken's counsel. But regardl ess of
these conditions, we're going to continue to work with
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the comunity.

Q Yeah, | understand that. | just want to nake
sure | don't stick ny neck out too far with the
community, so | just need a little bit nore tine and
perhaps the Committee can respond to ne on that as they
devel op their schedul e.

CHWN. KATZ: The thing that I'"mgoing to
indicate is |'mexpecting we're going to finish this
hearing tonorrow, and we're not going to delay for days
or weeks because we have hearings now getting schedul ed
all the way through May and June of next year, two of
t hem a nont h.

So | need to use the tine we have wisely and |1'd
li ke to be done by -- as early as possible tonorrow, but
we need to be thorough and conpl ete.

MR ELSE: Al right. Thank you, M. Chairnman.

That's all the cross-exam nati on questions that
| have.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Haenichen, did you have
sonet hing further?

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: No, thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: May these wi tnesses be excused at
| east for the nonent?

MR. ACKEN. They may, M. Chairnan.

| would offer a few additional exhibits, see if
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| get themright: SZA-11, which is the ACC Staff letter
dat ed August 29, 2022; SZA-12, which was the rebuttal
Power Poi nt slide presented by M. Etherton; SZA-13, which
was the Septenber 1 letter fromAri SEI A; and SZA-14 which
is the two proposed conditions that are on the screen

bef ore you.

CHWN. KATZ: Those will be admtted. Also there
wasn't a formal offer by M. Else, but | wll admt his
exhi bits nunbered 1 through 13.

(Exhi bits SZA-11 through SZA-14 and
ELSE Exhibits 1-13 admtted i nto evidence.)

MR. ELSE: Thank you.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, ma'am

MEMBER LI TTLE: | have a question of SunZi a.
Probably M. Acken can answer this.

Cenerally in these hearings we hear discussion
of the public outreach, sone summary of what the public
coment has been, and |I' m wondering why we haven't in
thi s heari ng.

MR ACKEN:. Fair question. A couple reasons.
One, the nature of it is just an anendnent as opposed to
a typical hearing, but we did present a summary of recent
information that is in SunZi a 4.

But |I'm happy to have M. Wetzel describe the
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public outreach process both recently as it relates to
SunZia 4, but really over the course of the past few
years, and M. Cernea Cark can anplify with his
out r each.

SunZia, there's a great story to tell, and so if
you would like to hear it we'd love to share it.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | would. | don't know how
everybody el se feels.

MR WETZEL: Sure. So I'll start by just |
guess referring to the earlier testinony that M. Cernea
Cl ark has presented around engagenent with the | ocal
community outside of any formal process.

Pattern prides itself on our conmunity
engagenent, we are | ong-term owner-operator of projects.
We becone nenbers of the community. W have nmenbers of
our team right, our conpany living in the comunities in
whi ch we operate projects because we need to, you know,
make sure that the projects are operated correctly.

So it's a point of pride for Pattern. And while
we only acquired the SunZia Transm ssi on project recently
and the devel opnent rights to Line 1, we certainly
anticipate that we'll continue to build those efforts
goi ng forward, and that we appl aud t he Sout hWest Power
G oup teamthat had been running those efforts in the
past prior to our acquisition.
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I'll ask M. Cernea Uark to tal k through naybe
sonme of the federal outreach el enents that have occurred,
because this project has the benefit of going through not
only the CEC process but also the BLM process, in
addition to sone other processes with the county.

"1l refer, last night we actually had an open
house for the Pinal County SunZia converter station that
we put on, you know, with sone engi neering teans and
menbers of our teamto see if there were any questions.
There happened to be not nmany questions for that one, but
we held the event.

So maybe, Adam you can tal k through sone of the
federal elenents.

MR ACKEN. Before we do that, M. Wetzel, on
the screen is shown SZA-4, which is the public outreach
summary specifically for this hearing. |1'd like you to
just kind of go through and confirma fewitens with ne.

CHWN. KATZ: Wat's the exhibit again, SZA?

MR. ACKEN:. SZA-4, yeah, if you have a copy in

front of you.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ACKEN
Q Can you confirmthat the applicant had a project
website for this where the public could find information
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about the hearing as well as an opportunity to provide
coments and answer -- ask questi ons.

A (MR WETZEL) Yes, absolutely. W're very proud
of our website. W think it's pretty | ooking, and
there's absolutely a del egated contact to us for anything
about the project.

Q Did the applicant conduct virtual open houses
for this hearing?

A (MR WETZEL) We did. W conducted two virtual
open houses for the hearing. | participated on both
nmeetings as a panelist to provide information to the
communi ty.

Q And you held two separate open houses; is that
correct?

A (MR WETZEL) That is correct.

Q And 20 attendees at the first and 18 at second?

A (MR WETZEL) That's correct.

Q And notice of this hearing was published in
The Republic as well as several |ocal regional newspapers

across the length of this transmssion line; is that

correct?
A (MR WETZEL) That's correct.
Q And signs were posted; is that correct?
A (MR WETZEL) That is correct.
Q Was it a total of 13 signs informng the public
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of this hearing?

A (MR WVETZEL) There were a total of 13, that's
correct.
Q And project mailings, talk about the project

mai | i ngs and specifically how that relates to conpliance
with one of the CEC conditions, | believe it's
Condi ti on 24 but perhaps you can correct ne if |'m w ong.
A (MR WETZEL) Absolutely. So as referred to on
t he exhibit, 444 recipients of our mailings that were
| ocated within one mle of the center |ine of the
project. You'll have to -- | don't have the existing CEC
in front of ne so | can't refer to the specific nunber.
But there is an obligation that for any towns
wthin five mles of the center line of the project that
notification be provided and that was net.
Q And that sane condition required notice to the

| andowners within one mle?

A (MR WETZEL) That's correct.

Q Ckay. Initially was notice -- were the
application naterials provided to local libraries?

A (MR WETZEL) To ny know edge, yes.

Q Ckay. And now, M. Cernea Cark, if you would

tal k about some of the additional outreach both with
agenci es and ot her stakehol ders.
A (MR, CERNEA CLARK) Sure. Thank you. So as you
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all know, this was in the records, SunZi a went through a
| engt hy federal environnental i npact statenment process.

That is a public process with nmultiple
opportunities for public comment. It starts with
scoping, where it is published in the Federal Register
which is avail able for the public.

The project information of what is proposed to
be anal yzed in the environnental review. The public are
able to corment on that. And then subsequently there's a
draft environnmental inpact statenent, and that al so
triggers a public comrent period, and there are public
nmeetings. And then ultimately there's a final EIS

In this case just as we are undergoi ng these
amendnents before the ACC, we're currently going through
a NEPA process. That started with the scoping process as
| just stated with a public comment peri od.

Because of COVID, we had virtual neetings where
the public was able to listen and hear and ask questions
of the Bureau of Land Managenent, as well as the project.

And then just recently in the summer subsequent
to the publication of the draft EIS to process the
anmendnents that we're dealing with right now, the public
was, again, given an opportunity to provide public
coment, ask questions both in witing and through a
virtual open house.
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So there's a parallel federal process with
ext ensi ve public engagenent opportunity with virtual open
houses that we've done.

And t hen, of course, there has been a | ot of
engagenent on the side, both obviously Sout hWest Power
Group, nyself as well, working closely with G ndy
Freeman, who's been part of the project for a long tine
engagi ng with stakehol ders.

As | described in ny prior testinony that is,
that goes fromlocal, regional, and national. And that's
an ongoi ng process. So an exanple that's gernane to the
| ower San Pedro is, you know, we did present to the | ower
San Pedro Watershed Col | aborative. | had sought to
provi de further engagenent with them

It's a consensus organi zation, so there was --
not everyone was on board wi th having SunZi a continue to
present at their neetings, but we still provided the
medi ator of that group wth project updates and | ook
forward to continuing with this kind of engagenent.

MR. ACKEN:. Thank you.

| s that responsive?

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

MR ACKEN: Not hing further.

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody el se have any questions of
these three gentl emen? You nay step down. |It's up to
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M. Acken to |l et you know whet her you should go honme or
stick with us.

MR ACKEN: | don't have nuch choice, do |?

CHWN. KATZ: | can't tell you what to do. |
can't even fire you. Were are we at at this point?

MR. ACKEN. W have nothing further as far as
evidence. You know, if it's the Commttee's decision to
deliberate in the norning, there's not nmuch to do this
afternoon. W could give closings, brief closings now,
do themin the norning. |It's really whatever the
Committee's preference is at this tine.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask you, and | don't
m nd even putting this on the record. | think that you,
the Commttee, and nyself were of the belief that all we
had to do was to process either a single order that
addresses the three proposed amendnents or a separate
order for each of the lines.

But | thought that maybe we could do just a
single order. But | think you were proposing two; is
that correct?

MR ACKEN. | was proposing two. And the reason
for doing it is so that each owner would have their own
approval, this Conmttee will make a recomrendati on to
t he Comm ssion. So a recommended form of order.

Qur hope and thought about what made sense was
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that there would be two recommended forns of order com ng
out of this proceeding, one for each line that would then
be sent to the Comm ssion for approval.

| f the Conm ssion were to approve those, then at
that tinme, Pattern could assign the one form of order
approval to Sout hwestern Power G oup, but that's why
we're requesting or envisioning two separate forns of
or der.

CHWN. KATZ: And that's fine. And what happened
was Tod Brewer who is the paralegal that | work very
closely with and is a lot smarter than | am had tal ked
wth Steve Enedi, one of the attorneys wth the
Cor por ati on Conm ssi on.

And he suggested to Tod -- | didn't speak with
himdirectly and I know that you nmay have conmuni cat ed
wth him-- that they would |ike us to probably attach
the two CECs which would be substantially identical to
the orders and we m ght do that as exhibits.

Because essentially, unless these three changes,
if we should agree to one, two, or three of them change
the need to add conditions as we discussed 38 and 39, at
|l east with respect to the SunZia direct current line,

t hat essentially the Corporation Conmm ssion did not set
asi de the original CEC

They just wanted us to consider these three
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factors and if these factors are approved and don't alter
those CECs, they're approved as is.

But were you able to speak with M. Enedi or
sonmebody on the | egal staff of the Corporation
Conm ssi on?

MR ACKEN:. | have not. | received an e-nai
fromM. Enedi earlier this afternoon. He directed ne to
Maureen Scott. She's the assigned attorney on the case.
So that was -- | haven't had a chance to speak with her.

| amfine proceeding with the existing CECs
bei ng exhibits to both fornms of order, you know, whatever
makes sense.

CHWN. KATZ: | was going to suggest that we
attach the two CECs which would be essentially identical
to the order. But in the order to add any additi onal
conditions to either one that the committee m ght agree
to based upon anything that SunZia and M. Else and the
Commttee all agreed to.

But I think that that probably would be fine
because | would ask the Commttee ultimately to just vote
to affirmthe two prior CECs.

We don't need to go through each condition and
each finding of | aw of conclusions of |aw because those
wer e al ready approved, and unless the Conmttee is
intending to alter or anend those, they lie as is.
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MR ACKEN: Yes. And that is how the Conmm ssion
does it when it anends a CEC i ssued by the Commttee,
right? 1t takes -- it has a separate order, form of
order that says the CEC adopted by the Committee is
nodi fi ed by adding conditions if that's what the decision
is, or nodifying to address the request that we nade.

And all other provisions of the existing CEC as approved
by the Commttee renain in effect.

So then you would attach the original CEC as the
exhibit and then that form of order would have the
revisi ons.

CHWN. KATZ: Well, what I'minclined to do but |
want to hear fromthe Committee is | don't think that you
can probably get the paperwork in a pasture of finality
till at |east you speak with the -- an attorney fromthe
Conmi ssi on.

And | don't know that we could vote on anything
today. But if you want, we can either go i medi ately or
take a coupl e-m nute break, but | think we shoul d hear
the cl osing argunents today.

Because it's just a summary of the evidence that
we' ve heard and the like. And if you think we need a
five or ten-mnute break before we put you all to that
task, we can take it or we can go right away.

MR, ACKEN. |I'mprepared to give ny closing at

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 584

this time. | did just receive an e-nail from Maureen

l'll need to follow up with her, | think I can
get the Commttee the answer as to ACC | egal 's position
in the next half hour if you want to nove forward. |If
you want to wait till tomorrow, that's fine, too.

CHWN. KATZ: It just depends on how
complicated -- | think we, you know, | didn't think we
needed to attach the CECs, but it's not a bad idea. And
" mnot going to contradict the Conmm ssion that's
ultimately going to have to review this and kick it back
to us for a third hearing.

Soif we find out today we'll see where we're
at, but | don't know whet her you would have tine to
construct the necessary docunents.

We al ways have a PDF probably that we keep just
as part of the record to show where we started from And
t hen we work on the Wrd docunent only to put it in final
form

| don't know whet her that can be done today or
not, so |l don't want to speculate. And | don't want to
keep tal king. Wat we can do is --

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chair nman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Just nore a question here: |
think this discussion is nmaking the assunption that al
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three anendnents are going to be approved and |I' m not
saying they're not, but what |I'm asking here, what
happens to the original CEC or if all the three
anmendnents aren't approved? Maybe two out of three or
one out of three.

Does t hat change the dynam c of what cones out
of the AGs office or what M. Acken may have to prepare?
Just out of curiosity. |In other words --

CHWN. KATZ: | think that this Commttee, all of
us exercising our own i ndependent judgnent, need to vote
on each of the proposed changes.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Right, but ny questionis --

CHWN. KATZ: |If only the Conmttee as a whol e
approves only two of them that's what we live with. |If
t hey approve only one, that's what we live with. If we
approve none, we're stuck with the original CEC and
SunZia at a later date can apply to the Corporation
Comm ssion to assign a portion of its CEC to the other
company.

In other words, |I'mnot saying we should
approve. |I'mnot going to express ny opinions as to what

| woul d approve until we go through everything and have a

vot e.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: No, | agree wth that, sir.
CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: | guess ny question was
particularly as to these three potential, nunber 38 and

39, whatever it is, if we do not approve any of these,

then 38 or 39 will not be allowed to be entered into the
CEC?

CHWN. KATZ: | don't think they would be unless
there's a stip -- okay. W're not going to add anyt hi ng

that isn't in the original ones unless adding it is
sonet hi ng that was rai sed by any anendnents that we
approve.

But that doesn't preclude M. Else, M. Acken,
w th the approval of the other parties to add conditions.
Even t hough no amendnment was requested, we coul d add
conditions to the original CEC or we can add conditions
to a revised CEC, one or both. So I don't think that
that nmuch matters.

MR ACKEN. At least fromthe applicant's
standpoint, I'mgoing to advocate strongly for all three,
of course.

| do think that the original CEC needs to stand
on its own, and any amendnents woul d be done in the
nature of a recomended form of order which, again, is
commonpl ace for the Conmm ssion where you say repl ace
line 2 with this new information or add Condition 36,
sonething along -- that's typically howit's done.
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At the sane |"'me-mailing |legal who | think may
be listening to this conversation and trying to get
clarity fromthemas to whether they want the original
CECs attached to the separate forns of order.

But we woul d envision, again, if approved we
woul d need two separate forns of order.

If you were to deny the bifurcation, you know,
there woul d be no need for two separate forns of order.
But in our mnd all three of these are, you know, part
and parcel, three conponents of a whole that we need
approval for.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: This was a question, it wasn't
a statenent of fact.

MR ACKEN: Under st ood.

MEMBER GRINNELL: | was just trying to get
clarity as to what the process is.

CHWN. KATZ: And we'll vote on each of the three
request ed changes and then we'll have to decide where
we're at. | don't know how -- I'mnot going to violate
the open neeting | aw and poll everybody.

W' re just going to have to wait and see what
happens after we get the documents for our review,
consi deration, and approval or disapproval.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Chairman, if it's
appropriate and | tenporarily put ny Comm ssion hat on to
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sort of view the question of form of order and naybe to
help with Rick's, Menber Rick's question

| woul d envision sonething |ike a single order,
with -- and if that order approves the bifurcation or the
transferring of ownership, then attached to that one
order would be two CECs.

| f, however, the single order denies the request
for bifurcation then there would be perhaps one or no
CECs attached to that order.

If the Conmttee approves the anendnent for
tower hei ght, changing the tower design, then one of
those two attached CECs m ght be a cl ean version that
I ncl udes the requested anendnents in it. |If that nakes
sense.

CHWN. KATZ: And that was ny thought earlier
W can, I'll let you think this through, M. Acken, and
consult with the other attorneys. | think we probably
could do it depending on where we're at with the single
order. And then attaching two of the orders, the two
separate CECs, if bifurcation is approved.

And, again, as | pointed out, even if
bi furcation isn't approved down the road, that can be
presented to the Conmmi ssion. But | won't argue whet her
think that's the biggest barrier to this whol e anendnent
process.
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Do we want to go right -- does the Conmmttee
want to go right into the closing argunents or take a
short break?

MEMBER HAMMY: |'m good with conti nui ng.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.

MEMBER HAMMY: But |'m just one person, so.

CHWN. KATZ: Wll, is there anybody on the
Commttee that's opposed to at | east beginning the
closing argunents of the parties? And after that we'l|
take a break and figure out whether we're going to resune
| ater this afternoon or do things first thing tonorrow
nor ni ng? M. Acken?

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, M. Chairman, |'m
prepared, as prepared as |'mgoing to be.

So, thank you, Conmttee. W really appreciate
your time. It's -- this is a unique case; right? And at
the end of day we're here requesting three narrow
anmendnent s.

One is the tine extension, one is the
bi furcation, and the third is the tower change.

CHWN. KATZ: So again, tine extension,
bi furcation, what was the third?

MEMBER HAMAMAY: Hei ght s.

MR, ACKEN: Tower structures.

CHWN. KATZ: Cot it.
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MR ACKEN. So with respect to the first two,
there is no neaningful difference with respect to
environnental effects. And the third, the testinony
shows that that, too, there is no difference with respect
to environnental effects.

So on those grounds, we woul d request approval
of three anendnents. All three are necessary to
construct this project in a tinely manner.

This project has so, so many benefits for
Arizona and the region. And in order to unlock those, we
need these three anendnents. So we are -- | cannot be
nore cl ear about the request.

And | think the evidence is clear as well. |
don't think there is any dispute on the first two that
there is no environnental effects associated with them

And on the third, | think ultinately it took a
few days to get there, but | think there is agreenent now
that there are no environnent effects associated with the
addi ti onal tower structures.

I f anything, what we have are environnental
benefits fromthe elimnation of the ground el ectrode
facilities.

So what you are seeing as a result is an
I nproved project fromwhat this Commttee approved in
2015.
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And that's consistent with the testinony of the
W tnesses, their commtnent to work with the communities,
you heard how hard they worked to reduce |ighting, how
responsi ve they are to the |l ocal community, how hard
they're working with U.S. Fish and Wldlife, Gane and
Fish, Pima County, any stakehol der that wants to engage
w th Pattern whet her they support the project or not,
Pattern engages with them

And listens to them and takes their input as an
opportunity to say how can we make this great project
even better. And | hope that's cone through

| was happy to hear that M. Else expressed
initially no opposition to the three requested changes.
After hearing the testinony, | really appreciate that
from him

| understand it cones with the caveat; right?
He had the caveat that he still wanted sone conditions to
address sone concerns that he and sone residents in the
San Pedro Valley have. And that's why we proposed
Condi ti ons 38 and 39.

Those conditions are not related to the
request ed anendnents, but they are presented in a spirit
of good faith, conprom se, and consistent with the
applicant's -- that's a terrible pun -- pattern and
practice of working wth the |ocal comunity. And that's
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just a great exanple of it.

And so we do hope M. Else can support those
requested -- those suggested conditions. And certainly
SunZi a can support themw th his consent.

| want to remind the Committee, and this is
sonet hing near and dear to nme, not fromthis case but
fromothers, about the role of the Commttee and
t he Conm ssion and the need to rely on substanti al
evi dence.

Deci si ons nust be nmade on substantial evidence,
not specul ation. And we would submt that this record,
the information, the testinony provided by the SunZ a
teamis substantial evidence in support of the requested

amendnent s.

And, finally, | want to thank you for com ng
with us to Biosphere 2. | admit | was a little unsure
about com ng here. You know, |'mused to going to

conference facilities, hotels, and this was a little
different, and | wasn't sure howit was going to work
out .

| want to thank the Biosphere. | think they
did -- the team | think they did an excellent job in
hosting us. And | can't think of a better venue to talKk
about a project like this. Biosphere 2, what a
aspirational project, what a hopeful vision, and what a
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wor | d-cl ass research institution it is today.

And what better place to tal k about a project
i ke Sunzia which you've see ne a lot; right? |
represent a lot of applicants. | bring a |ot of (cough
obscures speech) you've seen many nore projects. This
one is unique. This one is, it's such a great project.
| got to be careful; right? 1 can't say all ny kids are
equal .

But this is such a phenonenal project. | nean,
the | argest wi nd resource, |argest renewable project in
t he western hem sphere. |'mhonored to be a part of it.
"' m honored to work with the SunZi a team whi ch works so
hard to do the very best when it cones to siting, the
econom cs, their engagenent, everything they do, they do
at the very highest |evel.

And so with that we thank you for your attention
and respectfully request your approval of the three
request ed amendnents. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Quick point of order or
information. A gentleman by the nane of John Wesl ey
MIller, he was |li ke a second dad to ne, he just passed
away this last spring. He was the constructi on nanager
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of this Biosphere.

MR ACKEN:. Ch, neat.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: And he was internationally
known as M. Solar. Recognized by the Hone Buil ders
Associ ation, two former presidents, and | just can't tell
you how proud | amto have known the nan and | wanted to
just second the conplinent to the Bi osphere here, to
their hosting capabilities and to this nagnificent
facility. Thanks, Bert.

MR ACKEN. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Stafford.

MR, STAFFORD: Thank you, Chairnman, nenbers of
the Commttee. Western Resource Advocates asks that this
Commttee grant SunZia's application to nodify its
certificate of the environnental conpatibility.

The Commi ssion has al ready determ ned that the
route for SunZia is environnentally conpati ble. The
scope of this hearing was about the three proposed
anmendnents to the CEC

Two of which extended the expiration date and
all owi ng for separate ownership of the two lines. Those
are changes on paper. They don't have an inpact to the
envi ronnent and shoul d be approved so that the project
can be built.

The third anendnent, the proposed changes to the
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state structures, is the only physical change to the
project. The issue before this Commttee is then what
effect do the updates and pol e design have on the
environnent conpatibility of the project.

The evidence presented in the hearing showed
that the anendnents are as environnentally conpatible if
not nore so as the CEC that has al ready been approved.

The margi nal visual contact of the new
structures is negligible. The new structures are well
bel ow t he height limt inposed by the original CEC
| nportantly, the new structures will decrease ground
di sturbance conpared to the old structures.

We heard testinony that the additional cross
arms do not present increased collision risk to birds.

We al so heard that because of the new guy wires are
shorter than originally proposed the new structures coul d
reduce avi an exposure to guy wire collisions.

The applicant is commtted to using the best
technol ogy to protect birds fromthe transm ssion |ines
and has expanded its use of bird flight diverters in high
ri sk areas.

The Audubon Society's report found that 64
percent of bird species in the US. wll be vulnerable to
extinction due to climte change if we continue on our
current em ssions trajectory.
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That report al so had good news. That we can
reduce the vulnerability for 70 percent of those species
by limting warm ng to one and a hal f degrees Cel si us.

The evidence is incontrovertible that
human- caused greenhouse gas em ssi ons have al ready war ned
t he planet by about 1.1 degree Cel sius from
pre-industrial |evels.

The i ntergovernnental panel on clinate change
states that to keep to one and a half degree in gl obal
t enperat ure, econony-w de carbon di oxi de em ssi ons nust
be net zero by 2050, and that we need to reduce carbon
em ssions by 45 percent econony-w de by 2030.

Unl ess car bon di oxi de and ot her greenhouse gas
em ssions are significantly reduced now in the near term
gl obal tenperatures will likely rise by two degrees or
nore by m d-century.

We can't put off reducing carbon em ssions.
War m ng above one and a half degrees could trigger
catastrophic irreversi bl e consequences such as species
extinction.

Climate change is a bigger threat to avian life
t han these transm ssion lines, particularly in |ight of
extensive mtigation efforts undertaken by the applicant
to preserve and restore habitat.

And these transm ssion lines wll enable four

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED VOL Il 09-08-2022 597

and a half thousand negawatts of new w nd energy. Energy
w t hout greenhouse gas em ssi ons.

The SunZia lines can avoid up to 16.7 mllion
nmetric tons of carbon di oxide per year. This is a
necessary step to mitigate clinmate change.

These lines need to be put in service as soon as
possi ble. The longer we wait to reduce em ssions the
greater the anount of cunul ative carbon di oxide emtted
into the atnosphere, and the costlier it will be to
correct.

You renenber, this is a merchant line. It is
not being built on the backs of captive ratepayers. The
applicant is bearing the risk. The evidence has shown
that the anendnents are as environnentally conpati bl e as
exi sting CEC, if not nore so.

This Commttee should grant SunZia's application
for amendnent as submitted so that the project can nove
forward and new wi nd resources can be constructed. Tine
is of the essence. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Costello.

MR, COSTELLO  Thank you, Chairnman, menbers of
the Commttee. Pinal County had previously intervened in
this action and is in support of the project. | thank
you to the Commttee for allowng us to continue to
partici pate.
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My participation in these hearings has been
limted to gathering informati on and hearing the
testi nony concerning the proposed anendnents to the CEC
to see if significant concerns were raised.

| appreciate the testinony of the SunZi a
W t nesses, and have not seen anything in the presentation
t hat causes concern over the three limted anendnents
that are being proposed to the current CEC.

It appears that many of the objections that have
been rai sed during the course of this proceeding are
out si de of the scope of the limted amendnents that are
bei ng requested, and go to dissatisfaction wwth the CEC
that has already been granted to this project.

So Pinal County sees no -- has no objection and
sees no reason not to grant the amendnents requested.
Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: M. Else.

MR ELSE: Well, 1I'll just be wnging it here
because, you know, one thing |I've |earned for sure is
that | do need attorney representation, and the person
who | had been working with as an consul t ant
unfortunately is dealing with a | ot of health issues
ri ght now and was not avail abl e.

But as | understand the situation right now, the
Commttee wll only be voting on three things, the three
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conmponents that are in the requested anendnent.

I n nmy opening statenment, | was under the
apparent m sunder standi ng that they would al so be voting
either in favor of CEC-1 or in favor of CEC-2 or sone
conbi nati on thereof.

But ny understanding at this point w thout any
advi ce of counsel is that the only thing that the
Commttee wll be voting on is whether to approve the
t hree conponents in the application to anend.

| appreciate being able to give all the
testinony that | was able to give because -- and as you
can tell fromthat testinony, |'ve been very chagrined
since the project was first introduced about the route
sel ecti on.

And | presented evidence related to route
sel ections that would have far |ess inpacts. But for ny
col | eagues who are watching online, it appears to ne now
that what's going to happen here is either we end up with
two CECs in which we have an opportunity to add two
conditions, Conditions 38 and 39 that | hope to work out
wth the two affected communities this evening, or to
revert to the 2015 CEC. | guess it was actually approved
in 2016.

So wth that understanding, | have better
conmpr ehensi on of what the possible options are for both
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the Commttee and nyself as an intervenor.

And | won't conclusively say whether | support
t he anendnents or not because we're still working out the
details of the proposed conditions 38 and 39.

But | especially want to thank everybody who's
been involved with this proceeding for being so
accommodating with the fact that | don't have a ful
understanding of all the | egal aspects, and for intently
listening to all the points that | nade.

"1l continue to advocate through any options
that | can, but | certainly appreciate everybody being so
attentive to what | had to say in ny testinony.

That's ny concl udi ng stat enent.

CHWN. KATZ: Anything further?

| want to thank all of you, and M. Else, we
didn't need you to be a |lawer. Sonetinmes it's hel pful
to be a | awer and sonetines | awers nake thi ngs worse.

But we under stand your concerns and the concerns
of the Commttee. But based upon ny | egal and judi ci al
training, | believe we're obligated to foll ow the | aw and
we have to take things as we find them

And if the laws aren't properly designed to
address current and future concerns, then it's up to the
communi ties throughout the state to work with the
| egi slature to nake things better than they are.
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But as | earlier stated, | believe our only
directive is to |l ook at the three anendnents and
det ermi ne whether or not we need to add any additi onal
condi ti ons because of new environnental inpacts that
ari se.

| know that the nenbers of the Oo Valley
comunity aren't happy about the route, and | know you
weren't happy, M. Else. But the route was already
sel ected and approved and found to be environnental ly
conpati bl e.

And we as a nation are in a dilenmma. The world
iIsin adlema. W need nore renewabl e energy sources
and a | ot of them have yet to be developed. And | am
optimstic that if we can at | east take maj or steps
forward now, we have a chance of inproving technol ogy as
we go down the road.

' m done naki ng speeches, but | want to thank
ever ybody.

And, M. Acken, what | propose we do is nmaybe
take a 10- or 15-mnute break, and | don't think we're
going to be in a position of making a decision today, but
maybe we will be.

But 1'd Ii ke everybody to be refreshed and we'l|
come back in about 15 mnutes or so. |If you need a
little nore tinme than that |' m hoping you can reach the
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attorney in the Corporation Conm ssion because | want to
do it right.

And | think one order with both CECs perhaps
as we -- well, | think the order can address the three
changes. | think we would -- | don't think there's a
need for us to approve the CECs as previous, but we can,
as previously witten but they should be attached as
exhi bi ts.

And if we need to add any conditions we can
either do that in the two CECs which essentially would be
identical, but one for each of the two parti es.

And I'lIl say nothing further unless any of our
partici pants have questions or any nenbers of the
Comm ttee have questi ons.

M. Else?

MR ELSE: Yes, | have one question. 1In the
body of the 2016 CEC, there's certain | anguage that is
not -- that would not be applicable to both of the
subsequent CECs. WII| that be handled in the form of
or der ?

CHWN. KATZ: It can be. | don't know whet her
it's really necessary if we have nore conditions that are
necessary. |It's not going to probably hurt anybody to
| eave themthere, unless it's going to change the
direction of the construction of these two |ines would
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have.

MR ELSE: | was referring to in -- before you
get to the conditions in the 2016 CEC, there's wording,
for exanple, that would not apply to CEC-1 that --
there's wording on page 4, for exanple, that states that
both lines would intersect wwth WIIlow Substation

Can that change al so be handled in the form of
order ?

MR ACKEN. Yes, absolutely.

CHWN. KATZ: | think we can do that as part of
t he bifurcation.

MEMBER SCHWVEI BERT: So, Chairnan, a question for
M. Acken, then, as a part of your request for
bi furcation of the two CECs, are you al so requesting that
this Commttee elimnate the option A and option B that
was previously granted to Pattern?

MR. ACKEN:. You know, that's a great question.
And I'lIl have an answer for you. | think it's not ny
pl ace to speak on behalf of the applicant, but all the
testinmony is they're nmoving forward with the DC |i ne.

So if the Commttee wants to do sone cl eanup, |
don't think there's going to be opposition fromthe
applicant. And | would characterize that in the nature
of cl eanup.

When | had focused on it, as in what revisions
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need to be made to authorize our three changes, not what
all should be done to clean it, but we wll give sone
t hought to that.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: Pl ease consult with your
client because | believe that that would affect your
client's rights, your client certainly has the right to
proceed - -

MR. ACKEN. Right.

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: -- with either of those two
options. And just because your client has decided to
exerci se one does that nean that the Conm ssion then has

jurisdiction to anend the CEC by elimnating the other

opti on?

MR. ACKEN. W have not requested that right.
But | will followup with nmy client to see if it has any
concern with that. |Is that responsive?

MEMBER SCHWEI BERT: | think so. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: And if we were to elimnate it, it
woul d be in the orders that the option B has been
selected. But the lines will be under separate ownership
if bifurcation is approved. | won't tell you howto
wite that.

MR ACKEN. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Else.

MR. ELSE: One nore procedural question. This
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cl eanup process that we're tal king about, could that --
ny main reason for asking this is | just wanted to have
an opportunity to talk with the community nmenbers in
Cascabel and Oracle this evening.

Wuld it be -- is it possible that the Committee
woul d vote on the application to anend today with sone
sort of provision that this cleanup process woul d be
completed tonorrow? O would you wait until tonorrow?

CHWN. KATZ: | think we need to find out from
M. Acken after he speaks with counsel for the
Cor poration Conm ssion and shares that with us. And |
can be available if | need to participate in that call.

But | think that we need to understand that
unl ess we can sinply get things in the proper order
without it being chaotic, we probably won't vote until
t onor r ow.

But if there's any way we can finish it within

the next two or two and a half hours, we'll consider
doi ng t hat.
But | can't answer that question till | have a

better understandi ng on what the expectations of the

Cor poration Conm ssion are, because | had ny own beliefs
as to how we handle the matter, but | don't want to do
anything to get this matter kicked back to us for a third
heari ng.
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| don't think it's at all necessary and a
preci ous waste of tine, and even though the applicant is
payi ng for sone of this, others of us are governnent
enpl oyees that are getting paid at taxpayers' expense to
be here.

So anyway, we're all happy to be here but we're
taking a recess at this tinmne. And let's nake it till
about 2:50.

(Recess from2:28 p.m to 2:51 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: W can go back on the record. Al
of -- | see M. Costello isn't present. But | think we
can at | east determ ne whether we're going forward. Yes,
M. Else?

MR ELSE: M. Costello left.

CHWN. KATZ: Ch, he did leave. That's fine,
because | know that he knows where we were at right now
and has vocal i zed his position.

Wth M. Costello gone we can go forward, but |
didn't know what your thoughts were in ternms of putting
proper order and CECs together, and whether or not you've
been instructed by the Corporation Conm ssion counsel to
do anything specifically.

Because | want to nake sure that we don't get it
ki cked back. On the other hand | think we need to use
our own i ndependent judgnent in doing the right thing.
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MR. ACKEN. So, thank you, M. Chairman. | did
speak wth Stephen Enedi fromthe Comm ssion legal. He
confirnmed that in the several prior cases where the CEC
i ssued two CECs, there was a separate decision for each.
So a separate formof order for each.

And so he didn't take a position on whether we
needed to do that here or not. That it is the past
practice. It would be the applicant's preference to
foll ow t hat past practice.

| think one good reason -- | understand sone
benefits of having themtogether in one. One reason to
keep them separate is, you know, let's say down the line
an extension is needed for one, and | shouldn't even go
there, but let's say sonething needs to be changed for
one and that way you could just -- that applicant could
deal with that CEC and not the other.

And so, and they can go to financing and say |
have deci sion nunber X, Y -- well, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 for ny
project and it's exclusive to ny project. So we would
ask for the two separate forns of order

CHWN. KATZ: | whol eheartedly agree that we
shoul d have separate CECs, but | think we only need one
or der.

MR. ACKEN: No, but that's what | was saying
previously it has been two orders.
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CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.

MR ACKEN. One for each CEC

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. But they're eventually going
to either, if we're granting anmendnents the two orders
woul d be addressed, | nean, would be substantially
i denti cal .

MR. ACKEN:. Substantially identical, correct.

CHWN. KATZ: And the CECs woul d be substantially
i dentical unless we add sonme new conditions to one and
not the other.

MR. ACKEN. Correct. And that's exactly the way
it's been done on the others where we've bifurcated, at
the outset all the conditions are the sane and you j ust
specify what's different in the --

CHWN. KATZ: | would ask, it seens to nost of
the Commttee nenbers | think were planning on staying
here this evening even if we finished up in the next hour
or so. And we're not going to do that. So we are going
to hang out. But | think we should be ready, then, to
| ook at the docunentation by tonorrow norning.

MR ACKEN:. We will be prepared to do so, yes.

CHWN. KATZ: Please contact Tod, though, because
| know on Mondays and Fridays he usually works from hone,
and he needs to at | east be given the head's up so he can
t ake what ever you present and properly format it, and if
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there's any need for himand | to discuss, whether |
agree with what he has done, he knows how to reach ne.
MR ACKEN: We will do so.
CHWN. KATZ: Anybody on the Conmttee object to

us recessing till 9 o' clock tonmorrow norning? |I'm
heari ng no objection. So we wll do that. And | don't
know what we'll do for the next few hours, but nmaybe take

a tour of this place and see what's out there or take a
nap. But anyway. W do stand in recess.

(The hearing recessed at 2:55 p.m)
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STATE OF ARI ZONA )
)
COUNTY OF MARI CCOPA )

BE | T KNOMNN that the foregoi ng proceedi ngs were
t aken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of ny skill and ability; that the proceedi ngs
were taken down by ne in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under ny direction.

| CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor aml in any way interested in the
out cone her eof .

| CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethical
obligations set forth in ACIA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJIA 7-206(J)(1)(9) (1) and (2).

Dat ed at Phoeni x, Arizona, this 12th day of
Sept enber, 2022.

JENNI FER HONN, RPR

Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50885

| CERTIFY that GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC, has
complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
ACIA 7-206(J)(L)( -~ T
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           1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Citing



           4   Committee at Biosphere 2, 32540 South Biosphere Road,



           5   Oracle, Arizona, commencing at 9:03 a.m. on the 8th day



           6   of September, 2022.



           7
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          18        ACKEN LAW

                    Mr. Albert H. Acken

          19        111 East Dunlap Avenue, Suite 1-172

                    Phoenix, Arizona 85020
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Good morning, everybody.  This is



           2   our third day in the CEC-171 amendment hearing.  And all



           3   of the folks that we need to be here are here.



           4            And if you're ready to continue, I believe,



           5   Mr. Acken, you were in the midst of your cross



           6   examination of Mr. Else.  Is that correct?



           7            MR. ACKEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Feel free to continue when you're



           9   ready.



          10            MR. ACKEN:  Well, good morning, Chairman,



          11   members of the Committee and good morning, Mr. Else.



          12            MR. ELSE:  Good morning.



          13



          14                         PETER T. ELSE,



          15   called as a witness on behalf of Peter T. Else, having



          16   been previously affirmed or sworn by the Chairman to



          17   speak the truth and nothing but the truth, was examined



          18   and testified as follows:



          19



          20                   CROSS-EXAMINATION (Cont.)



          21   BY MR. ACKEN:



          22      Q.    I'd like to have shown on the screen what we



          23   have marked as SZA-11, and for the record this is



          24   Commission Staff letter responding to the chairman's



          25   request for information concerning the project.
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           1            Thank you.



           2            MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Else, can you see that?



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  And what exhibit number is that



           4   again?



           5            MR. ACKEN:  This will be SZA-11.



           6            MR. ELSE:  Yes, I can see it and I recall it.



           7   BY MR. ACKEN:



           8      Q.    And so you have reviewed it?



           9      A.    I did when it was first issued.



          10      Q.    And your testimony concerning WECC, is it fair



          11   to say you have concerns about the reliability impacts of



          12   this project?



          13      A.    Some concerns on reliability impacts that could



          14   be caused at the terminal point of the project, yes.



          15      Q.    If we could turn to the conclusion of this



          16   letter.



          17            And the first paragraph after Conclusion and



          18   Recommendation reads, "Based on Staff's review of the



          19   application, as well as SunZia's response to a



          20   Staff-issued data request, Staff believes the proposed



          21   Project could help improve reliability, safety of the



          22   grid, and the delivery of power in Arizona."



          23            Do you see that?



          24      A.    I do.



          25      Q.    And do you disagree with Commission Staff's
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           1   conclusion?



           2      A.    Well, I had a reservation, so I wrote to the



           3   Utilities Division and asked them if they were basing the



           4   previous paragraph about the WECC conducting a path



           5   rating study, if they were basing that on the 2021 path



           6   rating study, or the new one that was underway.  And I



           7   did not hear back yet from the Utilities Division.



           8      Q.    So I don't know that I heard an answer to my



           9   question.  So do you disagree with Staff's conclusion



          10   that I read into the record under --



          11      A.    I do, because of the information that's missing.



          12      Q.    Thank you.  And again, you are not an electrical



          13   engineer; correct?



          14      A.    That's correct, but I did know about the status



          15   of the new Phase 2 of the WECC process, because I



          16   obtained information from WECC on that.



          17      Q.    Understood.  Let's go to Slide 35 of your



          18   presentation.  And this slide presents discussion of High



          19   Plains Express and also some conclusions regarding



          20   economics.



          21            Is that a fair characterization?



          22      A.    Yes.  It does have some conclusory statements.



          23      Q.    And are you an economist?



          24      A.    No.



          25      Q.    And so your conclusions regarding economics, are
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           1   those -- in this slide and others -- are those based on



           2   any project-specific studies?



           3      A.    They're based -- well, the last one about



           4   backfilling with dispatchable fossil-fueled energy



           5   involving operational and economic challenges, that's



           6   actually a quote from the 2008 High Plains Express



           7   feasibility report.



           8      Q.    My question was a little different.  I was



           9   asking whether you had any -- conducted any studies



          10   regarding economics of the SunZia project?



          11      A.    No, I have not.



          12      Q.    And with respect to the High Plains Express



          13   project, do you know if that's an active project?



          14      A.    It's not currently an active project, to my



          15   knowledge.



          16      Q.    And do you know why that is?



          17      A.    Well, they conducted those two studies and they



          18   said that there were probably going to be some economic



          19   shortcomings and they decided not to move forward.



          20      Q.    So it's fair to say that High Plains Express is



          21   not proceeding based on economics?



          22      A.    As far as I understand, that's the reason why



          23   they stopped progressing, yes.



          24      Q.    Thank you.  Moving forward to Slide 39, now



          25   we're going to talk about your discussion of the
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           1   Southline Project.  And you reference federal EIS scoping



           2   suggestions for Southline.



           3            Whose suggestions were those?



           4      A.    Those are -- I first learned about this by



           5   reading the scoping report that was published by the BLM,



           6   and that scoping report just had text, in that it didn't



           7   have the diagrams that were associated and referenced in



           8   the text.



           9            So the -- from the text, it was obvious that



          10   Southline had made some scoping comments.  So I went to



          11   their website, looked them up, asked if they could send



          12   out their scoping comments, and they did.  It was a



          13   two-page document.



          14      Q.    So this is a document from Southline itself?



          15      A.    Correct.



          16      Q.    And Southline is also an independent merchant



          17   transmission project?



          18      A.    As far as I understand, I think they have one



          19   segment that's contiguous with Western Area Power



          20   Administration, so I don't know what that status is.  But



          21   I assume it's a merchant project.



          22      Q.    And so why in 2021 is Southline proposing



          23   changes to its project?  Do you know?



          24      A.    They weren't, to my knowledge.



          25      Q.    And so what is the current eastern terminus of
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           1   the Southline project?  Do you know?



           2      A.    It's in Southern New Mexico.



           3      Q.    Okay.  So they're not proposing changes to go to



           4   the SunZia?



           5      A.    No.  They're not.  This diagram was strictly



           6   alternatives.  The scoping process is designed to take



           7   suggestions from the public on other alternatives that



           8   should be considered in an EIS process, and this -- it



           9   was some of their suggestions for possible route



          10   alternatives for the SunZia project.



          11      Q.    Understood.  But -- and so, but it's your



          12   understanding Southline is not proposing to change its



          13   terminus to connect?



          14      A.    No.  It's not.



          15      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.  Slide 40, you refer to



          16   Southline as a change from the 2015 record; is that fair?



          17      A.    I refer to the fact that the record shows at the



          18   time we conducted the 2015 hearing, Southline didn't even



          19   have its federal permit or its state permit, whereas



          20   SunZia had its federal permit and was seeking its state



          21   permit.



          22            So it was described in the record by Mr. Wray



          23   that Southline was not as far along in the permitting



          24   process.



          25      Q.    And even though it was not as far along in the





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      441





           1   permitting process, you still advocated before this



           2   Committee and the Commission and on judicial review that



           3   the Southline project was preferred to SunZia; is that



           4   correct?



           5      A.    You'd have to -- you'd have to tell me exactly



           6   when I said that.  Are you saying that I -- I -- I



           7   remember that I was advocating for that during the 2015



           8   line siting process, and I can't recall if I did during



           9   the court action subsequent.



          10      Q.    Okay.  But certainly during the Committee and



          11   Commission proceedings, you advocated for --



          12      A.    I did.  I did.  I remember I included it as one



          13   of the exhibits and so did Mr. Meader.



          14      Q.    And I showed a slide in my opening that was from



          15   your request for review from the Commission decision



          16   approving SunZia in which you were advocating for



          17   Southline as an alternative.



          18            Do you recall that?



          19      A.    I don't, but it wouldn't surprise me if I did



          20   have it in my request for review.



          21      Q.    Would you like me to show it to you or you



          22   accept it?



          23      A.    I'll take your word.



          24      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.  Next I would like to show



          25   SZA-9 on one screen, and the other screen has ELSE-13,
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           1   Slide 41.



           2            For the record, ELSE-13, Slide 41 shows a



           3   comparison, Mr. Else, that you prepared of collocation in



           4   Arizona; is that correct?



           5      A.    Yes.  Well, I had one of my colleagues prepare



           6   it.  I was putting together a whole lot of documents and



           7   I said can you just highlight the portions, I know the



           8   percentages, but I don't have a diagram to show it.



           9      Q.    So you do not -- on Slide 41 it does not show



          10   collocation with the El Paso natural gas transmission



          11   line in the San Pedro River Valley; is that correct?



          12      A.    That's correct, because in the legend, all the



          13   highlighted areas, if you look down at the legend down



          14   below on the lower left, the highlighted areas are



          15   collocations with existing power lines.



          16      Q.    Understood.  But you would acknowledge that the



          17   SunZia project is also co -- will also be collocated with



          18   the natural gas lines in the San Pedro Valley; is that



          19   correct?



          20      A.    That's correct, as would the Southline project



          21   with other collocations besides power lines.



          22      Q.    And I have another question for you on this map.



          23   As it goes north toward Pinal Central, your exhibit shows



          24   just a little area of collocation as it approaches Pinal



          25   Central.
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           1            Do you see what I'm referring to there?



           2      A.    I do.



           3      Q.    And yet on the map that -- SunZia A-9, it shows



           4   collocation all the way from approximately -- I'm going



           5   to have to see if I can read that -- where there's an APS



           6   and TEP transmission lines near an existing power plant



           7   going north all the way to Pinal Central, all of that is



           8   collocated with existing transmission lines.



           9            Do you see that?



          10      A.    I do.



          11      Q.    And do you understand that this is an accurate



          12   depiction of power line collocation?



          13      A.    Yes.  That would be a more accurate map, the one



          14   on the left.



          15      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



          16            One last question for you on collocation.  You



          17   understand that SunZia Line 2 will be 100 percent



          18   collocated with SunZia Line 1?



          19      A.    I do, yeah.



          20      Q.    So you refer to SunZia 2 as being, I believe,



          21   redundant of Southline; correct?



          22      A.    Correct.



          23      Q.    But, in fact -- but, in fact, SunZia Line 2 will



          24   have far greater, in fact, you can't have greater



          25   collocation with another transmission line with SunZia
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           1   Line 2 as compared to Southline?



           2      A.    Mr. Acken, when I refer to redundant, I was



           3   referring to redundancy in function.  That was not a



           4   reference to collocation.



           5      Q.    Oops.  Slide 40 -- well, let's talk about



           6   Slide 41.  You talk about, so when you say SunZia



           7   collocation and you provide a percentage, you're



           8   referring to SunZia Line 1?



           9      A.    Correct.



          10      Q.    Would you agree with me that the collocation



          11   percentage for SunZia Line 2 would be 100 percent?



          12      A.    Assuming Line 1 gets approved and built, yes.



          13      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



          14            I want to talk with you about lighting



          15   requirements.  And you understand that the FAA is



          16   requiring SunZia to install lighting on five towers;



          17   correct?



          18      A.    I do.



          19      Q.    And you understand that the FAA initially wanted



          20   21 towers lit?



          21      A.    I understand that also.



          22      Q.    And do you understand that SunZia worked with



          23   the FAA, Pinal County, to address local residents'



          24   concerns to reduce the number of structures that must be



          25   lit?
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           1      A.    I do.



           2      Q.    And you understand that lighting is a safety



           3   requirement imposed by the FAA?



           4      A.    Understood.



           5      Q.    And you understand the CEC requires compliance



           6   with all applicable federal requirements?



           7      A.    I understand that.



           8      Q.    And you understand that the existing CEC does



           9   not prohibit the use of lighting as required by FAA?



          10      A.    Yes.



          11      Q.    And you are familiar with the 2013 Federal



          12   Environmental Impact Statement; correct?



          13      A.    I'm familiar with it, yes.  I haven't memorized



          14   all the pages, but I'm familiar.



          15      Q.    If you had memorized it that you would be --



          16   that would be impressive.  I don't know that anyone has



          17   accomplished that.



          18            And you understand that 2013 FEIS was



          19   incorporated in the 2015 CEC record?



          20      A.    I understand that is part of the record.



          21      Q.    And do you understand that the 2013 FEIS stated,



          22   "The FAA does not have regulatory control over the



          23   placement of structures on the ground, but does have the



          24   regulatory control over lighting of any structures



          25   considered hazards or structures more than 200 feet in
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           1   height above ground"?



           2      A.    Yeah.  I understand that.  My only provision on



           3   that was that this was never cited in sworn testimony,



           4   and so I didn't -- and all of my searches were from the



           5   2015 record.



           6            And because I haven't memorized all the pages of



           7   2013, I didn't even know that it was in there until you



           8   brought it up recently.



           9      Q.    And you do understand that 2013 FEIS was part of



          10   the record?



          11      A.    I do.  I do.



          12      Q.    Okay.  And do you understand that structures



          13   located in close proximity to airports might be



          14   considered potential hazards by the FAA?



          15      A.    Yes.



          16      Q.    And do you understand that the FAA's lighting



          17   requirement is unrelated to the requested amendments that



          18   SunZia is making in this proceeding?



          19      A.    To the ones that you stated, yes.



          20      Q.    I don't understand your qualification.



          21      A.    There are three requested amendments, and FAA



          22   requirements are unrelated to all three.  The only one



          23   that it could possibly have been related to when I first



          24   looked at these amendments was the first one, having to



          25   do with the change in structures.  Because I didn't know
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           1   how much bigger the new DC plan would make those towers.



           2      Q.    But you understand now after hearing the



           3   testimony of SunZia's witnesses that it is unrelated to



           4   the structure change?



           5      A.    I do.



           6      Q.    And did you hear the testimony of Dr. Darrington



           7   that only a couple of towers with lights would be visible



           8   from the state park parking area?



           9      A.    I did hear his opinion on that, yes.



          10      Q.    And you don't have any reason to disagree with



          11   that, do you?



          12      A.    I don't have any basis to agree with it, either,



          13   because I haven't seen any -- I mean, I haven't -- I



          14   personally haven't seen any -- any simulations of this,



          15   and I only got the determination less than a week ago.



          16      Q.    And you understand that he testified under



          17   oath that that was the results of his preliminary



          18   assessment?



          19      A.    His preliminary assessment, yes.  That's how I



          20   would characterize it.



          21      Q.    And, again, you don't have any studies to



          22   counter -- contradict that, do you?



          23      A.    I've only had it for a week, so no, I don't.



          24      Q.    And so has SunZia.



          25      A.    Yeah.
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           1      Q.    If I understood you correctly in your discussion



           2   of FAA lighting issue that you -- now that the number of



           3   structures that need to be lit has been reduced, you're



           4   really just asking Pattern to engage with the local



           5   community regarding the required lighting; is that fair?



           6      A.    My -- my position is if the community is happy



           7   with it, then I'm happy with it.



           8      Q.    Okay.  So you don't oppose, yourself, the



           9   requirement, the FAA requirement for lighting?



          10      A.    I can't.  That would be -- that would be



          11   violating federal law.



          12      Q.    Okay.  And if Pattern works with the local



          13   community, communicates with the local community, that



          14   would address any concerns you might have; is that fair?



          15      A.    Yeah, I think their biggest concern is the



          16   international dark sky designation.  Because it's been



          17   reduced down to five towers, I think there will probably



          18   be less blowback from the perspective of real estate



          19   values and stuff.  Certainly much less than it was with



          20   21 towers lit.



          21            So it appears to me that if the international



          22   dark sky designation is not put in jeopardy, that the



          23   community would probably feel like they could live with



          24   it.



          25      Q.    Thank you for that.
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           1            Slide 46 includes -- and this is in your



           2   presentation -- includes a reference to environmental



           3   justice.  Do you see that?



           4      A.    Yes.



           5      Q.    Do you understand that an alternative route



           6   through Tucson was rejected back in the 2015 proceeding



           7   due in part to greater impacts on environmental justice



           8   communities?



           9      A.    Yes, I remember all those discussions.



          10      Q.    Okay.  And so you would -- you have no reason to



          11   disagree with the conclusions at that time that a route,



          12   an alternative route through Tucson would have far



          13   greater environment justice impacts?



          14      A.    Yes.  And this -- this particular quote here



          15   that I highlighted, it was -- it was done on the basis of



          16   the assessment of visual impacts at that time.



          17      Q.    Okay.  Maybe I missed the answer.



          18            Would you agree that the currently-approved



          19   route has less impacts on environmental justice



          20   communities than an alternative through Tucson?



          21      A.    I would agree with that, yes, because of the



          22   numbers of people that were in Tucson.



          23      Q.    Thank you.



          24            Your seventh asserted change concerns



          25   Condition 26 compliance, as I understand that.  Is that
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           1   fair?



           2      A.    That's fair.



           3      Q.    And you raised concerns with the San Pedro



           4   Alignment during the original CEC proceeding; correct?



           5      A.    Correct.



           6      Q.    And you raised the concerns with the San Pedro



           7   Alignment before the Committee; correct?



           8      A.    Yes.



           9      Q.    Before the Commission, correct?



          10      A.    I did.



          11      Q.    And before -- in judicial review; correct?



          12      A.    I did in the -- yes, I did.



          13      Q.    And during my opening, I showed an excerpt from



          14   the Superior Court decision.  Do you recall that?



          15      A.    Yes, I do recall it.



          16      Q.    And I'm paraphrasing it, and we can present it



          17   if you prefer, but basically the judge said that the



          18   Commission considered the special status of the San Pedro



          19   River area, but ultimately determined that that was the



          20   best route due to greater impacts in other areas.



          21            Is that correct?



          22      A.    I recall the judge saying that, yes, and then



          23   she added more to that.



          24      Q.    And so the judge concluded that the Commission



          25   and the Committee did give lawful consideration to the
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           1   San Pedro Valley at that time?



           2      A.    Yes.  I remember that statement.



           3      Q.    And that includes Condition 26?



           4      A.    Yes.  It certainly included Condition 26.  It



           5   included the whole CEC.



           6      Q.    And there, in fact, were many conditions



           7   regarding mitigation measures to meet the Gold Standard



           8   Mitigation Plan; is that correct?



           9      A.    That's correct.



          10      Q.    And you, yourself, participated in the



          11   development of those conditions; is that correct?



          12      A.    Yes.  We made suggestions at the beginning of



          13   deliberations, and then there was a lot of horse trading



          14   that took place afterwards.



          15            But in that particular CEC process, the



          16   intervenors weren't really involved with making



          17   objections or anything like that.



          18            So the discussion was pretty much turned over to



          19   the Committee, and the Committee would occasionally ask



          20   an expert who was there as they were doing these



          21   deliberations.



          22      Q.    And so the Committee thoughtfully deliberated



          23   regarding CEC conditions to implement the Gold Standard



          24   Mitigation Plan?



          25      A.    They did.  And I guess my point there was that I
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           1   had no further input once deliberations started.



           2      Q.    And is it your position that the conditions



           3   imposed by this Committee met that Gold Standard



           4   Mitigation requirement?



           5      A.    Well, we found out later on 26 --



           6      Q.    My question is different.  As drafted, would you



           7   agree that the CEC conditions constitute the Gold



           8   Standard Mitigation Plan?



           9      A.    As determined by the Committee, yes.



          10      Q.    Okay.  Thanks.  And we'll get to Condition 26



          11   right now.



          12            If I could have Condition 26 from the approved



          13   CEC shown on one slide -- or one screen.  Thank you.



          14            And if we could, maybe, I think it breaks over,



          15   so if it's possible to show 13 and 14, so all of



          16   Condition 26 is being shown.  Thank you.



          17            So the right-hand screen shows Condition 26 as



          18   approved by this Committee and the Commission.  The



          19   left-hand screen shows Slide 55 from ELSE Exhibit 13.



          20            You identify or refer to what you call a



          21   loophole in condition -- CEC Condition 26, condition --



          22   well, let me stop there.



          23            What is the asserted loophole in Condition 26?



          24      A.    Well, I was just discussing this this morning



          25   with Cindy Freeman.  And as -- as the Committee stated
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           1   it, in this condition that we see on the right-hand



           2   screen, it left the door open to developing a work area



           3   and access in the riparian portion of the Page Canyon



           4   wildlife connectivity corridor.



           5            So, in effect, it left a loophole to cause



           6   impacts in the most vulnerable portion of the Page Canyon



           7   wildlife connectivity corridor.  That's what I'm



           8   referring to as a loophole.



           9      Q.    But I'm not following.  The condition requires



          10   the applicant to -- well, identify and require the



          11   necessary steps to avoid the creation of new roads,



          12   including employment of aerial construction, and then



          13   within the San Pedro River Valley in an eight-mile area.



          14            So avoiding the creation of new roads, how is



          15   that a loophole?



          16      A.    As written, Mr. Acken, there was no violation of



          17   Condition 26.  We can just cut right to that conclusion.



          18   As the condition is written, there was no possible



          19   violation of Condition 26 taking place.



          20            And my purpose in raising this in my testimony



          21   was to try to get that condition changed.



          22      Q.    And so you anticipated one of my questions,



          23   which is of course the asserted noncompliance with



          24   Condition 26.



          25            Do I understand that you are withdrawing that
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           1   allegation?



           2      A.    Yes.



           3      Q.    Thank you.  I'd like to show SunZia A-9.



           4            If we could have SZA-9 on the right screen, or



           5   swap them.  Thank you.



           6            So on the left-hand screen we have ELSE



           7   Exhibit 13, Slide 62.  On the right-hand screen, we have



           8   SZA-9.



           9            Slide 62 shows your requested revision to



          10   Condition 26; is that correct?



          11      A.    That's correct.



          12      Q.    And you are requesting that the Commission



          13   prohibit the use of Cascabel Road from mile marker 15 to



          14   the Cochise-Pima County boundary for a variety of



          15   purposes.  Is that fair?



          16      A.    That's fair.



          17      Q.    Do you have a pointer?



          18      A.    Pardon me?



          19      Q.    Do you have a pointer?



          20      A.    I don't.



          21      Q.    Okay.  One's coming over.



          22      A.    Thanks.



          23      Q.    Can you show me where Mile 15 is on Cascabel



          24   Road?



          25      A.    Yes.  This particular map does not show Three
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           1   Links Road.  Mile marker 15 is right -- oh, is this Three



           2   Links Road right here?  Yeah.  Okay.  So it would be



           3   right there, right?  If this is Three Links Road, mile



           4   marker 15 is right there.



           5      Q.    And then, so which portion of Cascabel Road



           6   cannot be used from Three Links Road, then further south?



           7   Can you show us the entire area that you would request



           8   the Commission prohibit the use of?



           9      A.    I'm still getting oriented on this map.



          10      Q.    Oh, sure.  Take your time.



          11      A.    Because -- that is not the location of Three



          12   Links Road.  So here is the -- I believe this is the



          13   Cochise-Pima County line right here.  Is that correct?



          14            And there's a road down here called Three Links



          15   Road, it's right where Cascabel Road pavement ends, and



          16   so that would be the southern part.  And then the



          17   northern part would be right up about here.



          18            This map doesn't show enough detail for me to be



          19   absolutely certain, but that's my guess.



          20      Q.    I appreciate that.  And -- and understand that



          21   you're -- you're providing ballparks.



          22            How would equipment and heavy machinery reach



          23   this area under your proposed condition that I'm showing



          24   in Pima County, like I said up here on Cascabel Road, if



          25   they cannot use this segment of Cascabel Road?
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           1      A.    Yeah, I was just discussing that this morning



           2   with a construction person who's associated with this



           3   project.



           4            And the way it would happen is because there's a



           5   special designation here of that eight miles in Page



           6   Canyon, there's what are called fly yards.  One would be



           7   set up right there, or two maybe.



           8            And then there was another one that's on the



           9   plan of development that would be set down toward the end



          10   of Ocotillo Road, which is on the west side of the river.



          11            And we've been discussing having an operations



          12   yard in Benson, and then another operations yard in



          13   San Manuel as a way to approach with construction



          14   equipment both from the north and from the south.



          15            And then to have some restrictions that are



          16   still being worked out on a certain segment of Cascabel



          17   Road that's critical to the wildlife connectivity



          18   corridors of Page Canyon, Hot Springs corridor, Scotia,



          19   and I -- I don't think it extends all the way up to Edgar



          20   because it only comes up to the Pima County line.



          21      Q.    So if I understand you correctly, you are



          22   currently or you had some negotiations with SunZia this



          23   morning regarding a potential modification of -- to your



          24   proposal?



          25      A.    Trying to work out wording for a condition, yes.
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           1      Q.    Are you withdrawing your proposed revision to



           2   Condition 26 at this time?



           3      A.    It's being revised, but it will be



           4   substantial -- it will likely be substantially different



           5   from what's stated here.



           6      Q.    Well, I can shorten up my cross if you -- if



           7   it's true that you're withdrawing Condition 26 as you



           8   proposed the revision, then I won't ask you further



           9   questions.



          10            But if you're still preserving that until these



          11   other discussions are complete, I will move forward.  And



          12   that's just a question.



          13      A.    Yeah, I mean until it's complete, that's the



          14   only one that I have on the record.  That's the one that



          15   I docketed.



          16      Q.    Okay.  So, and so I'll -- I'll be brief,



          17   understanding that this may -- this may change.



          18            But if your revision as originally proposed is



          19   adopted, would you agree that in order to get equipment



          20   to this area in Pima County area, Cascabel Road,



          21   equipment would have to travel through Oracle, and then



          22   down 77 through Tucson, and then back through Benson,



          23   rather than just following north in a more direct route



          24   on Cascabel Road?



          25      A.    That's why we've been talking about two centers
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           1   of operation, one in San Manuel, and one in Benson for



           2   staging all the heavy stuff.



           3            I want to also point out in your question, you



           4   said that the equipment and the heavy equipment would



           5   have to pass through Oracle.  Oracle is set back from



           6   Highway 77, so it would pass along Highway 77.



           7      Q.    But you would agree in order to get equipment to



           8   this location in Pima County on Cascabel Road, if -- if



           9   Cascabel Road cannot be used, that equipment would have



          10   to travel on 77 through Tucson past Oracle and down to



          11   the 10 and Benson?



          12      A.    Well, there's two ways.  I mean, you can go down



          13   through Oro Valley in Tucson 77.  Or you can cut over to



          14   I-10 on -- I forget the name of that road.  But it's



          15   just -- it's north of the intersection of 77 and 79.



          16      Q.    Okay.  But you would agree those are longer



          17   routes than using Cascabel Road?



          18      A.    It would add -- it would add inconvenience to



          19   the construction, yes.



          20      Q.    Would you agree that in addition to



          21   inconvenience it would increase vehicle miles traveled?



          22      A.    Yes.



          23      Q.    And would you agree that increased vehicle miles



          24   traveled increases emissions?



          25      A.    I agree.
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman?



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Grinnell.



           3            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I don't know if it's



           4   appropriate for us to ask any questions.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  You can ask questions.  You



           6   might -- I don't know if you want to right now --



           7            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Well --



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Or if it's on this point --



           9            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Yes.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  -- everybody on the Committee will



          11   have a chance to question the witness.



          12            MEMBER GRINNELL:  With the original



          13   Condition 26, I noticed the word "helicopters."  Am I



          14   correct there?



          15            MR. ACKEN:  Yes, correct.



          16            MEMBER GRINNELL:  And I guess now with this



          17   revision, I don't see any helicopters being -- the name



          18   being exhibited.  And was there any other areas along the



          19   transmission line where helicopters were discussed that



          20   I'm -- that we're not seeing?



          21            MR. ELSE:  Do you want to take that, Bert?



          22            MR. ACKEN:  Well, you're under oath if you want



          23   to address it.



          24            MR. ELSE:  Okay.  So in this revision of my



          25   condition it doesn't use the word "helicopter," it uses
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           1   "aerial construction."  So you'll note on the third line,



           2   it -- "including the employment of aerial construction."



           3            And then on the last line, "Nothing in the



           4   foregoing prevents the use of aerial construction along



           5   other portions of the route."



           6            So, you know, it was hoped originally during the



           7   CEC hearing that other areas -- well, I had hoped, along



           8   the San Pedro would also employ aerial construction.  But



           9   like I said, I -- I was not allowed to enter those wishes



          10   during the deliberations.



          11            And far as I know the new plan of development



          12   does not involve aerial construction anywhere else, at



          13   least in the San Pedro area.



          14            MEMBER GRINNELL:  What about on the west side of



          15   Oracle, if you will, and Highway 77 as it crosses over to



          16   79?  Is there any other discussions with aerial



          17   construction?



          18            MR. ELSE:  Not that I know of.



          19            MEMBER GRINNELL:  All right.  I'm just a little



          20   confused.  So this aerial construction is strictly along



          21   the San Pedro route?



          22            MR. ELSE:  It's along, yeah, just one eight-mile



          23   stretch of the San Pedro route that crosses, what I --



          24   what I showed in my testimony yesterday that crosses the



          25   special designation, Page Canyon area.
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  All right.  Thank you.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  And one thing I would ask as well,



           3   since we have a new but highly talented court reporter,



           4   if our Committee members have questions and I don't



           5   identify and say, "Go ahead, Member So-and-So," you may



           6   want to just state what your name is at least the first



           7   time around to make sure that our court reporter knows



           8   who we all are, or -- and/or make sure your name tag is



           9   readily visible to her.



          10            Thank you, go ahead, Mr. Acken.



          11            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Chair.



          12   BY MR. ACKEN:



          13      Q.    Mr. Else, you agree that the original CEC



          14   required aerial construction in an eight-mile segment of



          15   the San Pedro River Valley; correct?



          16      A.    I agree.



          17      Q.    And that is pursuant to existing Condition 26?



          18      A.    Correct.



          19      Q.    And is it your understanding that aerial



          20   construction comes at a great cost?



          21      A.    It is my understanding.



          22      Q.    Okay.  Do you recall -- or do you know what the



          23   cost of aerial construction in that eight-mile segment



          24   is?



          25      A.    I heard this morning that it was tens of
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           1   millions.



           2      Q.    And that is aerial construction that this



           3   applicant is still committed to doing pursuant to



           4   Condition 26?



           5      A.    Yes.



           6      Q.    At a cost of tens of millions of dollars?



           7      A.    Correct.



           8      Q.    And obviously if aerial construction amounts are



           9   increased, it will have, you would agree it would have



          10   additional increase in cost?



          11      A.    Yes.  And I understand that's why Mr. Wray



          12   bargained us to -- to the eight-mile stretch.



          13      Q.    My last question about Condition 26, potential



          14   amendments thereto, you understand all of that is



          15   unrelated to the three requested amendments that SunZia



          16   has presented in this proceeding?



          17      A.    I understand that, yes.



          18      Q.    Okay.  So on Slide 63, you have five main



          19   conclusions, and I just want to confirm, you have no



          20   independent studies on which to base your conclusions;



          21   correct?



          22      A.    The only studies that I have that were



          23   independent are the ones that I cited in my exhibits.



          24      Q.    And you have not, yourself, conducted any



          25   studies in support of these conclusions; correct?
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           1      A.    That's correct.  I barely had time just to



           2   assemble the ones that are in my exhibits.



           3      Q.    So next I want to talk with you about the three



           4   requests that SunZia has requested.



           5            Do you oppose SunZia's request to extend the



           6   expiration date of Line 1 by two years?



           7      A.    I don't.



           8      Q.    Thank you.  Do you oppose SunZia's request to



           9   bifurcate the CEC to allow for separate ownership of



          10   Line 1 and Line 2?



          11      A.    I do not.



          12      Q.    Do you oppose SunZia's request to authorize the



          13   use of different tower types, both with respect to AC



          14   structures from the Pinal -- from the DC converter



          15   station near Pinal Central, and the DC structures that



          16   would allow the use of MRCs?



          17      A.    Based on the testimony that was given under oath



          18   about the average height of the new -- that the new



          19   structures would result in, I don't oppose that



          20   conversion.



          21      Q.    Thank you.  Next I was going to bring up your



          22   proposed form of order.  Are you withdrawing your



          23   proposed form of order at this time, or should we walk



          24   through it?



          25      A.    No, I'm not -- I'm not withdrawing it at this
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           1   time.  It's the only one I have on the docket at this



           2   time, so I'd hate to just give a blanket withdrawal of



           3   the entire thing.



           4      Q.    Okay.  If we could bring Mr. Else's proposed



           5   form of order.



           6            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Grinnell.



           8            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Forgive me my ignorance here,



           9   if Mr. Else -- is it Else?



          10            MR. ELSE:  Else.



          11            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Else.  I'm sorry, sir.



          12            -- supports all three of the amendments, what is



          13   the -- I guess, you know, if counsel's made his point,



          14   what's the use of moving further?



          15            MR. ELSE:  From my perspective, and what I



          16   stated in all my responses to the initial application to



          17   amend, is that there are more issues involved in the



          18   changes from the 2016 CEC than were identified by the



          19   applicant.



          20            And my testimony was to point out additional



          21   changes that have happened, because the only time there's



          22   any opportunity to review substantial changes without



          23   going to court is when it comes again before the line



          24   siting committee.  So, I'm not an attorney.



          25            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I'm not either, and this is
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           1   why I'm trying to get to this.  Our charge here is to



           2   address the three amendments to the original application



           3   that was approved by the Committee, by the Corporation



           4   Commission, and then upheld in court.



           5            And so from my understanding of our ability or



           6   disability, all we're under -- ability to make any



           7   decisions on are the three amendments.  And I don't see



           8   if you agree to those three amendments, I don't see where



           9   any information being introduced is considered



          10   substantial.



          11            MR. ELSE:  It's -- I believe it's, Committee



          12   Member Grinnell, I believe it's substantial in that



          13   there's a deliberation process that will involve



          14   conditions to the two CECs that are being proposed.



          15            The two CECs are going to have to be changed



          16   anyway.  Because the way they're written now -- well, for



          17   example on page 4 of the original CEC, it states that



          18   Willow Substation will be used for both of the proposed



          19   lines.



          20            So we know that has to be changed.  And then



          21   there are going to be other changes in the condition --



          22   in the conditions of those two CECs that will apply



          23   exclusively to each CEC.



          24            There'll be a different deadline specified in



          25   each of those two CECs.
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           1            So I assume that there are going to be



           2   deliberations that follow all this testimony where all of



           3   that can be discussed.  And my testimony for some of



           4   those changes had to do with changes that need to be made



           5   in the Conditions to the two CECs.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Acken, let me just ask you,



           7   you're not proposing that we review the entire CECs that



           8   were previously issued; correct?  You're proposing an



           9   order that would grant the proposed amendments to the



          10   CEC, whatever they might be.



          11            MR. ACKEN:  That is correct.  Our proposed form



          12   of order, and there are two because, again, we're



          13   requesting that the existing CEC be bifurcated.



          14            Our proposed form of order lays out the



          15   procedural history and the nature of the request and then



          16   provides, you know, draft conclusions of law, findings of



          17   fact for the Committee to take action on our three



          18   proposed amendments.



          19            We are not requesting any -- we have not



          20   requested any amendments to the CEC -- CEC conditions,



          21   excuse me.  And so you don't see that in our draft form



          22   of order.  We are -- we accept the existing CEC



          23   conditions, we're complying with the existing CEC



          24   conditions, all 37 of them.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  The one thing I would ask you to do
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           1   because I got a note from Tod earlier is to send him



           2   copies of those two orders for review.  I don't think he



           3   has them.



           4            MR. ACKEN:  My apologies.  I will resend.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Go ahead.



           6            MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  Thank you.



           7   BY MR. ACKEN:



           8      Q.    So at this time, Mr. Else, you are proposing a



           9   separate form of order for the Committee's consideration;



          10   is that correct?



          11      A.    That's correct.



          12      Q.    So I'd like to go through some of the statements



          13   in that.  And that is shown on the screen.  If we could



          14   go through, just drop down to the text and we'll kind of



          15   go through these line by line unless I can have control



          16   somehow.



          17            Okay.  Let's go back up.



          18            You have conducted no studies of your own in



          19   support of finding of fact and conclusions of law No. 2;



          20   correct?



          21      A.    I have not conducted any independent study of my



          22   own.



          23      Q.    With respect to your proposed finding and fact



          24   and conclusion of law No. 3, you understand Line 2 does



          25   include -- the approval includes the planned Willow
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           1   Substation; correct?



           2      A.    Mr. Acken, we're looking at CEC for Line 1.



           3      Q.    Okay.  But this says "The Project," so should



           4   this read --



           5      A.    "The Project" refers to each of the two new



           6   owners.  So the way I laid out this thing was I had CEC



           7   for Line 1, findings of fact and conclusion of law.  And



           8   then I did CEC for Line 2.



           9            So if you talk about project for the first line,



          10   that would be Pattern Energy, and if you talk about



          11   project for the second line, then that would be El Rio



          12   Sol.



          13      Q.    Okay.  And so what you're saying here, if I



          14   understand it correctly, your reference to project is not



          15   both lines, it's just Line 1?



          16      A.    Correct.



          17      Q.    And you understand that Line 1 is subject to



          18   open access requirements of FERC; correct?



          19      A.    I understand that, but I also understand that



          20   it's extremely expensive to add new substations to a DC



          21   line.  And that is the whole reason why the open bid



          22   process was pretty much restricted to the origin of



          23   Line 1, which is in central New Mexico.



          24      Q.    Okay.  But do you understand that if someone



          25   wanted to interconnect, they could seek to do so even
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           1   with Line 1?



           2      A.    At the origin point, they certainly could



           3   economically.  At the other points along that line, it



           4   would probably be cost prohibitive.  But it is possible,



           5   and that's the question you asked.



           6      Q.    Yes.  Thank you.



           7            And you don't have any studies or information in



           8   support of your finding of fact, conclusion of law No. 4,



           9   do you?



          10      A.    Well, the first part I do because of the



          11   evidence that it terminates in Arizona.



          12            The second part, that says, "Not in the states



          13   where its main markets are located."  That's based on my



          14   testimony that -- where I've concluded that the main



          15   markets will be in areas where the rate of electricity is



          16   much higher.



          17      Q.    Yeah, and you haven't conducted any studies



          18   to confirm --



          19      A.    I have not.



          20      Q.    Yeah, and you haven't conducted any studies to



          21   support finding of fact No. 5, have you?



          22      A.    I haven't conducted any studies, that's correct.



          23      Q.    And you haven't conducted any studies in support



          24   of finding of fact 6?



          25      A.    No.  I'm not in the business of conducting
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           1   studies.  I'm in the business of gathering them.



           2      Q.    Okay.  And with respect to 7, I understand your



           3   position now that the project refers to just Line 1, and



           4   it's your position that it's not adequately collocated.



           5            How do you define adequately?



           6      A.    I would define it as -- in two ways.  Having a



           7   very high percentage of collocation and avoiding an



           8   ecologically -- large amounts of ecologically sensitive



           9   areas, that's how I would define adequate collocation,



          10   following existing impacts to the highest degree



          11   possible, which is what the federal standard is.



          12      Q.    And with respect to No. 9, do you still stand by



          13   that proposed finding of fact?



          14      A.    The way that Condition 26 is worded right now, I



          15   can't stand by No. 9.



          16      Q.    Thank you.



          17            Let's move forward to findings of fact and



          18   conclusions of law for Line 2.  If we could scroll down.



          19            With respect to the finding of fact No. 2, what



          20   are you referring to there?  Is this Southline?



          21      A.    Yes, I'm referring to Southline as redundancy in



          22   function.



          23      Q.    And you understand, of course, that Southline is



          24   not actually interconnecting at the same location as



          25   Line 2?
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           1      A.    I do.



           2      Q.    Okay.  And, again, you've not conducted any



           3   studies of your own?



           4      A.    No.  I'm not -- I don't conduct studies.



           5      Q.    And the finding of fact 3, that is based simply



           6   on counting substations; is that correct?



           7      A.    Yes.  It's much easier to connect when there's



           8   an existing substation than when you have to pony up the



           9   money to build one.



          10      Q.    And what is the basis for that statement?  Have



          11   you ever sited, developed, permitted a utility scale



          12   generating facility?



          13      A.    I've never done that, no.



          14      Q.    Okay.  So you don't have any firsthand knowledge



          15   to support that statement --



          16      A.    My firsthand knowledge is that you just can't



          17   hang -- you just can't hang a transformer can on an extra



          18   high voltage line, that it does require access through a



          19   substation.



          20      Q.    And do you understand that this Committee on a



          21   regular basis hears of new projects interconnecting with



          22   existing transmission lines and installing associated new



          23   switchyards and substations?



          24      A.    I do.



          25      Q.    And with respect to No. 4, do you still stand by
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           1   that as it relates to Line 2?



           2      A.    If Line 1 is -- is approved and built, then I



           3   can't stand by that.  Because in my language, the mess



           4   will have already been made.



           5            If Line 1 gets approved, then there will be a



           6   new utility line established, and that it could



           7   potentially involve future collocation which is a huge



           8   concern of mine, because of my interest in the San Pedro



           9   Valley.



          10      Q.    And I had the same question on Condition 26 I'm



          11   going to ask if you have the same answer of whether you



          12   withdraw that statement.



          13      A.    Which statement are we working on again?



          14      Q.    Finding of fact 6.



          15      A.    Yes, as -- as Condition 26 is worded, there



          16   would have been no violation to it.



          17      Q.    And finding of fact 7, we talked about this



          18   yesterday.  Your reference is not the actual ground



          19   disturbance, but to right-of-way acquisition; is that



          20   correct?



          21      A.    Right-of-way acquisition and vegetation control



          22   and, Mr. Acken, the biggest impacts are probably the



          23   installation of the towers on the ground.  And so that



          24   would double.



          25            But then there's also every time you add a new
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           1   easement, you're adding more control of vegetation for



           2   safety and the prevention of -- safety issues in case a



           3   fire gets started or something like that.



           4      Q.    And what trend are you referring to in Finding



           5   of Fact 8?  What other projects have been identified



           6   other than the two lines for SunZia?



           7      A.    There's no other projects that have been



           8   identified at this time, but there is a federal policy



           9   that requires collocation with existing infrastructure to



          10   the highest degree possible.



          11            So you end up with any new corridor that's



          12   established becoming a magnet, so to speak, for future



          13   projects.



          14      Q.    And would Line 2 establish that trend?



          15      A.    To be truthful, Line 1 would.



          16      Q.    Thank you.



          17      A.    Probably should have added it to Line 1.



          18            MR. ACKEN:  I believe that's all the questions I



          19   have.  Thank so much for your patience and



          20   responsiveness.



          21            MR. ELSE:  Thank you, Mr. Acken.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Any questions, Mr. Stafford?



          23            MR. STAFFORD:  No questions, Chairman.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Costello?



          25            MR. COSTELLO:  No questions, Chairman.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Do you have any rebuttal



           2   testimony -- not rebuttal but redirect, that you'd like



           3   to offer, Mr. Else?  Please feel free.



           4            MR. ELSE:  I do.



           5



           6                       REDIRECT TESTIMONY



           7



           8            MR. ELSE:  From listening to the discussion this



           9   morning, if it turns out that all we're going to do is



          10   change -- I forget what Mr. Acken called it, the order?



          11            MR. ACKEN:  The form of order.



          12            MR. ELSE:  The form of order and that there will



          13   be no opportunity to address conditions in the two CECs,



          14   then I would like to withdraw the statement that I just



          15   made to Mr. Acken about me not opposing the three



          16   amendments.



          17            If that's the case, that we do not have an



          18   opportunity at this proceeding to address revisions and



          19   additions of conditions, then I will continue to oppose



          20   all three amendments.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.  But what we end up



          22   doing, we will start out by reviewing the proposed order



          23   to authorize those three changes.



          24            But if there is a factual and legal basis to



          25   consider any impacts that those three changes have on the
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           1   original CECs, then that's what we're looking at.



           2            Do these CECs -- do the original -- are the



           3   original CECs substantially affected by the three



           4   amendments?



           5            And that doesn't mean we can't hear some



           6   discussion as we're reviewing Mr. Acken's order to



           7   amending -- the Committee can request it.  You can



           8   request it, Mr. Stafford, Mr. Costello can request



           9   changes to the proposed order as we go through it.



          10            But ultimately the Committee is going to decide



          11   whether or not to adopt that order, and there may be some



          12   additions to that order that you might propose.



          13            MR. ELSE:  Yeah, I understand that.  It's the



          14   language about the relationship of changes in the



          15   conditions to the three opposed -- to the three proposed



          16   amendments that could be the stickler for me.



          17            So what I'll do is I'll say at this point in



          18   time I will oppose all three amendments, and if it turns



          19   out that there are conditions developed that allay all my



          20   concerns, then I would stop opposing the approval of all



          21   three proposed amendments.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          23            MR. ELSE:  This is mainly because I understand



          24   that the Committee will make its recommendations and then



          25   this will go to the Commission.
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           1            And if it's anything like the last time I went



           2   through this, I'll have an opportunity to speak in front



           3   of the Commission when that happens.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  You most definitely will have an



           5   opportunity to speak in front of the Commission, because



           6   they will have to approve any orders amending the



           7   original CEC that the Committee might agree to.



           8            MR. ELSE:  Okay.  Thank you.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Do you have any other statements



          10   that you want to make based upon the cross-examination?



          11            MR. ELSE:  No, not based -- well, one.



          12            Because I was asked about Dr. Darrington's



          13   testimony, that there would be no significant difference



          14   in visual impacts near the San Manuel airport due to the



          15   lighting and then the hanging of the red marker balls on



          16   the lines.



          17            I don't agree with that.  That's an opinion.



          18   And I know that when you light a tower and when you hang



          19   those red marker balls it doesn't matter how far back you



          20   walk and squint your eyes, there are going to be a --



          21   there is going to be a significant difference in visual



          22   impacts.



          23            And I just want to get on the record that I



          24   don't agree with his assessment of no change in visual



          25   impacts due to the FAA visibility requirements.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



           2            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman?



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little.



           4            MEMBER LITTLE:  I would just like to interject



           5   here that if this -- our recommendation gets put on the



           6   consent agenda, nobody speaks.  So we need to be aware of



           7   that.



           8            MR. ELSE:  Yes, I'm familiar with the consent



           9   agenda issue, and if it does end up on the consent agenda



          10   I'll just have to consider what the other options are to



          11   appeal that or what my other options would be at that



          12   time.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Schweibert, let me ask you



          14   because you work with the Commission, if something is put



          15   on the consent agenda, does an interested party have the



          16   right to request in writing that the Commission hear it



          17   as a separate matter rather than way of unanimous



          18   consent?



          19            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman, Mr. Else, after a



          20   public notice indicating the agenda for a Commission open



          21   meeting has been filed or issued, you see that an item --



          22   if any member of the public sees that an item has been



          23   placed on the consent agenda the member of the public may



          24   submit a written document into the relevant docket



          25   requesting that either the chairperson or any of the
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           1   respective Commissioners request that the item be moved



           2   to the regular agenda.



           3            MR. ELSE:  Thank you.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



           5            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Members of the public would



           6   also have an opportunity if the matter is not subject to



           7   the Commission's prohibition on ex parte communications,



           8   then a member of the public could also send a direct



           9   e-mail to a Comm- -- to one or more Commissioner offices



          10   also requesting that that respective Commissioner ask for



          11   the item to be moved from the consent agenda to the



          12   regular agenda.



          13            MR. ELSE:  So as someone who's subject to



          14   ex parte, I would submit directly to the docket.



          15            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Yes.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  You're done with your



          17   cross-examination, Mr. Acken?



          18            Do you have anything else?  Everybody's going to



          19   get a chance for closing argument, but we're not talking



          20   about argument.  Is there anything factually you'd like



          21   to further testify to in light of your cross-examination?



          22            MR. ELSE:  No.  No, sir.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Acken, we probably have another



          24   25 minutes or so, 25 to 30 minutes before we have a



          25   morning break.  But were you intending to call any
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           1   rebuttal witnesses?



           2            MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, I do.  And I think we



           3   can certainly get our direct done in that time frame.



           4   There were a handful of questions from Committee members



           5   that are open that we wanted to just tighten up and



           6   close.  So if this is an appropriate time, I would call



           7   my rebuttal panel.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



           9            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman, I have a few



          10   additional questions for Mr. Else.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Oh, sure.  Go ahead.



          12            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  If now would be appropriate.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Schweibert.



          14            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  Am I pronouncing your last name



          16   correctly?



          17            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Schweibert.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Schweibert.  Okay.



          19            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I'd like to first start with



          20   the document, Mr. Acken, that you had the Staff response



          21   regarding reliability.  May that be brought up again just



          22   briefly?



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



          24            MR. ACKEN:  SZA-11.



          25            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Displaying the first page,





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      480





           1   if possible.  What I'm looking for is the date, to know



           2   what date this was filed.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  It's August 29th of this year.



           4            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  So it was filed



           5   August 29 this year.  Go to the second page, please.



           6            "Staff's conclusion, that based on Staff's



           7   review of the application as well as SunZia's responses



           8   to a Staff-issued data request, Staff believes the



           9   proposed project could help improve reliability safety of



          10   the grid and the delivery of power in Arizona."



          11            Mr. Acken, I don't know if you're the best



          12   person to answer this, ideally Staff would be the better



          13   witness to answer my question.



          14            I think what I'd like to understand is whether



          15   Staff's conclusion here is based on Pattern's ownership



          16   of Line 2 or if Staff's conclusion is based on SouthWest



          17   Power Group's ownership of Line 2.



          18            MR. ACKEN:  It would be my position that it is



          19   based on SouthWestern Power Group's ownership of Line 2,



          20   because that is the application at issue.



          21            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  Thank you for that



          22   clarification.



          23            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little.



          25            MEMBER LITTLE:  Sorry to interrupt, but I also
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           1   have a question about this letter.  And it may be better



           2   answered by your engineering witness.



           3            But do we know whether the studies that are



           4   referenced in that second full paragraph there, the WECC



           5   studies, voltage stability, post transient stability,



           6   et cetera, assume two AC lines or one DC and one AC line?



           7            MR. ACKEN:  We will bring Mr. Etherton back on



           8   the rebuttal panel, and so he's the right person to



           9   address that precisely.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  And I definitely think that's



          11   better.  I don't want the lawyers becoming witnesses in



          12   these proceedings.



          13            MR. ACKEN:  Me, too.



          14            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman, Mr. Else, I have



          15   some additional questions for you, Mr. Else.



          16            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Schweibert, can you speak



          17   up?  My hearing is going with my hair.



          18            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  No problem.  I hope this



          19   helps.



          20            The questions are based on the issue of



          21   bifurcating or transferring the ownership.  Being that



          22   you still oppose the bifurcation and transfer of



          23   ownership, I have some additional questions I'd like to



          24   clarify.



          25            And you had several slides that appeared to go
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           1   toward the economics or the reliability of the power in



           2   Arizona.



           3            Is it your testimony that the lines would result



           4   in uneconomic power in Arizona, unreliable power in



           5   Arizona, or both uneconomic and unreliable power in



           6   Arizona?



           7            MR. ELSE:  And you're talking about both lines



           8   as in combination or can I take them one at a time?



           9            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Well, so that was my next



          10   question was is it relating to Line 1, Line 2, or both



          11   Line 1 and Line 2?



          12            MR. ELSE:  Definitely as far as economics go it



          13   would apply to Line 1, that this power would likely be



          14   more due to market conditions headed toward California



          15   because it's going to have fairly high transmission



          16   costs.



          17            I mean, we're talking about tens of millions of



          18   dollars today just to do the helicopter placement along



          19   eight miles of the route, and it's 550 miles long.



          20            So it's going to have fairly high investment in



          21   transmission infrastructure, and the best way to recover



          22   that in the free market is to market it at the place in



          23   the markets where you can get the highest price.



          24            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  So you're saying as it



          25   relates to Line 1, that because the power is destined for
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           1   California that that will result in uneconomic power



           2   supply in Arizona?



           3            MR. ELSE:  Yes.  And the way that I related that



           4   is that -- in two ways.  One is we heard a lot of



           5   testimony from Western Resource Advocates that Arizona



           6   needed this wind energy and they gave a lot of great



           7   reasons for why we should be using renewable energy.



           8            But the way the statute is written in Arizona is



           9   that the Committee and the Commission are charged with



          10   finding economical electrical energy, and it doesn't



          11   distinguish between renewable and non-renewable.



          12            So we don't have statute right now that sets a



          13   high standard for renewable energy use.  So that's one



          14   way that it affects my conclusion that this would not



          15   provide economical electricity for Arizona's use.



          16            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Well --



          17            MR. ELSE:  Pardon me.  Go ahead.



          18            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  This transition to line 2



          19   because the question of ownership bifurcation or transfer



          20   is in relation to the ownership of Line 2 --



          21            MR. ELSE:  Yeah.



          22            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  -- is it your testimony that



          23   Line 2 will result in more or less economic or reliable



          24   power under new ownership?



          25            MR. ELSE:  Most of the testimony that I've heard
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           1   so far from both the applicant and from Western Resource



           2   Advocates is that the goal would be to use Line 2



           3   primarily for additional wind energy.



           4            Western Resource Advocates was making the



           5   assumption that there would potentially be up to



           6   4500 megawatts of wind energy combined from the two



           7   lines.



           8             Today, in my cross-examination, I was reminded



           9   several times that Line 2 originates in that wind energy



          10   zone, not at the same initiation point of the Southline



          11   project.



          12            So I've got two cues, so to speak, that the



          13   intention of Line 2 would also be primarily for the



          14   export of wind energy out of New Mexico.



          15            And under current market conditions and the



          16   probability that the Commission's not going to suddenly



          17   follow the same lead as California on renewable energy



          18   standards, I would say, yes, Line 2 would not be



          19   delivering economical electricity from wind energy to



          20   Arizona.



          21            But there's one other thing I want to add to



          22   both of those discussions.  And that is when you inject



          23   that volume of megawatts into Pinal Substation, it could



          24   trigger the need for new lines between Pinal Substation



          25   and California, or at least to the Palo Verde hub, but
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           1   possibly further that could add new burdens on the



           2   ratepayers in Arizona.



           3            These are all just possibilities that



           4   contributed to my statement about why I don't think that



           5   these lines would contribute to economical electricity in



           6   Arizona.



           7            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Sure.  Thank you, Mr. Else.



           8            How, in your opinion, does the ownership of



           9   Line 2 change the economics or the reliability of the



          10   power?



          11            So if under Pattern ownership the power is



          12   destined for California.  And under SouthWest Power



          13   Management ownership the power is also destined for



          14   California; how does the change in ownership in your



          15   opinion change the supply of economical and reliable



          16   power in Arizona?  Follow?



          17            MR. ELSE:  Yes, from that -- from that



          18   legalistic understanding, mere change of ownership would



          19   not change that situation.



          20            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Do you have any additional



          21   information, opinion, or evidence that you could provide



          22   that shows that, for example, SouthWest Power Management



          23   would have different off-takers or different contracts



          24   with end users or utilities that Pattern Energy would not



          25   have?
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           1            MR. ELSE:  Yes.  Line 2 would have a substation



           2   that's included at the Willow Substation.  So there would



           3   be opportunities for other resource areas right off the



           4   bat.



           5            And AC lines are much more amenable to adding



           6   additional substations than DC lines are.



           7            So Line 2 theoretically could load distributed



           8   energy development in Arizona.  That is a possibility.



           9            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Chairman, can I chime in



          10   here?



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, go ahead, Mr. Haenichen.



          12            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  This discussion is a



          13   little bit disturbing to me because it looks like the



          14   only reason for using or attempting to use the wind



          15   energy from New Mexico is the environmental advantages of



          16   it.



          17            If it's going to be a lot more expensive because



          18   of transmission costs, despite the fact that there are no



          19   fuel costs, I think we need to understand this question,



          20   is it really not economically advantageous to use that



          21   energy?  Who can answer that?



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  I think that that's something that



          23   maybe Mr. Acken can address to one of his engineering



          24   people.  I don't think Mr. Else has the engineering



          25   expertise.
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           1            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  I understand, but I think we



           2   need to know that.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine, and I think that



           4   that's something I would ask Mr. Acken to explore when he



           5   recalls his witnesses.



           6            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Thank you.



           7            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Mr. Else, just -- I think my



           8   last maybe follow-up question for now, how does the



           9   change in ownership from Pattern to SouthWest Management



          10   Group change the availability of utilizing the Willow



          11   Substation for Line 2?



          12            MR. ELSE:  Changing the ownership of Line 1 to



          13   Pattern --



          14            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Line 2.



          15            MR. ELSE:  Oh.  Could you repeat that question?



          16            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  How, in your opinion, does



          17   changing the ownership of Line 2 from Pattern to



          18   SouthWest Management Group change the ability to utilize



          19   the Willow Substation on Line 2?



          20            MR. ELSE:  It does not change it, no.



          21            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I don't have any other



          22   questions at this time, Chairman.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.  Any other Committee



          24   members have any questions of Mr. Else?  And if not,



          25   Mr. Else, is there anything you wanted to clarify?
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           1            MR. ELSE:  No, Mr. Chairman, I'm still absorbing



           2   this concept that's sort of new to me today, that we may



           3   or may not have a rigorous discussion of conditions.



           4            So, anyway, I'll work that out and just



           5   reconsider where this process is headed.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Right, and the applicant is



           7   required by rule and statute to provide drafts of their



           8   proposed order, whether it's a CEC or an amendment to a



           9   CEC.



          10            And then the Committee has the right to



          11   interject any additional findings or conditions it thinks



          12   appropriate.  And we can hear from any of the parties as



          13   well regarding that.



          14            But ultimately each of the new conditions or



          15   findings have to be voted on by the Committee and then



          16   the whole order will be voted on by a roll call vote.



          17            MR. ELSE:  Yes, thank you.



          18            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman, I just have one



          19   more question.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.



          21            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Maybe two.



          22            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Is it a compound question?



          23            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I'll separate them.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  No compound questions.



          25            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman, Mr. Else, in your
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           1   testimony, I believe if I'm articulating this correctly,



           2   you recommended that the Committee perhaps deny the



           3   transfer of ownership as it relates to Line 2 because



           4   Line 2 is redundant with the Southline.  Is that



           5   accurate?



           6            MR. ELSE:  Committee Member Schweibert, like I



           7   said, I'm still absorbing the information that I heard



           8   today, and so I didn't want to make the mistake of saying



           9   that I didn't oppose the three amendments that are in the



          10   May 13th application to amend, and have that go on the



          11   record if it would cause me to lose leverage, so to



          12   speak, in any future options I might choose to pursue to



          13   try to prevent further degradation of the lower San Pedro



          14   Valley.



          15            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Sure.  I can appreciate



          16   that.  I think I'm just recalling one of the slides and I



          17   apologize that I don't recall which slide it was, where



          18   perhaps at least at that time, you'd recommended that the



          19   Committee deny a CEC for Line 2 because it was redundant



          20   with Southline.



          21            MR. ELSE:  Correct.  Yeah, you know, I'm not an



          22   attorney, so I didn't know what all the outcomes were



          23   that would be possible from this process.



          24            So in my sort of primitive understanding and the



          25   way I stated it in my opening remarks was that I had
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           1   previously understood that the Committee could approve



           2   both of the CECs, CEC-1 only, CEC-2 only, or neither of



           3   the CECs.  Maybe that's not the case.  I don't have an



           4   attorney sitting beside me.



           5            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  That's fine, Mr. Else.



           6   Thank you.  My question as it relates to the idea that



           7   perhaps Line 2 might be redundant with the Southline



           8   project.



           9            And I ask this question in the context of trying



          10   to evaluate the availability of an economical and



          11   reliable supply of energy in Arizona, is do you believe



          12   or is it your opinion that transmission lines follow sort



          13   of a traditional supply-and-demand equation from an



          14   economic perspective, such that having more transmission



          15   lines would result in an increase in supply of



          16   transmission lines, and therefore more options through



          17   which one would wheel through their power and therefore



          18   have a lower economic cost or price of transmission?



          19            MR. ELSE:  It all depends on the cost of putting



          20   the transmission lines in.  My view is that we should use



          21   the existing grid to the highest degree possible, use it



          22   as efficiently as possible, use all new technologies that



          23   assist us in using it as efficiently as possible to



          24   upgrade the existing grid whenever possible, strengthen



          25   the existing grid rather than forging new infrastructure
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           1   corridors through areas that -- that were previously



           2   undisturbed.



           3            I think all of those things are very important



           4   and one of the real sad outcomes of President Obama



           5   opening up public lands to merchant projects is it tends



           6   to create sort of a land rush for the cheapest land



           7   that's available on the real estate market rather than



           8   the land that makes the most sense for infrastructure



           9   placement.



          10            So I know I couldn't answer your question yes or



          11   no about whether I agreed with that hypothesis that you



          12   were posing, but I -- and my testimony demonstrated the



          13   way that you reduce transmission costs is to make the



          14   line as short as possible to fulfill the function that



          15   you want to fulfill.



          16            And to base it as much on reducing environmental



          17   impacts, to base it more even on reducing environmental



          18   impacts than on maximizing corporate profit.



          19            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Thank you, Mr. Else.



          20            Chairman, I don't have any other questions.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Committee have any additional



          22   questions?  Anything else for Mr. Else?



          23            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Chairman.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, go ahead.



          25            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  This isn't a question, it's a
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           1   request, I guess, of Mr. Acken to be sure that their



           2   witness they're going to bring this afternoon can tell us



           3   what the cost is going to be of electricity, at the end



           4   of this 400-mile line, counting all the line losses and



           5   the fact that there's no fuel costs and so on, the cost



           6   of that electrical energy per kilowatt hour versus



           7   conventional fossil energy.



           8            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Member Haenichen.  We



           9   will certainly address these cost questions with folks



          10   that actually understand and live cost and economics and



          11   can provide expert opinion.



          12            I'm not sure that I can give you kilowatt hour



          13   pricing, because of course that would be confidential,



          14   but we will do our best to provide information that is



          15   responsible -- responsive to the questions, keeping in



          16   mind, of course, that this Committee previously



          17   determined, the Commission determined and it was upheld



          18   on judicial review that this project aids the state in



          19   providing an adequate, economic and reliable source of



          20   power.



          21            But I understand the questioning, I understand



          22   the nature of it.  And we will do so within the confines



          23   of what -- that we can without providing business



          24   confidential information that would be -- that would



          25   disadvantage SunZia as opposed to potential competitors.
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           1            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Well, as a member of this



           2   Committee, I have to vote on this thing at the end of the



           3   day.  And my vote expresses interest in value to Arizona



           4   consumers of electricity.



           5            And so even though you say it's confidential and



           6   other things, it looks like if it turns out that the



           7   energy is very expensive because of delivery costs from



           8   New Mexico, then it's -- definitely all going to go to



           9   California because they're the only one with the really



          10   high electricity retail prices.



          11            So that's my motivation for asking for this kind



          12   of analysis.



          13            MR. ACKEN:  We will certainly address the



          14   misconception that wind energy is not cost competitive.



          15   We will put that to bed.



          16            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Thank you.



          17            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Schweibert.



          19            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  For Mr. Acken, and I



          20   apologize to the extent that this may have been



          21   addressed, was it yesterday in the morning portion when I



          22   was not here in person, but to the extent that you have a



          23   witness who can elaborate on the change in economical and



          24   reliable supply of energy for Arizona and the ownership



          25   change.
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           1            How does the change from Pattern Energy to



           2   SouthWest Power Group influence the amount of power that



           3   will be delivered to Arizona load, to Arizona regulated



           4   electric utilities, municipal utilities, or distribution



           5   cooperatives, et cetera, versus the same if it's under



           6   Pattern ownership.



           7            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you for that question and the



           8   clarification, and we will address that on rebuttal as



           9   well.



          10            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Thank you.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.  Well, we used up your



          12   half an hour.  So we're going to take our 10:30 break and



          13   we'll resume about 10:45 and just relax for a few minutes



          14   or prepare, and we'll take our morning recess.



          15            (Recess from 10:32 a.m. to 10:49 a.m.)



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  We are ready to resume our next



          17   session, and I believe we're going to be hearing some



          18   rebuttal testimony from the applicant.



          19            Mr. Acken, if you're ready let me just make a



          20   note as to who the panel consists of.



          21            MR. ACKEN:  For the record, Mr. Chairman, for



          22   its rebuttal SunZia Transmission, LLC calls -- recalls



          23   Kevin Wetzel, Adam Cernea Clark, and Mark Etherton, all



          24   of whom have been previously sworn.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  That's correct.  You may proceed.
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           1      KEVIN WETZEL, ADAM CERNEA CLARK, and MARK ETHERTON,



           2   called as Rebuttal witnesses as a panel on behalf of



           3   Applicant, having been previously affirmed or sworn by



           4   the Chairman to speak the truth and nothing but the



           5   truth, were examined and testified as follows:



           6



           7                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



           8   BY MR. ACKEN:



           9      Q.    Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          10            So at the conclusion of Mr. Else's testimony,



          11   there was a discussion regarding the economics of wind,



          12   generally, and SunZia project specifically.



          13            Mr. Wetzel, did you hear that testimony and, I



          14   guess, that discussion?



          15      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  I did.



          16      Q.    I would like you to share your thoughts about



          17   the economics of SunZia.



          18      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Sure.  So I'd probably take it in



          19   two elements.  First is just structurally and this goes



          20   back to my original testimony on Tuesday.



          21            SunZia is a merchant transmission line which



          22   enables wind facilities in New Mexico as we've discussed.



          23            Merchant transmission line means it's privately



          24   owned not by a local utility but by a, you know, private



          25   company in this case, Pattern Energy, and Line 2 for
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           1   SouthWestern Power Group if the amendments are approved.



           2            What that means is that we're not rate-basing



           3   this project and imposing it on any customer in Arizona



           4   or any other market.  This project competes in the market



           5   and if our value proposition to market participants who



           6   buy wholesale power is not attractive enough and they



           7   don't see value in our value proposition in our project,



           8   then this project won't move forward.



           9            I can tell you that as the project lead



          10   developer, I am highly coordinated and participate in



          11   market conversations with customers almost on a daily



          12   basis.  And the market does see value in this project,



          13   and in the value proposition that we bring to market.



          14            It's really driven by a number of factors and



          15   this goes into the second piece, which is how the project



          16   competes with other market participants, other



          17   technologies.



          18            First and foremost, and I showed it in one of my



          19   slides, it might helpful to bring that back up.  I think



          20   it is L5, which is the shape of the New Mexico wind



          21   relative to other alternatives.



          22            The shape of New Mexico wind, I think people can



          23   probably remember it is inversely correlated to solar



          24   production, so as we all know in Arizona there is a



          25   proliferation of solar energy, which we're really excited
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           1   about and we support and we're developing solar projects



           2   to help increase that local delivery.



           3            But New Mexico wind is an extremely good



           4   complement to that because solar cannot produce at night.



           5   And batteries can only store energy for so long, and they



           6   are -- and I'll talk about this in more detail at a



           7   higher price point than wind project after -- after fully



           8   burdening that wind with transmission costs related to



           9   the SunZia and El Rio Sol projects.



          10            So the value proposition includes the shape,



          11   what we call the shape value, which is in the evening and



          12   we've seen this over the -- this is actually a good week



          13   to talk about this.  We've seen energy prices rise



          14   dramatically in the evenings as people come home from



          15   work, turn on the AC, turn on the lights, turn on the



          16   oven.



          17            That electricity, you know, use ramps up right



          18   at the same time the solar product ramps down.  There



          19   needs to be something to fill that gap, and as you can



          20   see from the chart on the bottom right of L5, New Mexico



          21   wind perfectly fits that requirement.



          22            That is an extremely impactful and valuable



          23   attribute to our customer base across the board, whether



          24   it's utilities or other wholesale buyers like large



          25   commercial and industrial customers.
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           1            Secondly, there was discussion around fuel.  As



           2   most folks know, no solar and wind power projects are



           3   fuel free.  Right now, and we've seen this again, it's a



           4   good time to talk about this.



           5            After the pandemic and because of the Russian



           6   invasion of Ukraine, fuel prices in the fossil sector,



           7   specifically natural gas which is really the primary



           8   alternative at this point in time, have been extremely



           9   volatile.



          10            They were trading two to $3 per BTU, you know,



          11   historically over the last five years.  They spiked to



          12   over $10.  You know, the price of that on the energy



          13   markets is material, but also importantly all of these



          14   customers and load-serving entities have to plan for the



          15   long term and they have to manage volatility.



          16            So while wind is intermittent in its generation



          17   profile, it provides diversified kind of, you know, risk



          18   mitigation in that there is no fuel risk in the project.



          19            And so we don't have to worry about or our



          20   customers don't have to worry about what is the price of



          21   gas going to be today, tomorrow or in the future.  We



          22   have a fixed price PPA, typically.  It depends on the



          23   customer.



          24            Where they can guarantee that no matter, you



          25   know, what gas does in the future, they know that their
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           1   wind energy power purchase agreement is going to be at a



           2   fixed cost now.



           3            Now, again, it is intermittent, so when that



           4   energy shows up it changes by the day, although we have,



           5   you know, years and years of meteorological data to



           6   support our production estimates and we're able to, you



           7   know, on a short-term forward basis predict with high



           8   confidence what we will produce.



           9            That's a material benefit to customers that



          10   other types of technologies including fossil cannot



          11   provide.



          12            And the third piece is really there are



          13   environmental attributes associated with any renewable



          14   energy project which are valued by the market; right?



          15   We're seeing that in everywhere from, you know, consumer,



          16   you know, based demand, but especially for large



          17   wholesale demand.



          18            Just, you know, if you look at the large, I'll



          19   just use data centers as an example.  Most of the large



          20   data center companies have committed to going, you know,



          21   mostly renewable if not carbon free by certain dates.



          22            So there is a value and a premium for any



          23   renewable project associated with the green attributes,



          24   if you want to call them that, the carbon, you know,



          25   reduction potential for those projects.
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           1            So if you look at what the alternatives are to



           2   provide the shape that I show here on the screen on L5,



           3   there are a few that can provide the non-solar hours,



           4   right?  Hydro, nuclear, geothermal, and all three of



           5   those are extremely difficult to -- to build and frankly



           6   fairly expensive and much more expensive than wind, even



           7   transmission-enabled wind like SunZia.



           8            The fourth is little bit more applicable, which



           9   is long-duration energy storage.  Right.  Typical energy



          10   storage projects that have been built over the last few



          11   years tend to be four hours in duration.  That does help



          12   mitigate this evening peaking issue that we see, and



          13   we've seen it again this week, where batteries provided,



          14   you know, resources in Arizona and cross the west through



          15   the heat wave.



          16            What those batteries can't do is provide energy



          17   through the night.  Which again our customers that are



          18   trying to move towards a carbon-reduced or carbon-neutral



          19   platform are demanding.



          20            Wind energy is one of the only projects or



          21   technology types that can do that.



          22            Long-duration storage I do think absolutely has



          23   a place in the energy infrastructure balance.  We've



          24   talked a lot about diversification.  And that's really



          25   important; right?  We want energy storage to proliferate,
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           1   we want solar to proliferate, and we'd like, you know,



           2   all these other technologies to as well.



           3            But what's available to the market right now and



           4   what's available in this specific location are fairly



           5   constrained.



           6            So SunZia and the wind projects that it enables



           7   are absolutely economic to the market.  I can tell you



           8   that because we are having customer conversations, late



           9   stage, where they are seeing the value in the value



          10   proposition that I just described.



          11            And, again, the diversification benefits that



          12   SunZia can provide in addition to those other



          13   technologies is absolutely in demand in the market right



          14   now.



          15            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman?



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Schweibert.



          17            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Mr. Wetzel, thank you for



          18   bringing up Slide L5.  Did you prepare the graph we are



          19   viewing on that slide?



          20            MR. WETZEL:  I did.



          21            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  Thank you.  Do you



          22   mind explaining why for the portion of power generated



          23   from solar there is no indication of what state that



          24   solar is being generated in?



          25            MR. WETZEL:  Sure.  The solar profile is
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           1   typically fairly standard across a region.  So while the



           2   time frame of the exact, you know, single-hour difference



           3   between, say, the Mountain time zone and the western



           4   Pacific time zone would shift the solar an hour in either



           5   direction.



           6            What we're showing here is I believe Mountain



           7   Standard Time.  So the solar is going to be very similar



           8   if not identical, whether it's produced in, you know,



           9   I'll just use the example of western New Mexico, Arizona,



          10   or eastern California.



          11            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  And what states are in the



          12   Mountain Standard Time zone?



          13            MR. WETZEL:  I'm not sure I can name them off



          14   the exact top of my head.  New Mexico, you know,



          15   Colorado, I suppose at times of the year Arizona.



          16            MR. ACKEN:  Let the -- I think you can take



          17   official notice that Arizona is always Mountain Standard



          18   Time.



          19            MR. WETZEL:  Sorry.



          20            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Thank you, Mr. Acken.  My



          21   next question was going to be on the bottom part of that



          22   graph are times, midnight, 6:00 a.m., noon, 6:00 p.m.,



          23   and midnight.  What time zones are those times?



          24            MR. WETZEL:  I believe those are Mountain



          25   Standard times because New Mexico wind produces Mountain
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           1   Standard and we wanted to make sure to have the



           2   applicable time frames be shown.



           3            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  And so just to be



           4   clear, there's no way whatsoever that this Committee



           5   should interpret this graph as being a time zone,



           6   California-based time zone wherein the solar production



           7   of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. California time and that the



           8   sort of overlay of the New Mexico wind energy production



           9   is sort of peaking at 6:00 p.m. California time?



          10            MR. WETZEL:  I'd like to make sure that I'm



          11   answering this correctly, and I don't know with



          12   100 percent certainty that I can answer that.  I just



          13   don't want to misspeak and misrepresent this data.



          14            So I'd like to be able to go back and ensure



          15   that my answer is correct and that these all Mountain



          16   time zone production profiles.



          17            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  I just want to



          18   understand clearly that if during a time of year when



          19   California and New Mexico are not on the same time, how



          20   that overlay would shift or whether they would still be



          21   in line.  Does that make sense?



          22            MR. WETZEL:  I think it does, yes, and I'll need



          23   to follow to provide an answer to that question.



          24            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  Thank you.



          25            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Chairman.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Haenichen.



           2            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  I'd like to ask you a



           3   question that involves costs, but not in dollars.  I just



           4   want to know percentage-wise, if -- assuming this project



           5   gets approved by this Committee and by the Commission,



           6   and gets built, what -- and it starts delivering



           7   wind-generated energy from New Mexico to, let's say the



           8   end of the line which is some hundred miles or so short



           9   of California, whatever it is.



          10            What percentage of the cost to the utility



          11   that's doing this, your company, is due to the



          12   transmission line costs, which include losses and



          13   amortization of the line as opposed to the -- and what



          14   percentage is due to what you have to pay to get the



          15   energy in the first place on the New Mexico side?



          16            MR. WETZEL:  Sure.  So I think just to make sure



          17   I understood the question is, what percentage of the cost



          18   base of the delivered product is represented by the



          19   transmission element of which the wind project has to pay



          20   to deliver the power; is that correct?



          21            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  And what percentage is paid



          22   to New Mexico?  Just percentage now.  I don't care about



          23   the numbers.



          24            MR. WETZEL:  I want to be responsive to the



          25   question.  Let me make sure I understand it.  When you
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           1   say paid to New Mexico or paid to Arizona, can you just



           2   help me understand --



           3            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  No, I mean you have to buy



           4   the energy from New Mexico; right?  Don't they get paid



           5   for it?  Somebody there gets paid.



           6            MR. WETZEL:  In New Mexico, I'd say the payments



           7   go to the local community, landowners, tax payments,



           8   operating the facilities.  The real payments associated



           9   with the project in New Mexico are the capital costs to



          10   build the wind farms.



          11            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Amortization thereof.



          12            MR. WETZEL:  Sure.  Exactly.  And so the



          13   revenues created by the wind farm sold into the western



          14   market then go back to pay back the amortization cost.



          15            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  I understand that.  But I



          16   just want to know what those percentages are.  Estimate.



          17   Your guess.



          18            MR. WETZEL:  Sure.  I think I understand the



          19   question.  I'll make sure to try to respond to it.



          20            The overall delivered product, you know, if we



          21   assume that cost 100 percent, the amount of the cost of



          22   transmitting that power over the SunZia project is likely



          23   represented 10 to 15 percent of the cost of the delivered



          24   product.  Is that the question?  Did I --



          25            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Yeah, well, that's true and





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      506





           1   we can break that down, too.  Part of that is losses,



           2   line losses; right?



           3            MR. WETZEL:  Correct.



           4            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  And part of that is



           5   amortization of the cost of building the thing.



           6            MR. WETZEL:  Correct.  And the way that that



           7   manifests in the project economics is that the SunZia



           8   transmission line will have a transmission service



           9   agreement with the wind farms and charge a transmission



          10   rate, by which, again, the SunZia transmission project



          11   will recover its costs and pay its operating costs.



          12            And then the wind farms in central New Mexico



          13   will have to pay the transmission line that transmission



          14   service rate in order to utilize it to deliver its



          15   product to market.



          16            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Yeah.  But at the end of the



          17   day when all those things are taken into consideration,



          18   until megawatt hours start coming out of the wire at the



          19   end, what percentage of the price that people pay -- the



          20   cost to the provider, to you, what percentage is -- is



          21   attributed to the value of the energy itself, the fact



          22   that it's megawatt hours that could be burned and the



          23   other is the line, the transmitting costs?



          24            MR. WETZEL:  Again, I think the answer to your



          25   question is that roughly 10 to 15 percent of the cost of
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           1   the wind power delivered to market is to recover the cost



           2   that it pays to utilize the transmission facilities.



           3            And I'll make sure to note that the production



           4   increase, and I'll refer to Slide L5 on the top right



           5   which shows the wind speed map of the region, the



           6   production that is able to be achieved in New Mexico is



           7   far greater than the wind energy that you can source more



           8   locally in Arizona.



           9            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Oh, I understand that.



          10            MR. WETZEL:  Such that the economic benefit of



          11   that increased production more than outweighs the cost of



          12   the transmission line service to be able to deliver that



          13   product to --



          14            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Okay.  But if any of that



          15   energy is going to be used in Arizona and I have my doubt



          16   about that now, too, but if any of it is going to be used



          17   in Arizona, it will be bought by somebody that has to pay



          18   money for it.



          19            And they have other options.  They can get it



          20   from -- just from the grid itself in Arizona.  Is the



          21   wind energy going to be cheaper to buy in Arizona than



          22   regular grid energy?



          23            MR. WETZEL:  I think that's a difficult question



          24   to answer.



          25            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Yeah, I like to give





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      508





           1   difficult questions.



           2            MR. WETZEL:  It relies upon a forward view of



           3   gas prices, of federal and state and even local policy



           4   that may drive decision making around future generation



           5   resources as well as, you know, the actual load and the



           6   customer demand for different products in the market.



           7            I can tell you that right now based on our



           8   analysis and in my opinion, the price that can be



           9   received in the market for the production shape when



          10   measured on a long-term basis would support the ability



          11   for the project to be built and recognize a return on



          12   that investment.



          13            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Okay.  But we, we the



          14   Committee and me particularly as a member of the



          15   Committee, are trying to represent the users of



          16   electricity in Arizona.  We don't give a darn about



          17   California.  And so we have to make a vote on this.



          18            And if the answer to my earlier question turns



          19   out to be, well, it's not going to be any cheaper than



          20   just getting it from other parts of the sources on the



          21   grid, then you might not vote yes for it.



          22            So I just wanted to know if this is a good deal



          23   for ratepayers in Arizona.



          24            MR. WETZEL:  Understood.



          25            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Why?
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           1            MR. WETZEL:  Understood, and I'd maybe refer



           2   back to my earlier testimony when I talked about the



           3   value attributes of wind energy, in particular, this



           4   shape wind energy to the customer base in Arizona.



           5            We absolutely believe that this is going to be a



           6   economic product for the market and for any customers in



           7   Arizona.  And, again, those customers will enter into any



           8   contracts with us by choice because we are a competitive



           9   merchant project.



          10            But I think the short answer to your question is



          11   that when you look at the alternatives in the market over



          12   the near term or even in the long term, in our opinion



          13   that SunZia and New Mexico Wind delivered as a result of



          14   this SunZia transmission project is economic when



          15   compared to other alternatives in the market for



          16   providing that same power.



          17            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Just because of the shape



          18   issue?



          19            MR. WETZEL:  Because of the shape issue, because



          20   of the diversification benefit, because of the fuel



          21   diversification risk benefit, and because of the carbon



          22   element, the non-carbon elements of the product.  Yes,



          23   sir.



          24            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Yeah.  Of course people who



          25   buy electricity for their house don't care about that
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           1   issue.  That's the -- they're the ones paying the bill,



           2   wouldn't you agree?  I'm not saying all consumers.



           3            MR. WETZEL:  Respectfully, I think certain



           4   individuals do care about the --



           5            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Yeah, I care.



           6            MR. WETZEL:  -- impact of their energy profile.



           7            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  I care, but I think Joe Blow



           8   is going to say this is not a good deal or it is a great



           9   deal.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  I just had a couple of questions.



          11            One, you mentioned the cost of purchasing the



          12   wind energy to transmit.  Does not SunZia or Pattern own



          13   the wind farm that's going to be producing the



          14   electricity, or is it independently owned.



          15            MR. WETZEL:  Pattern Energy does own the wind



          16   facilities that have been awarded the transmission



          17   capacity.  Yes, sir.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  And SunZia is a wholly-owned



          19   subsidiary of Pattern?



          20            MR. WETZEL:  Yes, sir.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  So there isn't an -- there's costs



          22   associated with producing the wind energy, but SunZia



          23   doesn't need to buy it in order to transmit it through



          24   its line; correct?



          25            MR. WETZEL:  Well, so structurally the wind
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           1   farms and the transmission project are two separate and



           2   distinct entities, assets, and, you know, businesses,



           3   frankly.



           4            SunZia Wind will be the customer of SunZia



           5   Transmission via the transmission service agreements that



           6   I referenced earlier.  And SunZia Wind will then pay the



           7   transmission service rate to SunZia Transmission.  And



           8   embed the cost of that rate into its fully, you know,



           9   delivered product to market.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          11            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  I'm sorry.  What did that



          12   discussion say?  Is SunZia going to own the wind farm



          13   itself?



          14            MR. WETZEL:  SunZia Transmission, LLC, will now.



          15   The applicant under this proceeding will not own the wind



          16   farm, no, sir.



          17            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Okay.  So that'll be owned by



          18   somebody in New Mexico, for example, or California?



          19            MR. WETZEL:  Currently it's owned by Pattern



          20   Energy.  We own and operate wind farms across the



          21   country, and Pattern is a U.S.-based company.



          22            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Okay.  But then it should be



          23   real easy, the answer to my original question was what



          24   percentage of the delivered electricity to Arizona from



          25   the wind farm is due to transmission expenses, vis-a-vis
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           1   what they have to pay to get the (speech obscured by



           2   coughing) in the first place.  That's what I'm trying to



           3   drive at.



           4            MR. WETZEL:  10 to 15 percent is the approximate



           5   cost of the transmission delivery of the New Mexico wind.



           6            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  So the other 85 percent is



           7   what you have to pay for the kilowatt hour, megawatt



           8   hours in the beginning.



           9            MR. WETZEL:  Yes, sir, to operate the wind farm,



          10   to recover the capital investment and make a return on



          11   that investment.  Yes, sir.



          12            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little.



          14            MEMBER LITTLE:  I have a couple of questions and



          15   they are basically, 4500 megawatts of power of any sort



          16   being delivered to a -- basically the south central part



          17   of Arizona, obviously it's not going to all get used



          18   where it's delivered.



          19            And you have talked about being in conversation



          20   with customers, potential customers, for the energy.  Do



          21   you -- what are the arrangements for getting the energy



          22   from the substation, Pinal Central, to where it's going



          23   to be used?



          24            I know we have 10 West going from the Palo Verde



          25   hub across to California.  I know you can't tell me who
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           1   those customers are, but is there transmission from Pinal



           2   Central to the SRPs and APSes and whoever else will be



           3   using this power, or is that just kind of something you



           4   kind of figure will happen?



           5            MR. WETZEL:  Yes, ma'am.  It's a great question.



           6   One of the reasons that the project was developed in the



           7   location that it was with the terminus at Pinal Central



           8   500 kV bay that it was -- is because the specific point



           9   in the grid is meant to accept and transmit bulk amounts



          10   of power.



          11            That's why we're on the 500 kV network relative



          12   to the 230 or 115 or other lower networks.  Pinal Central



          13   is a really unique place in the grid.  It is jointly



          14   owned by a number of local electric districts and



          15   utilities including Western -- sorry, SRP, Salt River



          16   Project and Tucson Electric, and the Western Area Power



          17   Association, WAPA, systems also connect into Pinal



          18   Central.



          19            So what Pinal Central allows is for multiple



          20   outlets of bulk power into multiple transmission systems



          21   going multiple directions.



          22            So the different ways that we deliver product to



          23   our customers is dependent on the customer.  If we take



          24   Salt River Project as a theoretical example, and I'm not



          25   saying that we are in any kind of discussions with Salt
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           1   River Project around off-take of the project.



           2            Typically they would accept power at the point



           3   in the system that they take control of it, which in this



           4   case would be the Pinal Central 500 kV bus, and then they



           5   would use their system service to be able to deliver



           6   their customers, whoever that may be, whether it's the



           7   residential customers or maybe a specific commercial



           8   customer that they have.



           9            So it's dependent on the customer, on where they



          10   would take that power, but Pinal Central was specifically



          11   chosen because it does provide access to multiple



          12   networks, of which you could either deliver to those



          13   customers or utilize those networks for further delivery



          14   via additional transmission service with again, as an



          15   example, Salt River Project, to another market point such



          16   as the Palo Verde hub.  Which will likely be part of this



          17   project as well.



          18            MEMBER LITTLE:  So it would be up to the



          19   customer, then, SRP for your theoretical example there is



          20   a part owner in Pinal Central, but if you had a customer



          21   that was not, it would be up to them to make arrangements



          22   to take the power delivery at Pinal Central.



          23            MR. WETZEL:  It could, or it could be a service



          24   that we would provide such that if they requested a point



          25   of delivery somewhere else in the western system, it
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           1   would say, you know, can you get me power at X, Y, Z



           2   point, and we would go and see if we could acquire any



           3   transmission service from Pinal Central to the point of



           4   interest.



           5            And if that was available and economic to do so,



           6   then we might be able to offer that to a customer.



           7            MEMBER LITTLE:  Okay.  And I do have some



           8   questions about the WECC studies, but I'll save those for



           9   Mr. --



          10            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Mr. Wetzel, how is the



          11   customer of the wind product in New Mexico different from



          12   the customer of a transmission line wheel through?  Are



          13   they the same or are they different customers?  Please



          14   explain.



          15            MR. WETZEL:  They're different customers.  So



          16   SunZia Transmission's customer will be the wind projects



          17   themselves.  The revenue agreement for the transmission



          18   line will be a transmission service agreement in which



          19   the transmission line will agree to reserve capacity and



          20   allow the wind farms to utilize that capacity to deliver



          21   from central New Mexico to Pinal Central.



          22            That's the service being offered by SunZia



          23   Transmission, and they will charge a rate to the SunZia



          24   wind farms in central New Mexico, of which the wind farms



          25   will pay.  So the customer for SunZia Transmission is the
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           1   SunZia wind farms today.



           2            As Mr. Acken mentioned earlier, this is an open



           3   access line.  Future customers may come and request



           4   interconnection, and if they choose to move forward with



           5   those interconnection requests, then the transmission



           6   line would have additional customers, additional



           7   generators, which would pay transmission service to use



           8   the line.



           9            That differs from the customers of the SunZia



          10   wind farms, you know, which are utilities, large



          11   industrial wholesale customers.



          12            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Let me just -- I just got to



          13   get back to my original premise.  Let's say that this



          14   project gets approved and built, and it's been running



          15   now for a year, so you got all the bugs worked out of it.



          16            A customer comes up to buy a lot of electricity



          17   and they have two options.  One is to buy it from this



          18   line coming in from New Mexico through who -- whatever



          19   entity owns it.  Or just off the grid itself like they've



          20   been doing all along.  Which would be cheaper?



          21            MR. WETZEL:  Again, that's a difficult question



          22   to answer.  I will do my best from my perspective.



          23            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Well, guess.



          24            MR. WETZEL:  The price of grid energy is



          25   extremely volatile.  So let's take this week as an
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           1   example.  If you were to look at the market price of



           2   energy this week, it would be many multiples of the cost



           3   that the wind project could provide.



           4            So any given day it could be cheaper or more



           5   expensive to take power from the grid relative to a



           6   long-term contract to buy power from the



           7   transmission-enabled wind projects.



           8            So the answer to your question is if that



           9   customer valued the attributes and the risk mitigation



          10   that our product can provide in terms of fuel, shape,



          11   long-term certainty of power prices, then it will be



          12   cheaper for them to buy energy from these wind projects



          13   enabled by SunZia Transmission relative to buying market



          14   power.



          15            If for some reason it was, you know, cool



          16   weather and there was a lot of generation on the system,



          17   then it could be in any given hour that it could be



          18   cheaper to buy market power relative to the price of --



          19            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Oh, yeah, but I wanted you to



          20   smooth it over hundreds of hours.



          21            MR. WETZEL:  In my view, SunZia Wind's energy



          22   proposition is going to be more economic than the



          23   alternative, which would be buying market-generated power



          24   when all the attributes are considered.



          25            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  More economic by what?
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           1   10 percent, 15 percent, 50 percent?



           2            MR. WETZEL:  I apologize, but you're asking me



           3   to opine on future energy prices relative to our value --



           4            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Well, that's what we have to



           5   do.



           6            MR. WETZEL:  -- that's an extremely difficult



           7   question to answer.



           8            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  That's what we have to do on



           9   this Committee.



          10            MR. WETZEL:  I believe it's long-term



          11   economical.  I apologize, I don't think that I'm



          12   comfortable giving a percent answer because I don't think



          13   I know it.



          14            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  No, I'm not going to hold you



          15   to it.  I'm just asking you to guess.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  I just had a couple of questions.



          17   I know that one of the reasons you're doing the DC line



          18   is it has a greater capacity to transmit more megawatts



          19   than an AC line.



          20            The question I have is does Pinal Central, to



          21   the best of your knowledge, have the capacity to



          22   distribute DC power through the grid.  AC is relatively



          23   easy.  But DC, I'm not sure whether Pinal Central is



          24   equipped or will be equipped to be able to transmit that



          25   to providers here in Arizona.
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           1            MR. WETZEL:  Yes, sir.  So I think the answer to



           2   the question is you're correct in that Pinal Central does



           3   not have the capability of handling DC power.



           4            Which is why, and I'll refer to Slide L-15,



           5   we're building a DC to AC converter station, SunZia West,



           6   located less than a mile from Pinal Central in which the



           7   DC energy will be converted to AC in order for us to



           8   actually be able to connect the AC energy into Pinal



           9   Central, which as you correctly point out is an AC



          10   infrastructure project.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  So it will be converted but



          12   not everything along the line necessarily will be



          13   converted, because doesn't some of it just go past that,



          14   or is that the terminate -- it terminates now at --



          15            MR. WETZEL:  It terminates.  Correct.  So



          16   everything will be DC along the route to SunZia West



          17   converter station, and at that point 100 percent of that



          18   energy is converted from DC to AC.  And 100 percent of



          19   that AC energy is connected to the Pinal Central.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  So basically by the time it gets to



          21   the Pinal Central substation it's capable of being



          22   distributed along any existing or future lines that come



          23   out of Pinal or go to other locations that are connected.



          24            MR. WETZEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's correct.



          25            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Grinnell.



           2            MEMBER GRINNELL:  One of the amendment requests



           3   is to include El Rio Sol Transmission, LLC; correct?



           4            MR. WETZEL:  One of our amendment requests is to



           5   bifurcate the existing single CEC into two CECs such that



           6   the second line, Line 2, the AC line would be able to be



           7   assigned under ACC administrative procedures to the



           8   El Rio Sol Company.  Correct.



           9            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Okay.  In the event that this



          10   amendment is not passed, is SunZia financially capable of



          11   continuing the whole project as in the original CEC?



          12            MR. WETZEL:  So Pattern Energy as the parent



          13   company of SunZia Transmission, LLC, the applicant, has



          14   financial resources that I believe would be, you know,



          15   capable of also developing a second line.



          16            We develop projects across the country,



          17   including transmission lines in different regions as well



          18   as the SunZia desert southwest region.



          19            So the short answer to your question is yes,



          20   Pattern Energy does have the financial and experience --



          21   financial resources and the experience to develop a



          22   second line.



          23            However, I believe that SouthWestern Power Group



          24   as the owner of the development rights to Line 2, because



          25   Pattern Energy only acquired the development rights of
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           1   Line 1, would very much be interested in maintaining that



           2   position.  And therefore we would likely review alternate



           3   methods to assign the rights under ACC procedures.



           4            MEMBER GRINNELL:  But the investment would be,



           5   under this particular discussion the investment would be



           6   solely under Pattern or SunZia, they would be financially



           7   responsible for the total production of this line?



           8            MR. ACKEN:  I'm going to answer that as a legal



           9   matter.



          10            So currently SunZia Transmission holds the CEC



          11   for both transmission lines.



          12            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Correct.



          13            MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Wetzel has testified that



          14   Pattern has acquired the development rights for Line 1.



          15   It does not own the development rights for Line 2.  Those



          16   are held by SouthWestern Power Group.



          17            In order to effectuate the development of Line 2



          18   by SouthWestern Power Group, the CEC needs to be



          19   bifurcated and that's the nature of this request.



          20            Pattern, the entity, can't develop Line 2



          21   because it doesn't own those development rights.



          22            MEMBER GRINNELL:  All right.  So to -- I'm



          23   looking for clarity here is all, financial stability.



          24            MR. ACKEN:  I'm trying to give you some.



          25   Apparently I'm failing.
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  No, Mr. Acken.  I guess my



           2   question is should we not agree to this particular



           3   amendment, would South -- how would that second line be



           4   built, if at all?



           5            MR. ACKEN:  Well, the CEC would still be



           6   effective for Line 2.  But the CEC would be held by an



           7   entity that doesn't own the development rights.  And



           8   that's a problem.



           9            And so what Mr. Wetzel said, is if this



          10   Committee and the Commission does not approve the



          11   bifurcation we would seek other -- other opportunities



          12   and pathways in order so that the development rights and



          13   the permitting rights are held by one entity, which would



          14   be SouthWestern Power Group.



          15            MEMBER GRINNELL:  But then would that have to



          16   come back to this Committee for evaluation and an



          17   amendment to the original CEC, or would that be done



          18   strictly at the Corporation Commission?



          19            MR. ACKEN:  In my legal opinion, it's the



          20   latter.  We -- we would not have sought Committee



          21   approval for bifurcation if that's all we were asking



          22   for.  We don't need Committee or Commission approval to



          23   assign a portion of a CEC.  We are requesting it.



          24            And in the nature of transparency and what we



          25   believe is best practice is to be open and make it clear.
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           1   But the Commission has the authority to -- well, the



           2   applicant has the authority under Commission rules to



           3   assign, partially assign an existing CEC.



           4            What we're trying to do with that partial



           5   assignment is just be above board and make sure and make



           6   it clear what we're requesting and why.



           7            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Well, I understand that and



           8   that basically is to help reduce the capital expenses for



           9   the development of both these lines.  Is that fair to



          10   say?



          11            MR. ACKEN:  Well, they're on separate



          12   development time frame by separate entities.



          13            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Okay.



          14            MR. WETZEL:  I would maybe add one thing to --



          15   to Mr. Acken's response, which is that the requested



          16   amendment is still important.  This is a very large



          17   infrastructure project that will require a large amount



          18   of financing to accomplish.



          19            And so one of the reasons that we thought that



          20   this amendment under this proceeding was appropriate is



          21   to ensure that those financing counter parties can



          22   understand that the CEC has been completely bifurcated



          23   and each project can be separately financed, so to just



          24   help ensure there's a very clean and understandable story



          25   to the financing community who don't have the background
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           1   and knowledge around the project that folks in this room



           2   may have.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  And in my limited one year of



           4   experience, there have been -- I've received a number of



           5   letters in which requests have been made to the



           6   Corporation Commission to bifurcate ownership of CECs,



           7   where only one was approved, and it doesn't come back



           8   through us.



           9            In other words, if the project is approved, it's



          10   then up to the -- by us and the Corporation Commission, a



          11   portion of any line can be assigned through the



          12   Corporation Commission to another owner.



          13            MEMBER GRINNELL:  So theoretically we don't even



          14   need to address this issue.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  Well, but by addressing it saves



          16   the applicant and ultimately the consumers money by not



          17   having to have them expend money to get a second shot at



          18   requesting the bifurcation.



          19            And it allows the developer to get the financing



          20   it needs right now rather than waiting six months or a



          21   year or two to get that.  That's all.



          22            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Okay.  I was just trying to



          23   clarify the capital investment.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  No, I understand.



          25            MEMBER GRINNELL:  And who's going to own what.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  I understand and if I'm incorrect,



           2   Bert, any of our three witnesses can correct me.  That's



           3   been my understanding.



           4            MR. ACKEN:  No, that's exactly correct and as



           5   Mr. Wetzel testified that's why we're asking for it here.



           6   It helps timing.  It helps Line 1, it helps Line 2, if



           7   this Committee acts and recommends bifurcation at this



           8   time.



           9            So -- okay.  Go ahead.



          10            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I apologize, Mr. Acken.



          11   Mr. Wetzel, just refresh my recollection that you are



          12   employed by Pattern Energy; is that correct?



          13            MR. WETZEL:  That's correct, Pattern Energy.



          14            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  And so as a result of



          15   that employment are unable to speak on behalf of El Rio



          16   Sol or SouthWest Power Group; is that correct?



          17            MR. WETZEL:  In an official capacity, that's



          18   correct.



          19            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  You had mentioned a customer



          20   base that may exist in Arizona, and you'd also mentioned



          21   that you were in the process of securing customers or



          22   contracts.



          23            Are those customers or contracts in the effort



          24   of securing contracts for Pattern Energy and customers?



          25            MR. WETZEL:  The efforts of securing customers
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           1   are from Pattern Energy, correct, for the wind energy



           2   that would be delivered under Line 1.



           3            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  So you are not in the



           4   process of securing any customers or contracts for Line



           5   2; is that correct?



           6            MR. WETZEL:  That is correct.



           7            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  With respect to the



           8   customers or contracts you're in the effort of securing



           9   for Line 1, are you able to disclose the number of



          10   potential customers -- well, number of customers without



          11   saying who they are?



          12            MR. WETZEL:  I think maybe a better answer is



          13   the customers that we talk to on a regular basis and



          14   continue to either bid or negotiate with.  And that



          15   number is well north of 60 or 70 counter parties across



          16   the west, inclusive of many different utilities and



          17   large-scale commercial and industrial customers that are



          18   looking to site facilities in Arizona.



          19            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  So my next question was



          20   going to be can you disclose what percentage of counter



          21   parties that you're hoping to secure contracts with are



          22   in Arizona, have load in Arizona?



          23            MR. WETZEL:  I don't think we have a target



          24   percentage for the different markets.



          25            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Not a target percentage,
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           1   just of those that you are currently having discussions



           2   with, what percentage of those, say 60, are in Arizona?



           3            MR. WETZEL:  The reason I'm hesitating is



           4   because in certain instances, we are, you know, bidding,



           5   and so I would consider that to be kind of in process.



           6   And we have continued to bid.  There's rolling requests



           7   for proposals that come out.



           8            I don't think I can provide a specific



           9   percentage to you.  I apologize, is to kind of current



          10   discussions with counter parties in one state relative to



          11   another.



          12            I can tell you that we absolutely are attempting



          13   to and hope to provide a material amount of power to



          14   Arizona customers.  However, it's dependent on market



          15   conditions and their interest in the product that we have



          16   to sell.



          17            And so we're doing our very best to be selected



          18   by the customer base because it's an important part or



          19   our value proposition to be able to deliver to Arizona.



          20   We don't always have control over that, of course,



          21   because they need to see the value in the product.



          22            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I understand what you're



          23   saying and appreciate the response.  So if I'm pushing



          24   the envelope with this next question, I apologize.



          25            Can you disclose perhaps what number of





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      528





           1   megawatts from the wind facility in New Mexico would end



           2   up in Arizona should you secure these potential



           3   contracts?



           4            MR. WETZEL:  I'm really not trying to avoid any



           5   questions.  I don't think I can.  Because, again, we just



           6   don't know about whether we will be selected and at what



           7   volume.  You know, it's really hard to answer the



           8   question.  I can't really opine on how much we'll be



           9   selected for.



          10            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  That's fine.



          11            Mr. Acken, because Mr. Wetzel is unable to



          12   describe the potential contracts or customers for Line 2



          13   under El Rio Sol or SouthWest Power Group, are you aware



          14   of any witnesses that would be able to opine on the



          15   customers or contracts that would be secured under Line 2



          16   and how they might be different from the customers or



          17   contracts that would be secured if Line 2 maintain -- is



          18   still opened by Pattern?



          19            MR. ACKEN:  You do like asking compound



          20   questions.  Let me see if I can make sure I get them.



          21            So the testimony in this case is, is that Line 2



          22   is further -- well, Line 1 is closer in its development



          23   time frame; right?  It has -- it hopes to be, if this



          24   Committee were to approve the three limited amendments



          25   that we're requesting, it hopes to be in construction in
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           1   the very near term and operational by 2025.



           2            Line 2 has an in service still of 2031.



           3            So it is not as far as down the line with



           4   respect to identifying potential customers, marketing to



           5   customers, things of that nature.



           6            With respect to the question of potential



           7   customers, the testimony in this case is that Line 2 will



           8   have the same eastern terminus in New Mexico as Line 1,



           9   so it can supply power from wind power from New Mexico.



          10            As an AC line it also has a planned substation



          11   at Willow.  And so it has the potential to attract



          12   customers that want to interconnect in Southern Arizona



          13   in the solar-rich regions there who may look at it as an



          14   attractive opportunity to interconnect.



          15            But because that's further down the line, you



          16   know, that's not information available today.



          17            And then of course it will interconnect at Pinal



          18   Central, which is and will remain an excellent hub for



          19   distribution to Arizona utilities, a number of Arizona



          20   utilities and throughout the western region.



          21            As far as specific witnesses, Mr. Etherton is



          22   also in the employ or does work for SouthWestern Power



          23   Group.  So you're happy -- you know, he's available if



          24   you have further questions, but as far as, you know, what



          25   is the customer mix, it's a little premature given where
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           1   we are in the development pipeline.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just interject, though, or



           3   ask the question of either counsel or one of our three



           4   witnesses there.



           5            And that is if either SunZia or the owner of



           6   Line 2 cannot procure in advance of construction a



           7   sufficient number of customers under contract and it



           8   appears that that's a dead end, then Line 2 wouldn't be



           9   built?



          10            MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, that's correct.  I



          11   think that's consistent with the testimony of Mr. Wetzel



          12   as a merchant transmission line.  These projects aren't



          13   built by utilities and rate base.  They are built due to



          14   customer demand.



          15            There was discussion earlier today with respect



          16   to Mr. Else's reference to High Plains Express and how



          17   that project is not moving forward, and why is it not



          18   moving forward?  There's no economic case for it.



          19            There is a economic case for SunZia which is why



          20   we're all sitting here today.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And the only reason I



          22   brought it up is I don't know that that's necessarily



          23   within our purview.



          24            If, in fact, it goes forward I think at least



          25   arguably there could be an increase in reliable energy
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           1   available in Arizona and maybe elsewhere.



           2            But we can't tell whether or not, just because



           3   we grant a CEC with multiple -- or two CECs, we can't



           4   predict whether either of those projects will be built,



           5   if it's ultimately determined by their owners that



           6   there's an insufficient customer base.



           7            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Thank you, Chairman.  I



           8   think you articulated very well at the outset of the



           9   proceeding that not all of the factors articulated by



          10   statute apply in this case.



          11            So, for example, when it comes to changing the



          12   tower design, that it's just a visual and maybe the



          13   wildlife impact, and so with respect to the specific



          14   question of bifurcating or transferring ownership, I'm



          15   also just trying to work through what factors, if any,



          16   would apply.



          17            And it would seem perhaps that it would be only



          18   if the availability of economical or reliable power would



          19   change in any material way from that which has already



          20   been approved by the existing CEC.  If it's the same, if



          21   it's better, or if it's worse.



          22            Being that a new owner might have opportunities



          23   to engage in different contracts or different customers



          24   than the existing owner, if that makes sense.



          25            MR. ACKEN:  It makes perfect sense, and thank
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           1   you for that.  I understand the question.



           2            As you saw, the testimony in this case is not



           3   focused on that because it is not a difference.  When we



           4   look at the -- there is no difference from what was



           5   originally approved as to the marketability of this



           6   project under separate ownership, combined ownership.



           7            What we looked at is what are the environmental



           8   factors that could change and then, of course, as you



           9   well know, accuracy, economics, and reliability, there's



          10   no change there.  Testimony from us is that there's no



          11   change.



          12            And then, of course, we have provided testimony



          13   on what we believe are minimal at most environmental



          14   changes associated with the requested amendments.



          15            So that's -- so I appreciate the question.  And



          16   I understand better the nature of it.  And that is the



          17   position of the applicant is both projects still market



          18   to Arizona, still market to the region, they do have



          19   different profiles and opportunities, as we talked about



          20   with the AC line and the additional interconnection, but



          21   that's not new.



          22            I mean, that existed in 2015, it was part of the



          23   discussion and evaluation at that time.  So we focused on



          24   what's new and what's different, and the applicant's



          25   position, the bifurcation does not change the calculus
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           1   with respect to adequacy, economics, or liability.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just ask Mr. Gentles, did



           3   you have a question you wanted to ask of anyone?



           4            MEMBER GENTLES:  I did.  It was around the



           5   nature of the customers, but based on the prior



           6   conversation I think my questions have all been answered.



           7            Basically it was how many customers does SunZia



           8   believe it will have and kind of a split between Arizona



           9   and New Mexico, et cetera.  So I think I'm okay for now.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Just wanted to



          11   make sure we didn't ignore you.



          12            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I have one question for



          13   Mr. Etherton.



          14            MR. ETHERTON:  Yes.



          15            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Mr. Wetzel testified that in



          16   relation to Line 1 10 to 15 is transmission cost,



          17   approximately 90 to 85 percent is wind cost.



          18            Are you able to articulate with respect to



          19   Line 2 what that breakdown might be?



          20            MR. ETHERTON:  I am not.  Again, I don't have a



          21   general idea of what the cost of the wind would be for



          22   connection at the end of the AC line in New Mexico.



          23            But, in general, I would think it would be in



          24   the same range; right?  So I don't have the exact, you



          25   know, is it exactly 10 to 15, but it still seems like
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           1   it's within that ballpark of costs overall between the



           2   wind and the transmission.



           3            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Thank you.  I don't have any



           4   other questions, Chairman.



           5            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Grinnell.



           7            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Etherton.



           8            MR. ETHERTON:  Yes.



           9            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Okay.  The wind turbines



          10   consist of a significant amount of copper and other fine



          11   metals.  Wouldn't the cost of wind generation and the



          12   development of these wind turbines, wouldn't that factor



          13   into the overall cost of producing the wind power --



          14            MR. ETHERTON:  Again, I'm not --



          15            MEMBER GRINNELL:  -- commodities?



          16            MR. ETHERTON:  I would think any commodities for



          17   a wind park itself and the facilities would be included



          18   in that.



          19            MR. ACKEN:  That might be a better question for



          20   Mr. Wetzel.



          21            MR. WETZEL:  I was going to ask if I could



          22   answer that one.  Yes, so Pattern Energy is a wind



          23   developer, so we spend a lot of time understanding the



          24   cost structure of our wind farms.



          25            And while not necessarily directly related to
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           1   the transmission line at hand, there's actually a fairly



           2   limited amount of copper in our project base.



           3            It's involved mostly the copper in transformers



           4   to step up our medium voltage power to higher voltages.



           5   The materials that are primarily used for the wind farm



           6   as well as the transmission line are steel and aluminum.



           7   Those are the two major commodities.



           8            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Isn't there about 1900 pounds



           9   per 1500 kilowatts of production in a wind turbine?



          10            MR. WETZEL:  Of copper?



          11            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Yes.



          12            MR. WETZEL:  I can't answer that directly.  It



          13   sounds like you may have a specific number.



          14            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I can.



          15            MR. WETZEL:  I can just tell you from a



          16   commodity management perspective aluminum and steel make



          17   up the majority of our commodity risk.



          18            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And



          19   appreciate the Committee for a lively discussion.  I'm



          20   going to probably regret replowing this ground, but



          21   Mr. Haenichen asked about Arizona consumers and maybe



          22   their preferences for different types of power.



          23   BY MR. ACKEN:



          24      Q.    Mr. Wetzel, I want you to go back to that



          25   because you touched on it, but there are different types
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           1   of Arizona consumers; correct?  There's not one class.



           2      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Oh, absolutely, yeah.  I mean, so



           3   we tend to talk about the larger utilities in the state



           4   but of course there's cooperatives, electric districts,



           5   large scale, you know, commercial industrial customers



           6   that may choose to do what we call behind-the-meter



           7   projects, typically solar.



           8            They'll build, you know, on the roof tops or in



           9   their immediate vicinity or buy power kind of through one



          10   of the utilities, but a direct purchase from a specific



          11   prompt.  So there's multiple different ways that local



          12   customers get power.



          13      Q.    And some of those new industrial customers or



          14   expanded customers such as the Intel semiconductor



          15   facility, TMC, and the data centers, those are



          16   significant power users; is that fair to say?



          17      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Absolutely, I think it's fair to



          18   say that the three largest anticipated generators of load



          19   growth for the region would be manufacturing, data



          20   center, electric vehicles.



          21            Those make up a very large percentage of minimum



          22   of the load growth, and both the manufacturing companies



          23   and the data center companies absolutely represent large



          24   clean energy buyers as well across the U.S.



          25      Q.    And, in fact, they are looking at locations
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           1   where they can acquire renewable energy; is that correct?



           2      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Based on my experience, that's



           3   absolutely correct.



           4      Q.    And so having access to renewable energy, it's



           5   your understanding, is an important component to them



           6   when they are considering where to place their



           7   facilities.



           8      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  I'd agree with that.  And I'd go



           9   further to say that depending on the company, a lot of



          10   companies are not just looking for access to renewable



          11   energy as measured on an annual, you know,



          12   megawatt-hour-usage basis, but actually on a hour-by-hour



          13   generation basis to actually be able to match their



          14   energy on, again, an hour-by-hour basis rather than just



          15   an annual accounting.



          16      Q.    Thank you.  I'm going to wade into perhaps more



          17   shark-infested waters and talk about California.



          18            You mentioned the California heat wave that's



          19   begun going on in the past week or so; is that correct?



          20      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  I did reference that.  That's



          21   correct.



          22      Q.    I am not an economist.  I was a geologist in



          23   undergrad.  And so -- but I have a limited understanding



          24   of supply-and-demand.  And my understanding is more



          25   supply helps reduce cost.  Is that simplistic
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           1   understanding valid?



           2      A.    (MR. WETZEL) I'll start by saying I'm not a



           3   trained economist either, although I do spend a lot of



           4   time in energy markets and understanding the economics of



           5   energy projects and specifically SunZia.



           6            And that's true.  And to further refine the



           7   point, what you see in these markets is when a specific



           8   region has an excess demand, in this case, you know,



           9   California this week had a new peak load record at 52



          10   gigawatts.



          11            What happens is it drives the cost up for any



          12   market-available power because, you know, there's --



          13   there's increased demand relative to the available



          14   supply.



          15            And so anyone looking to buy that specific power



          16   at that time, whether it be in California, Arizona, or



          17   any other regional location, is going to have to pay a



          18   higher price for it.



          19            So by injecting very large-scale wind energy



          20   into the western system, whether or not our customer is



          21   physically located in one state versus another, the



          22   benefits that it provides from a market context are going



          23   to be present no matter what because of the supply,



          24   demand, and balance that Mr. Acken referenced.



          25      Q.    And it's your understanding that Arizona
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           1   utilities are seeking power from the same market that



           2   California utilities are when they need to acquire



           3   market-based power; is that correct?



           4      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Yes, the western market, while not



           5   completely regionalized, is absolutely a vibrant



           6   marketplace such that there is ability to purchase power



           7   from various parts of the region.  And so, yeah, in many



           8   circumstances multiple states and multiple customers are



           9   requesting power from the same location.



          10      Q.    So would you agree that more capacity in the



          11   western market is good for the region as a whole



          12   regardless of where that individual resource may be



          13   going?



          14      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  I absolutely agree with that.



          15      Q.    Thank you.



          16            MEMBER GRINNELL:  One quick question, if I may.



          17            When you get your solar or get your wind station



          18   in New Mexico, the consistency of power, will that vary



          19   on the different winds throughout the whole lines?



          20            In other words, say producing X amount of



          21   500 watts, just argument, is that consistent throughout



          22   the whole line because the generation of that power is at



          23   point A, or does that fluctuate over the course of that



          24   line?



          25            With the winds, I go through California,
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           1   Southern California, through Blythe, all that.  You see



           2   all these wind turbines out there.  Are they all



           3   producing the same amount of power?



           4            MR. WETZEL:  Okay.  Got it.  So typically wind



           5   farms include a single, you know, type of wind turbine,



           6   although it's not uncommon for multiple technologies or



           7   multiple turbine types to be included, so one turbine



           8   could be 1.5 megawatts and one could be two megawatts, so



           9   if both of those turbines were connected to the same



          10   project, it could be possible that there is multiple, you



          11   know, megawatt volumes being generated, but typically,



          12   and in the case of SunZia this is absolutely true, those



          13   are collected at a single common bus and effectively



          14   merged and added before it hits the transmission line.



          15            Such that while an hour-by-hour or



          16   minute-by-minute basis the total megawatts flowing



          17   through the line will change based on the wind speed,



          18   what's actually present on the line will be, you know,



          19   consistent from minute to minute because all of the wind



          20   that's being generated is collected in a single location



          21   before it's transmitted.



          22            MEMBER GRINNELL:  And then it's dispensed back



          23   out to the, wherever it's going to go.



          24            MR. WETZEL:  To the terminus in this case in



          25   Pinal Central; that's correct.
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           1            MR. ACKEN:  I'm going to shift topics if that's



           2   okay.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  That's quite okay.



           4            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Acken, I'm sorry, I don't



           5   mean to do this to you.  I could talk about this all day.



           6            MR. ACKEN:  It's your Committee, you guys.  We



           7   are here to answer questions.



           8            MEMBER GRINNELL:  This is more of an education



           9   for me as anything.  Thank you.



          10            MR. ACKEN:  No, we want -- at the end of the



          11   day, we want a robust record based on substantial



          12   evidence in support of our requested amendments, and we



          13   will spend all day answering the questions that you have



          14   in support of that.



          15            Okay.  So another question that came about was a



          16   question that I couldn't answer, what are earth wires.



          17   BY MR. ACKEN:



          18      Q.    Mr. Etherton, can you describe what earth wires



          19   are and what's going to be used here and this was in the



          20   context of bird collisions?



          21      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  Correct.  I do recall the



          22   conversation and, again, for that context for earth wire,



          23   in my context I was referring to them either to as static



          24   wires or the optical ground wire.



          25            So I'm going to differentiate those a little bit
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           1   more as well.  So the static wires at least in the desert



           2   southwest primarily have one -- one purpose.  So I'll



           3   call it a purpose.  And that's to protect the phase wires



           4   and everything below it from lightning.



           5            So remember they're on top of the structure.



           6   They're protecting, they provide a shielding for



           7   lightning that hits in that general area, it won't hit



           8   the phase conductors or the DC conductors in some cases.



           9            So the earth, in that context from that



          10   discussion, those are the -- that's the primary purpose



          11   is to protect from lightning.  Now, if there's an area



          12   where there's no lightning, you may not need it.



          13            There's areas, my son lives in Portland, there's



          14   power license there, 500 kV lines, there's no lightning



          15   up in that area.  There's no static protection on those



          16   lines.  It just -- it shocked me, literally.  Sorry.



          17            But in this area where we have a lot of



          18   lightning, I mean, this summer has been one of those



          19   areas, there's a lot of lightning so therefore the shield



          20   wires protect that.



          21            Now, about 30-some years ago, some smart company



          22   figured out that, hey, we have been adding fiber optics



          23   to a lot of these transmission lines, mainly in local



          24   area, but maybe even in some long distance areas as well.



          25            So they came up with another type of static
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           1   protection where they put fiber optic in the middle of



           2   that static wire and they called it an optical ground



           3   wire.  And it's great.  I mean, it's -- we've put in, you



           4   know, thousands of miles here in Arizona over the last



           5   30 years based on that.



           6            And it has multiple advantages.  Not only the



           7   static protection.  It has the fiberoptic capability to



           8   provide operational control, protective relaying, all the



           9   other, all the -- telemetry, video, substations, all



          10   that.



          11            But it also provides even more because it's a



          12   larger cable.  So a typical static wire is around



          13   three-eighths of an inch in diameter.  So pretty skinny.



          14   It's usually solid steel and again going from structure



          15   to structure, whereas the optical ground wire is about



          16   twice the diameter.



          17            So it's a little bigger, because again the



          18   fiberoptic's inside, but it also it provides additional



          19   shielding from the lightning protection as well.  That's



          20   so -- and, again, in diameter it's roughly double the



          21   size of a typical static-only wire.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Can the optical ground wire be also



          23   used for communication?



          24            MR. ETHERTON:  Absolutely.  With the



          25   fiberoptics, again, inside of it, embedded in it, any
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           1   purpose on fiberoptic that you could do with, protective



           2   relaying, SCADA, video, anything related to the operation



           3   of the line would be included on that fiber.



           4            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Mr. Etherton, this might be



           5   beyond the scope of our review here, but I'm curious,



           6   what segments of the relevant line are optical ground



           7   wire or static wire?



           8            MR. ETHERTON:  So in the case of SunZia and El



           9   Rio Sol, both lines are going to have two optical ground



          10   wires for the entire distance of the line.  It's built



          11   into the design, the structures are capable of handling



          12   it.  Everything is included with that optical ground



          13   wire.



          14   BY MR. ACKEN:



          15      Q.    And so did you recall the testimony that



          16   Mr. Else provided that the narrow diameter earth wires



          17   constituted the vast majority of bird collisions



          18   observed?



          19      A.    (MR. ETHERTON) I do.



          20      Q.    And it's your testimony that these optical



          21   ground wires are substantially larger in size?



          22      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  Approximately double, that's



          23   correct.



          24      Q.    Thank you.  Committee Member Little asked about



          25   the ACC Staff letter.  Do you recall that line of
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           1   questioning?



           2      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  I do.



           3      Q.    And I believe her question, one of her questions



           4   and she may have follow-up, was what information did



           5   SunZia provide to Commission Staff in order for



           6   Commission Staff to make their recommendation.  Can you



           7   address that?



           8      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  Sure.  So the data requests



           9   referred to the technical studies related for the WECC



          10   three phase rating study for the HPDC, so Line 1.



          11            We had been performing that and it was submitted



          12   to WECC in early July, around July 1st.  It was noted on



          13   July 6 to all the WECC members across the west, 13 states



          14   plus the Canadian provinces for a 60-day review as well.



          15            But that's the document that included power



          16   flow, transient instability, post transient, and



          17   everything contained related to the DC line, that



          18   3000-megawatt rating.  Clarify that.



          19            MEMBER LITTLE:  That's my question.  Thank you.



          20            MR. ACKEN:  Okay, great.  Mr. Chairman, we're



          21   about to go into discussion of the ground return facility



          22   that's not being -- that would be eliminated as a result



          23   of this requested amendment.



          24            Do you want us to start now or is this a



          25   convenient break before we dive into that?
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  I mean, we either break now or we



           2   break in about 10 or 15 minutes.  If we're going to



           3   change gears, we might want to just go ahead and eat



           4   lunch now and come back at one, but I'd ask everybody if



           5   we're going to do that to be promptly available at one so



           6   that we don't dillydally for too long.  We do stand in



           7   recess.



           8            (Recess from 11:56 a.m. to 1:02 p.m.)



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Good afternoon, everyone.  I'm



          10   assuming that we're ready to get started.  I don't know,



          11   Leonard, if you could grab the door and close it.



          12            Mr. Acken, you may proceed.



          13            MR. ACKEN:  Good afternoon.  Thank you,



          14   Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee.



          15            We're going to continue our rebuttal case with a



          16   discussion of the ground conductors that we are no longer



          17   seeking to use should the amended tower structures be



          18   authorized.



          19            So the MRCs will replace this prior



          20   configuration, but there was a question, a series of



          21   questions, from Member Schweibert and others asking for



          22   more information about those ground electrode facilities,



          23   and so we're going to address that.



          24            So at this time if I could have SZA-12 and 13



          25   shown.  And maybe my numbering is incorrect.  12 should
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           1   be a few PowerPoint slides -- oh, 13 is the PowerPoint



           2   slides.  12 should be the excerpt from the FEIS.



           3            Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.  So on the right-hand



           4   screen is SZA-12, an excerpt from the final EIS and then



           5   we're waiting for the slides which should be SZA-13.



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Is there a photo of one of these



           7   things?



           8            MR. ETHERTON:  We'll show a diagram.



           9            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.  Perfect.



          10            MR. WETZEL:  I think this might be the slide



          11   deck.



          12            MR. ACKEN:  Is it all in one?



          13            MR. WETZEL:  It is, Bert.



          14            MEMBER LITTLE:  That's not what's on our iPads.



          15            MR. ACKEN:  Yeah, we need to be consistent.



          16            MEMBER LITTLE:  Never mind.



          17            MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  Let's go with what's on the



          18   screen.  My apologies.  We were trying to move this



          19   quickly and we've lost something in translation.  So this



          20   will be SZA-12, starting with an excerpt from the final



          21   EIS.



          22   BY MR. ACKEN:



          23      Q.    Mr. Etherton, I would like you to describe the



          24   ground electrode facilities and walk the Committee



          25   through the slides which will include a diagram as
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           1   requested by Member Hamway to better understand what



           2   exactly we're talking about.



           3      A.    (MR. ETHERTON) Sure, Mr. Acken.  Thank you.



           4   Thank you, Chairman, members of the Committee.  I'll try



           5   to go through this again.



           6            If you recall during my testimony I had kind of



           7   a high-level description and a couple diagrams showing



           8   how the ground electrode would be situated between the



           9   two converter stations, New Mexico and Arizona.  So



          10   again, I'll try to elaborate a little bit more.



          11            Each ground electrode facility, again, what we



          12   discussed is not located directly at the converter



          13   station and there's reasons, electrical reasons why they



          14   cannot be.  Mostly because, again, you're trying to



          15   inject that 3000 amps into the ground that I mentioned



          16   earlier.



          17            You also get a lot of ground potential rise, a



          18   lot of voltage right there at the station where other



          19   electrical stuff is, so it could affect other, not only



          20   facilities at that station, but kind of nearby as well.



          21            So typically the way they've been done, and as I



          22   mentioned during the testimony that they're located some



          23   distance away from the converter station, and that's



          24   where there's a little bit of science that needs to go



          25   into that.
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           1            But it's a minimum of five miles all the way up



           2   to, you know, 30 or 40 miles away from the converter



           3   station from either end.  Okay.  So that's one aspect of



           4   it.



           5            And to get from the converter station over to



           6   the ground electrode facility is this lead line, lower



           7   voltage, you know, definitely something less than 100 kV



           8   insulated, but it's carrying that -- that 3000 amps or



           9   could carry up to that 3000 amps out to that ground



          10   electrode facility.  And I've got a couple diagrams to



          11   describe that a little bit more.



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Is that strung on infrastructure



          13   or is it -- probably depends on how far the line is.



          14            MR. ETHERTON:  There's different was to get



          15   there, excuse me, Member.



          16            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I'm sorry.  I don't even know



          17   what I just asked you.



          18            MR. ETHERTON:  You were asking how the lead line



          19   got there, basically; right?



          20            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I guess you do have to care.  I



          21   was just asking.  What was I asking?



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  You asked how to get the ground



          23   leads to the location of the grounding.



          24            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Right.



          25            MR. ETHERTON:  So let me see if I can address
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           1   that.  So from the converter station out to the ground



           2   electrode you do need some conductors to get there to



           3   carry that.



           4            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Right.  That's what I meant.



           5            MR. ETHERTON:  Okay.  So there's different ways



           6   you could do that.  You could do it attaching to the



           7   structure or you could have a totally separate structure,



           8   set of structures, to get it out to that facility.



           9   That's typically how it's done.  And I -- so just -- just



          10   to kind of clarify that.



          11            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Mr. Etherton.



          12            MR. ETHERTON:  Yes.



          13            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Just so I understand this



          14   correctly, you're saying that there could be up to five



          15   additional miles of wires, not under the Committee's



          16   jurisdiction because of the size, but still up to five



          17   miles more on either end?



          18            MR. ETHERTON:  That is correct.



          19            MR. WETZEL:  I'd like to clarify that.  Five



          20   miles would be the minimum.



          21            MR. ETHERTON:  There could be 40 miles --



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  One at a time, please.



          23            MR. WETZEL:  Apologies.  Five miles would be the



          24   minimum depending on the final engineering and the



          25   location, and we'll talk through a bit of those
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           1   considerations coming up.  It could be up to 40 miles of



           2   additional line on either side for each conductor, or



           3   each converter station.



           4            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  As we proceed here, do you



           5   have graphics that show sort of the radius on either end



           6   where SunZia was potentially planning to have those lines



           7   terminate?



           8            MR. WETZEL:  We don't have a specific graphic



           9   but I'll address the considerations within that radius.



          10            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Okay.  Thank you.



          11            MR. ETHERTON:  Thank you for clarifying that.  I



          12   think I did say, yeah, but it's minimum to that.



          13            So, again, the purpose of it is to keep it away



          14   from the converter station itself.



          15            Each ground electrode facility, as I mentioned



          16   earlier, why we're consist of a series of deep earth



          17   wells or electrodes, again to be routed into the ground



          18   and to be able to distribute the current into the ground.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just ask, is this for the



          20   optical grounding now because we just heard that we're



          21   not going to use the traditional grounding.  So is this



          22   for the traditional ground wires that are being



          23   eliminated that we're now discussing?



          24            MR. ETHERTON:  That is correct.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
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           1            MR. ETHERTON:  This is for the ground electrode



           2   facilities that we are not proposing to use.  We're



           3   proposing to use the dedicated metallic return



           4   conductors.



           5            MR. ACKEN:  And if I could interject, yes, just



           6   to be clear what this entire discussion is about is the



           7   ground electrode facilities that were contemplated with



           8   the original approval.



           9            Member Schweibert asked the question of, well,



          10   compare the impacts.  We want to understand better what



          11   those ground electrode facilities are and compare the



          12   electrodes to what was originally approved to what we're



          13   requesting here.



          14            That's the nature of this is to be responsive to



          15   that.  And frankly tell -- provide this committee with



          16   additional context that we think will be supportive of



          17   our request to amend.



          18   BY MR. ACKEN:



          19      Q.    So, Mr. Etherton, with that, please continue.



          20      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  Sure.  Thank you.  Again, as I



          21   mentioned earlier, each site may be up to the 600 acres



          22   in size.  Again, this is the reference from -- from the



          23   EIS.  And there's other uses that may be allowed on the



          24   site.



          25            And I do have a potential configuration because
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           1   they come in all shapes and sizes.  Again, based on the



           2   earth, the soil resistivity, the thermal properties of



           3   where you've selected for the site, and a number of other



           4   factors.



           5            Here's an example of what we're just calling a



           6   circular design.  It's approximately 1500 feet or so in



           7   radii, but the way this would work you would have that



           8   lead line, as we were talking, coming from the converter



           9   station into the center core of this radii.



          10            That -- from that location, you would have a



          11   distribution of underground cables that would take the



          12   electrodes out and kind of disperse that injection of



          13   current into a wider area.



          14            And, again, that's up to the full area of the



          15   circle here that's shown in this particular example.



          16            So each one of these are under ground.  It would



          17   have a series of ground wells that are, you know, a



          18   hundred feet or so in depth, and I've got an example of



          19   what one of those wells would look like here in a second.



          20            But it would also show that there -- how much it



          21   takes to be able to distribute that amount of current



          22   into the ground and not inject it just in one location



          23   but actually spread it out a little bit more.  Again,



          24   this is one facility.  You have another one toward the



          25   other end of the line as well.
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           1            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Can I just ask how often this is



           2   used and will it continue to be used since we have the



           3   newer technology?



           4            MR. ETHERTON:  That's a good question.  So this



           5   is used fairly often.



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.



           7            MR. ETHERTON:  And it's typically a choice of



           8   the DC, you know, the project owner itself, based on



           9   what's in the area, is there anything between point A and



          10   point B, is it in a congested area like a downtown area



          11   where there's a bunch of facilities that could be



          12   impacted by the underground current going from one to the



          13   other.  So it's typically a project choice.



          14            Just a quick example of what one of those



          15   electrode facilities, this was pulled from an example.



          16   It's definitely deeper than a hundred foot that we've



          17   mentioned before in this area, too.



          18            But one of those underground cables would be



          19   coming in and then you'd have this, basically a well that



          20   would go all the way down into the depth of the soil



          21   resistivity that you're trying to achieve to be able to



          22   distribute that current and where it needs to go.  And,



          23   again, it's going to go the least path, typical



          24   electricity, least path of resistance till it gets to the



          25   other end.
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           1            And there could be, again, a number of different



           2   facilities underground to be able to get there.  But this



           3   is an example.



           4            And there could be several of these, as I



           5   mentioned, situated around this facility itself.  So,



           6   again, it's a little bit more detailed than we had



           7   provided previously, so I thought it would be worthwhile



           8   to describe, again, what's all contained within that.  So



           9   hopefully that's helpful.



          10            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, ma'am.



          12            MEMBER LITTLE:  So would this be like a



          13   fenced-off area that nobody could get access to or -- 600



          14   acres is a lot.



          15            MR. ETHERTON:  That's a good question as well.



          16   So what we've seen -- sorry, wrong button -- what we've



          17   seen again from other examples around the U.S. and even



          18   around the globe, the only area that's really fenced is



          19   the small area where the main feeder line is coming in.



          20            There's a control house there with telemetry



          21   that's kind of monitoring to make sure, one, the lead



          22   line is available to what it needs to do in



          23   communications and, you know, overall security of that



          24   little control house.



          25            But the rest of it is not fenced.  So there's
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           1   other multiple uses that you could do on this.  But



           2   there's also, as you can imagine, quite a bit of heating



           3   that would occur when you're injecting that much current



           4   into the ground.



           5            So I think the usage is fairly limited.  But



           6   what we've seen, it is not all fenced.  Only -- only the



           7   local control or terminal building as it's shown here is



           8   fenced, it's about a 60-by-60 area what's represented



           9   here.  So it's a fairly small area for fencing.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  And the rest of it isn't fenced



          11   because it's underground?



          12            MR. ETHERTON:  That is correct.



          13   BY MR. ACKEN:



          14      Q.    Mr. Etherton, I'd like you to talk a little bit



          15   about, I heard originally that the testimony was that you



          16   would, this would have the capability of injecting



          17   3,000 amps into the ground; is that correct?



          18      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  That is correct.  That is the



          19   rating.



          20      Q.    And that would be those well structures, that's



          21   where the injection point would be?



          22      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  Distributed among several of



          23   these, that's correct.



          24      Q.    What are the impacts on surrounding



          25   infrastructure from injecting 3,000 amps into the ground?
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           1      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  Well, again, the -- where you



           2   inject this amperage, it's trying to get to the remote



           3   end, and anything that's in its path that has a lower



           4   resistivity than -- than the ground that it's been



           5   transmitted would also be another path for that -- for



           6   that current to travel to the other end.



           7      Q.    Oh, I'm sorry, I thought you were done.



           8      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  No, I was going to say,



           9   there's -- any underground facility that can conduct



          10   electricity would, in fact, be a potential path.



          11      Q.    Mr. Wetzel, Member Schweibert asked about



          12   locations for this.  Can you talk about how you would



          13   evaluate locations, siting constraints, things of that



          14   nature relative to actually finding a location to put a



          15   facility such as this?



          16      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Absolutely.  So when we look at



          17   locating any of our, you know, infrastructure we have to



          18   consider everything from the public, you know, input,



          19   landowner concerns, environmental concerns, you know,



          20   visual land use, all of these different things.



          21            So I'll first touch on what Mr. Etherton



          22   mentioned which is at this level the size of the ground



          23   electrode could have material impacts on underground



          24   infrastructure, primarily pipelines.



          25            So what has to happen is you're evaluating where
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           1   these can be located.  You do a number of cathodic



           2   protection and ground resistance studies to understand



           3   where the pipelines are located if you were to site this



           4   facility and you were near them, what would the impacts



           5   be.



           6            And then you work with the pipeline company to



           7   understand can you mitigate them?  And so that might be



           8   upgrades, it might be relocations of pipelines.  And so



           9   they can be pretty materially impactful to pipeline



          10   infrastructure anywhere near them.



          11            Secondly is soil type.  So Mark mentioned,



          12   Mr. Etherton mentioned soil resistivity, so depending on



          13   the soil types either you -- you may not be able to



          14   locate a facility there or you may have to dig deeper, so



          15   it goes into the design of the facility.  But soil



          16   resistivity is another major factor.



          17            Those are the more technical ones.



          18            The ones that we, you know, really care about in



          19   addition are the more, you know, I'd probably refer to it



          20   as development-focused areas that is, again, environment,



          21   public input, and landowner input.



          22            And so while, you know, this is under ground and



          23   may not all be fenced, we don't anticipate that neighbors



          24   or landowners would be prefer this to be located in their



          25   area.  It's hard to understand, frankly.  It's very
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           1   technical.



           2            And so being outside of population centers and



           3   frankly even outside of residential, you know, areas



           4   would be the preference, and that's typically where these



           5   are located throughout the U.S. and the world.



           6            We also have to consider vegetation.  Because of



           7   the amount of heat created here, it does require grading



           8   and it requires vegetation removal and management.



           9            So you know, where, what types of vegetation are



          10   in the area, you know, creating the least amount of



          11   impact is of course important to us.  And then, you know,



          12   species and habitat is another big one.



          13            Mr. Etherton mentioned the heat and the depth of



          14   these electrodes.  So there is the potential for



          15   biological impacts where these are located, especially



          16   for subterranean species, you know, anything that might



          17   be in the area.



          18            So that's something that we heavily considered



          19   when we were deciding whether this was the right solution



          20   for the SunZia project.



          21            And then, you know, lastly what I'd say is when



          22   we're combining all of those different elements and we're



          23   evaluating the alternative, which is the MRC solution



          24   that has resulted in the request for updated tower types,



          25   that's what we compare.
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           1            We say okay, 600 acres, possibly up to 40 miles,



           2   somewhere between five and 40 miles of additional, you



           3   know, lead lines, lower voltage.  But, you know, new



           4   transmission facilities or distribution lines, I should



           5   say, to connect them, not just in Arizona but also in



           6   New Mexico.



           7            And we weigh the impacts of everything I just



           8   described relative to the MRC solution which eliminates



           9   all of this infrastructure and all of these potential



          10   environmental concerns and instead creates new tower



          11   types.



          12            We did that, and we said okay, what would the



          13   new tower types look like, of which we've shown to you



          14   today, and then we had our experts look at them and say



          15   would these create any additional impacts relative to the



          16   existing towers, and we heard from the testimony in the



          17   last few days was that we do not find any substantial nor



          18   material impacts related to that addition of the MRC.



          19            And so when we as company and sponsor of the



          20   project weigh those two alternative options, we came to



          21   the clear conclusion that the least environmentally



          22   impactful and public impactful solution here is to update



          23   the tower and go at the MRC solution relative to the



          24   ground electrodes.



          25            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little?



           2            MEMBER LITTLE:  Can I confirm, I asked this



           3   question before, but can I confirm that all of this



           4   infrastructure was included in the consideration for the



           5   original CEC and in all of the biological stuff that was



           6   presented, everything that was presented before the



           7   Committee in the original hearings for the CEC?



           8            MR. ACKEN:  I can confirm that -- and I'll speak



           9   to this, and the witnesses can amplify.  You're seeing



          10   the excerpt from the FEIS.  The entire FEIS record, the



          11   original proceeding was incorporated into the record.



          12   And so we had a massive, massive documentary record in



          13   the proceeding before.



          14            We did not specifically request approval for



          15   this from the Committee, because for the reasons



          16   mentioned, you know, they're outside the Committee's



          17   jurisdiction due to lower voltages, things of that



          18   nature, but that information was part of the record.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  And, again, there aren't any



          20   conditions, findings of fact, or conclusions of law



          21   relating to the grounding facility in the existing CEC;



          22   is that correct?



          23            MR. ACKEN:  That is correct.



          24            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Just hypothetically, and I can



          25   be short, you couldn't put this in the San Pedro Valley,
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           1   then?



           2            MR. WETZEL:  Absolutely not.  We would not



           3   propose this in the San Pedro Valley, nor would we choose



           4   to put this anywhere near the population centers, which



           5   is why in Arizona specifically locating these facilities



           6   would be challenging and potentially impactful.



           7            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I'm done, Bert.



           8   BY MR. ACKEN:



           9      Q.    Just want to make sure.  Mr. Wetzel, I'd like to



          10   turn your attention, and if we could have shown on the



          11   screen a letter that was docketed on -- dated



          12   September 1st from the Arizona Solar Energy Industries



          13   Association, and we would mark this for identification as



          14   SZA-13, if I've got my numbering correct.



          15            But this is again, if we could have it shown, a



          16   September 1st, 2002, letter from AriSEIA?



          17            Mr. Wetzel, are you familiar with this letter?



          18      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  I am.



          19      Q.    And can you please summarize the perspective



          20   shared by AriSEIA with respect to this project?



          21      A.    (MR. WETZEL) Absolutely.  So the Arizona Solar



          22   Energy Industry Association, AriSEIA, provided this



          23   letter of support for the SunZia project, and I won't



          24   read it verbatim, it's in the record, but I will point



          25   out a couple of elements that they have presented,
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           1   which -- which I think you know mirror some of the



           2   testimony we've provided.



           3            First is that a diversified grid and diversified



           4   generation is important.  Second is that the wind energy



           5   provided out of New Mexico is not going to displace or



           6   cause any detriment to the proliferation of Arizona's



           7   solar industry development, in that both New Mexico wind



           8   and Arizona Solar can and should co-exist for the benefit



           9   of all Arizonans and all -- everyone in the western U.S.



          10            And if I could maybe ask to move to the page 2



          11   of the letter.  I'll just refer, again, to this.  So they



          12   requested that the SunZia southwest transmission line be



          13   approved.



          14   BY MR. ACKEN:



          15      Q.    Thank you, Mr. Wetzel.



          16            Mr. Cernea Clark, during cross-examination of



          17   Mr. Else, he expressed initially non-opposition to the



          18   three requested amendments proposed or requested by



          19   SunZia at this time.  Do you recall that testimony?



          20      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Yes, I do.



          21      Q.    And do you recall he later expressed concern



          22   that he would not have the opportunity to advocate for



          23   other conditions if his -- if he was in non-opposition to



          24   the requested changes?  Did you recall that?



          25      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Yes, I do.
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           1      Q.    So, Mr. Cernea Clark, have you had any



           2   discussions with Mr. Else regarding potential conditions



           3   that would be acceptable to the applicant, and we hope



           4   amenable to Mr. Else that would allow him to express



           5   non-opposition to the project?



           6      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Yes.



           7      Q.    And would you present those for the Committee?



           8      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Yeah.  Sure.  Thanks.



           9            So we met with Mr. Else this morning, and he had



          10   concerns which he had expressed before about Condition 26



          11   and the sensitivity of the lower San Pedro watershed



          12   area.



          13            We brought in the environmental lead on the



          14   preconstruction/construction design of the project as



          15   well as my colleague, Cindy Freeman.  And hashed through



          16   the concerns Mr. Else had and tried to develop some



          17   meaningful commitments that we could make as a condition



          18   that we would -- that we've drafted up.  And if we could



          19   pull those up.



          20            MR. ACKEN:  Give the AV team a moment.  We will



          21   mark these for identification as SZA-14.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  What I'm trying to figure out was



          23   when I'm looking on the iPad, I was showing as SZA-13



          24   being your application for amendment.



          25            Am I looking in the wrong spot?
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           1            MR. ACKEN:  I will accept responsibility for



           2   that.  I gave the AV team the wrong link.  So SZA-13



           3   should be and is the letter from AriSEIA.  And my



           4   apologies for the confusion.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



           6            MR. ACKEN:  The tablets will be updated at the



           7   next break, I'm informed.  In the interim we will show on



           8   the screen what we've marked as SZA-14.  And I appreciate



           9   your patience.



          10            The team has been working hard with Mr. Else and



          11   credit to him as well for spending time to go through



          12   these.  So, you know, we're presenting them as soon as we



          13   can.



          14            Thank you very much.  Let the record reflect



          15   that what is shown on the screen has been marked as



          16   SZA-14, the proposed conditions that Mr. Cernea Clark



          17   just referenced.



          18   BY MR. ACKEN:



          19      Q.    And, Mr. Cernea Clark, I would ask you present



          20   these and describe them for Committee at this time.



          21      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Sure.  Thanks.  I do want to



          22   stress it was a productive solutions-oriented work



          23   session we had with Mr. Else.



          24            So their concerns have to do with the traffic



          25   along the Cascabel Road.  To a certain extent some of
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           1   that, or a lot of traffic is the result of the



           2   Condition 26 with helicopter installations.



           3            And so what we identified was an area, and we've



           4   documented it here just north of 3 Link Road, then up to



           5   the county line of Pima and Cochise where there will be



           6   no -- no existing roads would be used off of the Cascabel



           7   Road itself.



           8            And Mr. Else had talked about concerns around an



           9   existing road that we had evaluated for potential use



          10   which we're not going to be using.  That would be an



          11   example.



          12            So this commitment is for that stretch of road.



          13   We will just use the county road and not go beyond it.



          14            We also committed that we wouldn't be trying to



          15   widen it.  We would be doing veg management on that road.



          16   And we would implement a speed limit of 20 miles an hour



          17   on Cascabel Road and the county road during construction.



          18            We have, you know, this additional language here



          19   at the end, that's just to make sure that this condition



          20   is consistent with whatever requirements the counties or



          21   Arizona Department of Transportation might require.



          22            So we just want to make sure that we aren't



          23   promising to do something on the one side that then is in



          24   conflict with another obligation.



          25            So these are all things that, working with our
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           1   construction folks we think we can do and we will do.



           2   That's why we're proposing to have it be, you know, a



           3   legally binding condition.



           4            And I think that it goes a long way to



           5   addressing some of Mr. Else and his colleagues' concerns.



           6   We're going to keep working with the community in lower



           7   San Pedro.  But these are things that we can clearly



           8   commit to today.



           9            And then the second one, you guys --



          10      Q.    Before you move on --



          11      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Sure.



          12      Q.    -- I want to follow up on what you just said.



          13   Regardless of Condition 38, are you committed to working



          14   with the lower San Pedro community?



          15      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Absolutely.



          16      Q.    Thank you.  Please continue.



          17      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Sure.  And you have heard



          18   about concerns around the FAA lighting requirements.



          19   Again, those are not relevant to the amendments we've



          20   presented, but there -- it's a concern for the community,



          21   and we want to work closely with communities.



          22            So this is a condition that would apply for



          23   Line 1 and Line 2.  That we will do just what we've been



          24   doing and that you have heard testimony on of working



          25   hard to minimize any lighting of these transmission
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           1   structures.  Of course within the framework of what the



           2   FAA requires.



           3            And that's something that we've already



           4   demonstrated that we've done by bringing the lighting



           5   down from 21 to 11 to five lights.  And something that



           6   we'll continue to do.



           7            And this is also an area where we're going to



           8   continue working with the community.  You had public



           9   comment from Mike Weasner who helped get the dark sky



          10   program up at Oracle State Park.



          11            I've been in communication with him so he has a



          12   better understanding of what kind of lighting impacts the



          13   construction will have.  So this is another area where we



          14   are committed to working with the community.  It's



          15   important to do in these projects, and these are things



          16   that we're happy to have be legally binding upon us.



          17            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.  At this time I'd ask the



          18   panel if you have any concluding thoughts, and if not,



          19   turn it over for questions.



          20            MR. WETZEL:  Only concluding thought is a thanks



          21   to the Committee for your time over the last few days and



          22   your consideration for the requests.  We think that these



          23   three amendments will allow these projects to move



          24   forward in the most environmentally and -- and



          25   responsible way.  And so we appreciate your
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           1   consideration.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.  I don't know if any of



           3   the other attorneys have any questions or Mr. Else has



           4   any questions.



           5            MR. ELSE:  Cross-examination type questions?



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.



           7            MR. ELSE:  Yeah, just a few.



           8



           9                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



          10   BY MR. ELSE:



          11      Q.    Regarding the economics, Mr. Wetzel, is it true



          12   that Pattern, like most corporations, will focus on the



          13   power purchase agreements that provide the most profit to



          14   the corporation?



          15      A.    (BY MR. WETZEL)  Pattern is a for-profit



          16   enterprise, the way that we balance considerations for



          17   any power purchase agreement include economics and also



          18   include non-economic elements such as risk, reputation,



          19   things of that nature.



          20      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.  And then you were estimating



          21   that about 10 to 15 percent of the delivered cost of the



          22   wind energy would be transmission, and that the other



          23   85 percent, 90 to 85 percent would be actual generation



          24   cost.



          25            So I'm just, my own clarification, that would
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           1   mean that the cost of putting in the wind facilities is



           2   greater than the cost of the -- installing the



           3   transmission facility that you would own?



           4      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  The capital cost of the wind



           5   facilities is greater than the capital cost of the



           6   transmission facilities.  But the 15 percent versus the



           7   85 percent is the example, is not relatively correct from



           8   a capital cost perspective.



           9            That is the cost of the delivered product



          10   because what I was referring to is the delivered product



          11   from the wind energy, includes paying transmission



          12   service rates, not necessarily paying the capital cost of



          13   the transmission line, if that makes sense.



          14      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



          15             And then point of clarification with Mr.



          16   Etherton, the new process that's been started as of



          17   July 1 of this year with the WECC, this process, if I



          18   understand correctly, and I understand your response to



          19   Committee Member Little correctly only applies to the



          20   first DC line; isn't that correct?



          21      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  That is correct.



          22      Q.    And that so far, no similar process has been



          23   initiated for the second AC line?



          24      A.    (MR. ETHERTON)  That is correct.



          25      Q.    Okay.  And then finally to Mr. Cernea Clark,
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           1   regarding the proposed condition, would you join me in



           2   requesting that we have sufficient time to run this



           3   language by the Cascabel community this evening before we



           4   go into deliberations?



           5      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  I would submit that that's,



           6   on behalf of the applicant we want to provide Mr. Else



           7   and those who support his position adequate time to



           8   evaluate this condition.  We want -- we think they're



           9   good conditions and we would welcome his consent to them.



          10            It's not for the applicant to say as to timing.



          11   We are certainly respectful of the desire for more time.



          12   But I -- I would submit that that's really a question for



          13   the Committee.



          14            MR. ELSE:  Okay.  So that's not really a



          15   cross-examination question.



          16            MR. ACKEN:  You can, I guess, Mr. Cernea Clark,



          17   you can answer the question, but please keep in mind it's



          18   not your place to make calls for Committee.



          19   BY MR. ELSE:



          20      Q.    My question is would you support me in



          21   expressing interest in giving the community just time to



          22   look over the wording?



          23      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  I mean, I think I obviously



          24   need to lean on Mr. Acken's counsel.  But regardless of



          25   these conditions, we're going to continue to work with
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           1   the community.



           2      Q.    Yeah, I understand that.  I just want to make



           3   sure I don't stick my neck out too far with the



           4   community, so I just need a little bit more time and



           5   perhaps the Committee can respond to me on that as they



           6   develop their schedule.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  The thing that I'm going to



           8   indicate is I'm expecting we're going to finish this



           9   hearing tomorrow, and we're not going to delay for days



          10   or weeks because we have hearings now getting scheduled



          11   all the way through May and June of next year, two of



          12   them a month.



          13            So I need to use the time we have wisely and I'd



          14   like to be done by -- as early as possible tomorrow, but



          15   we need to be thorough and complete.



          16            MR. ELSE:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          17            That's all the cross-examination questions that



          18   I have.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Haenichen, did you have



          20   something further?



          21            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  No, thank you.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  May these witnesses be excused at



          23   least for the moment?



          24            MR. ACKEN:  They may, Mr. Chairman.



          25            I would offer a few additional exhibits, see if
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           1   I get them right:  SZA-11, which is the ACC Staff letter



           2   dated August 29, 2022; SZA-12, which was the rebuttal



           3   PowerPoint slide presented by Mr. Etherton; SZA-13, which



           4   was the September 1 letter from AriSEIA; and SZA-14 which



           5   is the two proposed conditions that are on the screen



           6   before you.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Those will be admitted.  Also there



           8   wasn't a formal offer by Mr. Else, but I will admit his



           9   exhibits numbered 1 through 13.



          10            (Exhibits SZA-11 through SZA-14 and



          11   ELSE Exhibits 1-13 admitted into evidence.)



          12            MR. ELSE:  Thank you.



          13            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, ma'am.



          15            MEMBER LITTLE:  I have a question of SunZia.



          16   Probably Mr. Acken can answer this.



          17            Generally in these hearings we hear discussion



          18   of the public outreach, some summary of what the public



          19   comment has been, and I'm wondering why we haven't in



          20   this hearing.



          21            MR. ACKEN:  Fair question.  A couple reasons.



          22   One, the nature of it is just an amendment as opposed to



          23   a typical hearing, but we did present a summary of recent



          24   information that is in SunZia 4.



          25            But I'm happy to have Mr. Wetzel describe the
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           1   public outreach process both recently as it relates to



           2   SunZia 4, but really over the course of the past few



           3   years, and Mr. Cernea Clark can amplify with his



           4   outreach.



           5            SunZia, there's a great story to tell, and so if



           6   you would like to hear it we'd love to share it.



           7            MEMBER LITTLE:  I would.  I don't know how



           8   everybody else feels.



           9            MR. WETZEL:  Sure.  So I'll start by just I



          10   guess referring to the earlier testimony that Mr. Cernea



          11   Clark has presented around engagement with the local



          12   community outside of any formal process.



          13            Pattern prides itself on our community



          14   engagement, we are long-term owner-operator of projects.



          15   We become members of the community.  We have members of



          16   our team, right, our company living in the communities in



          17   which we operate projects because we need to, you know,



          18   make sure that the projects are operated correctly.



          19            So it's a point of pride for Pattern.  And while



          20   we only acquired the SunZia Transmission project recently



          21   and the development rights to Line 1, we certainly



          22   anticipate that we'll continue to build those efforts



          23   going forward, and that we applaud the SouthWest Power



          24   Group team that had been running those efforts in the



          25   past prior to our acquisition.
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           1            I'll ask Mr. Cernea Clark to talk through maybe



           2   some of the federal outreach elements that have occurred,



           3   because this project has the benefit of going through not



           4   only the CEC process but also the BLM process, in



           5   addition to some other processes with the county.



           6            I'll refer, last night we actually had an open



           7   house for the Pinal County SunZia converter station that



           8   we put on, you know, with some engineering teams and



           9   members of our team to see if there were any questions.



          10   There happened to be not many questions for that one, but



          11   we held the event.



          12            So maybe, Adam, you can talk through some of the



          13   federal elements.



          14            MR. ACKEN:  Before we do that, Mr. Wetzel, on



          15   the screen is shown SZA-4, which is the public outreach



          16   summary specifically for this hearing.  I'd like you to



          17   just kind of go through and confirm a few items with me.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  What's the exhibit again, SZA?



          19            MR. ACKEN:  SZA-4, yeah, if you have a copy in



          20   front of you.



          21



          22                      REDIRECT EXAMINATION



          23   BY MR. ACKEN:



          24      Q.    Can you confirm that the applicant had a project



          25   website for this where the public could find information
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           1   about the hearing as well as an opportunity to provide



           2   comments and answer -- ask questions.



           3      A.    (MR. WETZEL) Yes, absolutely.  We're very proud



           4   of our website.  We think it's pretty looking, and



           5   there's absolutely a delegated contact to us for anything



           6   about the project.



           7      Q.    Did the applicant conduct virtual open houses



           8   for this hearing?



           9      A.    (MR. WETZEL) We did.  We conducted two virtual



          10   open houses for the hearing.  I participated on both



          11   meetings as a panelist to provide information to the



          12   community.



          13      Q.    And you held two separate open houses; is that



          14   correct?



          15      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  That is correct.



          16      Q.    And 20 attendees at the first and 18 at second?



          17      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  That's correct.



          18      Q.    And notice of this hearing was published in



          19   The Republic as well as several local regional newspapers



          20   across the length of this transmission line; is that



          21   correct?



          22      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  That's correct.



          23      Q.    And signs were posted; is that correct?



          24      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  That is correct.



          25      Q.    Was it a total of 13 signs informing the public
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           1   of this hearing?



           2      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  There were a total of 13, that's



           3   correct.



           4      Q.    And project mailings, talk about the project



           5   mailings and specifically how that relates to compliance



           6   with one of the CEC conditions, I believe it's



           7   Condition 24 but perhaps you can correct me if I'm wrong.



           8      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  Absolutely.  So as referred to on



           9   the exhibit, 444 recipients of our mailings that were



          10   located within one mile of the center line of the



          11   project.  You'll have to -- I don't have the existing CEC



          12   in front of me so I can't refer to the specific number.



          13            But there is an obligation that for any towns



          14   within five miles of the center line of the project that



          15   notification be provided and that was met.



          16      Q.    And that same condition required notice to the



          17   landowners within one mile?



          18      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  That's correct.



          19      Q.    Okay.  Initially was notice -- were the



          20   application materials provided to local libraries?



          21      A.    (MR. WETZEL)  To my knowledge, yes.



          22      Q.    Okay.  And now, Mr. Cernea Clark, if you would



          23   talk about some of the additional outreach both with



          24   agencies and other stakeholders.



          25      A.    (MR. CERNEA CLARK)  Sure.  Thank you.  So as you





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      578





           1   all know, this was in the records, SunZia went through a



           2   lengthy federal environmental impact statement process.



           3            That is a public process with multiple



           4   opportunities for public comment.  It starts with



           5   scoping, where it is published in the Federal Register



           6   which is available for the public.



           7            The project information of what is proposed to



           8   be analyzed in the environmental review.  The public are



           9   able to comment on that.  And then subsequently there's a



          10   draft environmental impact statement, and that also



          11   triggers a public comment period, and there are public



          12   meetings.  And then ultimately there's a final EIS



          13            In this case just as we are undergoing these



          14   amendments before the ACC, we're currently going through



          15   a NEPA process.  That started with the scoping process as



          16   I just stated with a public comment period.



          17            Because of COVID, we had virtual meetings where



          18   the public was able to listen and hear and ask questions



          19   of the Bureau of Land Management, as well as the project.



          20            And then just recently in the summer subsequent



          21   to the publication of the draft EIS to process the



          22   amendments that we're dealing with right now, the public



          23   was, again, given an opportunity to provide public



          24   comment, ask questions both in writing and through a



          25   virtual open house.
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           1            So there's a parallel federal process with



           2   extensive public engagement opportunity with virtual open



           3   houses that we've done.



           4            And then, of course, there has been a lot of



           5   engagement on the side, both obviously SouthWest Power



           6   Group, myself as well, working closely with Cindy



           7   Freeman, who's been part of the project for a long time



           8   engaging with stakeholders.



           9            As I described in my prior testimony that is,



          10   that goes from local, regional, and national.  And that's



          11   an ongoing process.  So an example that's germane to the



          12   lower San Pedro is, you know, we did present to the lower



          13   San Pedro Watershed Collaborative.  I had sought to



          14   provide further engagement with them.



          15            It's a consensus organization, so there was --



          16   not everyone was on board with having SunZia continue to



          17   present at their meetings, but we still provided the



          18   mediator of that group with project updates and look



          19   forward to continuing with this kind of engagement.



          20            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.



          21            Is that responsive?



          22            MEMBER LITTLE:  Thank you.



          23            MR. ACKEN:  Nothing further.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody else have any questions of



          25   these three gentlemen?  You may step down.  It's up to
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           1   Mr. Acken to let you know whether you should go home or



           2   stick with us.



           3            MR. ACKEN:  I don't have much choice, do I?



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  I can't tell you what to do.  I



           5   can't even fire you.  Where are we at at this point?



           6            MR. ACKEN:  We have nothing further as far as



           7   evidence.  You know, if it's the Committee's decision to



           8   deliberate in the morning, there's not much to do this



           9   afternoon.  We could give closings, brief closings now,



          10   do them in the morning.  It's really whatever the



          11   Committee's preference is at this time.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just ask you, and I don't



          13   mind even putting this on the record.  I think that you,



          14   the Committee, and myself were of the belief that all we



          15   had to do was to process either a single order that



          16   addresses the three proposed amendments or a separate



          17   order for each of the lines.



          18            But I thought that maybe we could do just a



          19   single order.  But I think you were proposing two; is



          20   that correct?



          21            MR. ACKEN:  I was proposing two.  And the reason



          22   for doing it is so that each owner would have their own



          23   approval, this Committee will make a recommendation to



          24   the Commission.  So a recommended form of order.



          25            Our hope and thought about what made sense was
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           1   that there would be two recommended forms of order coming



           2   out of this proceeding, one for each line that would then



           3   be sent to the Commission for approval.



           4            If the Commission were to approve those, then at



           5   that time, Pattern could assign the one form of order



           6   approval to Southwestern Power Group, but that's why



           7   we're requesting or envisioning two separate forms of



           8   order.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  And that's fine.  And what happened



          10   was Tod Brewer who is the paralegal that I work very



          11   closely with and is a lot smarter than I am had talked



          12   with Steve Emedi, one of the attorneys with the



          13   Corporation Commission.



          14            And he suggested to Tod -- I didn't speak with



          15   him directly and I know that you may have communicated



          16   with him -- that they would like us to probably attach



          17   the two CECs which would be substantially identical to



          18   the orders and we might do that as exhibits.



          19            Because essentially, unless these three changes,



          20   if we should agree to one, two, or three of them, change



          21   the need to add conditions as we discussed 38 and 39, at



          22   least with respect to the SunZia direct current line,



          23   that essentially the Corporation Commission did not set



          24   aside the original CEC.



          25            They just wanted us to consider these three
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           1   factors and if these factors are approved and don't alter



           2   those CECs, they're approved as is.



           3            But were you able to speak with Mr. Emedi or



           4   somebody on the legal staff of the Corporation



           5   Commission?



           6            MR. ACKEN:  I have not.  I received an e-mail



           7   from Mr. Emedi earlier this afternoon.  He directed me to



           8   Maureen Scott.  She's the assigned attorney on the case.



           9   So that was -- I haven't had a chance to speak with her.



          10            I am fine proceeding with the existing CECs



          11   being exhibits to both forms of order, you know, whatever



          12   makes sense.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  I was going to suggest that we



          14   attach the two CECs which would be essentially identical



          15   to the order.  But in the order to add any additional



          16   conditions to either one that the committee might agree



          17   to based upon anything that SunZia and Mr. Else and the



          18   Committee all agreed to.



          19            But I think that that probably would be fine



          20   because I would ask the Committee ultimately to just vote



          21   to affirm the two prior CECs.



          22            We don't need to go through each condition and



          23   each finding of law of conclusions of law because those



          24   were already approved, and unless the Committee is



          25   intending to alter or amend those, they lie as is.
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           1            MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And that is how the Commission



           2   does it when it amends a CEC issued by the Committee,



           3   right?  It takes -- it has a separate order, form of



           4   order that says the CEC adopted by the Committee is



           5   modified by adding conditions if that's what the decision



           6   is, or modifying to address the request that we made.



           7   And all other provisions of the existing CEC as approved



           8   by the Committee remain in effect.



           9            So then you would attach the original CEC as the



          10   exhibit and then that form of order would have the



          11   revisions.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  Well, what I'm inclined to do but I



          13   want to hear from the Committee is I don't think that you



          14   can probably get the paperwork in a pasture of finality



          15   till at least you speak with the -- an attorney from the



          16   Commission.



          17            And I don't know that we could vote on anything



          18   today.  But if you want, we can either go immediately or



          19   take a couple-minute break, but I think we should hear



          20   the closing arguments today.



          21            Because it's just a summary of the evidence that



          22   we've heard and the like.  And if you think we need a



          23   five or ten-minute break before we put you all to that



          24   task, we can take it or we can go right away.



          25            MR. ACKEN:  I'm prepared to give my closing at
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           1   this time.  I did just receive an e-mail from Maureen.



           2            I'll need to follow up with her, I think I can



           3   get the Committee the answer as to ACC legal's position



           4   in the next half hour if you want to move forward.  If



           5   you want to wait till tomorrow, that's fine, too.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  It just depends on how



           7   complicated -- I think we, you know, I didn't think we



           8   needed to attach the CECs, but it's not a bad idea.  And



           9   I'm not going to contradict the Commission that's



          10   ultimately going to have to review this and kick it back



          11   to us for a third hearing.



          12            So if we find out today we'll see where we're



          13   at, but I don't know whether you would have time to



          14   construct the necessary documents.



          15            We always have a PDF probably that we keep just



          16   as part of the record to show where we started from.  And



          17   then we work on the Word document only to put it in final



          18   form.



          19            I don't know whether that can be done today or



          20   not, so I don't want to speculate.  And I don't want to



          21   keep talking.  What we can do is --



          22            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Grinnell.



          24            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Just more a question here:  I



          25   think this discussion is making the assumption that all
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           1   three amendments are going to be approved and I'm not



           2   saying they're not, but what I'm asking here, what



           3   happens to the original CEC or if all the three



           4   amendments aren't approved?  Maybe two out of three or



           5   one out of three.



           6            Does that change the dynamic of what comes out



           7   of the AG's office or what Mr. Acken may have to prepare?



           8   Just out of curiosity.  In other words --



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  I think that this Committee, all of



          10   us exercising our own independent judgment, need to vote



          11   on each of the proposed changes.



          12            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Right, but my question is --



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  If only the Committee as a whole



          14   approves only two of them, that's what we live with.  If



          15   they approve only one, that's what we live with.  If we



          16   approve none, we're stuck with the original CEC and



          17   SunZia at a later date can apply to the Corporation



          18   Commission to assign a portion of its CEC to the other



          19   company.



          20            In other words, I'm not saying we should



          21   approve.  I'm not going to express my opinions as to what



          22   I would approve until we go through everything and have a



          23   vote.



          24            MEMBER GRINNELL:  No, I agree with that, sir.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I guess my question was



           2   particularly as to these three potential, number 38 and



           3   39, whatever it is, if we do not approve any of these,



           4   then 38 or 39 will not be allowed to be entered into the



           5   CEC?



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  I don't think they would be unless



           7   there's a stip -- okay.  We're not going to add anything



           8   that isn't in the original ones unless adding it is



           9   something that was raised by any amendments that we



          10   approve.



          11            But that doesn't preclude Mr. Else, Mr. Acken,



          12   with the approval of the other parties to add conditions.



          13   Even though no amendment was requested, we could add



          14   conditions to the original CEC or we can add conditions



          15   to a revised CEC, one or both.  So I don't think that



          16   that much matters.



          17            MR. ACKEN:  At least from the applicant's



          18   standpoint, I'm going to advocate strongly for all three,



          19   of course.



          20            I do think that the original CEC needs to stand



          21   on its own, and any amendments would be done in the



          22   nature of a recommended form of order which, again, is



          23   commonplace for the Commission where you say replace



          24   line 2 with this new information or add Condition 36,



          25   something along -- that's typically how it's done.
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           1            At the same I'm e-mailing legal who I think may



           2   be listening to this conversation and trying to get



           3   clarity from them as to whether they want the original



           4   CECs attached to the separate forms of order.



           5            But we would envision, again, if approved we



           6   would need two separate forms of order.



           7            If you were to deny the bifurcation, you know,



           8   there would be no need for two separate forms of order.



           9   But in our mind all three of these are, you know, part



          10   and parcel, three components of a whole that we need



          11   approval for.



          12            MEMBER GRINNELL:  This was a question, it wasn't



          13   a statement of fact.



          14            MR. ACKEN:  Understood.



          15            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I was just trying to get



          16   clarity as to what the process is.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  And we'll vote on each of the three



          18   requested changes and then we'll have to decide where



          19   we're at.  I don't know how -- I'm not going to violate



          20   the open meeting law and poll everybody.



          21            We're just going to have to wait and see what



          22   happens after we get the documents for our review,



          23   consideration, and approval or disapproval.



          24            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Chairman, if it's



          25   appropriate and I temporarily put my Commission hat on to
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           1   sort of view the question of form of order and maybe to



           2   help with Rick's, Member Rick's question.



           3            I would envision something like a single order,



           4   with -- and if that order approves the bifurcation or the



           5   transferring of ownership, then attached to that one



           6   order would be two CECs.



           7            If, however, the single order denies the request



           8   for bifurcation then there would be perhaps one or no



           9   CECs attached to that order.



          10            If the Committee approves the amendment for



          11   tower height, changing the tower design, then one of



          12   those two attached CECs might be a clean version that



          13   includes the requested amendments in it.  If that makes



          14   sense.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  And that was my thought earlier.



          16   We can, I'll let you think this through, Mr. Acken, and



          17   consult with the other attorneys.  I think we probably



          18   could do it depending on where we're at with the single



          19   order.  And then attaching two of the orders, the two



          20   separate CECs, if bifurcation is approved.



          21            And, again, as I pointed out, even if



          22   bifurcation isn't approved down the road, that can be



          23   presented to the Commission.  But I won't argue whether I



          24   think that's the biggest barrier to this whole amendment



          25   process.
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           1            Do we want to go right -- does the Committee



           2   want to go right into the closing arguments or take a



           3   short break?



           4            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I'm good with continuing.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  But I'm just one person, so.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Well, is there anybody on the



           8   Committee that's opposed to at least beginning the



           9   closing arguments of the parties?  And after that we'll



          10   take a break and figure out whether we're going to resume



          11   later this afternoon or do things first thing tomorrow



          12   morning?  Mr. Acken?



          13            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I'm



          14   prepared, as prepared as I'm going to be.



          15            So, thank you, Committee.  We really appreciate



          16   your time.  It's -- this is a unique case; right?  And at



          17   the end of day we're here requesting three narrow



          18   amendments.



          19            One is the time extension, one is the



          20   bifurcation, and the third is the tower change.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  So again, time extension,



          22   bifurcation, what was the third?



          23            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Heights.



          24            MR. ACKEN:  Tower structures.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  Got it.
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           1            MR. ACKEN:  So with respect to the first two,



           2   there is no meaningful difference with respect to



           3   environmental effects.  And the third, the testimony



           4   shows that that, too, there is no difference with respect



           5   to environmental effects.



           6            So on those grounds, we would request approval



           7   of three amendments.  All three are necessary to



           8   construct this project in a timely manner.



           9            This project has so, so many benefits for



          10   Arizona and the region.  And in order to unlock those, we



          11   need these three amendments.  So we are -- I cannot be



          12   more clear about the request.



          13            And I think the evidence is clear as well.  I



          14   don't think there is any dispute on the first two that



          15   there is no environmental effects associated with them.



          16            And on the third, I think ultimately it took a



          17   few days to get there, but I think there is agreement now



          18   that there are no environment effects associated with the



          19   additional tower structures.



          20            If anything, what we have are environmental



          21   benefits from the elimination of the ground electrode



          22   facilities.



          23            So what you are seeing as a result is an



          24   improved project from what this Committee approved in



          25   2015.
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           1            And that's consistent with the testimony of the



           2   witnesses, their commitment to work with the communities,



           3   you heard how hard they worked to reduce lighting, how



           4   responsive they are to the local community, how hard



           5   they're working with U.S. Fish and Wildlife, Game and



           6   Fish, Pima County, any stakeholder that wants to engage



           7   with Pattern whether they support the project or not,



           8   Pattern engages with them.



           9            And listens to them and takes their input as an



          10   opportunity to say how can we make this great project



          11   even better.  And I hope that's come through.



          12            I was happy to hear that Mr. Else expressed



          13   initially no opposition to the three requested changes.



          14   After hearing the testimony, I really appreciate that



          15   from him.



          16            I understand it comes with the caveat; right?



          17   He had the caveat that he still wanted some conditions to



          18   address some concerns that he and some residents in the



          19   San Pedro Valley have.  And that's why we proposed



          20   Conditions 38 and 39.



          21            Those conditions are not related to the



          22   requested amendments, but they are presented in a spirit



          23   of good faith, compromise, and consistent with the



          24   applicant's -- that's a terrible pun -- pattern and



          25   practice of working with the local community.  And that's
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           1   just a great example of it.



           2            And so we do hope Mr. Else can support those



           3   requested -- those suggested conditions.  And certainly



           4   SunZia can support them with his consent.



           5            I want to remind the Committee, and this is



           6   something near and dear to me, not from this case but



           7   from others, about the role of the Committee and



           8   the Commission and the need to rely on substantial



           9   evidence.



          10            Decisions must be made on substantial evidence,



          11   not speculation.  And we would submit that this record,



          12   the information, the testimony provided by the SunZia



          13   team is substantial evidence in support of the requested



          14   amendments.



          15            And, finally, I want to thank you for coming



          16   with us to Biosphere 2.  I admit I was a little unsure



          17   about coming here.  You know, I'm used to going to



          18   conference facilities, hotels, and this was a little



          19   different, and I wasn't sure how it was going to work



          20   out.



          21            I want to thank the Biosphere.  I think they



          22   did -- the team, I think they did an excellent job in



          23   hosting us.  And I can't think of a better venue to talk



          24   about a project like this.  Biosphere 2, what a



          25   aspirational project, what a hopeful vision, and what a
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           1   world-class research institution it is today.



           2            And what better place to talk about a project



           3   like SunZia which you've see me a lot; right?  I



           4   represent a lot of applicants.  I bring a lot of (cough



           5   obscures speech) you've seen many more projects.  This



           6   one is unique.  This one is, it's such a great project.



           7   I got to be careful; right?  I can't say all my kids are



           8   equal.



           9            But this is such a phenomenal project.  I mean,



          10   the largest wind resource, largest renewable project in



          11   the western hemisphere.  I'm honored to be a part of it.



          12   I'm honored to work with the SunZia team which works so



          13   hard to do the very best when it comes to siting, the



          14   economics, their engagement, everything they do, they do



          15   at the very highest level.



          16            And so with that we thank you for your attention



          17   and respectfully request your approval of the three



          18   requested amendments.  Thank you.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          20            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



          22            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Quick point of order or



          23   information.  A gentleman by the name of John Wesley



          24   Miller, he was like a second dad to me, he just passed



          25   away this last spring.  He was the construction manager
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           1   of this Biosphere.



           2            MR. ACKEN:  Oh, neat.



           3            MEMBER GRINNELL:  And he was internationally



           4   known as Mr. Solar.  Recognized by the Home Builders



           5   Association, two former presidents, and I just can't tell



           6   you how proud I am to have known the man and I wanted to



           7   just second the compliment to the Biosphere here, to



           8   their hosting capabilities and to this magnificent



           9   facility.  Thanks, Bert.



          10            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Stafford.



          12            MR. STAFFORD:  Thank you, Chairman, members of



          13   the Committee.  Western Resource Advocates asks that this



          14   Committee grant SunZia's application to modify its



          15   certificate of the environmental compatibility.



          16            The Commission has already determined that the



          17   route for SunZia is environmentally compatible.  The



          18   scope of this hearing was about the three proposed



          19   amendments to the CEC.



          20            Two of which extended the expiration date and



          21   allowing for separate ownership of the two lines.  Those



          22   are changes on paper.  They don't have an impact to the



          23   environment and should be approved so that the project



          24   can be built.



          25            The third amendment, the proposed changes to the
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           1   state structures, is the only physical change to the



           2   project.  The issue before this Committee is then what



           3   effect do the updates and pole design have on the



           4   environment compatibility of the project.



           5            The evidence presented in the hearing showed



           6   that the amendments are as environmentally compatible if



           7   not more so as the CEC that has already been approved.



           8            The marginal visual contact of the new



           9   structures is negligible.  The new structures are well



          10   below the height limit imposed by the original CEC.



          11   Importantly, the new structures will decrease ground



          12   disturbance compared to the old structures.



          13            We heard testimony that the additional cross



          14   arms do not present increased collision risk to birds.



          15   We also heard that because of the new guy wires are



          16   shorter than originally proposed the new structures could



          17   reduce avian exposure to guy wire collisions.



          18            The applicant is committed to using the best



          19   technology to protect birds from the transmission lines



          20   and has expanded its use of bird flight diverters in high



          21   risk areas.



          22            The Audubon Society's report found that 64



          23   percent of bird species in the U.S. will be vulnerable to



          24   extinction due to climate change if we continue on our



          25   current emissions trajectory.
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           1            That report also had good news.  That we can



           2   reduce the vulnerability for 70 percent of those species



           3   by limiting warming to one and a half degrees Celsius.



           4            The evidence is incontrovertible that



           5   human-caused greenhouse gas emissions have already warmed



           6   the planet by about 1.1 degree Celsius from



           7   pre-industrial levels.



           8            The intergovernmental panel on climate change



           9   states that to keep to one and a half degree in global



          10   temperature, economy-wide carbon dioxide emissions must



          11   be net zero by 2050, and that we need to reduce carbon



          12   emissions by 45 percent economy-wide by 2030.



          13            Unless carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gas



          14   emissions are significantly reduced now in the near term,



          15   global temperatures will likely rise by two degrees or



          16   more by mid-century.



          17            We can't put off reducing carbon emissions.



          18   Warming above one and a half degrees could trigger



          19   catastrophic irreversible consequences such as species



          20   extinction.



          21            Climate change is a bigger threat to avian life



          22   than these transmission lines, particularly in light of



          23   extensive mitigation efforts undertaken by the applicant



          24   to preserve and restore habitat.



          25            And these transmission lines will enable four
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           1   and a half thousand megawatts of new wind energy.  Energy



           2   without greenhouse gas emissions.



           3            The SunZia lines can avoid up to 16.7 million



           4   metric tons of carbon dioxide per year.  This is a



           5   necessary step to mitigate climate change.



           6            These lines need to be put in service as soon as



           7   possible.  The longer we wait to reduce emissions the



           8   greater the amount of cumulative carbon dioxide emitted



           9   into the atmosphere, and the costlier it will be to



          10   correct.



          11            You remember, this is a merchant line.  It is



          12   not being built on the backs of captive ratepayers.  The



          13   applicant is bearing the risk.  The evidence has shown



          14   that the amendments are as environmentally compatible as



          15   existing CEC, if not more so.



          16            This Committee should grant SunZia's application



          17   for amendment as submitted so that the project can move



          18   forward and new wind resources can be constructed.  Time



          19   is of the essence.  Thank you.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Costello.



          21            MR. COSTELLO:  Thank you, Chairman, members of



          22   the Committee.  Pinal County had previously intervened in



          23   this action and is in support of the project.  I thank



          24   you to the Committee for allowing us to continue to



          25   participate.
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           1            My participation in these hearings has been



           2   limited to gathering information and hearing the



           3   testimony concerning the proposed amendments to the CEC



           4   to see if significant concerns were raised.



           5            I appreciate the testimony of the SunZia



           6   witnesses, and have not seen anything in the presentation



           7   that causes concern over the three limited amendments



           8   that are being proposed to the current CEC.



           9            It appears that many of the objections that have



          10   been raised during the course of this proceeding are



          11   outside of the scope of the limited amendments that are



          12   being requested, and go to dissatisfaction with the CEC



          13   that has already been granted to this project.



          14            So Pinal County sees no -- has no objection and



          15   sees no reason not to grant the amendments requested.



          16   Thank you.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Else.



          18            MR. ELSE:  Well, I'll just be winging it here



          19   because, you know, one thing I've learned for sure is



          20   that I do need attorney representation, and the person



          21   who I had been working with as an consultant



          22   unfortunately is dealing with a lot of health issues



          23   right now and was not available.



          24            But as I understand the situation right now, the



          25   Committee will only be voting on three things, the three
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           1   components that are in the requested amendment.



           2            In my opening statement, I was under the



           3   apparent misunderstanding that they would also be voting



           4   either in favor of CEC-1 or in favor of CEC-2 or some



           5   combination thereof.



           6            But my understanding at this point without any



           7   advice of counsel is that the only thing that the



           8   Committee will be voting on is whether to approve the



           9   three components in the application to amend.



          10            I appreciate being able to give all the



          11   testimony that I was able to give because -- and as you



          12   can tell from that testimony, I've been very chagrined



          13   since the project was first introduced about the route



          14   selection.



          15            And I presented evidence related to route



          16   selections that would have far less impacts.  But for my



          17   colleagues who are watching online, it appears to me now



          18   that what's going to happen here is either we end up with



          19   two CECs in which we have an opportunity to add two



          20   conditions, Conditions 38 and 39 that I hope to work out



          21   with the two affected communities this evening, or to



          22   revert to the 2015 CEC.  I guess it was actually approved



          23   in 2016.



          24            So with that understanding, I have better



          25   comprehension of what the possible options are for both
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           1   the Committee and myself as an intervenor.



           2            And I won't conclusively say whether I support



           3   the amendments or not because we're still working out the



           4   details of the proposed conditions 38 and 39.



           5            But I especially want to thank everybody who's



           6   been involved with this proceeding for being so



           7   accommodating with the fact that I don't have a full



           8   understanding of all the legal aspects, and for intently



           9   listening to all the points that I made.



          10            I'll continue to advocate through any options



          11   that I can, but I certainly appreciate everybody being so



          12   attentive to what I had to say in my testimony.



          13            That's my concluding statement.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Anything further?



          15            I want to thank all of you, and Mr. Else, we



          16   didn't need you to be a lawyer.  Sometimes it's helpful



          17   to be a lawyer and sometimes lawyers make things worse.



          18            But we understand your concerns and the concerns



          19   of the Committee.  But based upon my legal and judicial



          20   training, I believe we're obligated to follow the law and



          21   we have to take things as we find them.



          22            And if the laws aren't properly designed to



          23   address current and future concerns, then it's up to the



          24   communities throughout the state to work with the



          25   legislature to make things better than they are.
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           1            But as I earlier stated, I believe our only



           2   directive is to look at the three amendments and



           3   determine whether or not we need to add any additional



           4   conditions because of new environmental impacts that



           5   arise.



           6            I know that the members of the Oro Valley



           7   community aren't happy about the route, and I know you



           8   weren't happy, Mr. Else.  But the route was already



           9   selected and approved and found to be environmentally



          10   compatible.



          11            And we as a nation are in a dilemma.  The world



          12   is in a dilemma.  We need more renewable energy sources



          13   and a lot of them have yet to be developed.  And I am



          14   optimistic that if we can at least take major steps



          15   forward now, we have a chance of improving technology as



          16   we go down the road.



          17            I'm done making speeches, but I want to thank



          18   everybody.



          19            And, Mr. Acken, what I propose we do is maybe



          20   take a 10- or 15-minute break, and I don't think we're



          21   going to be in a position of making a decision today, but



          22   maybe we will be.



          23            But I'd like everybody to be refreshed and we'll



          24   come back in about 15 minutes or so.  If you need a



          25   little more time than that I'm hoping you can reach the
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           1   attorney in the Corporation Commission because I want to



           2   do it right.



           3            And I think one order with both CECs perhaps



           4   as we -- well, I think the order can address the three



           5   changes.  I think we would -- I don't think there's a



           6   need for us to approve the CECs as previous, but we can,



           7   as previously written but they should be attached as



           8   exhibits.



           9            And if we need to add any conditions we can



          10   either do that in the two CECs which essentially would be



          11   identical, but one for each of the two parties.



          12            And I'll say nothing further unless any of our



          13   participants have questions or any members of the



          14   Committee have questions.



          15            Mr. Else?



          16            MR. ELSE:  Yes, I have one question.  In the



          17   body of the 2016 CEC, there's certain language that is



          18   not -- that would not be applicable to both of the



          19   subsequent CECs.  Will that be handled in the form of



          20   order?



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  It can be.  I don't know whether



          22   it's really necessary if we have more conditions that are



          23   necessary.  It's not going to probably hurt anybody to



          24   leave them there, unless it's going to change the



          25   direction of the construction of these two lines would





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      603





           1   have.



           2            MR. ELSE:  I was referring to in -- before you



           3   get to the conditions in the 2016 CEC, there's wording,



           4   for example, that would not apply to CEC-1 that --



           5   there's wording on page 4, for example, that states that



           6   both lines would intersect with Willow Substation.



           7            Can that change also be handled in the form of



           8   order?



           9            MR. ACKEN:  Yes, absolutely.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  I think we can do that as part of



          11   the bifurcation.



          12            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  So, Chairman, a question for



          13   Mr. Acken, then, as a part of your request for



          14   bifurcation of the two CECs, are you also requesting that



          15   this Committee eliminate the option A and option B that



          16   was previously granted to Pattern?



          17            MR. ACKEN:  You know, that's a great question.



          18   And I'll have an answer for you.  I think it's not my



          19   place to speak on behalf of the applicant, but all the



          20   testimony is they're moving forward with the DC line.



          21            So if the Committee wants to do some cleanup, I



          22   don't think there's going to be opposition from the



          23   applicant.  And I would characterize that in the nature



          24   of cleanup.



          25            When I had focused on it, as in what revisions





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      604





           1   need to be made to authorize our three changes, not what



           2   all should be done to clean it, but we will give some



           3   thought to that.



           4            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  Please consult with your



           5   client because I believe that that would affect your



           6   client's rights, your client certainly has the right to



           7   proceed --



           8            MR. ACKEN:  Right.



           9            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  -- with either of those two



          10   options.  And just because your client has decided to



          11   exercise one does that mean that the Commission then has



          12   jurisdiction to amend the CEC by eliminating the other



          13   option?



          14            MR. ACKEN:  We have not requested that right.



          15   But I will follow up with my client to see if it has any



          16   concern with that.  Is that responsive?



          17            MEMBER SCHWEIBERT:  I think so.  Thank you.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  And if we were to eliminate it, it



          19   would be in the orders that the option B has been



          20   selected.  But the lines will be under separate ownership



          21   if bifurcation is approved.  I won't tell you how to



          22   write that.



          23            MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Else.



          25            MR. ELSE:  One more procedural question.  This
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           1   cleanup process that we're talking about, could that --



           2   my main reason for asking this is I just wanted to have



           3   an opportunity to talk with the community members in



           4   Cascabel and Oracle this evening.



           5            Would it be -- is it possible that the Committee



           6   would vote on the application to amend today with some



           7   sort of provision that this cleanup process would be



           8   completed tomorrow?  Or would you wait until tomorrow?



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  I think we need to find out from



          10   Mr. Acken after he speaks with counsel for the



          11   Corporation Commission and shares that with us.  And I



          12   can be available if I need to participate in that call.



          13            But I think that we need to understand that



          14   unless we can simply get things in the proper order



          15   without it being chaotic, we probably won't vote until



          16   tomorrow.



          17            But if there's any way we can finish it within



          18   the next two or two and a half hours, we'll consider



          19   doing that.



          20            But I can't answer that question till I have a



          21   better understanding on what the expectations of the



          22   Corporation Commission are, because I had my own beliefs



          23   as to how we handle the matter, but I don't want to do



          24   anything to get this matter kicked back to us for a third



          25   hearing.





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      606





           1            I don't think it's at all necessary and a



           2   precious waste of time, and even though the applicant is



           3   paying for some of this, others of us are government



           4   employees that are getting paid at taxpayers' expense to



           5   be here.



           6            So anyway, we're all happy to be here but we're



           7   taking a recess at this time.  And let's make it till



           8   about 2:50.



           9            (Recess from 2:28 p.m. to 2:51 p.m.)



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  We can go back on the record.  All



          11   of -- I see Mr. Costello isn't present.  But I think we



          12   can at least determine whether we're going forward.  Yes,



          13   Mr. Else?



          14            MR. ELSE:  Mr. Costello left.



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  Oh, he did leave.  That's fine,



          16   because I know that he knows where we were at right now



          17   and has vocalized his position.



          18            With Mr. Costello gone we can go forward, but I



          19   didn't know what your thoughts were in terms of putting



          20   proper order and CECs together, and whether or not you've



          21   been instructed by the Corporation Commission counsel to



          22   do anything specifically.



          23            Because I want to make sure that we don't get it



          24   kicked back.  On the other hand I think we need to use



          25   our own independent judgment in doing the right thing.
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           1            MR. ACKEN:  So, thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I did



           2   speak with Stephen Emedi from the Commission legal.  He



           3   confirmed that in the several prior cases where the CEC



           4   issued two CECs, there was a separate decision for each.



           5   So a separate form of order for each.



           6            And so he didn't take a position on whether we



           7   needed to do that here or not.  That it is the past



           8   practice.  It would be the applicant's preference to



           9   follow that past practice.



          10            I think one good reason -- I understand some



          11   benefits of having them together in one.  One reason to



          12   keep them separate is, you know, let's say down the line



          13   an extension is needed for one, and I shouldn't even go



          14   there, but let's say something needs to be changed for



          15   one and that way you could just -- that applicant could



          16   deal with that CEC and not the other.



          17            And so, and they can go to financing and say I



          18   have decision number X, Y -- well, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 for my



          19   project and it's exclusive to my project.  So we would



          20   ask for the two separate forms of order.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  I wholeheartedly agree that we



          22   should have separate CECs, but I think we only need one



          23   order.



          24            MR. ACKEN:  No, but that's what I was saying



          25   previously it has been two orders.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



           2            MR. ACKEN:  One for each CEC.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  But they're eventually going



           4   to either, if we're granting amendments the two orders



           5   would be addressed, I mean, would be substantially



           6   identical.



           7            MR. ACKEN:  Substantially identical, correct.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  And the CECs would be substantially



           9   identical unless we add some new conditions to one and



          10   not the other.



          11            MR. ACKEN:  Correct.  And that's exactly the way



          12   it's been done on the others where we've bifurcated, at



          13   the outset all the conditions are the same and you just



          14   specify what's different in the --



          15            CHMN. KATZ:  I would ask, it seems to most of



          16   the Committee members I think were planning on staying



          17   here this evening even if we finished up in the next hour



          18   or so.  And we're not going to do that.  So we are going



          19   to hang out.  But I think we should be ready, then, to



          20   look at the documentation by tomorrow morning.



          21            MR. ACKEN:  We will be prepared to do so, yes.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Please contact Tod, though, because



          23   I know on Mondays and Fridays he usually works from home,



          24   and he needs to at least be given the head's up so he can



          25   take whatever you present and properly format it, and if
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           1   there's any need for him and I to discuss, whether I



           2   agree with what he has done, he knows how to reach me.



           3            MR. ACKEN:  We will do so.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  Anybody on the Committee object to



           5   us recessing till 9 o'clock tomorrow morning?  I'm



           6   hearing no objection.  So we will do that.  And I don't



           7   know what we'll do for the next few hours, but maybe take



           8   a tour of this place and see what's out there or take a



           9   nap.  But anyway.  We do stand in recess.



          10            (The hearing recessed at 2:55 p.m.)



          11



          12



          13



          14



          15



          16



          17



          18



          19



          20



          21



          22



          23



          24



          25





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                      LS CASE NO. 171 AMENDED    VOL III    09-08-2022

                                                                      610





           1   STATE OF ARIZONA       )

                                      )

           2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )



           3        BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were

               taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

           4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to

               the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

           5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced

               to print under my direction.

           6

                    I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

           7   parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

               outcome hereof.

           8

                    I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

           9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and

               ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).

          10

                    Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this 12th day of

          11   September, 2022.



          12



          13



          14

                          ___________________________________
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